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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
☑ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended: December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024

OR

☐ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from            to             

Commission file number: 001-41520

Noble Corporation plc
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

England and Wales   98-1644664

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. employer identification number)

13135 Dairy Ashford, 2101 City West Boulevard, Suite 800, Sugar Land, 600, Houston, Texas, 77478 77042
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code: (281) 276-6100

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Trading Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered

A Ordinary Shares, par value $0.00001 per share NE New York Stock Exchange

Tranche 1 Warrants of Noble Corporation plc NE WS New York Stock Exchange

Tranche 2 Warrants of Noble Corporation plc NE WSA New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes ☑ No ☐

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes ☐ No ☑

Indicate by check mark whether each registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ☑ No ☐

Indicate by check mark whether each registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). Yes ☑ No ☐

Indicate by check mark whether each registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company or an emerging growth company. See the definitions
of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ☑ Accelerated filer ☐

Non-accelerated filer ☐ Smaller reporting company ☐

Emerging growth company ☐

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards
provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed a report on and attestation to its management’s assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting under Section
404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (15 U.S.C. 7262(b)) by the registered public accounting firm that prepared or issued its audit report. ☑

If securities are registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act, indicate by check mark whether the financial statements of the registrant included in the filing reflect the correction of an error to
previously issued financial statements. ☐

Indicate by check mark whether any of those error corrections are restatements that required a recovery analysis of incentive-based compensation received by any of the registrant’s executive officers
during the relevant recovery period pursuant to 240.D-1(b). ☐

Indicate by check mark whether each registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes ☐ No ☑

As of June 30, 2023 June 28, 2024, the aggregate market value of the registered shares of Noble Corporation plc held by non-affiliates was $4.5 billion $5.1 billion based on the closing price of such
shares on such date as reported on the New York Stock Exchange.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 12, 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of
securities under a plan confirmed by a court. Yes ☑ No ☐
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Number of shares outstanding at February 15, 2024 February 14, 2025: Noble Corporation plc — 142,766,794 159,191,313

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Items 10, 11, 12, 13, and 14 of Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K will be incorporated by reference from the proxy statement for the 2024 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of
Noble Corporation plc to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report”) includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“the Exchange Act”). All statements other than statements of historical facts included in this
report or in the documents incorporated by reference, are forward looking statements, including those regarding expected financial performance, revenues, expected utilization, and
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fleet status, stacking of rigs, effects of new rigs on the market revenues, the impact of the Diamond Transaction, operating expenses, cash flows, contract status, tenders, terms and
duration, dayrates, termination and extensions, contract backlog, the availability, delivery, mobilization, stacking or reactivation, contract commencement, relocation or other
movement of rigs and the timing thereof, contract claims, capital expenditures, insurance maintenance and renewals, access to financing, rig demand, peak oil, the offshore drilling
market, oil prices, production levels among members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries (“OPEC”) and other oil and gas producing nations (together with OPEC,
“OPEC+”), and any expectations we may have with respect thereto, our future financial position, business strategy, impairments, repayment of debt, credit ratings, liquidity,
borrowings under any credit facilities or other instruments, sources of funds, cost inflation, planned acquisitions or divestitures of assets, governmental regulations and permitting,
taxes and tax rates, indebtedness covenant compliance, dividends and distributable reserves, share repurchases, progress, plans and goals related to environmental, social, and
governance matters; the outcome of tax disputes; disputes, assessments and settlements; settlements, and expense management, the outcome of any dispute, litigation, audit or
investigation, plans, foreign currency requirements, results of joint ventures, general economic, market, including inflation and recessions, trends and outlook; outlook, general
political conditions, including political tensions, conflicts and war, timing, benefits or results of acquisitions or dispositions, (including the Business Combination (as defined herein),
and our plans, objectives, expectations, and intentions related to the Business Combination), and timing for compliance with any new regulations. Forward-looking statements
involve risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, and actual results may differ materially from any future results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. When used in
this report or in the documents incorporated by reference, the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “might,” “on track,” “plan,”
“possible,” “potential,” “predict,” “project,” “should,” “would,” “shall,” “target,” “will,” and similar expressions are intended to be among the terms that identify forward-looking
statements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot assure you that such expectations will prove to be
correct. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and we undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking
statement for any reason, except as required by law. The Actual results may differ materially from any future results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements and
the expectations expressing expressed in forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and uncertainties, assumptions, which include, but are not
limited to: a decline in the price of oil or gas, reduced demand for oil and gas products and increased regulation of drilling and production, price competition and cyclicality in the
offshore drilling industry, offshore rig supply, dayrates and demand for rigs, contract duration, renewal, terminations and repricing, national oil companies and governmental clients,
contract backlog, customer and geographic concentration, operational hazards and risks, labor force unionization, labor interruptions and labor regulations, major natural disasters,
catastrophic event, acts of war, terrorism or social unrest, pandemic, or other similar event, joint ventures as well as investments in associates, international operations and related
mobilization and demobilization of rigs, operational interruptions, delays, upgrades, refurbishment and repair of rigs and any related delays and cost overruns or reduced payment of
dayrates, impacts of inflation, renewal of insurance, protection of sensitive information, operational technology systems and critical data, the ability to attract and retain skilled
personnel or the increased cost in doing so, supplier capacity constraints or shortages in parts or equipment, supplier production disruptions, supplier quality and sourcing issues or
price increases, future mergers, acquisitions or dispositions of businesses or assets or other strategic transactions, hurricanes and windstorm damage, responding to long-term
changes in the energy rebalancing, non-performance mix, nonperformance of suppliers or third-party subcontractors, risks related to the Business Combination Diamond Transaction
and related integration, compliance with Governmental governmental laws and regulations, increasing attention to environmental, social and governance matters, including climate
change and accountability for public statements about ESG efforts, compliance with anti-bribery or anti-corruption, international trade laws and regulations, litigation, our ability to
maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, impairments on property and equipment, including rigs and related capital spares,
operating and financial restrictions, and maintenance of covenants in our debt financing, documents, tax disputes, or tax challenges that could cause actual plans or results to differ
materially from those included in any forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed as a result of various factors and could, among other
impacts, impact our ability to repurchase shares and declare and pay dividends such that we suspend our share repurchase program and reduce, suspend, or totally eliminate
dividend payments in well as the future. These factors include those “Risk Factors” referenced or described in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” of this Annual Report and in our other
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). We cannot control such risk factors and other uncertainties, and in many cases, we cannot predict the risks and
uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements. You should consider these risks and uncertainties when
you are evaluating us. Future quarterly dividends and other shareholder returns will be subject to, amongst other things, approval by the Board of Directors and may be modified as
market conditions dictate.

Risk Factors Summary
The following is a summary of the principal risks that could adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Business and Operations

• ▪ our business depends on the level of activity in the oil and gas industry;

• ▪ the offshore contract drilling industry is a highly competitive and cyclical business;

• ▪ an over-supply oversupply of offshore rigs;

• ▪ our ability to renew or replace existing contracts;

• ▪ contracting with national oil companies;

• ▪ our current backlog of contract drilling revenue may not be ultimately realized;

• ▪ our substantial dependence on several customers and geographic locations;

• ▪ operating hazards inherent to the offshore drilling business;

• ▪ risks associated with unionization efforts, labor interruptions, and labor regulations;

• ▪ a major natural disaster, catastrophic event, acts of war, terrorism or social unrest, pandemic, or other similar event;

• ▪ risks associated with participation in joint ventures and investments in associates;

• ▪ risks relating to operations in international locations;

• ▪ upgrades, refurbishment, operating, and maintenance costs of our rigs as well as related operational interruptions and delays in operations;

• ▪ inflation may adversely affect our operating results;

• ▪ obtaining and maintaining insurance;

• ▪ our and our service providers’ failure to adequately protect sensitive information and operational technology systems and critical data;

• ▪ our failure to attract and retain skilled personnel;

• ▪ supplier capacity constraints or shortages in parts or equipment or price increases;
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• ▪ risks associated with future mergers, acquisitions, or dispositions of businesses or assets;

• ▪ our failure to achieve the potential for US intended benefits of the Diamond Transaction;

▪ seasonal weather events, including in the United States Gulf of America, also known as the United States Gulf of Mexico hurricane (the “US Gulf”), and related windstorm
damage or liabilities;

• ▪ our failure to effectively and timely respond to the impact of long-term changes in the energy rebalancing; mix;

• ▪ the potential for sub-standard substandard performance or non-performance nonperformance by third-party suppliers and subcontractors upon which we rely;

• ▪ risks associated with creating and executing new business models;

Risks Related to the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling

• the integration of Maersk Drilling into the combined company may not be as successful as anticipated;

Regulatory and Legal Risks

• ▪ the impact of governmental laws and regulations on our costs and drilling activity;

• ▪ increasing attention to environmental, social, and governance matters (“ESG”), including climate change;

• ▪ changes in, compliance with, or our failure to comply with certain laws and regulations;

• ▪ compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental, social, and governance (“ESG”) matters;

• ▪ violations of anti-bribery or anti-corruption laws;

• ▪ compliance with complex laws and regulations governing international trade;

• ▪ we are, orin the future, could be be subject to litigation;

Financial, Tax, and Governance Risks

• if we fail to remediate our material weakness in internal control over financial reporting, experience additional material weaknesses or otherwise fail to maintain proper and
effective internal controls, our ability to produce accurate financial statements could be impaired, which could adversely affect our operating results, our ability to operate our
business and investors’ view of us;

• we may record impairment charges on property and equipment;

• the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement, and the indenture indentures for the 2030 Notes and the Diamond Second Lien Notes (each as defined herein), and future facilities
may contain various restrictive covenants limiting the discretion of our management in operating our business;

• the impact of a loss of a major tax dispute or a successful tax challenge to our operating structure, intercompany pricing policies, or the taxable presence of our subsidiaries
in certain countries on our tax rate on our worldwide earnings;

• variance in our effective income tax rate;

• fluctuations in exchange rates;

• the interest of certain majority shareholders;

• the uncertainty of future dividends; dividends or future share repurchases;

• our structure as a holding company that is dependent upon cash flows from subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates; and

• dilutive effects on shareholders from future equity sales and warrant exercise. exercises.

For a more complete discussion of the material risks facing our business, see Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” below.

PART I

Item 1. Business.
Overview
Noble Corporation plc, a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, is a leading offshore drilling contractor for the oil and gas industry. We provide
contract drilling services to the international oil and gas industry with our global fleet of mobile offshore drilling units. We focus on a high-specification fleet of floating and jackup rigs
and the deployment of our drilling rigs in oil and gas basins around the world. Noble and its predecessors have been engaged in the contract drilling of oil and gas wells since 1921.
As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, our fleet of 32 40 drilling rigs consisted of 19 27 floaters and 13 jackups.

On July 31, 2020 September 30, 2022 (the “Petition “Merger Effective Date”), our former parent company, Noble Holding Corporation plc, pursuant to a public limited company
incorporated under business combination agreement, dated November 10, 2021 (as amended, the laws of England and Wales (“Legacy Noble” or the “Predecessor” “Business
Combination Agreement”), by and certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including among Noble Finance Company, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability (“Finco”), filed voluntary petitions in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Texas (the “Bankruptcy Court”) seeking relief under chapter 11
of title 11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”). On September 4, 2020, the Debtors (as defined herein) filed with the Bankruptcy Court the Joint Plan of
Reorganization of Noble Corporation plc and its Debtor Affiliates, which was subsequently amended on October 8, 2020 and October 13, 2020 and modified on November 18, 2020
(as amended, modified or supplemented, the “Plan”) below), and the related disclosure statement. On September 24, 2020, six additional subsidiaries of Legacy Noble (together
with Legacy Noble and its subsidiaries that filed on the Petition Date, as the context requires, the “Debtors”) filed voluntary petitions in the Bankruptcy Court. The chapter 11
proceedings were jointly administered under the caption Noble Corporation plc, et al. (Case No. 20-33826) (the “Chapter 11 Cases”). On November 20, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court
entered an order confirming the Plan. In connection with the Chapter 11 Cases and the Plan, on and prior to the Emergence Effective Date (as defined herein), Legacy Noble and
certain of its subsidiaries effectuated certain restructuring transactions pursuant to which Legacy Noble formed Noble Corporation, an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability (“Noble Cayman”), as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Legacy Noble and transferred to Noble Cayman substantially all of the subsidiaries
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and other assets of Legacy Noble. On February 5, 2021 (the “Emergence Effective Date”), the Plan became effective in accordance with its terms, the Debtors emerged from the
Chapter 11 Cases and Noble Cayman became the new parent company. In accordance with the Plan, Legacy Noble and its remaining subsidiary will in due course be wound down
and dissolved in accordance with applicable law. The Bankruptcy Court closed the Chapter 11 Cases with respect to all Debtors other than Legacy Noble, pending its wind down.

On September 30, 2022 (the “Merger Effective Date”), pursuant to a Business Combination Agreement, dated November 10, 2021 (as amended, the “Business Combination
Agreement”), by and among Noble, Noble Cayman, Noble Newco Sub Limited, a Cayman Islands exempted company and a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of Noble (“Merger
Sub”), and The Drilling Company of 1972 A/S, a Danish public limited liability company (“Maersk Drilling”), Noble Cayman merged with and into Merger Sub (the “Merger”), with
Merger Sub surviving the Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Noble. As a result of the Merger, Noble became the ultimate parent of Noble Cayman and its respective
subsidiaries.

On October 3, 2022 (the “Closing Date”), pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement, Noble completed a voluntary tender exchange offer to Maersk Drilling’s shareholders
(the “Offer” and, together with the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, the “Business Combination”) and because Noble
acquired more than 90% of the issued and outstanding shares of Maersk Drilling, nominal value Danish krone (“DKK”) 10 per share (“Maersk Drilling Shares”), Noble redeemed all
remaining Maersk Drilling Shares not exchanged in the Offer for, at the election of the holder, either A ordinary shares, par value $0.00001 per share, of Noble (“Ordinary Shares”)
or cash (or, for those holders that did not make an election, only cash), under Danish law by way of a compulsory purchase (the “Compulsory Purchase”) which was completed in
early November 2022. Upon completion of the Compulsory Purchase, Maersk Drilling became a wholly owned subsidiary of Noble.

On June 9, 2024, Noble entered into an agreement and plan of merger (the “Diamond Merger Agreement”) with Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc. (“Diamond”), Dolphin Merger Sub 1,
Inc., and Dolphin Merger Sub 2, Inc., under which Noble would acquire Diamond in a stock plus cash transaction (the “Diamond Transaction”). On September 4, 2024 (the “Diamond
Closing Date”), Noble completed its acquisition of Diamond.

For additional information, on the Business Combination, see “Note 4 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

As a result of the emergence from the Chapter 11 Cases, Noble Cayman became the successor issuer to Legacy Noble for purposes of and pursuant to the Exchange Act. As a
result of the Merger, Noble became the successor issuer to Noble Cayman for purposes of and pursuant to Rule 12g-3(a) of the Exchange Act. References in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K

to “Noble,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” “us,” and “our” refer collectively to (i) Legacy Noble  Cayman and its consolidated subsidiaries prior to the Emergence Merger Effective Date, (ii)
Noble Cayman and its consolidated subsidiaries on and after the Emergence Effective Date and prior to the Merger Effective Date, and (iii) Noble and its consolidated subsidiaries
(including Noble Cayman) on and after the Merger Effective Date, as applicable.

Upon emergence, the Company applied fresh start accounting in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 852 –
Reorganizations (“ASC 852”). The application of fresh start accounting resulted in a new basis of accounting and the Company becoming a new entity for financial reporting
purposes. Accordingly, our financial statements (iii) Noble and notes its consolidated subsidiaries on and after the Emergence Effective Diamond Closing Date, are not comparable to
our financial statements and notes on and prior to that date.

Strategy
Our business strategy is centered around seeking to engage in efficient, reliable, and safe offshore drilling to provide the best services for our customers. We have one of the
youngest and highest specification fleets of global scale in the industry, with diversification across asset classes, geographic regions, and customers. The Company has a track
record of high utilization coupled with a commitment to safety and customer satisfaction. We strive to be a leader in industry innovation and sustainability.

Our fleet consists predominately of technically advanced units equipped with sophisticated systems and components prepared to execute our customers’ complicated offshore
drilling programs safely and with greater efficiency contributing to an overall reduction of our carbon footprint. We are primarily focused on the ultra-deepwater market and the harsh
and ultra-harsh environment jackup markets, which typically present more technically challenging conditions in which to operate.

We emphasize safe operations, environmental stewardship, and superior performance through a structured management system, the employment of qualified and well-trained
crews and onshore support staff, the care of our surroundings and the neighboring communities where we operate, and other activities advancing our environmental sustainability,
social responsibility, and good governance. We also manage rig operating costs through the implementation and ongoing improvement of innovative systems and processes, which
includes the use of data analytics and predictive maintenance technology.

Our organization prioritizes financial discipline, cash flow generation, and returning cash to shareholders. We will focus on providing that our fleet of floating and jackup rigs meet the
demands of complex drilling programs required by our customers as well as ensuring that we continue to maintain a strong financial position.

Climate change is an environmental, social, and economic challenge facing everyone today. We are committed to ongoing improvement and a sustainable energy future, supported
by our efforts to protect the environment throughout our operations and safely provide reliable and efficient services to allow access to resources essential for human and economic
prosperity. We actively look to collaborate with our customers to evaluate economic alternatives for reducing the carbon footprint of our drilling rigs. applicable.

Contract Drilling Services
We report our contract drilling operations as a single reportable segment, Contract Drilling Services, which reflects how we manage our business. The mobile offshore drilling units
comprising our offshore rig fleet operate in a global market for contract drilling services and are often redeployed to different regions due to changing demands of our customers,
which consist primarily of large, integrated, independent, and government-owned or controlled oil and gas companies throughout the world.

We typically provide contract drilling services under an individual contract on a dayrate basis. Each contract’s final terms and conditions are the result of negotiations with our
customers, and many contracts are awarded through a competitive bidding process. The following terms generally describe the key aspects of our contracts:

• contract duration extending over a specific period of time or a period necessary to drill a defined number of wells;

• payment of compensation to us (generally in US dollars although some customers, typically national oil companies, require a part of the compensation to be paid in local
currency) on a “daywork” basis, so that we receive a fixed amount for each day (“dayrate”) that the drilling unit is operating under contract (a lower rate or no compensation
is payable during periods of equipment breakdown and repair or adverse weather or in the event operations are interrupted by other conditions, some of which may be
beyond our control);
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• provisions permitting early termination of the contract by the customer (i) if the unit is lost or destroyed, (ii) if operations are suspended for a specified period of time due to
breakdown of equipment or breach of contract, or (iii) for convenience with the payment of contractually specified termination amounts;

• provisions allowing the impacted party to terminate the contract if specified “force majeure” events beyond the contracting parties’ control occur for a defined period of time;

• payment by us of the operating expenses of the drilling unit, including labor costs and the cost of incidental supplies;

• provisions that allow us to recover our mobilization and demobilization costs associated with moving a drilling unit from one regional location to another which, under certain
market conditions, may not allow us to receive full reimbursement of such costs;

• provisions that allow us to recover certain cost increases from our customers in certain long-term contracts;

• provisions that require us to lower dayrates for documented cost decreases in certain long-term contracts; and

• provisions that allocate responsibility and liability through indemnification provisions for risks related to personal injury, property damage or loss, environmental damages,
damage to the reservoir, and other matters.

Under our drilling contracts, liability with respect to personnel and property is typically assigned on a “knock-for-knock” basis, which means that we and our customers assume
liability for our respective personnel and property, generally irrespective of the fault or negligence of the party indemnified. In addition, our customers may indemnify us in certain
instances for damage to our down-hole equipment and, in some cases, our subsea equipment. Also, we generally obtain a mutual waiver of consequential losses in our drilling
contracts.

Our customers typically assume responsibility for and indemnify us from loss or liability resulting from pollution or contamination, including third-party damages and clean-up and
removal, arising from operations under the contract and originating below the surface of the water. We are generally responsible for pollution originating above the surface of the
water and emanating from our drilling units. Additionally, our customers typically indemnify us for liabilities incurred as a result of a blow-out or cratering of the well and underground
reservoir loss or damage. In the current market, we are under increasing pressure to accept exceptions to the above-described allocations of risk and, as a result, take on more risk.
In such cases where we agree, we generally limit the exposure with a monetary cap and other restrictions.

During periods of depressed market conditions, our customers may attempt to renegotiate or repudiate their contracts with us although we seek to enforce our rights under our
contracts. The renegotiation may include changes to key contract terms, such as pricing, termination, and risk allocation.

For a discussion of our backlog of commitments for contract drilling services, please read Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations— Contract Drilling Services Backlog.”

Drilling Fleet
Noble is a leading offshore drilling contractor for the oil and gas industry. Noble owns and operates one of the most modern, versatile, and technically advanced fleets of mobile
offshore drilling units in the offshore drilling industry. Noble provides, through its subsidiaries, contract drilling services with a fleet of 32 40 offshore drilling units, consisting of 19 27
floaters and 13 jackups at the date of this report, focused largely on ultra-deepwater and harsh environment drilling opportunities in both established and emerging regions
worldwide. Each type of drilling rig is described further below. Several factors determine the type of unit most suitable for a particular job, the most significant of which include the
water depth and the environment of the intended drilling location, whether the drilling is being done over a platform or other structure, and the intended well depth. At December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024, our fleet was operating in Africa, Far East Asia, the Middle East, the North Sea, Oceania, South America, and the US Gulf of Mexico. Gulf. Our fleet
consists of the following types of mobile offshore drilling units:

Floaters. A drillship is a type of floating drilling unit that is based on the ship-based hull of the vessel and equipped with modern drilling equipment that gives it the capability of
easily transitioning from various worldwide locations and carrying high capacities of equipment while being able to drill ultra-deepwater oil and gas wells in up to 12,000 feet of water.
Drillships can stay directly over the drilling location without anchors in open seas using a dynamic positioning system

(“DPS”), which coordinates position references from satellite signals and acoustic seabed transponders with the drillship's six to eight thrusters to keep the ship directly over the well
that is being drilled. Drillships are selected to drill oil and gas wells for programs that require a high level of simultaneous operations, where drilling loads are expected to be high, or

where there are occurrences of high ocean currents, where the drillship's hull shape is the most efficient. Noble's fleet consists of 15 19 drillships capable of water depths from
10,000 feet to 12,000 feet.

Semisubmersible drilling units are designed as a floating drilling platform incorporating one or several pontoon hulls, which are submerged in the water to lower the center of gravity
and make this type of drilling unit exceptionally stable in the open sea. Semisubmersible drilling units are generally categorized in terms of the water depth in which they are capable
of operating, from the mid-water range of 300 feet to 4,000 feet, the deepwater range of 4,000 feet to 7,500 feet, to the ultra-deepwater range of 7,500 feet to 12,000 feet as well as
by their generation, or date of construction. This type of drilling unit typically exhibits excellent stability characteristics, providing a stable platform for drilling in even rough seas.
Semisubmersible drilling units hold their position over the drilling location using either an anchored mooring system or a DPS and may be self-propelled. Noble’s fleet consists of 4 8
moored ultra-deepwater semisubmersible drilling units.

Jackups. Jackup drilling units are designed to provide drilling solutions in depths ranging from less than 100 feet to as deep as 500 feet of water with drilling hook loads up to
2,500,000 pounds. Jackup rigs can be used in open water exploration locations, as well as over fixed, bottom-supported platforms. A jackup drilling unit is a towed mobile vessel
consisting of a floating hull equipped with three or four legs, which are lowered to the seabed at the drilling location. The hull is then elevated out of the water by the jacking system
using the legs to support the weight of the hull and drilling equipment against the seabed. Once the hull is elevated to the desired level, or jacked up, the drilling package can be
extended out over an existing production platform or the open water location and drilling can commence. Noble’s fleet of 13 jackups consists of high-specification units capable of
drilling in up to 500 feet of water.

The following table presents certain information concerning our offshore fleet at February 22, 2024 February 18, 2025. We own and operate all of the units included in the table.
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Name Name Make Year Built (1)

Water

Depth

Rating

(feet)

(2)

Drilling

Depth

Capacity

(feet) Location Status (3) Name Make Year Built (1)

Water

Depth

Rating

(feet) (2)

Drilling

Depth

Capacity

(feet) Location Stat

Floaters—19

Drillships—15

Drillships—15

Drillships—15      

Floaters—27

Drillships—19

Drillships—19

Drillships—19

Noble Bob Douglas

Noble Bob Douglas

Noble Bob Douglas

Noble Bob

Douglas

GustoMSC

P10000 2013 12,000 40,000 Guyana Active

GustoMSC

P10000 2013 12,000 40,000 Guyana Act

Noble Don Taylor

Noble Don

Taylor

GustoMSC

P10000 2013 12,000 40,000 Guyana Active

Noble Don

Taylor

GustoMSC

P10000 2013 12,000 40,000 Guyana Act

Noble Faye Kozack

Noble Faye

Kozack

Samsung

96000 2013 12,000 40,000 Brazil Active

Noble Faye

Kozack Samsung 96000 2013 12,000 40,000 Brazil Act

Noble Gerry de Souza

Noble

Gerry de

Souza

Samsung

120000

Double Hull 2011 12,000 40,000 Nigeria Active

Noble

Gerry de

Souza

Samsung

120000 Double

Hull 2011 12,000 40,000 Nigeria Act

Noble Globetrotter I

Noble

Globetrotter

I

Globetrotter

Class 2011 10,000 30,000 US Gulf of Mexico Active

Noble

Globetrotter

I

Globetrotter

Class 2011 10,000 30,000 US Gulf Act

Noble Globetrotter II

Noble

Globetrotter

II

Globetrotter

Class 2013 10,000 30,000 US Gulf of Mexico Active

Noble

Globetrotter

II

Globetrotter

Class 2013 10,000 30,000 US Gulf Avai

Noble Sam Croft

Noble Sam

Croft

GustoMSC

P10000 2014 12,000 40,000 Guyana Active

Noble Sam

Croft

GustoMSC

P10000 2014 12,000 40,000 Guyana Act

Noble Stanley Lafosse

Noble

Stanley

Lafosse

Samsung

96000 2014 12,000 40,000 US Gulf of Mexico Active

Noble

Stanley

Lafosse Samsung 96000 2014 12,000 40,000 US Gulf Act

Noble Tom Madden

Noble Tom

Madden

GustoMSC

P10000 2014 12,000 40,000 Guyana Active

Noble Tom

Madden

GustoMSC

P10000 2014 12,000 40,000 Guyana Act

Pacific Meltem (4)

Pacific

Meltem (4)

Samsung

96000 2014 12,000 40,000 Las Palmas Stacked

Pacific

Meltem (4) Samsung 96000 2014 12,000 40,000 Las Palmas Stac

Pacific Scirocco (4)

Pacific

Scirocco (4)

Samsung

120000

Double Hull 2011 12,000 40,000 Las Palmas Stacked

Pacific

Scirocco (4)

Samsung

120000 Double

Hull 2011 12,000 40,000 Las Palmas Stac

Noble Valiant

Noble

Valiant

Samsung

96000 2014 12,000 40,000 US Gulf of Mexico Active

Noble

Valiant Samsung 96000 2014 12,000 40,000 US Gulf Act

Noble Venturer

Noble

Venturer

Samsung

96000 2014 12,000 40,000 Ghana Active

Noble

Venturer Samsung 96000 2014 12,000 40,000 Namibia Act

Noble Viking

Noble

Viking

Samsung

96000 2014 12,000 40,000 Malaysia Active

Noble

Viking Samsung 96000 2014 12,000 40,000 Malaysia Act

Noble Voyager

Noble

Voyager

Samsung

96000 2015 12,000 40,000 Suriname Active

Noble

Voyager Samsung 96000 2015 12,000 40,000 Curacao Avai

Semisubmersibles—4  

Noble BlackRhino

Gusto

P10000 2014 12,000 40,000 US Gulf Active

Ocean BlackHawk

Gusto

P10000 2014 12,000 40,000 US Gulf Active

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2025 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

9/154

Ocean BlackHornet

Gusto

P10000 2014 12,000 40,000 US Gulf Active

Ocean BlackLion

Gusto

P10000 2015 12,000 40,000 US Gulf Active

Semisubmersibles

—8

Noble Deliverer

Noble Deliverer

Noble Deliverer

Noble

Deliverer

DSS21-

DPS2 2010 10,000 40,000 Australia Active

DSS21-

DPS2 2010 10,000 40,000 Malaysia Avai

Noble Developer

Noble

Developer

DSS21-

DPS2 2009 10,000 40,000 Trinidad & Tobago Available

Noble

Developer DSS21-DPS2 2009 10,000 40,000

Trinidad &

Tobago Act

Noble Discoverer

Noble

Discoverer

DSS21-

DPS2 2009 10,000 40,000 Colombia Active

Noble

Discoverer DSS21-DPS2 2009 10,000 40,000 Colombia Act

Noble Explorer (4)

DSS20-

CAM-M 2003 3,281 30,000 Azerbaijan Stacked

Independent Leg Cantilevered

Jackups—13

Independent Leg Cantilevered

Jackups—13

Noble Patriot Bingo 3000 1983 1,500 20,000 UK Active

Ocean Apex

Enhanced

Victory 1976/2014 6,000 30,000 Australia Active

Ocean Courage

F&G ExD

Millennium 2009 10,000 40,000 Brazil Active

Ocean Endeavor

Enhanced

Victory 1975/2006 10,000 35,000 UK Active

Ocean GreatWhite

Moss CS-

60E 2016 10,000 35,000 UK Active

Independent Leg Cantilevered

Jackups—13

Harsh environment—8

Harsh environment—8

Harsh environment—8

Noble Highlander

Noble Highlander

Noble Highlander

F&G JU-

2000E 2016 400 30,000 Denmark Stacked

F&G JU-

2000E 2016 400 30,000 Denmark Stac

Noble Mick O’Brien

Noble Mick

O’Brien

F&G JU-

3000N 2013 400 35,000 Qatar Active

Noble Mick

O’Brien F&G JU-3000N 2013 400 35,000 Qatar Act

Noble Regina Allen

Noble

Regina

Allen

F&G JU-

3000N 2013 400 30,000 Argentina Active

Noble

Regina

Allen F&G JU-3000N 2013 400 30,000 Argentina Act

Noble Resilient

Noble

Resilient

MCS CJ50-

X100 MC 2008 350 30,000 Denmark Active

Noble

Resilient

MCS CJ50-X100

MC 2008 350 30,000 UK Act

Noble Resolute

Noble

Resolute

MCS CJ50-

X100 MC 2008 350 30,000 Netherlands Active

Noble

Resolute

MCS CJ50-X100

MC 2008 350 30,000 Netherlands Act

Noble Resolve

Noble

Resolve

MCS CJ50-

X100 MC 2009 350 30,000 Denmark Active

Noble

Resolve

MCS CJ50-X100

MC 2009 350 30,000 Poland Act

Noble Tom Prosser

Noble Tom

Prosser

F&G JU-

3000N 2014 400 30,000 Malaysia Active

Noble Tom

Prosser F&G JU-3000N 2014 400 30,000 Malaysia Act

Noble Reacher

Noble

Reacher

MCS CJ50-

X100 MC 2009 350 30,000 Denmark Active

Noble

Reacher

MCS CJ50-X100

MC 2009 350 30,000 Denmark Act

Ultra-harsh

environment—5
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Noble Innovator

Noble Innovator

Noble Innovator

MCS CJ70-

150MC 2003 492 30,000 UK Active

Noble Integrator

MCS CJ70-

X150 MD 2015 492 40,000 Norway Active

Noble Interceptor

MCS CJ70-

X150 MD 2014 492 40,000 Denmark Available

Noble Intrepid

MCS CJ70-

X150 MD 2014 492 40,000 UK Active

Noble Invincible

MCS CJ70-

X150 MD 2016 492 40,000 Norway Active

Ultra-harsh environment—5

Noble Innovator MCS CJ70-150MC 2003 492 30,000 UK Active

Noble Integrator MCS CJ70-X150 MD 2015 492 40,000 Norway Active

Noble Interceptor MCS CJ70-X150 MD 2014 492 40,000 Denmark Available

Noble Intrepid MCS CJ70-X150 MD 2014 492 40,000 UK Active

Noble Invincible MCS CJ70-X150 MD 2016 492 40,000 Norway Active

(1)    All of our current rigs were delivered to the Company new from the shipyard.

(2)    Rated water depth for drillships and semisubmersibles reflects the maximum water depth for which a floating rig has been designed for drilling operations.

(3)     Rigs listed as “active” are operating, preparing to operate, or under contract; rigs listed as “available” are actively seeking contracts and may include those that are idle or
warm stacked; rigs listed as “shipyard” are in a shipyard or preparing to enter a shipyard for construction, repair, refurbishment or upgrade; rigs listed as “stacked” are idle
without a contract, have reduced or no crew, or are not actively marketed in present market conditions.

(4)Rig is held for sale as of December 31, 2023     In February 2025, we committed to a plan to sell the Pacific Meltem and Pacific Scirocco.

Market
The offshore contract drilling industry is a highly competitive and cyclical business. Demand for offshore drilling services is driven by the offshore exploration and development
programs of oil and gas operators, which in turn are influenced by many factors. Those factors include, but are not limited to, the price and price stability of oil and gas, the relative
cost and carbon footprint of offshore resources within each operator’s broader energy portfolio, global macroeconomic conditions, world energy demand, the operator’s strategy
toward renewable energy sources, environmental considerations, and governmental policies.

In the provision of offshore contract drilling services, success in securing contracts is primarily governed by price, a rig’s availability, drilling capabilities and technical specifications,
and the drilling contractor’s safety performance record. Other factors include experience of the workforce, process efficiency, condition of equipment, operating integrity, reputation,
industry standing, and client relations.

We maintain a global operational presence and compete in many of the major offshore oil and gas basins worldwide with a primary focus on the deepwater and ultra-deepwater
market and the harsh and ultra-harsh environment jackup and floater markets. All our drilling rigs are mobile, and we may reposition our drilling rigs among regions for a variety of
reasons, including in response to customer requirements. We compete in both the jackup and floating rig markets, each of which may have different supply and demand dynamics
at a given period in time or in different regions.

We have one of the youngest and highest specification fleets of global scale in the industry, with diversification across asset classes, geographic regions, and customers. The
Company has a track record of industry-leading utilization, coupled with a commitment to best-in-class safety performance and customer satisfaction. We strive to be a leader in
industry innovation and first-mover in sustainability.

Over the last decade, the The offshore drilling industry has historically experienced significant volatility and change. After several In recent years, of a significantly oversupplied rig
market, industry conditions had started to gradually improve in 2019. However, in the first half of 2020, this gradual recovery was abruptly halted by production disagreements
among OPEC+ members and the global COVID-19 pandemic. This had a negative impact on both utilization and dayrates for the offshore drilling industry and led to further financial
challenges for many drilling and other service companies. However, by early 2021, oil prices returned to pre-pandemic levels and continued to rise throughout 2021.

Since 2021, however, oil prices have generally remained at levels that are supportive of offshore exploration and development activity. While ongoing geopolitical crises and related
sanctions, inflationary pressures and the subsequent government and central bank efforts macroeconomic factors continue to curb inflation, recession concerns, and supply chain
disruptions have created create some uncertainty relating to future global energy demand, global offshore rig demand has increased generally remained robust since 2021.

This increase  During 2023 and 2024, the total level of global floater and jackup demand exceeded 2020 early pre-pandemic highs, albeit with some moderation over the past 12
months as upstream capital discipline has resulted in global a slight reduction in contracted offshore rig demand has been the compared to early 2024 peak levels. As a result, of the
combination of growing confidence in commodity prices remaining at or above current levels, heightened focus on energy security, recent multi-year underinvestment in the
development and exploration of hydrocarbons, and relative attractiveness of offshore plays with respect to both cost and a carbon emissions perspective. This had a positive impact
on both utilization and day rates leading edge dayrates for certain rig classes have recently plateaued or decreased. A further softening of our rig classes. utilization in 2025 could
result in corresponding dayrate pressure in certain situations due to a more competitive bidding environment.

The global rig supply has come down from historic highs as Noble and other offshore drilling contractors have retired less capable and idle assets. Concurrently, the incoming supply
of newbuild offshore drilling rigs has diminished materially, with several newbuild rigs stranded in shipyards. However, we expect many of these stranded newbuild rigs may continue
to make their way into the global market over the next few years.
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Although the market outlook in our business varies by geographical region and water depth, we remain encouraged by the long-term outlook in the ultra-deepwater floater market,
with overall demand having increased from 2020 lows. Our customers continue to focus on the our highest specification floaters, which represents the majority of our floater fleet.
We have also experienced an overall demand increase in the global jackup market, with the Middle East being the largest component of While

this increase. While we remain encouraged about increasing overall rig demand, to the extent global macroeconomic concerns become more prevalent, we could experience
downward pressure on oil and gas prices as well as overall rig demand for both floaters and jackups.

As of the date of this report, the majority of our jackup fleet is positioned in the North Sea. While we are starting to see some increased tender activity have seen generally stable
demand in the UK and southern North Sea in recent years, overall activity levels in the region remain subdued compared to historical levels. It is currently a similar story in Similarly,
the Norway ultra-harsh environment jackup market where current activity in Norway also remains below historical levels despite the market being attractive to operators given it is
characterized by low-cost and low-emission barrels.

While Returning to the length broader offshore drilling market, while there are a number of contract terms has started to moderately increase, multi-year contracts out for tender, the
overall market remains characterized by generally shorter-term contracts. This leads to an increased number of rig contract start-ups, both with different customers and among
different regions, which may require incremental resources and cost. costs. Additionally, this has resulted in, and is likely to continue to result in, lower overall effective utilization for
our fleet driven by more idle time between contracts.

The energy transition from hydrocarbons to renewables poses a challenge to the oil and gas sector and our market. Energy rebalancing trends have accelerated in recent years as
evidenced by promulgated or proposed government policies and commitments by many of our customers to further invest in sustainable energy sources. Our industry could be
further challenged as our customers rebalance their resource holders and policy makers continue to evaluate and calibrate strategies and capital investments more towards
alternative flows to address global energy sources. However, at the same time, needs. Ultimately, however, there continues to be a global dependence on products made from
hydrocarbons and on the combustion of hydrocarbons to provide reliable and affordable energy. Low-cost and low-emission barrels are still necessary expected to be the most
attractive conventional source to meet energy needs both current currently and in the future. Global energy demand is predicted to increase over the coming decades, and we
expect that offshore oil and gas will continue to play an important and sustainable lasting role in meeting this demand.

We expect While inflationary pressures in our industry have eased since 2023, our cost profile remains sensitive to persist, which has led or may lead to increased costs of services.
Additionally, we expect supply chain disruptions to continue, global labor market conditions, capital intensive repair and potentially accelerate, as maintenance scopes on our rigs,
global trade and sanctions regimes, and geopolitical crises and their respective regional and global ramifications, have ramifications. Each of these factors has the potential to
negatively adversely impact our ability to conduct our day-to-day operations. operations and manage costs.

Significant Customers
During the three years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, we principally conducted our contract drilling operations in Africa, Far East Asia, the Middle East, the North
Sea, Oceania, South America, and the US Gulf of Mexico. Gulf. The following table sets forth revenues from our customers as a percentage of our consolidated operating revenues:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended through through

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

Exxon Mobil Corporation (“ExxonMobil”) 24.5 % 32.3 % 39.1 % 29.8 %

Shell plc 13.6 % 12.0 % 13.3 % 30.0 %

TotalEnergies 10.5 % 9.7 % 3.3 % — %

Saudi Arabian Oil Company (“Saudi Aramco”) — % — % 9.8 % 13.9 %

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Exxon Mobil Corporation (“ExxonMobil”) 22.1 % 24.5 % 32.3 %

Shell plc 12.3 % 13.6 % 12.0 %

TotalEnergies 6.3 % 10.5 % 9.7 %

No other customer accounted for more than 10 percent of our consolidated operating revenues in 2024, 2023, 2022, or 2021. 2022.

Human Capital
At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, we had approximately 3,600 5,000 employees, excluding approximately 1,700 1,400 persons we engaged through labor contractors or
agencies. Approximately 79% 80% percent of our workforce is located offshore. Certain of our employees and contractors in international markets, such as Norway and Denmark,
are represented by labor unions and work under collective bargaining or similar agreements, which are subject to periodic renegotiation, and we consider our employee relations to
be satisfactory.

For additional information, please read Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors—Risk Related to Our Business and Operations—Unionization efforts, labor interruptions and labor regulations
could have a material adverse effect on our operations.”

Our compliance program is focused on promoting adherence with high ethical standards and applicable laws and setting the tone for an ethical business practices and work
environment throughout the Company. The Noble Code, Noble’s code of business conduct and ethics (the “Code of Conduct”), encompasses our commitments to our Core Values
of safety, environmental stewardship, honesty and integrity, respect, and performance. The Code of Conduct also includes our responsibility and commitment to follow all applicable
laws as well as our own internal policies, and extends requirements to any supplier or third party who works with Noble to comply with similar fundamental principles.
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Operating our business in a socially responsible way is integral to our identity. Internally, our employee-focused programs, such as training and continuing education, our promotion
and advancement program, diversity, equity, focus on inclusion and inclusion, culture, recruitment initiatives, and retirement and benefits, are key to our commitment to the personal
and professional growth of our workforce. Externally, our dedication is evidenced by our affiliations and how we contribute to and invest in the communities where we operate.

Talent Management. Noble is committed to a number of initiatives that directly support our employee talent management. Noble has implemented a Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion
(“DEI”) policy reflecting the Company’s commitment to and outlining the Company’s efforts regarding DEI. As part of our DEI policy, these initiatives, Noble aspires to:

• Promote is committed to the promotion of equal opportunity and non-discrimination

• Build diverse talent and fostering aspires to not only promote an environment and culture of inclusion,

• Safeguard good working conditions

Noble’s DEI initiatives include diverse recruitment shortlists, efforts to build diverse talent pipelines, and promoting inclusion to  but also provide healthy working conditions that
enable our employees to reach their full potential.

In order to enable regular feedback loops and a continuous focus on employee engagement, we have implemented quarterly implement semi-annual Employee Engagement
Surveys, results of which are shared with the organization and leaders engage their teams in a conversation regarding the results and subsequent actions.

During 2023, Noble implemented a new approach across the combined organization which also focuses on enabling performance through continuous conversations between the
leader and the employee. The conversations are intended to take place at least twice a year and follow a structured framework pertaining to contributions, engagement, and
development, and incorporate two-way feedback.

We also identify high-performing and high-potential individuals within Noble and aspire to ensure succession planning regarding all critical positions. We focus on engagement and
retention of such individuals by aspiring to offer experiences and opportunities that demonstrate our commitment to their ongoing growth.

Safety and Environmental Stewardship. Noble is committed to operating with excellent health, safety, and environmental (“HSE”) performance as part of our business strategy in
order to add further value for employees, customers, and shareholders. All personnel, regardless of job or position onboard our vessels or at any Noble facility, has the authorization
and obligation to immediately stop any unsafe act, practice, or job that poses an unaddressed or unreasonable risk or danger to people or the environment. Noble’s pursuit of
exceptional HSE performance begins with our strong corporate culture and by starting SAFE every day: one tour, one task and one person at a time. SAFE is an acronym for the
phrase: follow Standards, be Accountable, stay Focused, achieve Excellence. Daily, the crew onboard each rig works together to achieve specific safety and environmental
objectives and if all objectives are met, then the day is counted as a SAFE Day. Under our SAFE Day program, in 2023, 2024, our rigs achieved the SAFE objectives 98.7% 98.6%
of available days, which is a slight improvement over 2022 has remained flat compared to 2023 performance. As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, this metric was is only
available to for vessels owned by Noble prior to the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling and all but four vessels acquired as part of the Business Combination. Once Diamond
Transaction. As integration activities are completed during the first quarter of 2024, throughout 2025, all current Noble vessels will utilize this program.

Training and Continuing Education. We place considerable value on the training and development of our employees. Accordingly, we conduct formal and informal meetings with
employees, regular executive-led podcasts, issue periodic publications of Company activities, and other matters of interest to the Company’s OneNoble app and offer a variety of
training, including in-house through NobleAdvances, our state-of-the-art training facility in Sugar Land, Texas. NobleAdvances and Noble has learned that technical skills are not
enough to keep pace in our experienced team of instructors have provided introductory, intermediate, and advanced level, well-specific scenario training for Noble employees,
industry professionals, and third-party industry service providers.

fast-changing offshore environments. NobleAdvances allows us to deliver Noble-specific scenario-based drilling and marine training that includes with a strong focus on
communication, biases, and emergency decision making. This approach is designed to enable Noble employees to execute our policies, procedures effectively and culture.
Incorporating this into our well control, compliance, and cyber training has proven to be important to training. solve complex technical problems in challenging offshore conditions.

Environmental Responsibility
Climate change is an environmental, social, and economic challenge facing everyone today. We are committed to continuous improvement and a sustainable energy future
supported by our efforts to protect the environment throughout our operations and safely provide reliable and efficient services to allow access to resources essential for human and
economic prosperity. There is ongoing attention concerning the global climate and the effect of greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions. Various regulators have proposed or adopted
rules requiring the monitoring and reporting of GHG emissions from specified sources in the United States, including, among other things, certain offshore activities relating to oil
and gas production. As such, we regularly assess the environmental impact of operations, focusing on the reduction of GHG emissions, operational discharges, water use, and
waste. Furthermore, we actively look to collaborate with our customers to evaluate economic alternatives for reducing the carbon footprint of our drilling rigs.

Available Information
Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Exchange Act are available free of charge at our website as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished with the SEC. The
SEC

maintains an internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC at http://www.sec.gov.

Our website address is http://www.noblecorp.com. Investors should also note that we announce material financial information in SEC filings, press releases, and public conference
calls. Based on guidance from the SEC, we may use the investor relations section of our website to communicate with our investors. It is possible that the financial and other
information (including fleet status reports) posted there could be deemed to be material information. Noble may also use social media channels including, but not limited to, Noble's
accounts on LinkedIn, Facebook, Instagram, and Twitter, to communicate with investors and the public about its business, services, and other matters, and those communications
could be deemed to be material information. Documents and information on our website or our social media channels are not incorporated by reference herein.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.
You should carefully consider the following risk factors in addition to the other information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Each of these risk factors could affect our
business, operating results, and financial condition as well as affect an investment in our shares.

Risks Related to Our Business and Operations
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Our business depends on the level of activity in the oil and gas industry. Adverse developments affecting the industry, including a decline in the price of oil or gas,
reduced demand for oil and gas products, and increased regulation of drilling and production, have in the past had, and may in the future, have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Demand for drilling services depends on a variety of economic and political factors and the level of activity in offshore oil and gas exploration and development and production
markets around the world. The price of oil and gas and market anticipation of potential changes in the price, significantly affect this level of activity, as well as dayrates that we can
charge customers for our services. Crude oil prices dropped to as remain volatile; for example, Brent crude reached a low as approximately $19.33 per barrel of Brent Crude $9.12 in
April 2020 and while oil prices have partially recovered recently, they remain volatile. a 5-year high of $133.18 in 2022.

Higher prices do not necessarily translate into increased drilling activity because our customers typically take into account a number of considerations when they decide to invest in

offshore oil and gas resources, including expectations regarding future commodity prices and demand for hydrocarbons. While the price of oil and gas remains volatile, the level of
activity in offshore oil and gas exploration and development can be extremely volatile and can be affected by numerous factors beyond our control, including:

• ▪ worldwide production, current demand, and our customer’s views of future demand for oil and gas, gas;

• ▪ changes in the rate of economic growth in the global economy;

• ▪ the cost of exploring for, developing, producing, and delivering oil and gas;

• ▪ the ability of OPEC and OPEC+ to set and maintain production levels and pricing;

• ▪ expectations regarding future energy prices;

• ▪ increased supply of oil and gas resulting from onshore hydraulic fracturing activity and shale development;

• ▪ the relative cost of offshore oil and gas exploration versus onshore oil and gas production;

• ▪ potential acceleration in the investment, development, and the price and availability of alternative fuels or energy sources;

• ▪ allocation of capital to exploration and production operations within customers’ broader portfolios;

• ▪ the level of production in non-OPEC+ countries;

• ▪ inventory levels and the cost and availability of storage and transportation of oil, gas, and their related products;

• ▪ worldwide financial instability or recessions;

• ▪ regulatory restrictions or any moratorium on offshore drilling or the availability of offshore lease or concession areas;

• ▪ the discovery rate of new oil and gas reserves either onshore or offshore;

• ▪ the rate of decline of existing and new oil and gas reserves;

• ▪ available pipeline and other oil and gas transportation capacity;

• ▪ oil refining capacity;

• ▪ the ability of oil and gas companies to raise capital;

• ▪ limitations on liquidity and available credit;

• ▪ advances in exploration, development, and production technology either onshore or offshore;

• ▪ technical advances affecting energy consumption, including the displacement of hydrocarbons;

• ▪ merger, acquisition, and divestiture activity among oil and gas industry participants;

• ▪ the availability of, and access to, suitable locations from which hydrocarbons can be produced;

• ▪ adverse weather and sea conditions, including hurricanes, typhoons, cyclones, winter storms, and rough seas;

• ▪ the occurrence or threat of a major natural disaster, catastrophic event, epidemic, or pandemic diseases, as well as any governmental response to such occurrence or
threat;

• ▪ changes in and compliance with tax laws, regulations, and policies;

• ▪ changes in and compliance with environmental laws, regulations, and other initiatives, including those involving alternative energy sources, the phase-out of fossil fuel
consuming vehicles, and the risks of global climate change;

• ▪ the political environment of oil-producing countries or regions, including uncertainty or instability resulting from civil disorder, geopolitical instability, border disputes, or an
outbreak or escalation of armed hostilities or acts of war or terrorism, such as the conflict between Russia and Ukraine, Middle East conflicts, and the Guyana-Venezuela
dispute, and their respective regional and global ramifications; and

• ▪ the laws, regulations, and policies of governments regarding exploration and development of their oil and gas reserves or speculation regarding future laws or regulations.

Adverse developments affecting the industry as a result of factors such as those listed above, including a decline in the price of oil and gas from their current levels or the failure of
the price of oil and gas to consistently remain at or above a level that encourages our customers to expand their capital spending, the inability of our customers to access capital on
economically advantageous terms, including as a result of the increasing focus on climate change by investors, a global recession, reduced demand for oil and gas products, or a
perception that the demand for hydrocarbons will significantly decrease, increased supply due to the development of new onshore drilling and production technologies, and
increased regulation of drilling and production, particularly if several developments were to occur in a short period of time, would have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations. However, increases in near-term commodity prices do not necessarily translate into increased offshore drilling activity because
customers’ expectations of longer-term future commodity prices and expectations regarding future demand for hydrocarbons typically have a greater impact on demand for our rigs.
The level of oil and gas prices has had, and may in the future have, a material adverse effect on demand for our services, and future declines in prices would likely have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

The offshore contract drilling industry is a highly competitive and cyclical business with intense price competition. If we are unable to compete successfully, our
profitability may be materially reduced.
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The offshore contract drilling industry is a highly competitive and cyclical business characterized by high capital and operating costs and evolving capability of newer rigs. Drilling
contracts are traditionally awarded on a competitive bid basis. Price competition, rig availability, location, suitability, and technical specifications are the primary factors in
determining which rig is qualified for a job, and additional factors such as experience of the workforce, operating efficiency, safety performance record, condition of equipment,
operating integrity, reputation, industry standing, and customer relations are also often considered. Our future success and profitability will partly depend upon our ability to keep
pace with our customers’ demands with respect to these factors. In the past several years, the pace of consolidation in our industry has increased, and may continue to increase,
leading to the creation of a number of larger and financially stronger competitors. If we are unable, or our customers believe that we are unable, to compete with the scale and
financial strength of certain of our competitors, it could harm our ability to maintain existing drilling contracts and secure new ones.

Further, if current competitors implement new or differentiated technical capabilities, services or standards, specifications, which may be more attractive to our customers or price
their product offerings more competitively, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. We may face competitive pressure
to develop, implement, or acquire certain new technologies at a substantial cost. We cannot be certain that we will be able to continue to develop and implement new technologies
or products.services offered.

Our industry is also cyclical, periods cyclical. Periods of low demand or excess rig supply intensify the competition in the industry and have resulted in, and may continue to result in,
many of our rigs earning substantially lower dayrates or being idle for long periods of time. Although, since the 2014 peak, the industry has experienced a rationalization and
correction of the global offshore rig supply, we continue to experience competition from newbuild rigs, including rigs that have been stranded in shipyards, that have either already
entered the market or are available to enter the market. The entry of these rigs into the market has resulted in, and may in the future result in, lower dayrates for both newbuilds and
existing rigs rolling off their current contracts. In addition, our competitors may relocate rigs to geographic markets in which we operate, which could exacerbate any excess rig
supply, or depress the current rationalization and correction of offshore rig supply, and result in lower dayrates and utilization in those regions.

In addition, our customers continue to seek more favorable terms with respect to allocation of risk under offshore drilling contracts. Our drilling contracts provide for varying levels of
risk allocation and indemnification from our customers. Our customers have historically assumed most of the responsibility for and indemnified us from loss, damage, or other
liability resulting from pollution or contamination, environmental damage, including clean-up and removal and third-party damages arising from operations under the contract when
the source of the pollution originates from the well or reservoir, including those resulting from blow-outs or loss of well control. However, we regularly are required to assume certain
amounts of liability for pollution and environmental damage caused by our negligence, which liability generally has higher caps, or may even have unlimited liability, where the
damage is caused by our gross negligence or willful misconduct. We still face resistance with some customers when attempting to allocate less risk to us and lower caps for damage
caused by our gross negligence or willful misconduct or reduce our exposure with respect pollution or contamination. environmental damage. Our contracts may also be subject to
court assessment judicial review and application of public policy principles whereby a court relevant authorities could decide that certain contractual indemnities in current or future
contracts are not enforceable. Going forward, we could decide or be required to retain more risk in the future, resulting in higher risk of losses, which could be material. Moreover,
we may not be able to maintain adequate insurance in the future at rates that we consider reasonable or be able to obtain insurance against certain current or future risks.

We have not been, and may continue not to be, able to renew or replace certain expiring contracts, and our customers have sought, and may seek in the future, to
terminate, renegotiate, or repudiate our drilling contracts and have had, and may have in the future, financial difficulties that prevent them from meeting their
obligations under our drilling contracts.

Our ability to renew contracts that expire or obtain new contracts and the terms of any such contracts will depend on market conditions and our customers' expectations and
assumptions of future oil prices and other factors.

Depending on market conditions, we have also experienced customers seeking price reductions for our services, payment deferrals, and termination of our contracts; customers
seeking to not perform under our contracts pursuant to a force majeure claim; and customers that are unable or unwilling to timely pay outstanding receivables owed to us, all of
which present liquidity challenges for us. Our customers may generally terminate our drilling contracts if a drilling rig is destroyed or lost or if we have to suspend drilling operations
for a specified period of time as a result of a breakdown of equipment or, in some cases, due to other events beyond the control of either party. In the case of nonperformance and
under certain other conditions, our drilling contracts generally allow our customers to terminate without any payment to us. The terms of some of our drilling contracts permit the
customer to terminate the contract after a specified notice period by tendering contractually specified termination amounts or, in some cases, without any payment. These
termination payments, if any, may not fully compensate us for the loss of a contract. The early termination of a contract may result in a rig being idle for an extended period of time
and a reduction in our contract backlog and associated revenue, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
Moreover, if any of our long-term contracts were to be terminated early, such termination could affect our future earnings flow and could have a material adverse effect on our future
financial condition and results of operations even if we were to receive the contractually specified termination amount.

During periods of depressed market conditions, we are subject to an increased risk of our customers seeking to renegotiate or repudiate their contracts. The ability of our customers
to perform their obligations under drilling contracts with us may also be adversely affected by the financial condition of the customer, restricted credit markets, economic downturns,
and industry downturns. We may elect to renegotiate the rates we receive under our drilling contracts downward if we determine that to be a reasonable business solution. If our
customers cancel or are unable to perform their obligations under their drilling contracts, including their payment obligations, and we are unable to secure new contracts on a timely
basis on substantially similar terms or if we elect to renegotiate our drilling contracts and accept terms that are less favorable to us, it could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Drilling contracts with national oil companies may expose us to greater risks than we normally assume in drilling contracts with non-governmental customers.

Contracts with national oil companies are often non-negotiable and may expose us to greater commercial, political, and operational risks than we assume in other contracts, such as
exposure to materially greater environmental liability and other claims for damages (including consequential damages) and personal injury related to our operations, or the risk that
the contract may be terminated by our customer without cause on short-term notice, contractually or by governmental action, under certain conditions that may not provide us an
early termination payment, collection risks, and political risks. In

addition, our ability to resolve disputes or enforce contractual provisions may be negatively impacted with under these contracts. We can provide no assurance that the increased
risk exposure will not have an adverse impact on our future operations or that we will not increase the number of rigs contracted to national oil companies with commensurate
additional contractual risks.

Our current backlog of contract drilling revenue may not be ultimately realized.

Generally, contract backlog only includes future revenues under signed drilling contracts; however, from time to time, we may report anticipated commitments under letters of intent
or awards for which definitive agreements have not yet been, but are expected to be, signed. contracts. We may not be able to perform under these contracts as a result of
operational or other breaches or due to events beyond our control, and we may not ultimately execute a definitive agreement in cases where one does not currently exist. Moreover,
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we can provide no assurance that our customers will be able to or willing to fulfill their contractual commitments to us or that they will not seek to renegotiate or repudiate their
contracts or, for certain customers, reallocate term among contracted rigs, especially during an industry downturn. The terms of some of our drilling contracts permit the customer to
terminate the contract after specified notice periods by tendering contractually specified termination amounts or, in certain cases, without any payment. In estimating backlog, we
make certain assumptions about applicable dayrates under our longer-term contracts which have dayrate adjustment mechanisms (like certain of our contracts with ExxonMobil,
AkerBP, Tullow, and Petrobras). In addition, from time to time, we may report anticipated commitments under letters of intent or awards for which definitive agreements have not yet
been, but are expected to be, signed. We cannot assure you that actual results will mirror these assumptions. Our inability to perform under our contractual obligations, execute
definitive agreements, our customers’ inability or unwillingness to fulfill their contractual commitments to us, including as a result of contract repudiations or our decision to accept
less favorable terms on our drilling contracts, or the failure of actual results to reflect the assumptions we use to estimate backlog for certain contracts, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

A substantial portion of our business is dependent on several of our customers as well as dependent on several geographic areas and the disruption of business with
any of these customers or disruption of business within these geographic areas could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

Any concentration of customers increases the risks associated with any possible termination or nonperformance of drilling contracts, failure to renew contracts or award new
contracts, or reduction of their drilling programs. In addition, the concentration of operations within a geographic area increases the impact of terrorism, piracy, or political or social
unrest, changes in local laws and regulations, as well as severe weather events, should they occur within an area of concentration. As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024,
ExxonMobil, Aker BP, and Petrobras represented approximately 42.5% 37.2%, 15.3%13.1%, and 12.9%12.6% of our contract backlog, respectively, and operations within Guyana,
the US Gulf, of Mexico, and the North Sea accounted for approximately 42.5% 37.2%, 7.5%  21.9%, and 19.7% 18.5% of our contract backlog, respectively. ExxonMobil and Shell
plc and TotalEnergies accounted for approximately 24.5%, 13.6%, 22.1% and 10.5% 12.3%, respectively, of our consolidated operating revenues for the year ended December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024, and operations in Guyana, the US Gulf, of Mexico, Guyana, and the North Sea accounted for approximately 27.2% 22.4%, 16.9% 22.1%, and
17.0%17.8%, respectively, of our consolidated operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024. This concentration of customers increases the risks
associated with any possible termination or nonperformance of contracts in addition to our exposure to credit risk. If any of these customers were to terminate or fail to perform their
obligations under their contracts and we were not able to find other customers for the affected drilling units promptly, our financial condition and results of operations could be
materially adversely affected. Additionally, the concentration of operations in specific geographies increases the risks associated with terrorism, piracy, political or social unrest,
changes in local laws and regulations, as well as severe weather events within those regions, should they occur. If we were forced to cease drilling operations in any of these
regions for any reason and we were not able to redeploy to other regions promptly, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Our business may be impacted by numerous operating hazards.

Our operations are subject to many hazards inherent in the drilling business, including:

• loss of well control or blowout;

• fire;

• navigation hazards, such as collisions or groundings of offshore equipment;

• helicopter accidents;

• seabed punch-throughs of a jackup rig;

• mechanical or technological equipment failures;

• failure to comply with environmental, health, and safety requirements;

• loss of well integrity (such as pipe or cement failures and casing collapses);

• adverse weather or sea conditions (caused by events including hurricanes, typhoons, tsunamis, cyclones, and winter storms, which may increase in frequency and severity
as a result of climate change);

• loop currents or eddies;

• toxic gas emanating from the well; and

• improper handling, release, or disposal of hazardous materials.

These hazards could cause personal injury, including claims of post-traumatic stress or loss of life, suspend drilling operations, result in regulatory investigation or penalties,
seriously damage or destroy property and equipment, result in claims by employees, customers, or third parties, cause environmental damage, and cause substantial damage to oil
and gas producing formations or facilities. Operations also may be suspended because of machinery breakdowns, abnormal drilling conditions, and failure of subcontractors to
perform or supply goods or services or personnel shortages. The occurrence of any of the hazards we face could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
and results of operations.

Unionization efforts, labor interruptions, and labor regulations could have a material adverse effect on our operations.

Certain of our employees and contractors in international markets, such as Australia, certain African countries, Brazil, Norway, Denmark, and Denmark, the United Kingdom, are
represented by labor unions and work under collective bargaining or similar agreements, which are subject to periodic renegotiation, and efforts may be made from time to time to
unionize other portions of our workforce. Although we have not experienced any labor disruptions, strikes, or other forms of labor unrest in connection with our personnel, there can
be no assurance that labor disruptions by employees and contractors will not occur in the future. Further, unionized employees of third parties on whom we rely may be involved in
labor disruptions, strikes, or other forms of labor unrest, causing operational disruptions. Such actions could result in the occurrence of additional costs, as well as limitations on our
ability to operate or provide services to our customers, which may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition strikes may
occur in connection with annual salary negotiations with respect to unionized employees or contractors. If future labor strikes force us to shut down any of our operations, such
interruption in operations could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Additionally, legislation has been introduced in the US
Congress that could encourage additional unionization efforts in the US, United States, as well as increase the chances that such efforts succeed. Additional unionization efforts, if
successful, could materially increase our labor costs and operating restrictions.
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In addition, in connection with the completion of the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling in October 2022, we reduced the size of our combined workforce. While we believe
the reduction in force was compliant with applicable labor law requirements and practices in the relevant jurisdictions, there is a risk that certain redundancies may be challenged by
employees or labor unions, which could lead to further negotiations or legal proceedings. Such legal proceedings could result in additional costs for legal fees and, if unfavorable
decisions are made against us, fines or damages. There is also a risk that the reduction in force could give rise to labor actions. While no such claims or actions have been brought
to date, if any future challenges are brought and are successful, negative outcomes could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

A major natural disaster, catastrophic event, acts of war, terrorism, social unrest, pandemic, or other similar event could have a materially adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of operations, or have other adverse consequences.

Our business, financial condition, results of operations, access to capital markets, and borrowing costs may be adversely affected by a major natural disaster or catastrophic event,
including civil unrest, geopolitical instability, war, terrorist attack, attacks, pandemics, or other (actual or threatened) public health emergencies such as the COVID-19 outbreak, or
other events beyond our control, and measures taken in response thereto.

Acts of terrorism and social unrest, brought about by world political events or otherwise, such as the conflict between Russia and Ukraine, Middle East conflicts, and the Guyana-
Venezuela dispute, and their respective regional and global ramifications, have caused instability in the world’s financial and insurance markets in the past and may occur in the
future. Such acts could be directed against companies such as ours. In addition, acts of terrorism, piracy, and social unrest could lead to increased volatility in prices for crude oil
and natural gas and could affect the markets for drilling services. Insurance premiums could increase and coverage may be unavailable in the future. Government regulations may
effectively preclude us from engaging in business activities in certain countries. These regulations could be amended to cover countries where we currently operate or where we
may wish to operate in the future.

Our drilling contracts do not generally provide indemnification against loss of capital assets or loss of revenues resulting from acts of terrorism, piracy, or political or social unrest.
We have limited insurance for our assets providing coverage for physical damage losses resulting from risks, such as terrorist acts, piracy, vandalism, sabotage, civil unrest,
expropriation, and acts of war, and we do not carry insurance for loss of revenues resulting from such risks.

The COVID-19 outbreak, including emerging variants of COVID-19, Public health emergencies have created and other public health emergencies may in the future create,
significant volatility and uncertainty and economic and financial market disruption. Governmental authorities have implemented, and may implement in the future, numerous
measures attempting to contain and mitigate the effects of the virus, pandemics and outbreaks, including travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, shelter in place orders, and
shutdowns. Due to travel restrictions and mandatory quarantine measures, we have experienced, and may in the future to experience  again, increased difficulties, delays, and
expenses in moving our personnel to and from our operating locations. We may be unable to pass these increased expenses to our customers. Further, we have previously, and
may in the future have to, temporarily shut down operations of one or more of our rigs if there is an a pandemic, outbreak, of COVID-19 or other public health emergency or
vacancies of essential positions due to related infections, which could have a material negative impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Additionally,
disruptions to the ability of our suppliers, manufacturers, and service providers to supply labor, parts, equipment, or services in the jurisdictions in which we operate, whether as a
result of government actions, labor shortages, travel restrictions, the inability to source labor, parts or equipment from affected locations, or other effects related to the COVID-19
pandemic pandemics, outbreaks or other public health emergency, emergencies, have increased our operating costs and the risk of rig downtime and negatively impacted our ability
to meet commitments to customers and may do so in the future.

We face risks associated with our participation in certain joint ventures as well as investments in associates.

We have made investments in certain joint ventures and as well as investments in associates. Such investments are often entered into to satisfy local requirements, including local
content requirements, in certain jurisdictions and the terms of the investment agreements vary depending on the counterparty and jurisdiction involved. For example, we currently
have joint ventures with local owners or partners that were entered into in the ordinary course of business to satisfy local content requirements in certain African countries, countries
in the Middle East, and Mexico, and other applicable jurisdictions in which we operate. Investments in joint ventures or associates over which we have partial or joint control are
subject to the risk that the other owners or partners in such joint venture or associate, who may have different business or investment strategies compared to ours or with whom we
may have a disagreement or dispute, may have the ability to block business, financial, or management decisions (such as the decision to distribute dividends or appoint members of
management) which may be crucial to the success of our investment in the joint venture or associate, or could otherwise implement initiatives which may be contrary to our
interests. In addition, such joint venture owners or partners may be unable, or unwilling, to fulfil fulfill their obligations under the relevant agreements (for example, by not contributing
working capital or other resources), or may experience financial, operational, or other difficulties that may adversely impact our investment in a particular joint venture or associate.
In addition, such joint venture owners or associates may lack sufficient controls and procedures which could expose us to risk. If any of the foregoing were to occur, such occurrence
could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We are exposed to risks relating to operations in international locations, including the mobilization and demobilization of our rigs to and from such locations.

We operate in various regions throughout the world that may expose us to political or governmental risks and other uncertainties, including risks of:

• seizure, nationalization, or expropriation of property or equipment;

• ▪ monetary policies, capital controls, government credit rating downgrades and potential defaults, and any potential shutdown of the US United States government;

• ▪ foreign currency fluctuations and devaluations;

• ▪ limitations on the ability to repatriate income or capital;

• ▪ complications associated with repairing and replacing equipment in remote locations;

• ▪ repudiation, nullification, modification, or renegotiation of contracts;

• ▪ limitations on insurance coverage, such as war risk coverage, in certain areas;

• ▪ import-export quotas, wage and price controls, and imposition of sanctions, tariffs, or other trade restrictions;

• ▪ operating delays as a result of excess governmental scrutiny or oversight;

• ▪ compliance with and changes in taxation rules or policies;

• ▪ compliance with and changes in regulatory or financial requirements, including local ownership, presence, local immigration, and visa requirements for personnel or labor
requirements;

• ▪ complexity involving conflicts of law between jurisdictions in which we operate;
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▪ other forms of government regulation and economic conditions that are beyond our control and that create operational uncertainty;

• ▪ corruption, payment of bribes to government officials, money laundering, or kleptocracy (i.e., political corruption in which the government seeks personal gain and status at
the expense of the governed); and

• ▪ terrorism, piracy, civil, or international disturbances or conflict, such as the conflict between between Russia and Ukraine, Middle East conflicts, and the Guyana-Venezuela
dispute, and their respective regional and global ramifications.

Further, we operate or have operated in certain less-developed countries with legal and regulatory systems that are not as mature as those in more developed countries, which can
lead to greater uncertainty in legal matters and proceedings. Examples of challenges of operating in these countries include:

• ongoing changes in Brazilian laws related to the importation of rigs and equipment that may impose bonding, insurance, or duty-payment requirements;

• ongoing audits, including customs audits;

• procedural requirements for temporary import permits, which may be difficult to obtain; and

• the effect of certain temporary import permit regimes, where the duration of the permit does not coincide with the general term of the drilling contract.

Our ability to do business in a number of jurisdictions is subject to maintaining required licenses and permits and complying with applicable laws and regulations. For example, all of
our drilling units are subject to regulatory requirements of the flag state, the country where a drilling unit is registered. The applicable flag state requirements are consistent with
international maritime standards. In addition, each of our drilling units must assessed by a classification society, which conducts a surveys and reviews for physical and operational
compliance with the rules of the classification society and the requirements of the flag state, signifying that such drilling rig has been constructed, maintained, crewed, and operated
in accordance with the rules of the classification society and complies with applicable rules and regulations of the flag state (also referred to as being “in-class”). If any drilling unit is
deemed or otherwise found to be “out of class” , it will no longer be permitted to operate, certain contractual obligations will be voided, canceled, or withdrawn (e.g., drilling contracts,
insurance contracts, etc.), and the unit will be prohibited from entering the waters of most countries.

Jurisdictions where we operate may attempt to increase or impose requirements that for our drilling units operating to operate in such a jurisdiction, have to satisfy, such as certain
local ownership or content requirements or registration under the flag of that jurisdiction, or similar measures, resulting in our inability or being prevented from operating in a country
imposing such requirements or measures.

Any such inability to carry on operations in jurisdictions where we operate or desire to operate, or our failure to comply with any other laws and regulations of the countries where we
operate, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. In addition, OPEC and OPEC+ initiatives, as well as other governmental actions, have caused and may
continue to cause oil price volatility. In some areas of the world, this governmental activity has adversely affected the amount of exploration and development work done by major oil
companies, which may continue. Some governments favor or effectively require the awarding of drilling contracts to local contractors, require use of a local agent, require partial
local ownership, or require foreign contractors to employ citizens of, or purchase supplies from, a particular jurisdiction. In addition, some governments frequently intervene in their
economy generally and occasionally make significant changes in policy and regulations. An example is the Brazilian government's actions to control inflation and other policies and
regulations which have often involved, among other measures, changes in interest rates, changes in tax policies, changes in legislation, wage controls, price controls, currency
devaluations, capital controls, and limits on imports of goods and services. These practices have and may adversely affect our ability to compete and our results of operations.

The UK exited the EU on January 31, 2020, consistent with the terms of the EU-UK Withdrawal Agreement, with a transition period that ended on December 31, 2020. On January
1, 2021, the UK left the EU Single Market and Customs Union as well as all EU policies and international agreements. As a result, the free movement of persons, goods, services
and capital between the UK and the EU ended, and the EU and the UK formed two separate markets and two distinct regulatory and legal spaces. A trade agreement between the
UK and the EU, which formally entered into force on May 1, 2021, offers UK and EU companies preferential access to each other’s markets, ensuring imported goods will be free of

tariffs and quotas (subject to rules of origin requirements).Based on our global operating model and the versatility and marketability of our fleet, to date we have not seen the impact

of Brexit to be significant to the Company.

In addition, the offshore drilling industry is a global market requiring flexibility for rigs, depending on their technical capability, to relocate and operate in various environments and
jurisdictions, moving from one area to another. The mobilization of rigs is expensive and time-consuming and can be impacted by several factors including, but not limited to,
governmental regulation and customs practices, availability of tugs and tow vessels, weather, currents, political instability, civil unrest, and military actions, such as the conflict
between Russia and Ukraine, Middle East conflicts, and the Guyana-Venezuela dispute, and their respective regional and global ramifications, and rigs may as a result become
stranded. Some jurisdictions enforce strict technical requirements on the rigs requiring substantial physical modification to the rigs before they can be utilized. Such modifications
may require significant capital expenditures and, as a result, may limit the use of the rigs in those jurisdictions in the future. In addition, mobilization carries the risk of damage to the
rig. Failure to mobilize a rig in accordance with the deadlines set by a specific customer contract could result in a loss of compensation, liquidated damages, or the cancellation or
termination of the contract. In some cases, we may not be paid for the time that a rig is out of service during mobilization. In addition, in the hope of securing future contracts, we
may choose to mobilize a rig to another geographic market without a customer contract in place. If no customer contracts are obtained, we would be required to absorb these costs.
Mobilization and relocating activities could, therefore, potentially materially adversely affect have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

Operating and maintenance costs of our rigs may be significant and may not correspond to revenue earned.

Our operating expenses and maintenance costs depend on a variety of factors, including: including crew costs, costs of provisions, equipment, insurance, maintenance and repairs,
shipyard costs, supply chain disruptions, and inflation, many of which are beyond our control. Our total operating costs are generally related to the number of drilling rigs in operation
and the cost level in each country or region where such drilling rigs are located. Equipment maintenance costs fluctuate depending upon the type of activity that the drilling rig is
performing, and the age and condition of the equipment. Operating equipment, and maintenance costs will not necessarily fluctuate in proportion to changes in operating
revenues. the timing of the drilling rig special periodic surveys (SPS). While operating revenues may fluctuate as a function of changes in dayrate, costs for operating a rig may not
be proportional to the dayrate received and may vary based on a variety of factors, including the scope and length of required rig preparations and the duration of the contractual
period over which such expenditures are amortized. Any investments in our rigs may not result in an increased dayrate for or income from such rigs. A disproportionate change in
the amount of operating and maintenance costs in comparison to dayrates could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Inflation may adversely affect our operating results.

Inflationary factors such as increases in labor costs, material costs, changes in tariff and sanctions regimes, and overhead costs may adversely affect our operating results and cash
flows. We have experienced increases in the cost of labor and materials during the year ended December 31, 2023, 2023 and we currently expect 2024, and inflationary pressures
to may continue into 2024. A high rate of inflation, 2025. Inflation, including a continuation of inflation at the current rate, may have an adverse effect on our ability to maintain current
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levels of gross margin and general and administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenue, if our dayrates do not increase sufficiently to cover these increased costs, as well
as result in increases in our capital expenditures. Most of our contracts have dayrates that are fixed over the contract term and while term. While some of our long-term contracts

contain rate adjustment provisions, they can be based on market fluctuations rather than cost increases.To the extent a drilling contract provides for escalations attributable to

inflation in our costs, those adjustments will lag the impact of inflationary pressures and may not reflect the full impact to us of any cost inflation.As drilling contracts with such
provisions expire or are terminated, there can be no assurance that future drilling contracts will contain similar provisions, which may reduce our margins in inflationary
environments. In addition, inflation is often, and has recently been, accompanied by higher interest rates. Such higher interest rates may affect our ability to enter into future
traditional debt financing, as high inflation may result in an increase in the cost to borrow. Future increases in interest rates may negatively impact our cost of capital and ability to
access capital markets.

Operational interruptions, maintenance, or repair work may delay commencement of operations or cause our customers to suspend or reduce payment of dayrates
until operation of the respective drilling rig is resumed, which may lead to loss of revenue, payment of liquidated damages, termination, or renegotiation of the drilling
contract.

IfIf our drilling rigs are idle for reasons that are not related to the ability of the rig to operate, our customers may be entitled to pay a waiting, or standby, rate that is lower than the full
operational rate. In addition, if our drilling rigs are taken out of service for maintenance and repair for a period of time that exceeds the scheduled maintenance periods set forth in
our drilling contracts, we may not be entitled to payment of full dayrates until the rig is able to work. Several factors could cause operational interruptions, including:

• breakdowns of equipment and other unforeseen engineering problems;

• work stoppages, including labor strikes;

• shortages of material and skilled labor;

• shipyard availability, failures, and difficulties;

• delays in repairs by suppliers;

• surveys by government and maritime authorities;

• periodic classification surveys;

• delays imposed by or resulting from compliance with permits, laws, regulations, or litigation;

• severe weather, strong ocean currents, or harsh operating conditions;

• force majeure events; and

• the occurrence or threat of epidemic or pandemic diseases, such as COVID-19, or any government response to such occurrence or threat.

Several of these factors have been exacerbated by global supply chain disruptions, including disruptions due to COVID-19, and the conflict between Russia and Ukraine, Middle
East conflicts, and the Guyana-Venezuela dispute,  labor strikes at critical points in a supply chain, and their respective regional and global ramifications. If a delay of
commencement of operations, or interruption of operations, exceeds a determined period, our customers may have the right to pay a rate that is significantly lower than the waiting
rate for a period of time, may be entitled to liquidated damages, and may have a right to terminate the drilling contracts related to the subject rig. Suspension of drilling contract
payments, payment of liquidated damages, prolonged payment of reduced rates, or termination of any drilling contract as a result of an interruption of operations as described herein
could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We may have difficulty obtaining or maintaining insurance in the future and our insurance coverage and contractual indemnity rights may not protect us against all the
risks and hazards we face.

We do not procure insurance coverage for all of the potential risks and hazards we may face. Furthermore, no assurance can be given that we will be able to obtain insurance
against all of the risks and hazards we face or that we will be able to obtain or maintain adequate insurance at rates and with deductibles or retention amounts that we consider
commercially reasonable. Some insurance carriers may decide not to offer insurance to companies operating in the Oil & Gas oil and gas industry, potentially resulting in less
available insurance capacity and/or higher rates. In addition, our insurance carriers may interpret our insurance policies such that they do not cover losses for which we make
claims.

Although we maintain insurance in the geographic areas in which we operate, pollution, reservoir damage, and environmental risks generally are not fully insurable. Our insurance
policies may not adequately cover our losses or may have exclusions of coverage for some losses. We do not have insurance coverage for all risk exposures. For example, we
carry no loss of hire insurance for any rigs in our fleet. In addition, our insurance may not cover losses associated with pandemics such as the COVID-19 pandemic. pandemics.
Furthermore, the damage sustained to offshore oil and gas assets in the United States as a result of hurricanes has negatively impacted certain aspects of the energy insurance
market, resulting in more restrictive and expensive coverage for US named windstorm perils due to the price or lack of availability of coverage. Accordingly, we have primarily self-
insured the rigs in the US Gulf of Mexico for property damage resulting from named windstorm perils. We do, however, currently perils, and only have windstorm third-party liability

coverage for all rigs, including those operating in the US Gulf of Mexico subject to certain limits.We will continue to monitor the insurance market conditions in the future and may

decide not to, or be unable to, purchase named windstorm coverage for some or all of the rigs operating in the US Gulf of Mexico. Gulf.

Under our drilling contracts, liability with respect to personnel and property is customarily assigned on a “knock-for-knock” basis, which means that we and our customers assume
liability for our respective personnel and property, irrespective of the fault or negligence of the party indemnified. Although our drilling contracts generally provide for indemnification
from our customers for certain liabilities, including liabilities resulting from pollution or contamination environmental damage originating below the surface of the water, enforcement
of these contractual rights to indemnity may be limited by public policy and other considerations and, in any event, may not adequately cover our losses from such incidents. There
can also be no assurance that those parties with contractual obligations to indemnify us will necessarily be in a financial position to do so. During depressed market periods, such as
the one in which we recently operated, the contractual indemnity provisions we are able to negotiate in our drilling contracts may require us to assume more risk than we would
during normal market periods.

If a significant accident or other event loss occurs and is not fully covered by insurance or contractual indemnity, it could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and
results of operations.
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Our failure to adequately protect our sensitive information and operational technology systems and critical data and our service providers’ failure to protect their
systems and data could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Our day-to-day operations increasingly depend on information and operational technology systems that we manage, and other systems that our third parties, such as our service
providers, vendors, and equipment providers, manage, including critical systems on our drilling units. These systems are subject to risks associated with growing and evolving cyber
incidents or attacks. attacks or other disruptions. These risks include, but may not be limited to, human error, power outages, computer and telecommunication failures, natural
disasters, fraud or malice, social engineering or phishing attacks, viruses or malware, and other cyberattacks, such as denial-of-service or ransomware attacks. Entities or groups,
including

cybercriminals, competitors, and nation state actors, have mounted cyber-attacks on businesses and other organizations solely to disable

or disrupt computer systems, disrupt operations, and, in some cases, steal data. In addition, the US United States government has issued public warnings that indicate energy

assets and companies engaging in significant transactions, such as acquisitions, might be specific targets of cybersecurity cyber security threats. Geopolitical tensions or conflicts,

such as the conflict between Russia and Ukraine, and the increased adoption of artificial intelligence technologies, may further heighten the risk of cybersecurity cyber security
threats.

Also, many of our non-operational employees work remotely a significant amount of their time, which has created certain operational risks, such as an increased risk of security
breaches or other cyber incidents or attacks, loss of data, fraud, and other disruptions as more fully outlined, above. Working remotely has significantly increased the use of
technological and online telecommunication services and remote networking, which enable employees to work outside of our corporate infrastructure and, in some cases, use their
own personal equipment. This remote work model has resulted in an increased demand for technological resources and may expose us to additional risks of cyber-incidents or
attacks, security breaches, loss of data, fraud, and other disruptions as a consequence of more employees accessing sensitive and critical information remotely. Due to the nature of
cyber-attacks, breaches to our systems or our service or equipment providers’ systems could go undetected for a prolonged period of time. A breach could also compromise or
originate from our customers’, vendors’, or other third-party systems or networks outside of our control. A security breach may result in legal claims or proceedings against us by our
shareholders, employees, customers, vendors, and governmental authorities, both in the US United States and internationally.

The Company maintains a cybersecurity cyber security program, which includes administrative, technical, and organizational safeguards, a safeguards. A significant cyberattack or
incident, either with our systems or a critical third-party systems, could disrupt our operations and result in downtime, loss of revenue, harm to the Company's reputation, or the loss,
theft, corruption, or unauthorized release of our critical data or those with whom we do business, as well as result in higher costs to correct and remedy the effects of such incidents,
including potential extortion, unforeseen payments associated with ransomware, or ransom demands. If our, or our service or equipment providers’, safeguards maintained for
protecting against cyber incidents or attacks prove to be insufficient, and an incident were to occur, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
reputation, and results of operations. Additionally, it may be difficult to determine the best way to investigate, mitigate, contain, and remediate the harm caused by a cyber incident.
Such efforts may not be successful, and we may make errors or fail to take necessary actions. It may take considerable time for us to investigate and evaluate the full impact of
incidents, particularly for sophisticated attacks. These factors may inhibit our ability to provide prompt, full, and reliable information about the incident to our customers, partners,
regulators, and the public. Even though we carry cyber insurance that may provide insurance coverage under certain circumstances, we might suffer losses as a result of a security
breach or cyber incident that exceeds the coverage available under our policy or for which we do not have coverage, and we cannot be certain that cyber insurance will continue to
be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.

In addition, Noble is subject to a variety of continuously evolving and developing laws and regulations in the United States and abroad governing, or proposed to govern,
cybersecurity, cyber security, data privacy and protection, and the unauthorized disclosure of confidential or protected information, including the UK Data Protection Act, the EU
General Data Protection Regulation, the Data Protection Law, as revised, of the Cayman Islands, the California Consumer Privacy Act, as amended by the California Privacy Rights
Act, the Cyber Incident Reporting for Critical Infrastructure Act, and other similar legislation in domestic and international jurisdictions, which pose increasingly complex compliance
challenges and potentially elevate costs, and any costs. Any failure to comply with these laws and regulations could result in significant penalties and legal liability. These laws and
regulations are continuously evolving and developing, creating significant uncertainty as privacy and data protection laws may be interpreted and applied differently from country to
country and may create inconsistent or conflicting requirements. Any failure, or perceived failure, by Noble or third-party service providers to comply with Noble’s privacy or security
policies or privacy-related legal obligations, or any compromise of security that results in the unauthorized release or transfer of personal data, may result in loss of revenue,
reputational harm, and could be subject to legal or regulatory claims or proceedings, including enforcement actions under data privacy or disclosure regulations, which may result in
significant expenditures, fines, or liabilities and could have an adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition.

Upgrades, refurbishment, and repair of rigs are subject to risks, including delays and cost overruns, that could have an adverse impact on our available cash resources
and results of operations.

We will continue to make upgrades, refurbishment, and repair expenditures to our fleet from time to time, some of which may be unplanned. In addition, we may reactivate rigs that
have been cold or warm stacked and make selective acquisitions of rigs. Our customers may also require certain upgrade projects for our rigs. These projects typically become
more time consuming and expensive the older the fleet becomes and are subject to risks of cost overruns or delays inherent in any large construction project as a result of
numerous factors, including the following:

• ▪ shortages of equipment, materials, or skilled labor;

• ▪ work stoppages and labor disputes;

• ▪ unscheduled delays in the delivery of ordered materials and equipment;

• ▪ local customs strikes or related work slowdowns that could delay importation of equipment or materials;

• ▪ weather interferences;

• ▪ difficulties in obtaining necessary permits or approvals or in meeting permit or approval conditions;

• ▪ design and engineering problems;

• ▪ inadequate regulatory support infrastructure in the local jurisdiction;

• ▪ latent damages or deterioration to hull, equipment, and machinery in excess of engineering estimates and assumptions;
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• ▪ unforeseen increases in the cost of equipment, labor, and raw materials, particularly steel due to inflation or other factors;

• ▪ unanticipated actual or purported change orders;

• ▪ customer acceptance delays;

• ▪ disputes with shipyards and suppliers;

• ▪ delays in, or inability to obtain, access to funding;

• ▪ shipyard availability, failures, and difficulties, including as a result of financial problems of shipyards or their subcontractors; and

• ▪ failure or delay of third-party equipment vendors or service providers.

The failure to complete a rig upgrade, refurbishment, or repair on time, or at all, may result in related loss of revenues, liquidated damages, penalties, or delay, renegotiation, or
cancellation of a drilling contract or the recognition of an asset impairment. Additionally, capital expenditures could materially exceed our planned capital expenditures. Moreover,
when our rigs are undergoing upgrade, refurbishment, and repair, they may not earn a dayrate during the period they are out of service. If we experience substantial delays and cost
overruns in our shipyard projects, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. We currently have no new rigs under
construction, however, reactivation of the Noble Meltem would require a significant amount of capital investment.

Failure to attract and retain skilled personnel or an increase in personnel costs could adversely affect our operations.

Our employees are vital to our success, we success. We require skilled personnel to operate and provide technical services and support for our drilling units. In the past, during
periods of high demand for drilling services and increasing worldwide industry fleet size, shortages of qualified personnel have occurred and competition for personnel has
intensified. During periods of reduced demand, there have been, and in the future may be, layoffs of qualified personnel (including offshore personnel), who often find work with
competitors or leave the industry. As a result, if market conditions improve following a period of reduced demand and we seek to reactivate warm or cold stacked rigs, move rigs to a
new locale, upgrade our working rigs, or purchase additional rigs, we may face shortages of qualified personnel, which would impair our ability to attract qualified personnel for our
new or existing drilling units, impair the timeliness and quality of our work, and create upward pressure on personnel costs, any of which could adversely affect our operations.

In addition, our ability to retain our key business leaders is critical. The market for highly skilled workers and leaders in our industry is extremely competitive and we may need to

invest significant amounts of cash and equity to attract and retain new employees. We may never realize returns on these investments. To In order to help attract, retain, and
motivate qualified employees, we use equity-based awards and performance-based cash incentive awards. Sustained declines in our stock price, or lower stock price performance
relative to competitors, can reduce the retention value of our equity-based awards,

which can impact the competitiveness of our compensation. The unexpected loss of members of management, qualified personnel, or a significant number of employees due to
disease, disability, or death, could have a material adverse effect on us. our business.

Supplier capacity constraints or shortages in parts or equipment, supplier production disruptions, supplier quality, and sourcing issues or price increases could
increase our operating costs, decrease our revenues, and adversely impact our operations.

Our reliance on third-party suppliers, manufacturers, and service providers to secure equipment used in our drilling operations exposes us to volatility in the quality, price, and
availability of such items. Certain specialized parts and equipment we use in our operations may be available only from a single or small number of suppliers. During periods of
reduced demand, many of these third-party suppliers reduced their inventories of parts and equipment and, in some cases, reduced their production capacity, and may do so in the
future. Moreover, the global supply chain has experienced challenges and disruptions in recent years, resulting in shortages of, shipping delays, and increased pricing pressures on,
among other things, certain raw materials and labor. If the market for our services services improves and we seek to reactivate warm or cold stacked rigs, upgrade our working rigs,
or purchase additional rigs, these reductions and global supply chain constraints could make it more difficult for us to find equipment and parts for our rigs. rigs. A disruption or delay
in the deliveries from such third-party suppliers, capacity constraints, production disruptions, price increases (including those related to inflation, the imposition of tariffs and supply
chain disruptions), defects or quality-control issues, recalls, or other decreased availability or servicing of parts and equipment could adversely affect our ability to reactivate rigs,
upgrade working rigs, purchase additional rigs, or meet our commitments to customers on a timely basis, adversely impact our operations and revenues by resulting in
uncompensated downtime, reduced dayrates, the incurrence of liquidated damages, or other penalties or the cancellation or termination of contracts, or increase our operating
costs.

We may experience risks associated with future mergers, acquisitions, or dispositions of businesses or assets, or other strategic transactions.

As part of our business strategy, and as evidenced by the Pacific Drilling Merger (as defined herein) and . the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling and the acquisition of
Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc., we have pursued and completed, and may continue to pursue, mergers, acquisitions, or dispositions of businesses or assets, or other strategic
transactions that we believe will enable us to strengthen or broaden our business. We may be unable to implement this element of our strategy if we cannot identify suitable
companies, businesses or assets, reach agreement on potential strategic transactions on acceptable terms, manage the impacts of such transactions on our business, business, or
for other reasons. Moreover, mergers, acquisitions, dispositions, and other strategic transactions involve various risks, including, among other things, (i) difficulties relating to
integrating or disposing of a business, including changes to our employee workforce and unanticipated changes in customer, vendor, and other third-party relationships, (ii) failure to
integrate operations and internal controls, including those related to financial reporting, disclosure, and cybersecurity cyber security and data protection, (iii) diversion of
management’s attention from day-to-day operations, (iv) failure to realize the anticipated benefits of such transactions, such as cost savings and revenue enhancements, (v)
potentially substantial transaction costs associated with such transactions, (vi) failure to identify significant issues at the target during the due diligence process, which could result in
financial or legal exposure, and (vii) potential impairment resulting from the overpayment for an acquisition.

Future mergers or acquisitions may require us to obtain additional equity or debt financing, which may not be available on attractive terms. Moreover, to the extent a transaction
financed by non-equity consideration results in goodwill, it will reduce our tangible net worth, which might have an adverse effect on credit availability.

We may not achieve the intended benefits of the Diamond Transaction, and the Diamond Transaction may disrupt its current plans or operations.

We closed the Diamond Transaction in September 2024. There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully integrate Diamond assets or otherwise realize the expected
benefits of the Diamond Transaction. Difficulties in integrating Diamond into Noble may result in Noble performing differently than expected, in operational challenges or in the failure
to realize anticipated synergies and efficiencies in the expected time frame or at all. The anticipated benefits and cost savings of the merger may not be realized fully or at all, may
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take longer to realize than expected, or could have other adverse effects that Noble does not currently foresee. These anticipated benefits include an assumption, as of the closing
date, that Noble is able to realize annual pre-tax cost synergies of approximately $100 million, in which case the Diamond Transaction may not be accretive to earnings per share,
may not improve Noble’s balance sheet position, may not enhance Noble’s ability to deliver, and may not generate additional free cash flow.

Following completion of the Diamond Transaction, the combined Company’s success will depend, in part, on Noble’s ability to manage the expansion resulting from the Diamond
Transaction, which poses numerous risks and uncertainties. The integration of the two companies may result in material challenges, including the diversion of management’s
attention from ongoing business concerns; attracting, motivating, and retaining key management and other employees; retaining or attracting business, customer, and operational
relationships; the possibility of faulty assumptions underlying expectations regarding the integration process and associated expenses; consolidating corporate and administrative
infrastructures, including integrating enterprise resource planning systems, and eliminating duplicative operations; coordinating geographically separate organizations; unanticipated
issues in integrating information technology, communications, and other systems; as well as potential unknown liabilities, unforeseen expenses relating to integration, or delays
associated with the acquisition. Additionally, if relationships with customers, distributors, suppliers, vendors, landlords, and other business partners are adversely affected by the
Diamond Transaction, or if Noble, following completion of the Diamond Transaction, loses the benefits of certain contracts of Diamond, Noble’s business, prospects, liquidity, and
financial performance could suffer. Further, the market price of Ordinary Shares may decline as a result of completing the Diamond Transaction if, among other things, it is unable to
achieve the expected benefits and synergies of the Diamond Transaction.

At certain locations where we operate, there is an increased potential for seasonal weather events that could lead to limits or restrictions on our ability to operate,
damage to our assets and equipment, liabilities or claims, operational delays for recovery and repair, liability claims, impacts on customer and vendor contracts,
regulatory fines and penalties, and uninsured losses, which could adversely affect our business.

Certain areas of the world where we operate, such as the US Gulf, of Mexico, South Atlantic, the North Sea, Southwest Pacific, South China Sea, and Southeast Indian Ocean,
experience significant weather events, typically on a seasonal basis, manifesting as an unnamed wind event or of a magnitude that places it in a category of tropical cyclone,
hurricane, typhoon, or extratropical cyclone. While such weather events are tracked, forecasted, and reported by recognized meteorological institutions, information upon which we
rely when contracting and operating our drilling rigs, are merely projections and the actual course, speed, and/or severity of any one event could ultimately be unexpected and lead
to an unanticipated encounter and or impact, exposing our assets and personnel to extreme wind and sea conditions that could result in limits or restrictions on our ability to operate,
injuries or loss of life, damage to or a loss of our assets and equipment, liabilities or claims, operational delays for recovery and repair, impacts on customer and vendor contracts,
regulatory fines and penalties, and/or uninsured losses, which could adversely affect our business and financial performance. For example, in August 2021, as a result of Hurricane
Ida in the US Gulf of Mexico, the Globetrotter II was damaged while in transit and a number of crew members were treated for injuries. Moreover, a potential result of climate change
is more frequent or more severe weather events. To the extent such weather events become more frequent or more severe, the risks associated with severe weather events could
intensify.

Failure to effectively and timely respond to the impact of long-term changes in the energy rebalancing mix could adversely affect our business, results of operations,
and cash flows.

Our long-term success depends on our ability to effectively respond to the impact of long-term changes in the energy rebalancing, mix, which could require adapting our fleet and
business to potentially changing government requirements, customer preferences, and customer base, as well as engaging with existing and potential customers and suppliers to
develop or implement solutions designed to reduce or to decarbonize oil and gas operations or to advance renewable and other alternative energy sources. If the energy
rebalancing mix landscape changes faster than anticipated or in a manner that we do not anticipate, demand for our services could be adversely affected. Furthermore, if we fail to,
or are perceived not to, effectively implement an a strategy regarding long-term changes in the energy rebalancing strategy, mix, or if investors or financial institutions shift funding
away from companies in fossil fuel-related industries, our access to capital or the market for our securities could be negatively impacted. Additionally, if we fail to, or are perceived
not to, effectively implement an respond to long-term changes in the energy rebalancing strategy, mix, we may experience diminished reputation or sentiment, an inability to attract
and retain talent and/or a loss of customers or vendors.

We rely on third-party suppliers and subcontractors to provide or complete parts, crew, and equipment, as applicable, for our projects and our operations may be
adversely affected by the sub-standard substandard performance or non-performance nonperformance of those suppliers or third-party subcontractors due to
production disruptions, quality and sourcing issues, price increases, or consolidation of suppliers and sub-contractors as well as equipment breakdowns.

Our reliance on third-parties such as suppliers, manufacturers, subcontractors, and other service providers for equipment, services, and labor used in our drilling operations exposes
us to volatility in the quality, price, and availability of such resources. Certain specialized parts, crew, and equipment used in our operations may be available only from a single or a
small number of suppliers. A disruption in the deliveries from such third-party suppliers, capacity constraints, production disruptions, price increases, defects or quality-control
issues, recalls, or other decrease in the availability or servicing of parts and equipment could adversely affect our ability to meet our commitments towards our customers, adversely
impact operations and revenues by resulting in uncompensated downtime, reduced day rates under the relevant drilling contracts, cancellation or termination of contracts, or
increased operating costs. In addition, consolidation of suppliers may limit our ability to obtain supplies and services when needed at an acceptable cost or at all.

Equipment deficiencies or breakdowns, whether due to faulty parts, quality control issues, or inadequate installation, may result in increased maintenance costs and could adversely
affect our operations and revenues by resulting in financial downtime. For example, we have a multi-year maintenance project to overhaul jacking gears on certain jackup rigs
involving significant costs. If mitigation measures put in place are not effective, it could lead to significant financial downtime, adversely affect our ability to meet our commitments
with our customers, potential cancellation or termination of drilling contracts, suspension or termination of operations, regulatory penalties or sanctions, or property, environmental,
and other damage claims by customers or other third parties, which may in turn have a material adverse effect on the our business, financial condition, results of operations, and
reputation. Subcontractors are used to perform certain services and to provide certain input in areas where we do not have requisite expertise and are engaged on some parts of

our projects, but may be used for a majority of the services in respect of new business models. The subcontracting of work exposes us to risks associated with planning interface
non-performance, nonperformance, delayed performance, or substandard performance by our subcontractors. Any inability to hire qualified subcontractors could hinder successful
completion of a project. Further, our employees may not have the requisite skills to be able to monitor or control the performance of these subcontractors. We may suffer losses on
contracts if the amounts we are required to pay for subcontractor services exceed original estimates. Remedial or mitigating actions, such as requiring contractual obligations from
subcontractors that are similar to those we have with our customers, and requesting parent guarantees from subcontractors to cover nonperformance, may not be available or
sufficient to mitigate these risks. For example, we have experienced issues with the performance of some of our key suppliers in the past, in particular in relation to delays in the
delivery and maintenance of subsea well-control equipment. Such issues could have a negative effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We face risks associated with creating and executing new business models, particularly when such business models involve a risk profile, remuneration, or financial
scheme that is different from a conventional drilling contract.
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We are exploring, and have in the past, implemented various degrees of innovative business models with customers and partners in order to expand our share of the value chain,
while simultaneously creating better outcomes for our customers and long-term resilience of our business through increased customer collaboration, differentiation, and utilization.
Although such business model innovation is intended to offer further earnings opportunities, there are risks associated with creating and executing new business models, particularly
when such business models involve a risk profile, remuneration, or financial scheme that is different from our conventional drilling contracts.

Two broad categories of business models include:

(i) offering integrated services or integrating new services into joint offerings to customers as an integrated service provider with the objective of improving efficiencies; and

(ii) exploring alternative financial models focused on risk and reward sharing through, among other things, bonus-malice schemes, deferred payments, fixed pricing, or co-
investments, enabling operators to develop fields that would otherwise be economically challenged.

However, forecasting the success of any new business model is inherently uncertain and depends on a number of factors both within and outside our control. Our actual revenue
and profit generated from such business models may be significantly greater or less than forecasts. In addition, the efficiencies anticipated from new business models may fail to be
realized, the costs may be higher, and the counterparty risk greater than expected. In addition, as we create and execute more new business models and expand into other parts of
the value chain, our risk profile may continue to shift. Entering into new business models could have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

Risks Related to the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling

The integration of Maersk Drilling into the combined company may not be as successful as anticipated, may cost more than estimated, and the combined company may
not achieve the intended benefits or do so within the intended timeframe.

The Business Combination involves numerous operational, strategic, financial, accounting, legal, tax, and other risks, including potential liabilities associated with the acquired
business and integration thereof. Difficulties in integrating the business practices and operations of Noble and Maersk Drilling may result in our performing differently than expected,
in operational challenges or in the delay or failure to realize anticipated expense-related efficiencies, and could have an adverse effect on the financial condition, results of
operations, or our cash flows. Potential difficulties that may be encountered in the integration process include, among other factors:

• the inability to successfully integrate the businesses of Noble and Maersk Drilling, operationally and culturally, in a manner that permits us to achieve the full revenue and
cost savings anticipated from the Business Combination;

• complexities, including increased demands of management and employees, associated with managing a larger, more complex, integrated business;

• difficulties in integrating Maersk Drilling’s and Noble’s respective enterprise resource planning software;

• risks related to the design and implementation of a combined internal control environment;

• not realizing anticipated synergies;

• attempts by third parties to terminate or alter their contracts with us, including as a result of change of control provisions;

• the inability to retain key employees and otherwise integrate personnel from the two companies;

• potential unknown liabilities and unforeseen expenses associated with the Business Combination;

• difficulty or inability to comply with the covenants of the debt of the combined company;

• integrating relationships with customers, vendors, and business partners;

• performance shortfalls, including operating, safety, or environmental performance as a result of the diversion of management’s and employees’ attention caused by
integrating Noble’s and Maersk Drilling’s operations; and

• the disruption of, or the loss of momentum in, our ongoing business or inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures, and policies.

The success of the Business Combination will depend, in part, on our ability to realize the anticipated benefits and cost savings from the Business Combination. Although we expect
to realize run-rate annual cost-synergies of $125 million within two years of the closing of the Business Combination, our ability to realize such synergies may be affected by a
number of factors, including, but not limited to, the use of more cash or other financial resources on integration and implementation activities than anticipated; unanticipated
increases in expenses unrelated to the Business Combination, which may offset the expected cost savings and other synergies from the Business Combination; and our ability to
eliminate duplicative back office overhead and redundant selling, general, and administrative functions. The anticipated benefits and cost savings of the Business Combination may
not be realized fully or at all, may take longer to realize than expected or could have other adverse effects that we do not currently foresee. In addition, the anticipated benefits and
cost savings of the Business Combination as well as the related integration costs are based on a number of estimates and assumptions that are inherently uncertain and subject to
risks that could cause the actual results to differ materially from those contained in such cost estimates. Some of the assumptions that we have made, such as the achievement of
certain synergies, may not be realized within the anticipated timeframe, or at all.

If we fail to realize the anticipated synergies or other benefits or recognize further synergies or benefits, or the estimated integration costs of the Business Combination are
exceeded, the business rationale of the Business Combination could not be realized and the value of the shareholders’ investment into us could decrease.

Regulatory and Legal Risks

Changes in, compliance with, or our failure to comply with the certain laws and regulations could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations by adding
to our costs, or negatively impact our operations by causing delays or limiting activity.

Our business is affected by public policy and laws and regulations relating to the energy industry in the geographic areas where we do or seek to operate or otherwise have a
presence, including laws and regulations relating to the environment (including climate change and GHGs) greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions and regulations that for economic,
environmental, social, or other reasons curtail or encumber our ability to operate competitively or negatively impact exploration, development, and production of oil and gas. We may
be required to make significant capital expenditures to comply with governmental laws and regulations. Governments in some countries are increasingly active in regulating and
controlling the ownership of concessions, the exploration for oil and gas, and other aspects of the oil and gas industries.

There is increasing worldwide attention concerning the issue of climate change and the effect of GHGs, and other sustainability, and long-term changes in the energy rebalancing
matters. mix. This increased attention has led to and may result in additional environmental laws or regulations that may unfavorably impact our business, or that of our suppliers
and our customers. In addition, increasing attention to the risks of climate change has resulted in an increased possibility of litigation or investigations brought by public and private
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entities against oil and gas companies in connection with their GHG emissions. However, it is not possible at this time to predict the timing and effect of climate related laws and
regulations, the adoption of additional GHG legislation, regulations or other measures at the international, federal, state, or local levels.

The modification of existing laws or regulations or the adoption of new laws or regulations that curtail or encumber our ability to operate competitively or negatively impact
exploration, development, and production of oil and gas could materially and adversely affect our business by limiting drilling opportunities, increasing our cost of doing business,
discouraging our customers from drilling for hydrocarbons, disrupting revenue through permitting or similar delays, or subjecting us to liability. In the United States, the issuance of
federal leases or other similar initiatives have been the subject of efforts to reform federal leasing practices and may result in the development of additional restrictions on offshore
drilling, limitations on the availability of offshore leases, or restrictions on the ability to obtain required permits, which could have a material adverse impact on our operations by
reducing drilling opportunities and the demand for our services.

There have been various legal developments in the UK in 2024, some of which are still evolving (including an increase in and extension of an energy profits levy and changes to
environmental impact assessment standards), which have reduced oil and gas exploration and development activities in the North Sea. These developments could reduce the
demand for our services.

In addition, efforts have been made and continue to be made in the international community toward the adoption or enhancement of international treaties or protocols related to
protecting the environment, reducing climate change, reducing the use of hydrocarbon-based fuel reductions, and encouraging the implementation of GHG emission reduction
pledges. Fuel conservation measures, alternative fuel requirements and increasing consumer demand for alternatives to oil and gas could reduce demand for oil and gas. These
measures may result in a reduced global reliance on and future demand for oil and gas, which could have a material impact on our business.

Many countries have or appear to be progressing toward enacting varying requirements for GHG monitoring, reporting, and emissions control or reduction, such as the United
States which, in August 2022, enacted a Methane November 2024, announced final rules to implement the “Waste Emissions Charge” required under 2022’s Inflation Reduction
Program to incentivize methane emission reductions and impose Act. The Waste Emissions Charge imposes a fee on GHG and waste emissions from certain oil and gas facilities

including offshore petroleum that exceed specified intensity levels and natural gas production platforms.is part of the United States’ Methane Emissions Reduction Plan. While we
are subject to certain federal GHG monitoring and reporting requirements, our operations have not been materially impacted by existing international, federal, state, and local
climate change initiatives. However, new legislation and regulatory programs to reduce GHG emissions, or increased reporting obligations, could increase our cost of doing
business, discourage our customers from drilling for hydrocarbons, or otherwise have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our operations are subject to various laws and regulations in countries in which we operate, including laws and regulations relating to:

• ▪ the environment and the health and safety of personnel;

• ▪ the importing, exporting, equipping, and operation of drilling rigs;

• ▪ finance and currency exchange controls;

• ▪ oil and gas exploration and development;

• ▪ taxation of local and offshore earnings and earnings of expatriate personnel; and

• ▪ use and compensation of local employees, contractors, and suppliers, and involvement of foreign contractors.

Public and governmental scrutiny of the energy industry has resulted in increased regulations being proposed and often implemented. In addition, existing regulations might be
revised or reinterpreted, new laws, regulations, and permitting requirements might be adopted or become applicable to us, our rigs, our customers, our vendors, or our service
providers, and future changes in laws and regulations could significantly increase our costs and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results
of operations. In addition, we may be required to post additional surety bonds to secure performance, tax, customs, and other obligations relating to our rigs in jurisdictions where
bonding requirements are already in effect and in other jurisdictions where we may operate in the future. These requirements would increase the cost of operating in these
countries, which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

From time to time, new rules, regulations, and requirements regarding oil and gas development have been proposed and implemented by BOEM, BSEE, or the United States
Congress, as well as other jurisdictions outside the United States, that could materially limit or prohibit, and increase the cost of, offshore drilling. For example, following a years’
long rule making process, both BSEE and BOEM released a Notice to Lessees

updated and Operators expanded their respective offshore decommissioning financial assurance and bonding requirements. The updated requirements, which were finalized by
BSEE in 2023 and BOEM in 2024, are stricter than previous requirements and may increase the costs of operating on the Outer Continental Shelf (“NTL”) in September 2016 that
updated offshore bonding requirements. The NTL was only partially implemented before being rescinded and replaced by a proposed rule addressing offshore bonding published in
October 2020. However, on January 20, 2021, President Biden issued executive orders freezing the issuance of new rules pending further review and directing all executive
departments and agencies to review and consider suspending, revising, or rescinding all regulations issued between January 20, 2017, and January 20, 2021, determined to be
inconsistent with President Biden’s environmental and climate goals. Acting on this directive, BSEE announced a proposed rule in September 2022 that amended the 2019 version
of BSEE’s well control rule and revised elements that were amended or rescinded in 2019, including requirements applicable to blowout preventer system operation, failure
analyses, and investigations, and submittal of information to BSEE. The rule was finalized in August 2023 and became effective October 23, 2023. Shelf. BOEM and BSEE could
issue new rules relating to well control equipment and operational requirements that fall under their authority in the future. In addition, the US previously placed a moratorium on new

oil and natural gas leases on federal lands and waters, including the federal Outer Continental Shelf.Future actions taken by the US United States to limit the availability of new oil

and gas leases on the Outer Continental Shelf, or delays imposed by or resulting from compliance with permits, laws, regulations, or litigation would adversely impact the offshore oil
and gas industry and impact demand for our services.

We are also subject to increasing regulatory requirements and scrutiny in certain jurisdictions and other countries, including the North Sea. New rules, regulations, and
requirements, or a return to the requirements of the 2016 versions of the BSEE and BOEM regulations, including the adoption of new safety requirements and policies relating to the
approval of drilling permits, restrictions on oil and gas development and production activities in the US Gulf of Mexico and elsewhere, implementation of safety and environmental
management systems, mandatory third-party compliance audits, and the promulgation of numerous Notices to Lessees or similar new regulatory requirements outside of the United
States, may impact our operations by causing increased costs, delays, and operational restrictions. If new regulations, policies, operating procedures, and the possibility of
increased legal liability resulting from the adoption or amendment of rules and regulations applicable to our operations in the United States or other jurisdictions are viewed by our
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current or future customers as a significant impairment to expected profitability on projects, then they could discontinue or curtail their offshore operations in the impacted region,
thereby, adversely affecting our operations by limiting drilling opportunities or resulting in materially increased costs.

Finally, most many scientists have concluded that increasing concentrations of GHGs in the Earth’s atmosphere and climate change may produce significant physical effects on
weather conditions, such as increased frequency and severity of droughts, storms, floods, and other climatic events. If any such effects were to occur, they could adversely affect or
delay demand for the oil or natural gas produced or cause us to incur significant costs in preparing for or responding to the effects of climatic events themselves. Potential adverse
effects could include disruption of our and our customers’ operations, including, for example, damages to our facilities from winds or floods, increases in our costs of operation, or
reductions in the efficiency of our operations, impacts on our personnel, supply chain, or distribution chain, as well as potentially increased costs for insurance coverages in the

aftermath of such effects. Any of these events could have an adverse effect on our assets and operations.

Increasing attention and expanding requirements relating to environmental, social, and governance matters compounded by the varied and expansive scope of ESG
standards, ESG rating criteria, our sustainability and ESG disclosures, and the perception and expectations of the public, may negatively impact our business and
financial results.

In recent years, regulators, investors, and the general public have been giving increasing attention to corporate activities that relate to environmental, social, and governance
matters. As part of this, ESG has been advanced by advocacy groups in many jurisdictions where they continue to campaign for governmental and private action in connection with
ESG criteria and initiatives, including through the investment and voting practices of individual and institutional investors and investment advisers, public company rating agencies,
and others in or connected to the investing community. The attention of advocacy groups and expansion of regulatory requirements regarding ESG performance, commitments, and
disclosures, including those relating to climate change and reduction of carbon emissions, is evidenced by initiatives such as the United Nations 2030 Agenda for Sustainable
Development, as well as by the new strategy adopted by the International Maritime Organization in July 2023 to advance the prevention and control of marine pollution through the
reduction of GHG emissions from ships.

Stakeholders and members of the investment community continue to screen and assess companies such as ours for sustainability and ESG performance information measured
against the expanded list of ESG metrics advanced by the various ESG standards and ESG ratings sources. Within the ESG context, there continues to be a public and
governmental concentration on environmental matters as compared to social and governance matters, with a focus on environment related company practices, performance, and
compliance, particularly with respect to data on waste stream management, including discharges, emissions, and reduction commitments regarding carbon dioxide, hydrocarbons,
and fluorinated materials in various states of matter. In addition, developments in the law could result in ESG commitments and disclosures being subjected to increased scrutiny. If
we are unable to positively manage our ESG performance, effectively administer our ESG tracking and reporting, and clearly communicate our ESG strategy and commitments  and
meet publicly disclosed targets such as our goal to reduce carbon intensity by 20% by 2030 (as defined in our disclosures), we could experience additional costs and financial
penalties, increased scrutiny from the investment community, special interest groups, and enforcement authorities, miss or be excluded from business opportunities, have delayed
or cancelled projects, experience a reduction in our equity share price, or encounter limitations to our access to financing or capital, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on our operations, earnings, cash flows, and financial condition.

Any violation of anti-bribery, anti-corruption, or anti-corruption anti-fraud laws, including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the United Kingdom Bribery Act, or
similar other applicable laws and regulations could result in significant expenses, divert management attention, and otherwise have a negative impact on the
company. Company.

We often In the conduct and operation of our business, and operate particularly in countries with a reputation of illegal activities that include government corruption, bribery, money
laundering, and human rights issues. We issues, we are subject to the risk that we, our affiliated entities, agents, or service providers, or their respective officers, directors,
employees, and agents may take action determined to be in violation of such local laws or laws applicable to us and those acting on our behalf, including the US Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act of 1977 (the “FCPA”), the United Kingdom Bribery Act 2010 (the “UK Bribery Act”), the United Kingdom Modern Slavery Act 2015 (the “UK Modern Slavery Act”), and
similar laws. Any violation of the FCPA, UK Bribery Act, UK Slavery Act, or local or other applicable anti-corruption laws could result in substantial fines, sanctions, civil, and/or
criminal penalties against the company Company and implicated implicate members of our senior management or Board, and curtailment of operations in certain jurisdictions and
might adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. operations. In addition, actual or alleged violations could damage our reputation and ability or
qualification to do business with specific customers or in certain other jurisdictions. Further, detecting, investigating, and resolving actual or alleged violations is expensive and would
consume significant time and attention of our senior management.

Any failure to comply with the complex laws and regulations governing international trade could adversely affect our operations.

The shipment of goods, services, and technology across international borders subjects our business to extensive trade laws and regulations. Import activities are governed by
unique customs laws and regulations in each of the countries of operation. Moreover, many countries and governing bodies, including the United States, European Union and the
United Kingdom, control the export and re-export of certain goods, services, and technology and impose related export recordkeeping and reporting obligations. Governments and
governing bodies may also may impose economic sanctions against certain countries, persons and other entities that may restrict or prohibit transactions involving such countries,
persons, and entities. US,  EU and UK sanctions, in particular, are targeted against certain countries that are heavily involved in the petroleum and petrochemical industries, which
includes drilling activities.

The laws and regulations concerning import activity, export recordkeeping and reporting, export control, and economic sanctions are complex and constantly changing. These laws
and regulations may be enacted, amended, enforced, or interpreted in a manner materially impacting our operations. Shipments can be delayed and denied export or entry for a
variety of reasons, some of which are outside our control and some of which may result from failure to comply with existing legal and regulatory regimes. Shipping delays or denials
could cause unscheduled operational downtime. Any failure to comply with applicable legal and regulatory trading obligations could also result in criminal and civil penalties and
sanctions, such as fines, imprisonment, debarment from government contracts, seizure of shipments, and loss of import and export privileges.

Currently, we do not, nor do we intend to, operate in countries that are subject to significant sanctions and embargoes imposed by certain countries or governing bodies such as the
US, government UK or EU or in countries identified by the US government such bodies as state sponsors of terrorism, such as the Crimean region of the Ukraine, Cuba, Iran, North
Korea, and Syria. The US These sanctions and embargo laws and regulations vary in their application, as they do not all apply to the same covered persons or proscribe the same
activities, and such sanctions and embargo laws and regulations may be amended or strengthened over time. There can be no assurance that we will be in compliance in the future,
particularly as the scope of certain laws may be unclear and may be subject to changing interpretations. Any such violation could result in fines or other penalties and could result in
some investors deciding, or being required, to divest their interest, or not to invest, in us. In addition, certain institutional investors may have investment policies or restrictions that
prevent them from holding securities of companies that have contracts with countries identified by certain governing bodies, including the US, government UK and EU, as state
sponsors of terrorism or with countries that are otherwise subject to US sanctions and embargo laws. In addition, our reputation and the market for our securities may be adversely
affected if we engage in certain other activities, such as entering into drilling contracts with individuals or entities in countries subject to significant US sanctions and embargo laws
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that are not controlled by the governments of those countries, or engaging in operations associated with those countries pursuant to contracts with third parties that are unrelated to
those countries or entities controlled by their governments.

laws.

We are, or in the future could be, subject to investigations, litigation and claims that could have an adverse effect on us.

We are, from time to time, involved in various litigation matters. claims, investigations and litigation. These matters may include, among other things, contract disputes, personal
injury claims, asbestos, and other toxic tort claims, environmental claims or proceedings, employment matters, issues related to employee or representative conduct, governmental
claims for taxes, duties, customs or duties, other regulatory findings and other litigation that arises in the ordinary course of our business. Although we intend to defend or pursue
such matters vigorously, we cannot predict with certainty the outcome or effect of any claim, investigation or other litigation matter, and there can be no assurance as to the ultimate
outcome of any claim, investigation or litigation. Litigation Investigations, claims and litigation may have an adverse effect on us because of potential negative outcomes, legal fees,
the allocation of management’s time and attention, and other factors.

We could also face increased climate-related litigation with respect to our operations both in the US and around the world. Governmental and other entities in various US states,
such as California and New York, have filed lawsuits against energy companies. These suits allege damages as a result of climate change, and the plaintiffs are seeking unspecified
damages and abatement under various tort theories. Similar lawsuits may be filed in other jurisdictions both in the US and globally. Though we are not currently a party to any such
lawsuit, these suits present uncertainty regarding the extent to which companies who are not producing oil or gas, but who are engaged in such production, such as offshore drillers,
face an increased risk of liability stemming from climate change, which risk would also adversely impact the oil and gas industry and impact demand for our services.

Financial, Tax, and Governance Risks
We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. If we are unable to remediate this material weakness, or if we experience
additional material weaknesses or other deficiencies in the future or otherwise fail to maintain proper and effective internal controls, our ability to produce accurate
financial statements could be impaired, which could adversely affect our operating results, our ability to operate our business, and investors’ view of us.

As a public company, we are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, and are required to comply with the applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We
must perform a quarterly evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as well as an annual evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting to allow management
and our independent registered public accounting firm to report annually on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The maintenance of required disclosure controls and procedures is made more challenging when integrating acquisition businesses.

In connection with our year-end assessment of internal control over financial reporting as part of this Annual Report, we determined that, as of December 31, 2023, we did not
maintain effective internal control over financial reporting because of a material weakness related to the design and/or maintenance of effective controls over certain information
technology (“IT”) general controls for an information system that is relevant to the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. We intend to remediate these material
weaknesses, but we cannot be certain as to when remediation will be complete. Further, remediation efforts may place a significant burden on management and add increased
pressure to our financial and IT resources and processes. As a result, we may not be successful in making the improvements necessary to remediate the material weaknesses
identified by management, we may not be able to do so in a timely manner, or we may not be able to identify and remediate additional control deficiencies, including material
weaknesses, in the future. For further discussion of the material weaknesses identified and our remedial efforts, see Item 9A, Controls and Procedures of this Annual Report.

Our disclosure controls and procedures rely on information technology to record transactions, manage our business, and maintain the financial accuracy of our records. We are in
the process of integrating our enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system as part of the Business Combination. While we expect our newly integrated ERP system to strengthen
our internal financial controls, there are inherent risks in integrating systems. The implementation of these systems requires the commitment of significant personnel and financial
resources and entailed risks to business operations. Difficulties encountered with our ERP and related information systems could result in lost anticipated productivity improvements
or cost efficiencies, and/or interruptions in service or other operational difficulties that hinder our ability to effectively manage our business. The failure to either deliver the integrated
ERP System on time or to adequately anticipate the necessary readiness and training needs could lead to business disruption and loss of business. Failure or abandonment of any
part of the ERP system could result in a write-off of part or all of the costs that have been capitalized on the project.

Completion of remediation does not provide assurance that our remediation or other controls will continue to operate properly. Any failure of our ERP system or failure to
successfully remediate our existing or any future material weaknesses or other deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting generally could severely inhibit our ability to
accurately report our financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. If we are unable to successfully remediate our existing or any future material weaknesses or other
deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting, investors may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, the market price of our common
stock could decline, and we could be subject to sanctions or investigations by listing regulators, the SEC, or other regulatory authorities. Additionally, it could also restrict our future
access to the capital markets.

We may record impairment charges on property and equipment, including rigs and related capital spares.

We evaluate the impairment of property and equipment, which include rigs and related capital spares, whenever events or changes in circumstances, including a decision to cold
stack, retire, or sell rigs, indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss on our property and equipment may exist when the estimated
undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognized represents the
excess of the asset’s carrying value over the estimated fair value. As part of this analysis, we make assumptions and estimates regarding future market conditions. To the extent
actual results do not meet our estimated assumptions, for a given rig or piece of equipment, we may take an impairment loss in the future. In addition, we may also take an
impairment loss on capital spares and other capital equipment when we deem the value of those items has declined due to factors like obsolescence, deterioration or damage.
Based upon our impairment analyses for the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, we did not record any impairment charges. There can be no
assurance that we will not have to take additional impairment charges in the future if depressed market conditions return, or that we will be able to return cold stacked rigs to service
in the time frame and at the reactivation costs or at the dayrates that we projected. It is reasonably possible that the estimate of undiscounted cash flows may change in the near
term, resulting in the need to write down the affected assets to their corresponding estimated fair values.

The 2023 Revolving Revolving Credit Agreement, the indenture for the 2030 Notes, and the indenture for the 2030 Diamond Second Lien Notes each contain various
restrictive covenants limiting the discretion of our management in operating our business.

The 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement contains various restrictive covenants that may limit our management’s discretion in certain respects. In particular, the 2023 Revolving Credit

Agreement limits the ability of Noble Finance II LLC (“Noble Finance II”) and the ability of its restricted subsidiaries to, among other things and subject to certain limitations and

exceptions, (i) incur, assume or guarantee additional indebtedness, (ii) pay dividends or distributions on capital stock or redeem or repurchase capital stock, (iii) make investments,
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(iv) repay, redeem, or amend certain indebtedness, (v) sell stock of its subsidiaries, (vi) transfer or sell assets, (vii) create, incur, or assume liens, (viii) enter into transactions with
certain affiliates, (ix) merge or consolidate with or into any other person or undergo certain other fundamental changes, and (x) enter into certain burdensome agreements. In
addition, the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement obligates Noble Finance II LLC and its restricted subsidiaries to comply with certain financial maintenance covenants and, under
certain conditions, to make mandatory prepayments and reduce the amount of credit available under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, all as described in Part II, Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations— Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources— Resources — Amended and Restated
Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement.” Such mandatory prepayments and commitment reductions may affect cash available for use in the Company’s business. Our failure
to comply with these covenants could result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived, could result in all obligations under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility to be declared
due and payable immediately and all commitments thereunder to be terminated.

In addition, theThe 8.000% Senior Notes due 2030 Notes (the “2030 Notes”) are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by the direct and indirect subsidiaries of
Noble Finance II that are Credit Parties (as defined herein) under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility. The ability of Noble Finance II to comply with the covenants and restrictions
contained in the indenture for the 2030 Notes may be affected by events beyond its control. If market or other economic conditions deteriorate, our ability to comply with these
covenants and restrictions may be impaired. A failure to comply with the covenants, ratios, or tests in the indenture, if not cured or waived, could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Our existing and future indebtedness may have cross-default and cross-acceleration provisions. Upon the triggering of
any such provision, the relevant creditor may:

• ▪ not be required to lend any additional amounts to Noble Finance II;

• ▪ elect to declare all borrowings outstanding due to them, together with accrued and unpaid interest and fees, to be due and payable;

• ▪ have the ability to require Noble Finance II to apply all of its available cash to repay such borrowings; and/or

• ▪ prevent Noble Finance II from making debt service payments under its other agreements, any of which could result in an event of default under the 2030 Notes.

If any of our existing indebtedness were to be accelerated, there can be no assurance that it we would have, or be able to obtain, sufficient funds to repay such indebtedness in full.
Even if new financing were available, it may be on terms that are less attractive than the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility or the 2030 Notes or it may not be on terms that are
acceptable to us.
In addition, the Diamond 8.500% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due October 2030 (the “Diamond Second Lien Notes”) are issued by Diamond Foreign Asset Company and
Diamond Finance, LLC (collectively, the “Issuers”) and are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, on a senior secured basis by Noble Offshore Drilling, Inc.
(formerly known as Dolphin Merger Sub 2, Inc. and as successor by merger with Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc.) (“NODI”), and each of its existing restricted subsidiaries (other than
the Issuers) and by certain of NODI’s future restricted subsidiaries.

The indenture governing the Diamond Second Lien Notes contains covenants that, among other things, restrict NODI’s ability and the ability of certain of its subsidiaries to: (i) incur
additional debt and issue certain preferred stock; (ii) incur or create liens; (iii) make certain dividends, distributions, investments, and other restricted payments; (iv) sell or otherwise
dispose of certain assets; (v) engage in certain transactions with affiliates; and (vi) merge, consolidate, amalgamate, or sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise dispose of all or
substantially all of the assets of NODI and such subsidiaries. A failure to comply with the covenants, ratios, or tests in the indenture, if not cured or waived, could result in the
outstanding principal amount, together with accrued and unpaid interest and fees, becoming immediately due and payable and could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

A loss of a major tax dispute or a successful tax challenge to our operating structure, intercompany pricing policies, or the taxable presence of our subsidiaries in
certain countries could result in a higher tax rate on our worldwide earnings, which could result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

Income tax Tax returns that we file and/or tax payments that we make will be subject to review and examination. We recognize the benefit of income tax positions we believe are
more likely than not to be sustained upon challenge by a tax authority. If any tax authority successfully challenges our operational structure, intercompany pricing policies, the
taxable presence of our subsidiaries in certain countries, or other material tax positions, if the terms of certain income tax treaties are interpreted in a manner that is adverse to our
structure, or if we lose a material tax dispute in any country, our effective tax rate on our worldwide earnings, and our cash income tax expense, and/or operating expense could
increase substantially and result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition. In addition, Noble may have exposures with respect to the tax audits and tax disputes of
certain third parties which were under a joint taxation contribution arrangement with certain subsidiaries that Noble acquired in the Business Combination.

Our consolidated effective income tax rate may vary substantially from one reporting period to another.

We cannot provide any assurances as to what our consolidated effective income tax rate will be because of, among other matters, uncertainty regarding the nature and extent of our
business activities in any particular jurisdiction in the future and the tax laws of such jurisdictions, as well as potential changes in the UK, US, Guyana, Luxembourg, Norway,
Singapore, Denmark, and other tax laws, regulations, or treaties or the interpretation or enforcement thereof, changes in the administrative practices and precedents of tax
authorities or any reclassification or other matter, such as changes in applicable accounting rules, that increases the amounts we have provided for income taxes or deferred tax
assets and liabilities in our consolidated financial statements. For example, certain countries within which we operate or own substantial assets have enacted changes to their tax
laws in response to the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development’s (“OECD”) ongoing Base Erosion and Profit Shifting initiatives and these and other countries may
enact changes to their tax laws or practices in the future (prospectively or retroactively), which may have a material adverse effect on our financial position, operating results and/or
cash flows.

In addition, as a result of frequent changes in the taxing jurisdictions in which our drilling rigs are operated and/or owned, changes in the overall level of our income and changes in
tax laws, our consolidated effective income tax rate may vary substantially from one reporting period to another. Income tax rates imposed in the tax jurisdictions in which our
subsidiaries conduct operations vary, as does the tax base to which the rates are applied. In some cases, tax rates may be applicable to gross revenues, statutory or negotiated
deemed profits, or other bases utilized under local tax laws, rather than to net income. Our drilling rigs frequently move from one taxing jurisdiction to another to perform contract
drilling services. In some instances, the movement of drilling rigs among taxing jurisdictions will involve the transfer of ownership of the drilling rigs among our subsidiaries. If we are
unable to mitigate the negative consequences of any change in law, audit, business activity, or other matter, this could cause our consolidated effective income tax rate to increase
and cause a material adverse effect on our financial position, operating results, and/or cash flows.

Fluctuations in exchange rates and nonconvertibility of currencies could result in losses to us.
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We may experience currency exchange losses when revenues are received or expenses are paid in nonconvertible currencies, when we do not hedge an exposure to a foreign
currency, when the result of a hedge is a loss or if any counterparty to our hedge were to experience financial difficulties. We may also incur losses as a result of an inability to
collect revenues due to a shortage of convertible currency available to the country of operation, controls over currency exchange or controls over the repatriation of income or
capital.

Certain shareholders own a significant portion of our outstanding equity securities, and their interests may not always coincide with the interests of other holders of
the Ordinary Shares.

A large percentage of the Ordinary Shares are held by a relatively small number of investors. As a result, these investors could have significant influence over all matters presented
to our shareholders for approval, including election and removal of our directors, change in control transactions, and the outcome of all actions requiring a majority shareholder
approval.

The interests of these investors may not always coincide with the interests of the other holders of the Ordinary Shares, and the concentration of control in these investors may limit
other shareholders’ ability to influence corporate matters. The concentration of ownership and voting power of these investors may also delay, defer, or even prevent an acquisition
by a third party or other change of control of our Company, and may make some transactions more difficult or impossible without their support, even if such events are in the best
interests of our other shareholders. In addition, the concentration of voting power may adversely affect the trading price of the Ordinary Shares. A large percentage of the Ordinary
Shares are held by a relatively small number of investors.

Holders of the Ordinary Shares may not receive dividends on their Ordinary Shares, and we may decrease or suspend our dividend on, or our repurchases of, our
Ordinary Shares.

Holders of the Ordinary Shares are entitled to receive only such dividends as our Board of Directors may declare and pay out of funds legally available for such payments. Such
may be paid only out of Noble’s “distributable reserves” as determined by reference to relevant statutory accounts in accordance with English law. law, and additionally as permitted
under our credit facilities and other financing arrangements. Therefore, Noble is not permitted to pay dividends out of share capital, which includes share premium. We are not
required to pay a dividend or effect share repurchases, and any determination to pay dividends and other distributions in cash, stock, or property, or to effect share repurchases by
us in the future, including determinations as to the amount of any such dividend, distribution, or distribution, repurchase, will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors Directors.
Our payment of dividends and share repurchases may vary from historical practices or our stated expectations. The timing and amount, if any, of dividends and share repurchases
is discretionary and will be dependent on many factors, including our expectations regarding our ability to generate sufficient cash flows, and our results of operations, financial
condition, cash requirements, future business prospects, capital requirements, contractual and indenture restrictions, and other factors deemed relevant by our Board. Board of
Directors.

We are a holding company, and we are dependent upon cash flow from subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates to meet our obligations.

We currently conduct our operations through our subsidiaries, including joint ventures and associates, and our operating income and cash flow are generated by such entities. As a
result, cash we obtain from our subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates is the principal source of funds necessary to meet our debt service obligations. Unless they are
guarantors of our indebtedness, such entities do not have any obligation to pay amounts due on our indebtedness or to make funds available for that purpose. Contractual
provisions or laws, as well as such entities’ financial condition, debt covenants, and operating requirements, may also limit our ability to obtain the cash that we require to pay our
debt service obligations. Applicable tax laws may also subject such payments to us by such entities to further taxation.

Future sales or the availability for sale of substantial amounts of the Ordinary Shares or the exercise of warrants issued pursuant to the Plan would have a dilutive
effect to shareholders of the Company and the perception that these sales may occur, could adversely affect the trading price of the Ordinary Shares, and could impair
our ability to raise capital through future sales of equity securities.

As of February 15, 2024 February 14, 2025, there were 142,766,794 159,191,313 Ordinary Shares outstanding. In addition, as of February 15, 2024 February 14, 2025,
1,112,314 886,427 Tranche 1 Warrants, 1,144,741 942,606 Tranche 2 Warrants, and 2,774,124 2,773,456 Tranche 3 Warrants were outstanding and exercisable. We also have
372,993 5,255,631 Ordinary Shares authorized and reserved for issuance pursuant to equity awards under the Noble Corporation plc 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

A large percentage of the Ordinary Shares (or warrants exercisable for Ordinary Shares) are held by a relatively small number of investors.

Sales of a substantial number of the Ordinary Shares in the public markets, exercise of a substantial number of warrants, or even the perception that these sales or exercises might
occur, could impair our ability to raise capital for our operations through a future sale of, or pay for acquisitions using, our equity securities.

As of February 15, 2024 February 14, 2025, the Mandatory Exercise Condition (as defined in the applicable warrant agreement) for the Tranche 1 Warrants and the Tranche 2
Warrants had been satisfied. Between January 1, 2023 January 1, 2024, and December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, an aggregate of 7,939,051 245,210 Ordinary Shares were
issued pursuant to exercise of Tranche 1 Warrants, Tranche 2 Warrants, and Tranche 3 Warrants. These exercises, and continued exercises of these warrants into Ordinary Shares
pursuant to the terms of the outstanding warrants, will have a dilutive effect to the holdings of our existing shareholders.

We used Ordinary Shares for part of the consideration in the Diamond Transaction and may issue Ordinary Shares or other securities from time to time as consideration for future
acquisitions and investments. If any such acquisition or investment is significant, the number of Ordinary Shares, or the number or aggregate principal amount, as the case may be,
of other securities that we may issue may in turn be substantial. We may also grant registration rights covering those Ordinary Shares or other securities in connection with any such
acquisitions and investments. For example, in connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling, we issued a significant number of Ordinary Shares as consideration
and granted registration rights to a recipient thereof, pursuant to which we have filed a registration statement with the SEC to facilitate potential future sales of such Ordinary Shares
by them.

We cannot predict the effect that future sales of Ordinary Shares will have on the price at which the Ordinary Shares trades trade or the size of future issuances of Ordinary Shares
or the effect, if any, that future issuances will have on the market price of the Ordinary Shares. Sales of substantial amounts of the Ordinary Shares, or the perception that such
sales could occur, may adversely affect the trading price of the Ordinary Shares.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.

Item 1C. Cybersecurity.Cyber Security.
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Risk Management and Strategy
Cyber security risk management at Noble, along with all enterprise risks, is part of the Company’s Enterprise Risk Management Program and risks from cyber security threats are
assessed, identified, and managed by our Information Security Team. The Information Security Team reports to the Chief Information Officer (“CIO”). The Information Security Team
is composed of information security the Director of Information Security, managers, and security analysts.

The Information Security Management Team is responsible for all of Noble’s cyber security-related activities such as advising on governance requirements, setting cyber security
policies, standards, and procedures, reporting, determining current risk appetite, setting security posture, evaluating security maturity, and ensuring compliance to cyber security
frameworks. The team monitors both internal and external threats, potential compromising internet-based attacks, phishing activities, and aims to adapt with protective measures.

The Director of Information Security and information security managers carry broad manager level cyber security certifications, and the technical teams carry relevant specific
technical certifications related to both Information Technology and Operational Technology security.

Noble’s cyber security program encompasses mandatory cyber training, awareness, phishing exercises, and cyber security incident response plan testing to assist with our cyber
security risk management process and ensure various applicable implemented cyber controls are working as intended.

Noble works with various third-party partners to help execute and advise on cyber security and evaluate maturity assessments as needed.

Noble has a process of monitoring all third parties with direct access into the Noble network via various implemented security tools that act as both detective and preventive controls.
All third parties with such direct access are also monitored via procurement processes and are subject to specific legal terms and conditions. Noble also engages with various third-
party partners such as ONG-ISAC, DataBreachToday, the US Coast Guard, local FBI, the Norwegian Security Authority, IADC, and IMO, in order to share intelligence regarding
external threats. For any cyber incidents, Noble may engage applicable third-party partners for forensic purposes.

Noble also engages with various cyber security service providers, such as Crowdstrike, Fortinet, NTT, and Microsoft, which share applicable reports with Noble.

In the last fiscal year, Noble is has not aware of identified any current or potential risks from known cyber security threats, incidents, or exposures that have or may have materially
affected or are reasonably likely to materially impact Noble’s business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition. condition, but Noble faces certain ongoing cyber security
risks that, if realized, could materially and adversely affect Noble. This does not guarantee that future incidents or threats will not have a material impact or that we are not currently
the subject of an undetected incident or threat that may have such an impact. Potential cybersecurity cyber security risks to Noble are shared in Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” which
should be read in conjunction with the foregoing information.

Governance
Enterprise risk management is a matter that is reviewed and addressed by The Audit Committee of the entire Board. The Noble Enterprise Risk Management Program, which
includes Board provides oversight of the Company’s cyber security enterprise risk, is updated by management and reported to the Board of Directors quarterly. program. The
quarterly update to the Board of Directors includes information regarding cyber related risks, initiatives, and potential and actual cyber security threats and incidents. The CIO or
their dedicated deputy is responsible for reporting cyber security risks and events to executive management as well as the Board of Directors, as appropriate. Specific issues or
threats may be escalated to the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors between quarterly updates by the CIO, as appropriate, and the Information Security Team keeps
management informed about initiatives, threats, incidents, training, and best practices on an on-going basis via circulated memos or meetings.

In addition to reporting through the Audit Committee and Enterprise Risk Management Program, the Board of Directors also includes may periodically include cyber security as an
independent agenda item periodically and engages with the CIO and Information Security Team as well as external experts on cyber security matters.

The Information Security Team advises the CIO via cyber reports on prevention, detection, mitigation, and remediation of cyber security incidents. The CIO is responsible for the
Information Security Team risk strategy, assessment, exceptions, risk acceptance, and management of the Company’s material risks from cybersecurity cyber security risk appetites.
Ongoing assessments cover applicable information technology and operations technology systems, applications, and software used to support Noble’s corporate and rig operations.
The outcome of these various assessments influences the IT risk appetite and risk identification, and acceptance is discussed and shared with the CIO, in preparation for executive
management, the Audit Committee, and the Board of Directors meeting presentation Directors.

The CIO has extensive cybersecurity cyber security knowledge and skills gained from over ten years of relevant work experience at Noble including two years as Deputy CIO as well
as Director, IT prior to the merger with Maersk Drilling with responsibility for cyber security. The CIO has multiple years of experience managing OT data and post-merger Noble.
Prior to Maersk Drilling, the CIO served four years as CIO at Adform, a leading global advertising technology company, where he was also responsible secure remote access for

cybersecurity. data management on and offshore.Prior to serving as CIO of Adform, Director, IT the CIO served as Chief Development Officer at Sitecore, a leading global

marketing was the Manager, Business Systems responsible for application management and e-commerce software and solution provider, where solution design and cybersecurity
awareness was a key area of responsibility. Enterprise Architecture. The Information Security Team advises the CIO via cyber reports on prevention, detection, mitigation, and
remediation of cybersecurity cyber security incidents.

Item 2. Properties.
The description of our rig fleet included under “Part I, Item 1, Business” is incorporated by reference herein. We lease office space in Sugar Land, Houston, Texas, where our
corporate headquarters are located. In addition, we own and lease operational, administrative, and marketing offices, as well as other sites used primarily for operations, storage,
and maintenance and repairs for drilling rigs and equipment in various locations worldwide.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, we were involved in a number of lawsuits, regulatory matters, disputes, and claims, asserted and unasserted, all of which have arisen
in the ordinary course of our business and for which we do not expect the liability, if any, to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows. We cannot predict with certainty the outcome or effect of any of the matters referred to above or of any such other pending or threatened litigation or legal
proceedings. We can provide no assurance that our beliefs or expectations as to the outcome or effect of any lawsuit or claim or dispute will prove correct and the eventual outcome
of these matters could materially differ from management’s current estimates.

Additional information regarding legal proceedings is presented in “Note 14 12 — Commitments and Contingencies” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item
8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.
Market for Shares and Related Shareholder Information
Our shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “NE” and on the Nasdaq Copenhagen A/S under the ticker symbol “NOBLE.” .

On February 15, 2024 February 14, 2025, there were 142,766,794 159,191,313 Ordinary Shares outstanding held by 10 8 shareholder accounts of record. This figure does not
include an estimate of the indeterminate number of beneficial holders whose shares may be held of record by brokerage firms and clearing agencies.

Exercises of Warrants
During the three months ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024:

• 13,243 19,787 Ordinary Shares were issued to holders of our Tranche 1 Warrants pursuant to exercises of 15,164 36,920 Tranche 1 Warrants; and

• 5,461 12,660 Ordinary Shares were issued to holders of our Tranche 2 Warrants pursuant to exercises of 5,476 23,449 Tranche 2 Warrants; and

• 24 Ordinary Shares were issued to holders of our Tranche 2 Warrants pursuant to exercises of 38 Tranche 2 Warrants; and

• 4,189 Ordinary Shares were issued to holders of Diamond Warrants pursuant to exercises of 18,162 Diamond Warrants.

Such Noble Cayman Shares or Ordinary Shares, as the case may be, were issued pursuant to the exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act under Section
4(a)(2) under the Securities Act or Section 1145 of the Bankruptcy Code, as the case may be. For more information on the terms of exercise and other features of the warrants, see
“Note 9 7 — Equity” to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Share Repurchases
The following table presents information about our purchases of equity securities for the three months ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024:

Period

Total Number of Shares

Purchased (1)

Average Price Paid per

Share

Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part

of a Publicly Announced Plans or Programs

(1)

Maximum Number (or Approximate Dollar Value)

of Shares that may yet be Purchased Under the

Plans or Programs (1)

October 1 - 31, 2023 —  —  —  $ 305,000,187 

November 1 - 30, 2023 —  —  —  $ 305,000,187 

December 1- 31, 2023 329,069  $ 45.03  329,069  $ 290,174,049 

Total 329,069  329,069  $ 290,174,049 

Period

Total Number of Shares

Purchased (1)

Average Price Paid per

Share

Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part

of a Publicly Announced Plan or Program (1)

Approximate Dollar Value of Shares that may yet

be Purchased Under a Plan or Program (1)

October 1 - 31, 2024 —  $ —  —  $ 440,174,211 

November 1 - 30, 2024 1,081,487  $ 33.85  1,081,487  $ 403,539,117 

December 1- 31, 2024 423,398  $ 31.52  423,398  $ 390,184,935 

Total 1,504,885  1,504,885  $ 390,184,935 

(1) Subject to restrictions under applicable law discussed in “Note 9 7 — Equity” to our consolidated financial statements, we announced a share repurchase plan on November
2, 2022, to purchase up to $400 million of outstanding Ordinary Shares or Warrants. The On October 22, 2024, Noble’s Board of Directors authorized an increased share
repurchase authorization of up to an additional $400 million million. The authorization does not have a fixed expiration and may be modified, suspended, or discontinued at
any time. The program does not obligate us to acquire any particular amount of shares. During the three months ended December 31, 2023, we All repurchased 329,069 of
our Ordinary Shares, which shares were subsequently cancelled.

Dividends
The declaration and payment of dividends require the authorization of the Board of Directors. Such may be paid only out of Noble’s “distributable reserves” as determined by
reference to relevant statutory accounts in accordance with English law. Therefore, Noble is not permitted to pay dividends out of share capital, which includes share premium. The
payment of future dividends will depend on our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, future business prospects, contractual and indenture restrictions, and
other factors deemed relevant by our Board. Board of Directors.

Stock Performance Graph
The chart below presents a comparison of the cumulative total returns, assuming $100 was invested at the beginning of the period for Noble, the Standard & Poor's 500 Index (“S&P
500”), the PHLX Oil Service Sector Index (“OSX”), and the Dow Jones US Oil Equipment and Services. Total return assumes the reinvestment of dividends, if any, in the security on
the ex-dividend date. This graph depicts the past performance for the period from June 9, 2021, the day our Noble Cayman Shares began trading on the NYSE, through December
31, 2023 December 31, 2024, and in no way should be used to predict future share performance. In connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling, prior to the
opening of trading on September 30, 2022, the Noble Cayman Shares were suspended from trading on the NYSE. The Ordinary Shares began regular-way trading on the NYSE
using Noble Cayman’s trading history under the ticker symbol “NE” immediately following the suspension of trading of the Noble Cayman Shares.

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2025 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

30/154

10-K stock graph_21 Jan 2025.jpg

INDEXED RETURNS

INDEXED RETURNS

INDEXED RETURNS

Indexed Returns

Indexed Returns

Indexed Returns

Company / Index

Noble Corporation plc

Noble Corporation plc

Noble Corporation plc

S&P 500 Index

S&P 500 Index

S&P 500 Index

Dow Jones US Oil Equipment & Services Index

Dow Jones US Oil Equipment & Services Index

Dow Jones US Oil Equipment & Services Index

OSX Index

OSX Index

OSX Index

The above graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any
future filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing.

Item 6. [Reserved].

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.
The following discussion is intended to assist you in understanding our financial position at December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, and our results of operations for
the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the period from February 6 through December 31, 2021, and the period from January 1 through February
5, 2021. 2022.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, filed by Noble.

Executive Overview
Noble is a leading offshore drilling contractor for the oil and gas industry. We provide contract drilling services to the international oil and gas industry with our global fleet of mobile
offshore drilling units. Our business strategy is centered around providing efficient, reliable, and safe offshore drilling services to our customers. We have one of the youngest and
highest specification fleets of global scale in the industry, with diversification across asset classes, geographic regions, and customers. The Company has a track record of industry-
leading utilization coupled with a commitment to best-in-class safety performance and customer satisfaction. We strive to be a the leader in industry innovation and a first-mover in
sustainability.

Our fleet consists predominately of technologically advanced units, equipped with sophisticated systems and components prepared to execute our customers’ complicated offshore
drilling programs safely and with greater efficiency. We are primarily focused on the ultra-deepwater market and the harsh and ultra-harsh environment jackup markets, which
typically are more technically challenging markets in which to operate. operate in.

We emphasize safe operations, environmental stewardship, and superior performance through a structured management system, the employment of qualified and well-trained
crews and onshore support staff, the care of our surroundings and the neighboring communities where we operate, and other activities advancing our environmental sustainability,
social responsibility, and good governance. We also manage rig operating costs through the implementation and continuous improvement of innovative systems and processes,
which includes the use of data analytics and predictive maintenance technology.

As of the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our fleet of 32 40 drilling rigs consists of 19 27 floaters and 13 jackups strategically deployed worldwide. We typically employ
each drilling unit under an individual contract, and many contracts are awarded based upon a competitive bidding process.

We report our contract drilling operations as a single reportable segment, Contract Drilling Services, which reflects how we manage our business. The mobile offshore drilling units
comprising our offshore rig fleet operate in a global market for contract drilling services and are often redeployed to different regions due to changing demands of our customers,
which consist primarily of large, integrated, independent, and government-owned or controlled oil and gas companies throughout the world.

For the year ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, our financial and operating results include:

• operating revenues totaling $2.6 billion $3.1 billion;

• net income of $481.9 $448.4 million or $3.32 $2.96 per diluted share;
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• net cash provided by operating activities totaling $574.3 million $655.5 million;

• nothing no funds drawn down on the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility as of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, and

• a year end cash balance of $360.8 million $247.3 million.

Demand for our services is driven by the offshore exploration and development programs of oil and gas operators, which in turn are influenced by many factors. Those factors
include, but are not limited to, the price and price stability of oil and gas, the relative cost and carbon footprint of offshore resources within each operator’s broader energy portfolio,
global macroeconomic conditions, world energy demand, the operator’s strategy toward renewable energy sources, environmental considerations, and governmental policies.

Over the last decade, the offshore drilling industry has experienced significant volatility and change, which has meaningfully impacted both the supply of, and demand
for, offshore rigs. After several years of a significantly oversupplied rig market, industry conditions had started to gradually improve in 2019, which was evidenced by
increasing utilization and improving dayrates. However, in the first half of 2020, this gradual recovery was abruptly halted as oil prices experienced concurrent supply
and demand shocks that were the result of disagreements among OPEC+ members and the global COVID-19 pandemic, respectively. This had a negative impact on
both utilization and dayrates for the offshore drilling industry and led to further financial challenges for many drilling and other service companies. However, by early
2021, oil prices returned to pre-pandemic levels and continued to rise throughout 2021.

Since 2021, oil prices generally remained at levels that were supportive of offshore exploration and development activity. While the ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict and related
sanctions, inflationary pressures and the subsequent government and central bank efforts to curb inflation, recession concerns, and supply chain disruptions did create some
uncertainty relating to future global energy demand, global rig demand has increased since 2021.

This increase in global demand has been the result of the combination of growing confidence in commodity prices remaining at or above current levels, heightened focus on energy
security, recent multi-year underinvestment in the development and exploration of hydrocarbons, and relative attractiveness of offshore plays with respect to both cost and a carbon
emissions perspective. This had a positive impact on both utilization and day rates for certain of our rig classes.

Outlook
In recent years, oil prices have generally remained at levels that are supportive of offshore exploration and development activity and global rig demand is increasing. This
increasing recovered to eclipse pre-pandemic levels, albeit with some moderation over the past 12 months. Current demand has been caused and utilization levels are supported by
the combination of growing confidence in resilient commodity prices, heightened focus on energy security, recent multi-year underinvestment in the development and
exploration capital intensity of hydrocarbons, depletion replacement, and relative attractiveness of offshore plays with respect to both cost and carbon emissions. This The increase
in global rig demand since 2021 has had a positive impact on dayrates for certain of our most rig classes. classes although dayrates have generally plateaued more recently.

The global rig supply has come down from historic highs as Noble and other offshore drilling contractors have retired less capable and idle assets. Concurrently, the incoming supply
of newbuild offshore drilling rigs has diminished materially, with several newbuild rigs stranded in shipyards. However, we expect many of these stranded newbuild rigs may continue
to make their way into the global market over the next few years.

Although the market outlook in our business varies by geographical region and water depth, we remain encouraged by the long-term outlook in the ultra-deepwater floater market.
However, within this ultra-deepwater market, with overall demand having increased from 2020 lows. Our our customers continue to focus on the our highest specification floaters,
which represents the majority of our floater fleet. We Assuming current market fundamentals, continued customer prioritization towards these highest specification floaters is likely to
result in lower utilization for our lower specification drillships and our semi-submersibles. Demand for midwater semisubmersibles is primarily driven by brownfield activity in mature
basins, especially in Northwest Europe, South America, and the Asia Pacific regions, where a generally stable level of baseload demand is supported by infield drilling and plug and
abandonment requirements. Despite some recent contract suspensions in select jackup markets, we have also observed an overall demand increase in the global jackup market
with the Middle East being the largest component of this increase. since 2020. While we remain encouraged about the increasing overall  long-term rig demand, to the extent global
macroeconomic concerns become more prevalent and produce downward pressure on oil and gas prices, we could experience downward pressure on overall rig demand for both
floaters and jackups.

As Returning to the broader offshore drilling market, while there are a number of the date of this report, the majority of our jackup fleet is positioned in the North Sea. While we are
starting to see some increased multi-year contracts out for tender, activity in the UK North Sea, overall activity levels in this region remain subdued compared to historical levels. The
Norway ultra-harsh environment jackup market is similar, where current activity also remains below historical levels, despite the market being attractive to operators given it is
characterized by low-cost and low-emission barrels.

While the length of contract terms has started to moderately increase, the overall market remains characterized by generally shorter-term contracts. This leads to an increased
number of rig contract start-ups, both with different customers and among different regions. These rig contract start-ups and other shipyard projects regions, which may result
in require incremental resources and costs and, in certain cases, may delay delivery of the applicable rig which may trigger applicable late delivery clauses. The Noble Faye Kozak,
currently undergoing a rig contract start-up, is delayed and currently expected to commence in early third quarter 2024 . costs. Additionally, shorter-term contracts have this has
resulted in, and is likely to continue to result in, lower overall effective utilization for our fleet driven by more idle time between contracts.

The energy transition from hydrocarbons to renewables poses a challenge to the oil and gas sector and our market. Energy rebalancing trends have accelerated in recent years as
evidenced by promulgated or proposed government policies and commitments by many of our customers to further invest in sustainable energy sources. Our industry could be
further challenged as our customers rebalance their resource holders and policy makers continue to evaluate and calibrate strategies and capital investments more towards
alternative flows to address global energy sources. However, at the same time, needs. Ultimately, however, there continues to be a global dependence on products made from
hydrocarbons and on the combustion of hydrocarbons to provide reliable and affordable energy. Low-cost and low-emission barrels are expected to be the most attractive
conventional source to meet energy needs both currently and in the future. Global energy demand is predicted to increase over the coming decades, and we expect that offshore oil
and gas will continue to play an important and lasting role in meeting this demand.

We expect inflationary pressures to persist, which has led, or and may continue to lead, to increased costs of services. Additionally, we expect supply chain disruptions to continue,
and potentially accelerate, as geopolitical crises, such as the Russia-Ukraine conflict, Middle East conflicts, and the Guyana-Venezuela dispute, and their respective regional and
global ramifications, have the potential to may negatively impact our ability to conduct our day-to-day operations. Additionally, the impact of new or increased tariffs or trade wars
could have an inflationary impact on the costs of certain products and services as well as potentially contribute to further supply chain disruptions.

Contract Drilling Services Backlog
We maintain a backlog of commitments for contract drilling services. Our contract drilling services backlog reflects estimated future revenues attributable to signed drilling contracts.
While backlog did not include any letters of intent as of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, in the past we have included in backlog certain letters of intent that we expect to
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result in binding drilling contracts. As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, contract drilling services backlog totaled approximately $4.8 billion, which represents approximately
65% of available days for 2024. $6.1 billion.

We calculate backlog for any given unit and period by multiplying the full contractual operating dayrate for such unit by the number of days remaining in the period, and include
certain assumptions based on the terms of certain contractual arrangements, discussed in the notes to the table below. The reported contract drilling services backlog does not
include amounts representing revenues for mobilization, demobilization, and contract preparation, which are not expected to be significant to our contract drilling services revenues,
amounts constituting reimbursables from customers, or amounts attributable to uncommitted option periods under drilling contracts or letters of intent.

The table below presents the amount of our contract drilling services backlog and the percent of available operating days committed for the periods indicated:

Year Ending December 31, (1)

Year Ending December 31, (1)

Year Ending December 31, (1)

Year Ended December 31, (1)

Total Total 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

(In thousands) (In thousands)

(In thousands)

(In thousands)

Contract Drilling Services Backlog

Floaters (2) (3)

Floaters (2) (3)

Floaters (2) (3)

Jackups (4) (3)

Jackups (4) (3)

Floaters (2)

Floaters (2)

Floaters (2)

Jackups (4) (3) Jackups (4) (3) 849,914 398,001 267,233 184,680 —

Total

Total

Total

Percent of Available Days Committed (5) (4)

Percent of Available Days Committed (5) (4)

Percent of Available Days Committed (5) (4)

Floaters

Floaters

Floaters 60  % 38  % 23  % 13  % —  %

Jackups Jackups 51  % 24  % 14  % —  % —  %

Jackups

Jackups

Total Total 57  % 34  % 20  % 9  % —  %

Total

Total

(1) Represents a twelve-month period beginning January 1. Some of our drilling contracts provide customers with certain early termination rights and, in limited cases, those
termination rights require minimal or no notice and minimal financial penalties.

(2) One of our long-term drilling contracts with Shell plc, the Noble Globetrotter II, contains a dayrate adjustment mechanism that utilizes an average of market rates that match
a set of distinct technical attributes and is subject to a modest discount, beginning on the fifth-year anniversary of the contract and continuing every six months thereafter.
The contract now has a contractual dayrate floor of $275,000 per day. The dayrate for this rig will not be lower than the higher of (i) the contractual dayrate floor or (ii) the
market rate as calculated under the adjustment mechanism.
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(3) Noble entered into a multi-year Commercial Enabling Agreement (the “CEA”) with ExxonMobil in February 2020. Under the CEA, dayrates earned by for the rigs are
repriced on March 1 and September 1 each rig will be updated twice per year to the projected market rate at the time the new rate goes into effect, subject to a
scale-based discount and a performance bonus that appropriately aligns the interests of Noble and ExxonMobil. Under the CEA, the table above includes awarded
and remaining current contract term of three years and five months to August 18, 2028, related to each of the four following rigs: the Noble Tom Madden, Noble Bob
Douglas, Noble Don Taylor, and Noble Sam Croft. Under the CEA, ExxonMobil may reassign terms remaining contract term among rigs. rigs, subject to maintaining
certain minimum contract term on the rig from which term is removed.

(4) (3) In 2022, Noble renewed its five-year Framework Agreement with Aker BP for the provision of ultra-harsh environment jackup rigs, the Noble Integrator and Noble
Invincible, for activities offshore Norway. Under the Framework Agreement, different rate structures apply reflecting different operating modes, agreed incentive
schemes, and adjustments for operating expenses. Rate structures are adjusted annually to reflect market conditions.

(5) (4) Percent of available days committed is calculated by dividing the total number of days our rigs are operating under contract for such period by the product of the number
of our rigs, including cold-stacked rigs, and the number of calendar days in such period.

The amount of actual revenues earned and the actual periods during which revenues are earned may be materially different than the backlog amounts and backlog periods
presented in the table above due to various factors, including, but not limited to, shipyard and maintenance projects, unplanned downtime, the operation of market benchmarks for
dayrate resets, achievement of bonuses, weather conditions, reduced standby or mobilization rates, and other factors that result in applicable dayrates lower than the full contractual
operating dayrate. In addition, amounts included in the backlog may change because drilling contracts may be varied or modified by mutual consent or customers may exercise
early termination rights contained in some of our drilling contracts or decline to enter into a drilling contract after executing a letter of intent. As a result, our backlog as of any
particular date may not be indicative of our actual operating results for the periods for which the backlog is calculated. See Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our
Business and Operations—Our current backlog of contract drilling revenue may not be ultimately realized.”

As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, ExxonMobil, Aker BP, and Petrobras represented approximately 42.5% 37.2%, 15.3%13.1%, and 12.9%12.6% of our backlog,
respectively.

Results of Operations
Results for the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022 2023
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2024, was $448.4 million, or $2.96 per diluted share, on operating revenues of $3.1 billion compared to net income for the year ended
December 31, 2023, was of $481.9 million, or $3.32 per diluted share, on operating revenues of $2.6 billion compared to net income for the year ended December 31, 2022, of
$168.9 million, or $1.73 per diluted share, on operating revenues of $1.4 billion.

Key Operating Metrics
Operating results for our contract drilling services segment are dependent on three primary metrics: operating days, dayrates, and operating costs. We also track rig utilization,
which is a function of operating days and the number of rigs in our fleet. For more information on operating costs, see “Contract Drilling Services” below.

The following table presents the average rig utilization, operating days, and average dayrates for our rig fleet for the periods indicated.

Average Rig Utilization (1)

Average Rig Utilization (1)

Average Rig Utilization (1)

Year Ended December 31,

Year Ended December 31,

Year Ended December 31,

2023

2023

2023

2024

2024

2024

Floaters (3)

Floaters (3)

Floaters (3)

Jackups (3)

Jackups (3)

Jackups (3)

Total

Total
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Total

(1) We define utilization for a specific period as the total number of days our rigs are operating under contract, divided by the product of the total number of our rigs, including
cold stacked rigs, and the number of calendar days in such period. Information reflects our policy of reporting on the basis of the number of available rigs in our fleet.

(2) An operating day is defined as a calendar day during which a rig operated under a drilling contract. We define average dayrates as revenue from contract drilling services
earned per operating day. Average dayrates have not been adjusted for the non-cash amortization related to favorable and unfavorable customer contract intangibles.

(3) Figures in the table include the rigs acquired in connection with the Business Combination and exclude the five jackup rigs (each a “Remedy Rig,” and collectively the
“Remedy Rigs”) sold in October 2022.

Contract Drilling Services
The following table presents the operating results for our contract drilling services segment for the period indicated (dollars in thousands):

Years ended December 31, Change

2023 2022 $ %

Years Ended December 31, Change

2024 2023 $ %

Operating
revenues:

Contract drilling services

Contract drilling services

Contract drilling services $2,461,715  $ $1,332,841  $ $1,128,874  85  85  %

Reimbursables
and other (1)

Reimbursables
and other (1) 127,303  81,006  81,006  46,297  46,297  57  57  %

$ $ 2,589,018  $ $1,413,847  $ $ 1,175,171  83 

Operating costs
and expenses:

Contract drilling services

Contract drilling services

Contract drilling services $1,452,281  $ $ 897,096  $ $ 555,185  62  62  %

Reimbursables
(1)

Reimbursables
(1) 91,642  64,427  64,427  27,215  27,215  42  42  %

Depreciation
and
amortization

Depreciation
and
amortization 301,345  146,879  146,879  154,466  154,466  105  105  %

General and
administrative

General and
administrative 128,413  82,177  82,177  46,236  46,236  56  56  %

Merger and
integration
costs

Merger and
integration
costs 60,335  84,668  84,668  (24,333) (24,333) (29) (29) %

Gain on sale
of operating
assets, net

Gain on sale
of operating
assets, net —  (90,230) (90,230) 90,230  90,230  (100) (100) %

Hurricane
losses and
(recoveries),
net

Hurricane
losses and
(recoveries),
net (19,703) 60  60  (19,763) (19,763) (32,938) (32,938) %

2,014,313 1,185,077  829,236  70  %

2,453,835 2,014,313  439,522  22  %

Operating
income (loss)

Operating
income (loss) $ 574,705  $ $ 228,770  $ $ 345,935  151  151  %

Operating
income
(loss)

(1) We record reimbursements from customers for out-of-pocket expenses as operating revenues and the related direct costs as operating expenses. Changes in the amount of
these reimbursables generally do not have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Contract Drilling Services Revenues
The following table provides information about contract drilling services revenues and costs by rig types (dollars in millions except average dayrates):
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Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,

2023 2022

2024 2023

Floaters Floaters Jackups Floaters Jackups Floaters Jackups Floaters Jackups

Contract drilling services revenues

Contract drilling services costs

Average rig utilization Average rig utilization 73 % 64  % 77  % 77  % Average rig utilization 69 % 77  % 73  % 64  %

Operating days

Average dayrates

Total rigs

— Acquired

— Disposed

— Ending

Floaters. During the year ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, floaters generated revenue of $2.0 billion $2.3 billion, as compared to $997.8 million $2.0 billion in year
ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to $581.2 million $297.0 million provided by the eight additional floaters acquired in
connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling in October 2022 as well as $360.2 million due to Diamond Transaction. The increase also included $285.6 million
from an increase in average dayrates across during the remainder of the fleet current year, excluding rigs acquired in the current period. Diamond Transaction, and $42.0 million
received from a contract termination fee. These increases were partly offset by $5.0 million $265.6 million from fewer rigs with net changes in operating days across during the
remainder of the fleet current year, excluding rigs acquired in the current period. Diamond Transaction. Additionally, floater revenue from net non-cash amortization related to off-
market customer contract assets and liabilities increased $76.0 million in decreased $19.5 million during the current period. year. For additional information, see “Note 2 —
Acquisitions and Divestitures” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Jackups. During the year ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, jackups generated revenue of $451.6 million $569.1 million, as compared to $335.0 million $451.6 million
in year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to $201.4 million provided by the 10 additional jackups acquired in the
Business Combination with Maersk Drilling in October 2022 as well as $3.4 million due to $60.5 million from an increase in average dayrates across the remainder of the fleet
in during the current period. These increases were partly offset by $66.8 million pertaining to the divestiture of the Remedy Rigs year and $91.5 million from rigs with net changes in
October 2022 in connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling and $46.9 million from less operating days across during the remainder of the fleet. current year.
Additionally, jackups jackup revenue from net non-cash amortization related to off-market customer contract assets and liabilities increased $25.5 million in decreased $27.1 million
during the current period. year.

Operating Costs and Expenses
Floaters. During the year ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, total contract drilling services cost related to floaters was $1.1 billion $1.3 billion, as compared to $600.2
million $1.1 billion in year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023. The primary drivers of the this increase were $335.0 million $180.1 million related to the eight additional
floaters acquired in connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling in October 2022 Diamond Transaction and $180.6 million in increased crew, repairs $32.0 million
predominately driven by labor and maintenance, and material transportation costs across the remainder of the fleet. These increases were partially offset by $3.9 million
due insurance proceeds received for a certain rig totaling $18.1 million. For additional information, see “Note 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures” to the divestiture our consolidated
financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of a semisubmersible unit late in the first quarter of 2022. this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Jackups. During the year ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, total contract drilling services cost related to jackups was $340.0 million $381.2 million, as compared to
$296.9 million $340.0 million in year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023. The primary drivers of the aggregate increase was primarily driven by $136.2 million of $99.0
million related to labor costs, repairs and maintenance, operations support, and other costs across the 10 additional jackups acquired in the Business Combination with Maersk
Drilling in October 2022. fleet due to increased activity. These increases were partially offset by the reduction a decrease of $81.5 million in expenses $58.0 million after the
sale completion of the Remedy Rigs in October 2022. disposal activities regarding certain rigs.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization totaled $301.3 million $428.6 million and $146.9 million $301.3 million during the years ended December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, respectively. The increase of $154.5 million was Depreciation and amortization increased by $127.3 million in the current year primarily
due to $132.1 million related the timing of capital additions that were placed in service as compared to 18 rigs and related equipment acquired retirements among the periods as well
as an incremental amount added in connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling in October 2022. This increase was partially offset by the sale of the Remedy
Rigs in October 2022 and the divestiture of a semisubmersible unit in the first quarter of 2022. Diamond Transaction.

General and administrative. General and administrative expenses totaled $128.4 million $140.5 million and $82.2 million $128.4 million during the years ended December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, respectively. The increase was primarily a result of the Diamond Transaction and other individually insignificant items within certain
corporate charges such as professional fees, corporate leases, and employee related costs.

Merger and integration costs. Noble incurred $109.4 million and $60.3 million of merger and integration costs during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
primarily as a result of the Diamond Transaction and the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling. During the current period, $84.5 million and $25.0 million of costs related
directly to the Diamond Transaction and the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling, respectively. Costs incurred prior to 2024 related to the Business Combination with Maersk
Drilling in October 2022 with increases across several categories including employee related costs.
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Merger and integration costs. Noble incurred $60.3 million and $84.7 million 2022. A majority of merger and integration the costs during the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively, primarily in connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling in October 2022. Costs primarily related to severance plans and share-based
compensation charges, transaction-related acquisition costs, professional fees, and certain integration-related activities that were directly attributable to the Business Combination.
During the year ended December 31, 2023, merger and integration costs declined compared Diamond Transaction related to the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to
decreases in closing of the transaction and included charges for professional fees, severance, and severance costs. This decrease was partly offset by an increase in costs and
professional fees incurred to integrate systems. share-based compensation. For additional information, see “Note 4 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures” and “Note 5 3 — Merger and
Integration Costs” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Gain on sale of operating assets, net. During the year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2024, Noble recognized a gain, net of transaction costs, of $90.2 million in
connection with the sale of the Remedy Rigs and we sold the Noble Clyde Boudreaux Explorer. For additional information, see “Note 4 — Acquisitions and Divestitures” to our
consolidated financial statements included  for total proceeds of $25.0 million, $21.5 million of which was received in Part II, Item 8 the fourth quarter of this Annual Report on Form
10-K. 2023, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $17.4 million.

Hurricane losses and recoveries, net. Noble recognized $31.8 million of costs during During the year ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, costs in connection with the
Hurricane Ida incident which was were offset by the recognition of insurance recoveries of $51.5 million. accrued recoveries. During the year ended December 31, 2022 December
31, 2023, Noble recognized $22.0 $31.8 million of costs, which was offset by the recognition of insurance recoveries of $21.9 $51.5 million. For additional information, see “Note
14 12 — Commitments and Contingencies” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Other Income and Expenses
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized. Interest expense totaled $59.1 million $94.2 million and $42.7 million $59.1 million for the years ended December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, respectively. The increase was due Interest expense primarily relates to the additional our 2030 Notes which, in part, refinanced prior debt
assumed in the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling in October 2022, which was refinanced by as well as the issuance of 8.000% Senior Notes in April 2023. Diamond
Second Lien Notes. For additional information, see “Note 8 6 — Debt“ to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt, net. Noble recognized loss on extinguishment of debt of $26.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, related to the redemption of
the remaining balance on our Second Lien Notes notes and refinancing of other debt. For additional information, see “Note 8 6 — Debt” to our consolidated financial statements
included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Interest income and other, net. Noble recognized other expenses of $17.4 million and other income of $18.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, primarily related to the recognition Noble made a tax contribution repayment of approximately
$19.1 $4.0 million of compensation related to a joint taxation scheme with A.P. Møller Holding A/S. For the year ended December 31, 2023, other income primarily related to the
recognition of approximately $19.1 million of compensation under the same arrangement. For additional information, see “Note 12 10 — Income Taxes” to our consolidated financial
statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We recognized other income of $14.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Gain on bargain purchase. Noble recognized a $5.0 million gain on the bargain purchase of Maersk Drilling for the year ended December 31, 2023. For additional information, see
“Note 4 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Income tax benefit (provision). Noble recorded an income tax provision of $30.3 $44.0 million and $22.6 $30.3 million during the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31,
2024 and 2022, 2023, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, our tax provision included tax benefits of $123.6 million related to releases of valuation allowances primarily in Luxembourg, and a net
tax benefit of $20.2 million related to changes in uncertain tax positions. Such tax benefits were offset by various recurring quarterly accruals of $187.8 million primarily in Guyana,
Nigeria, the United States, Switzerland, and Luxembourg.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, our tax provision included tax benefits of $187.2 million related to a release releases of valuation allowances in Luxembourg, Guyana,
Switzerland, and Norway, and a tax benefit of $6.8 million related to an uncertain tax position release. releases. Such tax benefits were offset by tax expenses related to uncertain
tax positions of $20.9 million in various countries, contract fair value amortization of $23.7 million, and various recurring quarterly accruals of $179.6 million primarily in Guyana,
Switzerland, and Luxembourg.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, our tax provision included tax benefits of $42.1 million related to a release of valuation allowance in Guyana and
Luxembourg, $1.3 million related primarily to other deferred tax adjustments, and $6.6 million related to a reduction in legacy Maersk tax contingencies primarily due to
favorable foreign exchange movements. Such tax benefits were offset by tax expenses of $2.3 million related to the sale of the Remedy Rigs, $10.8 million related to
contract fair value amortization, and various recurring items comprised of Guyana excess withholding tax on gross revenue of $34.7 million and annual current and
deferred tax expense accrual of $24.9 million primarily in Luxembourg, Switzerland, US, Norway, and Ghana.

2022 2023 Compared to 2021 2022
Information related to a comparison of our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, compared to the period from February 6 through
December 31, 2021 year ended December 31, 2022, (“Prior Year Successor Period”) and the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021, (“Prior Year Predecessor Period”) is
included in Part II, Item 7, “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on March 9, 2023 February 23,
2024.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Debt Refinancing
In April 2023, Noble Finance II, LLC (“Noble Finance II”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Noble, issued $600.0 million in aggregate principal amount of its 8.000% Senior Notes due
2030 (“2030 Notes”). The 2030 Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture, dated April 18, 2023, among Noble Finance II, the subsidiaries of Noble Finance II party thereto, as
guarantors, and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee. The net proceeds from the offering of 2030 Notes were primarily used to (i) repay the approximately
$347.5 million of outstanding borrowings under the New DNB Credit Facility (as defined below), (ii) redeem (the “Redemption”) the approximately $173.7 million aggregate principal
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amount of outstanding Second Lien Notes, and (iii) pay any premiums, fees, and expenses related to the Redemption and the issuance of the 2030 Notes. As of December 31,
2023, we had outstanding $600.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 2030 Notes.

Amended and Restated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement
On April 18, 2023, certain subsidiaries of Noble amended and restated the senior secured credit facility, dated February 5, 2021, by entering into an Amended and Restated Senior
Secured Revolving Credit Agreement, dated April 18, 2023 (the “2023 Revolving Credit Agreement”), by and among Noble Finance II, Noble International Finance Company
(“NIFCO”) and Noble Drilling A/S, as borrowers (the “Borrowers”), the lenders and issuing banks party thereto from time to time and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative
agent, collateral agent and security trustee. The revolving credit facility under the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement (the “2023 Revolving Credit Facility”) provides for commitments
of $550.0 million with maturity in April 2028. The guarantors under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility are the same subsidiaries of Noble Finance II that are or will be guarantors of
the 2030 Notes.

As of December 31, 2023, we had no borrowings outstanding and $7.4 million of letters of credit issued under our 2023 Revolving Credit Facility and an additional $108.1 million in
letters of credit and surety bonds issued under bilateral arrangements. For additional information about our 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, see “Note 8 — Debt” to our consolidated
financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Second Lien Notes
On the Emergence Effective Date, pursuant to the Backstop Commitment Agreement, dated October 12, 2020, among the Debtors and the backstop parties thereto, Noble Cayman
and Finco consummated the Rights Offering of the Second Lien Notes and associated Noble Cayman Shares at an aggregate subscription price of $200.0 million. On April 18,
2023, we redeemed the remaining balance of approximately $173.7 million aggregate principal amount of outstanding Second Lien Notes using a portion of the proceeds from the
offering of the 2030 Notes, and recognized a loss of approximately $25.7 million. See “Note 8 — Debt” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Debt Open Market Repurchases
In the third and fourth quarter of 2022, we purchased $42.3 million aggregate principal amount of our Second Lien Notes for approximately $48.1 million, plus accrued interest, as
open market repurchases and recognized a loss of approximately $4.6 million.

DNB Credit Facility and New DNB Credit Facility
Upon the Closing Date, Noble guaranteed the Term and Revolving Facilities Agreement dated December 6, 2018, by and among Maersk Drilling, the rig owners and material
intragroup charterers party thereto and DNB Bank ASA as agent (as amended from time to time, the “DNB Credit Facility”). On December 22, 2022, the DNB Credit Facility and
related Noble guarantee were terminated and, Maersk Drilling, as the borrower, the Company, as parent guarantor, certain subsidiaries of Maersk Drilling as guarantors, and the
lenders identified therein, with DNB Bank ASA, New York Branch acting as Agent entered into a new Term Facility Agreement (the “New DNB Credit Facility”). On April 18, 2023, we
repaid the $347.5 million of outstanding borrowings under the New DNB Credit Facility using a portion of the proceeds from the offering of the 2030 Notes, and recognized a loss of
approximately $0.7 million. See “Note 8 — Debt” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

DSF Credit Facility
The Company guaranteed the Term Loan Facility Agreement dated December 10, 2018, by and between Maersk Drilling and Danmarks Skibskredit A/S as lender, agent, and
security agent (as amended from time to time, the “DSF Credit Facility”) in connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling that closed on October 3, 2022. The DSF
Credit Facility was repaid in full on February 23, 2023, using cash on hand and the facility is no longer in place as of December 31, 2023. See “Note 8 — Debt” to our consolidated
financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Sources and Uses of Cash
Our principal sources of capital in 2023 2024 were cash generated from operating activities as well as net proceeds from the issuance of the additional 2030 Notes. Notes (as
defined below). Cash on hand during the current period was primarily used for the following:

• cash consideration and fees related to the Diamond Transaction;

• normal recurring operating expenses;

• planned and discretionary capital expenditures;

• repurchase, redemptions, or repayments of debt and interest;

• fees and expenses related to merger and integration costs;

• share repurchases and dividend payments; and

• certain contractual cash obligations and commitments.

Our anticipated cash flow needs, both in the short term and long term, may also include the above. repurchases, redemptions, or repayments of debt and interest.

We currently expect to fund our cash flow needs with cash generated by our operations, cash on hand, proceeds from sales of assets, or borrowings under the 2023 Revolving
Credit Facility, and we believe this will provide us with sufficient liquidity to fund our cash flow needs over the next 12 months. Subject to market conditions and other factors, we
may also issue equity or long-term debt securities to fund our cash flow needs and for other purposes. In 2022 and 2023, we incurred and, in 2024, we anticipate to incur,
additional We have been incurring expenses and capital costs related to the damage incidents regarding one floater and repair of a jackup rig. one jackup. These

incurred costs related to each rig each exceeded our $5.0 million deductible in 2022. the applicable deductible. We received partial insurance recoveries in 2023 2024 for each of
these claims and we continue to seek insurance recoveries for the remainder of the incurred and anticipated costs.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $574.3 $655.5  million and $281.0 $574.3  million for the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023,
respectively. Net cash provided by operating activities increased mainly due to improvements in cash flows from operating assets and liabilities, with key drivers being an increase in
payments from customers offset by a reduction in payments to vendors, as well as the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling. Diamond Transaction. We had working capital
balances of $448.5 million and $420.1 million at December 31, 2024 and $384.7 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, 2023, respectively.

Net cash used in investing activities was $959.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, and consisted of capital expenditures on routine projects associated with overhauls
and upgrades on various rigs and net cash paid related to the closing of the Diamond Transaction. Net cash used in investing activities was $366.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023, and consisted of capital expenditures on routine projects associated with overhauls and upgrades on various rigs in the newly combined fleet.

Net cash provided by investing financing activities was $375.8 $188.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, and included proceeds from the sale of the Remedy Rigs and
cash acquired in the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling.
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Net net cash used in financing activities was $325.8 million and $367.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, respectively. The year
ended December 31, 2024, included the issuance of an additional $824.0 million of 2030 Notes. We also repurchased 8.4 million of our Ordinary Shares for total of $300.0 million,
made dividend payments to our shareholders of $277.8 million, and paid $66.1 million in taxes withheld on vested employee share-based compensation awards. The year ended
December 31, 2023, included the repayment of the DSF Credit Facility in full, using cash on hand, the redemption of notes, the remaining balance of the Second Lien Notes,
repayment of the New DNB Credit Facility, totaling $673.4 million, and the $600.0 million issuance of the initial 2030 Notes. We also repurchased 2.3 million of our Ordinary Shares
for a total of $94.8 million and made dividend payments to our shareholders of $98.8 million. During the year ended December 31, 2022, we refinanced part of the assumed debt
from the Business Combination, resulting in a net pay down of $277.3 million, and utilized approximately $48.1 million of cash to repurchase $42.3 million aggregate principal
amount of our Second Lien Notes, plus accrued interest, as open market repurchases and recognized a loss of approximately $4.6  million. The Compulsory Purchase was
completed in the fourth quarter of 2022, at a cost of $69.9 million, paid in DKK and 4.1 million shares issued.

At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, we had a total contract drilling services backlog of approximately $4.8 billion $6.1 billion, which includes a commitment of 65% 57% of
available days for 2024. 2025. For additional information regarding our backlog, see “— Contract “Contract Drilling Services Backlog.”

Capital Additions
Capital additions totaled $454.3 $520.3 million and $193.6 million $454.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, respectively. Capital
additions for the year ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, consisted of the following:

• $258.9 312.5 million for sustaining capital;

• $166.7 169.8 million in major projects, including subsea and other related projects; and

• $28.7 34.3 million for rebillable capital and contract modifications. modifications; and

• $3.7 million for capitalized interest.

Our total capital additions estimate for 2024, 2025, net of reimbursements, is expected to range between $400.0 million $375.0 million and $440.0 million, of which approximately
$270.0 million to $300.0 million is currently anticipated to be spent for sustaining capital. $425.0 million. We expect to fund these capital additions with cash generated by our
operations and cash on hand.

From time to time we consider possible projects and may have certain events that would require expenditures that are not included in our capital budget, and such unbudgeted
expenditures could be significant. In addition, while liquidity and preservation of capital remains our top priority, we will continue to evaluate acquisitions of drilling units from time to
time.

Amended and Restated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement
In April 2023, certain subsidiaries of Noble amended and restated the senior secured revolving credit agreement, dated February 5, 2021, by entering into an Amended and
Restated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2023 (as amended and otherwise modified from time to time, the “2023 Revolving Credit Agreement”),
by and among Noble Finance II, Noble International Finance Company (“NIFCO”), Noble Drilling A/S, and each other designated borrower from time to time party thereto, as
borrowers (the “Borrowers”), the lenders and issuing banks party thereto from time to time and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, collateral agent, and security
trustee. The revolving credit facility under the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement (the “2023 Revolving Credit Facility”) provides for commitments of $550.0 million with maturity in
April 2028. The guarantors under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility are the same subsidiaries of Noble Finance II that are or will be guarantors of the 2030 Notes.

As of December 31, 2024, we had no borrowings outstanding and $24.8 million of letters of credit issued under our 2023 Revolving Credit Facility and an additional $126.8 million in
letters of credit and surety bonds issued under bilateral arrangements. For additional information about the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, see “Note 6 — Debt” to our consolidated
financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

8.000% Senior Notes due 2030
In April 2023, Noble Finance II, a wholly owned subsidiary of Noble, issued $600.0 million in aggregate principal amount of its 8.000% Senior Notes due 2030 (“Initial 2030 Notes”).
The Initial 2030 Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture, dated April 18, 2023 (as supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Noble Indenture”), among Noble
Finance II, the subsidiaries of Noble Finance II party thereto, as guarantors (the “Guarantors”), and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee. In August 2024,
Noble Finance II issued an additional $800.0 million in aggregate principal amount of its 8.000% Senior Notes due 2030 (the “Additional 2030 Notes” and, together with the Initial
2030 Notes, the “2030 Notes”) at a premium of 103% bringing the total outstanding principal amount to $1.4 billion. The Additional 2030 Notes were issued pursuant to the Noble
Indenture and the net proceeds from the offering of the Additional 2030 Notes were primarily used to fund the cash consideration in the Diamond Transaction and to pay any
premiums, fees, and expenses related to the issuance of the Additional 2030 Notes. As of December 31, 2024, we had outstanding $1.4 billion aggregate principal amount of our
2030 Notes. For additional information about the 2030 Notes, see “Note 6 — Debt” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

Diamond Second Lien Notes due 2030
In connection with the Diamond Transaction, the Company assumed $550.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8.500% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due October 2030
(the “Diamond Second Lien Notes”) issued pursuant to an indenture, dated as of September 21, 2023 (as supplemented and otherwise modified from time to time, the “Diamond
Second Lien Indenture”), among Diamond Foreign Asset Company and Diamond Finance, LLC, as issuers, Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc., the other guarantors party thereto and
HSBC Bank USA, National Association, as trustee and as collateral agent. As of December 31, 2024, we had outstanding $550.0 million aggregate principal amount of our Diamond
Second Lien Notes. For additional information about the Diamond Second Lien Notes, see “Note 6 — Debt” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Diamond Credit Agreement
In connection with the Diamond Transaction, the Company terminated Diamond’s $300.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Diamond Revolving Credit Facility”)
under a credit agreement, dated as of April 23, 2021 (as amended and otherwise modified, the “Diamond Credit Agreement”), among Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc., Diamond
Foreign Asset Company, as borrower, the lenders party thereto from time to time and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, collateral agent, and issuing
lender. The revolving commitments under the Diamond Credit Agreement were scheduled to mature in April 2026. At the time of the Diamond Transaction and the termination of the
commitments under the Diamond Credit Agreement, Diamond had no outstanding borrowings under the Diamond Credit Agreement. For additional information about the Diamond
Credit Agreement, see “Note 6 — Debt” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K to our consolidated financial
statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Dividends
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Our most recent quarterly dividend, totaling approximately $56.4 million $79.7 million (or $0.40 $0.50 per share), was declared on October 31, 2023 November 5, 2024, and paid on
December 14, 2023 December 19, 2024, to shareholders of record at close of business on November 15, 2023 December 5, 2024. During the year ended December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024, we declared dividends of approximately $101.8 million $278.3 million, including accrued dividends, (or $0.70 $1.80 per share), and made cash dividend
payments of approximately $98.8 million $277.8 million.

On February 22, 2024 February 17, 2025, our Board of Directors approved a declaration of a quarterly cash interim dividend on our Ordinary Shares of $0.40 $0.50 per share. This
dividend is to be payable on March 21, 2024 March 20, 2025, to shareholders of record at close of business on March 08, 2024 March 5, 2025.

The declaration and payment of dividends require authorization of the Board of Directors, provided that such dividends on issued share capital may be paid only out of the
Company’s “distributable reserves” as determined by reference to relevant statutory accounts in accordance with English law. The Company is not permitted to pay dividends out of
share capital, which includes share premiums. The payment of future dividends will depend on our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, future business
prospects, the availability of sufficient distributable reserves, contractual and indenture restrictions, and other factors deemed relevant by our Board. Board of Directors.

Share Repurchases
Under English law, the Company is only permitted to purchase its own Ordinary Shares by way of an “off-market purchase” pursuant to a contract approved by
shareholders. shareholders (except where the purchase is for the purposes of, or pursuant to, any employees’ share scheme). Such purchases may be paid for only either (i) out of
Noble’s “distributable reserves” as determined by reference to relevant statutory accounts in accordance with law. English law or (ii) from the proceeds of a fresh issue of shares
made for the purpose of financing the purchase. As of the date of this report, we have shareholder authority to repurchase up to 15% per annum of the issued share capital of the
Company as of the beginning of each fiscal year for a five-year period commencing on September 28, 2022 (subject to an overall aggregate maximum of 20,601,161 20.6 million
Ordinary Shares). During the year ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, we repurchased 2.3 million 8.4 million of our Ordinary Shares which pursuant to such authority. All
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled.

Summary of Contractual Cash Obligations and Commitments
We have $202.3 million $196.0 million of net long-term tax reserves for uncertain tax positions, including interest and penalties, which are included in “Other liabilities” due to the
difficulty in making reasonably reliable estimates of the timing of cash settlements to taxing authorities. See “Note 12 10 — Income Taxes” to our consolidated financial statements
included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, no long-term debt is due in the next twelve months and $600.0 million $2.0 billion will be due subsequent to 2024. 2025. See “Note 8 6 —
Debt” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We may seek to refinance all or a portion of our long-term debt
obligations, including the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, though any such refinancing transactions are subject to market and other conditions and there are no assurances that we
will complete any such transactions, in whole or in part, or as to the amount or timing of any such transactions.

At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, $12.6 million $13.0 million of pension obligations will be due in the next twelve months and the remainder of $125.0 $127.3 million will be
due subsequent to 2024. 2025. See “Note 13 11 — Employee Benefit Plans” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
In addition, $9.9 $9.5 million is due on a long-term basis under the Danish Holiday Act of 2020.

For a description of our operating and finance lease obligations, refer to “Note 11 9 — Leases” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, we had other commitments that we are contractually obligated to fulfill with cash if the obligations are called. These obligations include
letters of credit that guarantee our performance as it relates to our drilling contracts, tax, and other obligations in various jurisdictions. We expect to comply with the underlying
performance requirements and we expect obligations under these letters of credit and surety bonds will not be called. At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, $16.9 million $30.6
million letters of credit and commercial commitments will expire in the next twelve months and the remainder of $98.6 million $121.0 million will expire subsequent to 2024. 2025.

We expect to fund these obligations and commitments with cash generated by our operations and cash on hand.

Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Financial Information
The Noble Indenture contains a covenant that requires Noble Finance II to furnish to holders of the 2030 Notes certain financial information relating to Noble Finance II and its
restricted subsidiaries. The Diamond Second Lien Indenture contains a covenant that requires NODI to furnish to holders of the Diamond Second Lien Notes certain financial
information relating to NODI and its subsidiaries.

The summarized financial information below reflects combined accounts of Noble Finance II, NODI, and all other subsidiaries of Noble. The financial information is presented on a
combined basis and intercompany balances and transactions between entities have been eliminated.

Noble Corporation plc and Subsidiaries

Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Selected Financials

December 31, 2024

Consolidated Noble

Finance II LLC

Consolidated Noble

Offshore Drilling, Inc.

(1)

Other


Non-guarantor

Subsidiaries


of Noble

Consolidating

Adjustments Total

Balance Sheets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 131,703  $ 114,999  $ 601  $ —  $ 247,303 

Total current assets 1,683,839  524,251  124,851  (944,077) 1,388,864 

Total current liabilities 694,321  324,049  1,508,473  (1,586,481) 940,362 

Total debt 1,401,214  1,244,357  —  (665,385) 1,980,186 

Total shareholders' equity 4,535,081  861,791  4,017,807  (4,763,293) 4,651,386 

Noble Corporation plc and Subsidiaries
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Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Selected Financials

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2024

Consolidated Noble

Finance II LLC

Consolidated Noble

Offshore Drilling, Inc.

(1)

Other


Non-guarantor

Subsidiaries


of Noble

Consolidating

Adjustments Total

Statements of Operations

Operating revenues $ 2,721,156  $ 336,542  $ 120  $ —  $ 3,057,818 

Operating costs and expenses 2,010,731  334,722  108,382  —  2,453,835 

Depreciation and amortization 379,551  49,075  —  —  428,626 

Statements of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 792,859  $ (39,696) $ (97,688) $ —  $ 655,475 

Capital expenditures (536,658) (38,477) (180) —  (575,315)

Proceeds from disposal of assets, net (690) 10,730  13,257  —  23,297 

Dividend payments —  —  (277,831) —  (277,831)

(1) Consolidated Noble Offshore Drilling, Inc. from merger effective date on September 4, 2024.

Critical Accounting Estimates
We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“US GAAP”), which require us to make
estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from our estimates and assumptions and any such differences could be
material to our consolidated financial statements. The following accounting policies involve critical accounting estimates because they are particularly dependent on estimates and
assumptions made by Noble about matters that are inherently uncertain.

Recoverability of Assets
We evaluate our property and equipment and intangible assets for impairment whenever there are changes in facts that suggest that the value of the asset is not recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized when and to the extent that an asset's carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value. To the extent actual results do not meet our estimated
assumptions for a given rig, piece of equipment or intangible customer contract, we may take an impairment loss in the future. In determining the fair value of the assets, we make
significant assumptions and estimates regarding future market conditions. Typical conditions using significant unobservable inputs representative of a Level 3 fair value
measurement. Critical assumptions used in our estimate include projected dayrates, utilization, and discount rate. These projections involve uncertainties that rely on assumptions
about current and future market conditions, timing of future contract awards, and expected operating dayrates, operating costs, utilization rates, discount rates, capital expenditures,
market values, weighting of market values, reactivation costs, estimated economic useful lives, and marketability of a unit.  It can be difficult to determine the fair value based on the
cyclical nature of our business, demand for offshore drilling rigs in different markets, and changes in economic conditions.

During the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, no impairment charges were recognized.

Impairment assessment inherently involves management judgments as to assumptions about expected future cash flows and the impact of market conditions on those assumptions.
Due to the many variables inherent in this estimation, differences in assumptions may have a material effect on the results of our impairment analysis.

Income Taxes
We estimate income taxes and file tax returns in each of the taxing jurisdictions in which we operate and are required to file a tax return. At the end of each year, an estimate for
income taxes is recorded in the financial statements. Tax returns are generally filed in the subsequent year. A reconciliation of the estimate to the final tax return is done at that time,
which will result in changes to the original estimate. We believe that our tax return positions are appropriately supported, but tax authorities can challenge certain of our tax
positions.

We currently operate, and have in the past operated, in a number of countries throughout the world and our tax returns filed in those jurisdictions are subject to review and
examination by tax authorities within those jurisdictions. We recognize uncertain tax positions that we believe have a greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained upon challenge
by a tax authority. We cannot predict or provide assurance as to the ultimate outcome of any existing or future assessments. A change in judgment related to the expected ultimate
resolution of uncertain tax positions will be recognized in earnings in the quarter of such change. We believe that our reserve for uncertain tax positions, including related interest
and penalties, is adequate. As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, the Company had $196.0 million and $202.3 million and $175.9 million of  net long-term
tax reserves for unrecognized tax benefits, including interest and penalties, which are included in “Other liabilities.” The amounts ultimately paid upon resolution of audits could be
materially different from the amounts previously included in our income tax expense and, therefore, could have a material impact on our tax provision, net income and cash flows.

Our gross deferred tax asset balance at year end reflects the application of our income tax accounting policies and is based on management’s estimates, judgments, and
assumptions regarding realizability. If it is more likely than not that a portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized in a future period, the deferred tax assets will be reduced
by a valuation allowance based on management’s estimates. In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets, in full or in part, we consider all available positive and
negative evidence, including our past operating results and our forecast of future earnings, future taxable income, and prudent and feasible tax planning strategies. The assumptions
utilized in determining future taxable income require significant judgment. Although we believe our assumptions, judgments, and estimates are reasonable, changes in tax laws or
our interpretation of tax laws and the resolution of any tax audits could have a material impact our consolidated financial statements.

Claims Reserves
We maintain various levels of self-insured retention for certain losses including property damage, loss of hire, employment practices liability, employers’ liability, and general liability,
among others. We accrue for property damage and loss of hire charges on a per event basis.
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Employment practices liability claims are accrued based on actual claims during the year. Maritime employer’s liability claims are generally estimated using actuarial determinations.
General liability claims are estimated by our internal claims department by evaluating the facts and circumstances of each claim (including incurred but not reported claims) and
making estimates based upon historical experience with similar claims. The amount of our loss reserves for personal injury and protection claims is based on an analysis performed
by a third-party actuary which uses our historical loss patterns and trends as well as industry data to estimate the unpaid loss and allocated loss adjustment expense. Claim severity
experienced in each year, ranging from minor incidents to permanent disability or injuries requiring extensive medical care, is a key driver of the variability around our reserve
estimates. These estimates are further subject to uncertainty because the ultimate disposition of claims incurred is subject to the outcome of events which have not yet transpired.
Accordingly, we may be required to increase or decrease our reserve levels. At December 31, 2024, loss reserves for personal injury and protection claims totaled $164.1 million, of
which $149.2 million was included in “Other current liabilities” and $14.9 million in “Other long-term liabilities” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. At December 31,
2023, loss reserves for personal injury and protection claims totaled $63.9 million, of which $21.9 million was included in “Other current liabilities” and $42.0 million in “Other long-
term liabilities” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. At December 31, 2022, loss reserves for personal injury and protection claims totaled $35.3 million of which
$15.5 million was included in “Other current liabilities” and $19.8 million in “Other long-term liabilities” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Business Combinations
We follow the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recognized at the date of acquisition at their respective
estimated fair value. Any excess of the purchase price over the fair value amounts assigned to assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. To the extent the estimated fair value of
the net assets acquired exceeded the purchase price, we recognize a bargain purchase gain. Changes in these judgments or estimates can have a material impact on the valuation
of the respective assets and liabilities acquired and our results of operations in periods after acquisition. The allocation of the purchase price may be modified up to one year after
the acquisition date as more information is obtained about the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Our estimates of fair value of the acquired property and equipment and contract intangibles require us to use significant unobservable inputs, representative of a Level 3 fair value
measurement, such as measurement. Critical assumptions related to used in our estimate include projected dayrates, utilization, and discount rate. These projections involve
uncertainties that rely on assumptions about current and future marketability of each unit in light of the current market conditions, and its current technical specifications, timing of
future contract awards, demand for our services, and expected operating dayrates, operating costs, rig utilization rates, tax rates, discount rate, capital expenditures, synergies,
market values, estimated economic useful lives marketability of the rigs and, in certain cases, management’s belief that a drilling unit is no longer marketable and is unlikely to return
to service in the near to medium term. unit. It can be difficult to determine the fair value based on the cyclical nature of our business, demand for offshore drilling rigs in different
markets, and changes in economic conditions.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.
Market risk is the potential for loss due to a change in the value of a financial instrument as a result of fluctuations interest rates, currency exchange rates, or equity prices, as further
described below.

Interest Rate Risk
We are subject to market risk exposure related to changes in interest rates on borrowings under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility and may be subject to similar exposure on future
borrowing arrangements. Borrowings under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, if any, bear interest at SOFR the term secured overnight financing rate (“SOFR”) plus 0.10% (subject
to a 0.00% floor) plus an applicable margin, which is currently 2.75% 3.00%, or a base rate stated in the agreement 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement plus an applicable margin,
which is currently 1.75% 2.00%.

At December 31, 2023 As of December 31, 2024, we had no borrowings outstanding under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility and $7.4 $24.8 million of performance letters of credit
outstanding thereunder.

Because they bear interest at a fixed rate, the fair value of our the 2030 Notes and the Diamond Second Lien Notes will fluctuate based on changes in market expectations for
interest rates and perceptions of our credit risk. The fair value of our total debt was $626.5 million at December 31, 2023 $2.0 billion as of December 31, 2024.

Foreign Currency Risk
Although we are a UK company, we define foreign currency as any non-US dollar denominated currency. Our functional currency is the US dollar. However, outside the United
States, a portion of our expenses are incurred in local currencies. Therefore, when the US dollar weakens (strengthens) in relation to the currencies of the countries in which we
operate, our expenses reported in US dollars will increase (decrease).

We are exposed to risks on future cash flows to the extent that foreign currency expenses exceed revenues denominated in the same foreign currency. In order to help manage this
potential risk, we periodically enter into derivative instruments to manage our net exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. We have documented policies and procedures
to monitor and control the use of derivative instruments. We do not engage in derivative transactions for speculative or trading purposes, nor are we a party to leveraged derivatives.

Several of our regional shorebases have a significant amount of their cash operating expenses payable in foreign currencies. In order to limit the potential risk of currency
fluctuations, we periodically enter into forward contracts, which have historically settled monthly in the operations’ respective local currencies. All of these contracts had a maturity of
less than 12 months. Based on current projections, a 10% increase in the average exchange rates of all foreign currencies would hypothetically increase our future estimated
operating expenses by approximately $3.9 $20.6 million.

Market Risk
We have a US noncontributory defined benefit pension plan that covers certain salaried employees and a US noncontributory defined benefit pension plan that covers certain hourly
employees, whose initial date of employment is prior to August 1, 2004 (collectively referred to as our “qualified US plans”). These plans are governed by the Noble Drilling
Employees’ Retirement Trust. The benefits from these plans are based primarily on years of service and, for the salaried plan, employees’ compensation near retirement. These
plans are designed to qualify under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”), and our funding policy is consistent with funding requirements of ERISA and
other applicable laws and regulations. We make cash contributions, or utilize credits available to us, for the qualified US plans when required. The benefit amount that can be
covered by the qualified US plans is limited under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Therefore, we maintain an unfunded, nonqualified excess benefit plan designed to
maintain benefits for specified employees at the formula level in the qualified salary US plan. We refer to the qualified US plans and the excess benefit plan collectively as the “US
plans.”

In addition to the US plans, Noble Drilling (Land Support) Limited, an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Noble, maintains a pension plan that covers all of its salaried, non-union
employees, whose most recent date of employment is prior to April 1, 2014 (referred to as our “non-US plan”). Benefits are based on credited service and employees’
compensation, as defined by the non-US plan.

The Company’s pension plan assets are exposed to the market prices of debt and equity securities. Changes to the pension plan asset values can impact the Company’s pension
expense, funded status, and future minimum funding requirements. The Company aims to reduce risk through asset diversification and by investing in long duration fixed-income
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securities that have a duration similar to that of its pension liabilities. At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, the value of the investments in the pension funds was $216.0
million $202.1 million, and a hypothetical 10.0% decrease in the value of the investments in the fund would have reduced the value of the fund by approximately $21.6 million $20.2
million. A significant decline in the value of pension assets could require Noble to increase funding of its pension plans in future periods, which could adversely affect cash flows in
those periods. In addition, a decline in the fair value of these plan assets, in the absence of additional cash contributions to the plans by Noble, could increase the amount of
pension cost required to be recorded in future periods by Noble.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
The following financial statements are filed in this Item 8:
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Noble Corporation plc

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Noble Corporation plc and its subsidiaries (Successor) (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2023December 31,
2024 and 20222023, and the related consolidated statements of operations, of comprehensive income (loss), of equity and of cash flows for each of the three years then ended and
for in the period from February 6, 2021 to December 31, 2021 ended December 31, 2024, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial
statements”). We also have audited the Company’s Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidatedfinancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31,
2023,December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, and the results of itsoperations and itscash flows for each of the three years then ended and for in the period from February 6, 2021 to
December 31, 2021, ended December 31, 2024 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company did
not maintain, maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO because a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting existed as of that date as the Company
did not design and maintain effective controls over certain information technology general controls for an information system that is relevant to the preparation of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. Specifically, the Company did not design and maintain (i) program change management controls to ensure that program and data changes are
identified, tested, authorized, and implemented appropriately and (ii) user access controls to ensure appropriate segregation of duties and to adequately restrict user and privileged
access to appropriate personnel. COSO.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material weakness referred to above is described in the
accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. We considered this material weakness in determining the
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nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2023 consolidated financial statements, and our opinion regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Texas confirmed the Joint Plan of Reorganization of
Noble Corporation plc and its Debtor Affiliates (the “plan”) on February 5, 2021. Confirmation of the plan resulted in the discharge of all claims against the Company that arose
before February 5, 2021, and terminates all rights and interests of equity security holders as provided for in the plan. The plan was substantially consummated on February 5, 2021,
and the Company emerged from bankruptcy. In connection with its emergence from bankruptcy, the Company adopted fresh start accounting as of February 5, 2021.

Basis for Opinions
The Company’s Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in management’s report referred to above. Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and
are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidatedfinancial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidatedfinancial statements, whether
due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that

respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidatedfinancial statements. Our audits
also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidatedfinancial
statements. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As described in Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management has excluded Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc. (“Diamond”) from its
assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024 because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during 2024. We
have also excluded Diamond from our audit of internal control over financial reporting. Diamond is a wholly-owned subsidiary whose total assets and total revenues excluded from
management’s assessment and our audit of internal control over financial reporting represent approximately 29% and 11%, respectively, of the related consolidated financial
statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters
The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that was communicated or required to be
communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to theconsolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially
challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidatedfinancial statements, taken as a
whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Uncertain Tax Positions Acquisition of Diamond - Fair Value of Mobile Offshore Drilling Units

As described in Notes 12 1 and 14 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on September 4, 2024, the Company completed its acquisition of Diamond. The acquisition resulted in
$1.8 billion of property and equipment, net being recorded, of which a reserve for uncertain significant portion related to mobile offshore drilling units. Management determined the
fair value of the mobile offshore drilling units using the discounted cash flows expected to be generated from the drilling assets over their remaining useful lives. Assumptions used
in management’s assessment included, but were not limited to, timing of future contract awards and expected operating dayrates, operating costs, rig utilization rates, tax positions,
including interest rates, discount rate, capital expenditures, synergies, market values, and penalties, estimated economic useful lives of $202.3 million as of December 31, 2023. The
Company recognizes uncertain tax positions that it believes has a greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained upon challenge by a tax authority. The Company operates in a
number of countries throughout the world and the tax returns filed in those jurisdictions are subject to review and examination by tax authorities within those jurisdictions. As
disclosed by management, changes in tax laws or management’s interpretation of tax laws and the resolution of any tax audits could have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements. rigs.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to uncertain tax positions the fair value of mobile offshore drilling units acquired in the
acquisition of Diamond is a critical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management with regards to management’s interpretation when developing the fair value estimate
of tax laws when determining uncertain tax positions that it believes has a greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained upon challenge by a tax authority; the mobile offshore
drilling units acquired; (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence management’s significant assumptions
related to management’s determination the expected operating dayrates, operating costs, rig utilization rates, tax rates, discount rate, synergies, and estimated economic useful
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lives of uncertain tax positions based on management’s interpretation of tax laws; the rigs; and (iii) the audit effort involved the use of professionals with specialized skill and
knowledge.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These
procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to the determination valuation of uncertain tax positions. the mobile offshore drilling units acquired. These
procedures also included, among others on a sample basis (i)  reading the purchase agreement; (ii) testing management’s process for developing the fair value estimate of the
mobile offshore drilling units acquired; (iii) evaluating the appropriateness of the discounted cash flow models; (iv) testing the completeness and accuracy of the
information underlying data used in the calculation discounted cash flow models; and (v) evaluating the reasonableness of the change in uncertain significant assumptions used by
management related to the expected operating dayrates, operating costs, rig utilization rates, tax positions rates, discount rate, synergies, and obtaining and inspecting
documentation used to support management’s position; (ii) evaluating management’s assessment estimated economic useful lives of the technical merits of rigs. Evaluating
management’s assumptions related to the expected operating dayrates, operating costs, rig utilization rates, tax positions rates, synergies, and estimate estimated economic useful
lives of the amount of tax benefit expected to be sustained; (iii) evaluating rigs involved considering (i) the completeness of management’s assessment current and past performance
of the identification mobile offshore drilling units; (ii) the consistency with external market and industry data; and (iii) whether these assumptions were consistent with evidence
obtained in other areas of uncertain tax positions; and (iv) evaluating the status and resolution of tax assessments with the relevant tax authorities. audit. Professionals with
specialized skill and knowledge were used to assist in evaluating on a sample basis (i) management’s assessment the appropriateness of whether tax positions have a greater than
50% likelihood the discounted cash flow models and the reasonableness of being sustained upon challenge by a tax authority and (ii) management’s interpretation of relevant tax
laws. the discount rate assumption.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

 

Houston, Texas

February 23, 2024

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1994.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Noble Corporation plc

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, of comprehensive income (loss), of equity and of cash flows of Noble Corporation plc and its
subsidiaries (Predecessor) (the “Company”) for the period from January 1, 2021 through February 5, 2021, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated
financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the period from
January 1, 2021 through February 5, 2021 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Accounting

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, Noble Corporation plc and certain of its subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions on July 31, 2020 with the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Texas for reorganization under the provisions of Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. The Joint Plan of Reorganization of Noble
Corporation plc and its Debtor Affiliates was substantially consummated on February 5, 2021 and the Company emerged from bankruptcy. In connection with its emergence from
bankruptcy, the Company adopted fresh start accounting.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas

February 17, 2022 18, 2025

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1994.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share amounts)

Successor

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

ASSETS

Current assets

Current assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Taxes receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Intangible assets

Property and equipment, at cost

Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Goodwill

Other assets

Other assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current liabilities

Current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt

Current maturities of long-term debt

Current maturities of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accounts payable

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related costs

Taxes payable

Interest payable

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxes

Noncurrent contract liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

Shareholders' equity

Common stock, $0.00001 par value; 140,773,750 and 134,680,941 ordinary shares outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively

Common stock, $0.00001 par value; 140,773,750 and 134,680,941 ordinary shares outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively

Common stock, $0.00001 par value; 140,773,750 and 134,680,941 ordinary shares outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively
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Common stock, $0.00001 par value; 158,946,711 and 140,773,750 ordinary shares outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively

Common stock, $0.00001 par value; 158,946,711 and 140,773,750 ordinary shares outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively

Common stock, $0.00001 par value; 158,946,711 and 140,773,750 ordinary shares outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6,

2021

January 1,

2021

Year Ended

Year

Ended

Year

Ended through through

Year

Ended

Year

Ended

December 31,

2023

December 31,

2022

December 31,

2021

February 5,

2021

December 31,

2024

December 31,

2023

December 31,

2022

Operating revenues

Contract drilling services

Contract drilling services

Contract drilling services

Reimbursables and other

2,589,018

3,057,818

Operating costs and expenses

Contract drilling services

Contract drilling services

Contract drilling services

Reimbursables

Depreciation and amortization

General and administrative

Merger and integration costs

(Gain) loss on sale of operating

assets, net

Hurricane losses and (recoveries),

net

2,014,313

2,453,835

Operating income (loss)

Other income (expense)

Interest expense, net of amounts

capitalized

Interest expense, net of amounts

capitalized

Interest expense, net of amounts

capitalized
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Gain (loss) on extinguishment of

debt, net

Interest income and other, net

Gain on bargain purchase

Reorganization items, net

Income (loss) before income
taxes

Income (loss) before income
taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes

Income tax benefit (provision)

Net income (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

Weighted Average Shares

Outstanding

Basic

Basic

Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In thousands)

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended through through

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

Net income (loss) $ 481,902  $ 168,948  $ 101,982  $ 250,228 

Other comprehensive income (loss)  

Foreign currency translation adjustments —  —  —  (116)

Net changes in pension and other postretirement plan assets and benefit obligations
recognized in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax provision (benefit) of
$(940), $(928), $1,476 and $59 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
the period from February 6 through December 31, 2021, and period from January 1
through February 5, 2021, respectively (615) (1,742) 5,389  224 

Other comprehensive income (loss), net (615) (1,742) 5,389  108 

Comprehensive income (loss) $ 481,287  $ 167,206  $ 107,371  $ 250,336 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Net income (loss) $ 448,353  $ 481,902  $ 168,948 

Other comprehensive income (loss)  

Net changes in pension and other postretirement plan assets and benefit obligations
recognized in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax provision (benefit) of $(457),
$(940), and $(928) for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively 937  (615) (1,742)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net 937  (615) (1,742)

Comprehensive income (loss) $ 449,290  $ 481,287  $ 167,206 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended through through

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income (loss) 481,902  168,948  101,982  250,228 

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flow from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 301,345  146,879  89,535  20,622 

Amortization of intangible assets and contract liabilities, net (106,776) (5,352) 51,540  — 

Gain on bargain purchase (5,005) —  (62,305) — 

(Gain) loss on extinguishment of debt, net 26,397  8,912  —  — 

(Gain) loss on sale of operating assets, net —  (90,230) (185,934) — 

Reorganization items, net —  —  —  (280,790)

Deferred income taxes (98,093) (25,628) (34,264) 2,501 

Amortization of share-based compensation 37,680  35,251  16,510  710 

Other costs, net (8,036) (323) 1,146  (10,754)

Changes in components of working capital and other operating activities:

Change in taxes receivable (7,374) 23,344  27,847  (1,789)

Net changes in other operating assets and liabilities (47,703) 19,184  45,559  (26,176)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 574,337  280,985  51,616  (45,448)

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures (409,581) (174,319) (154,411) (14,629)

Proceeds from insurance claims 18,809  —  —  — 

Cash acquired in stock-based business combinations, net —  166,607  54,970  — 

Proceeds from disposal of assets, net 24,264  381,026  307,324  194 

Other investing activities —  2,458  —  — 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (366,508) 375,772  207,883  (14,435)

Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of debt 600,000  350,000  —  200,000 

Repayments of debt (673,411) (627,323) —  — 

Borrowing on credit facilities —  220,000  40,000  177,500 

Repayments of credit facilities —  (220,000) (217,500) (545,000)

Debt issuance costs (24,914) (641) —  (23,664)

Debt extinguishment costs (25,697) —  —  — 

Compulsory purchase payment —  (69,924) —  — 

Warrant exercises 485  1,004  730  — 

Share repurchases (94,826) (15,000) —  — 

Dividend payments (98,804) —  —  — 

Taxes withheld employee stock transactions (8,624) (5,888) —  (1)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (325,791) (367,772) (176,770) (191,165)

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (117,962) 288,985  82,729  (251,048)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period 485,707  196,722  113,993  365,041 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period $ 367,745  $ 485,707  $ 196,722  $ 113,993 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
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Net income (loss) $ 448,353  $ 481,902  $ 168,948 

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flow from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 428,626  301,345  146,879 

Amortization of intangible assets and contract liabilities, net (60,032) (106,776) (5,352)

Gain on bargain purchase —  (5,005) — 

(Gain) loss on extinguishment of debt, net —  26,397  8,912 

(Gain) loss on sale of operating assets, net (17,357) —  (90,230)

Deferred income taxes (42,647) (98,093) (25,628)

Amortization of share-based compensation 43,797  37,680  35,251 

Other costs, net (13,964) (8,036) (323)

Changes in components of working capital and other operating activities:

Change in taxes receivable (15,263) (7,374) 23,344 

Net changes in other operating assets and liabilities (116,038) (47,703) 19,184 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 655,475  574,337  280,985 

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures (575,315) (409,581) (174,319)

Proceeds from insurance claims 23,297  18,809  — 

Cash acquired (used) in business combinations, net (417,041) —  166,607 

Proceeds from disposal of assets, net 10,040  24,264  381,026 

Other investing activities —  —  2,458 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (959,019) (366,508) 375,772 

Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of debt 824,000  600,000  350,000 

Repayments of debt —  (673,411) (627,323)

Borrowing on credit facilities 35,000  —  220,000 

Repayments of credit facilities (35,000) —  (220,000)

Debt issuance costs (10,002) (24,914) (641)

Debt extinguishment costs —  (25,697) — 

Compulsory purchase payment —  —  (69,924)

Warrant exercises 1,443  485  1,004 

Share repurchases (299,989) (94,826) (15,000)

Dividend payments (277,831) (98,804) — 

Taxes withheld employee stock transactions (66,057) (8,624) (5,888)

Finance lease payments (6,064) —  — 

Other 22,578  —  — 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 188,078  (325,791) (367,772)

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash (115,466) (117,962) 288,985 

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of period 367,745  485,707  196,722 

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end of period $ 252,279  $ 367,745  $ 485,707 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(In thousands)

Shares Shares Additional


Paid-in


Capital

Retained


Earnings (Accumulated

Deficit)

Accumulated


Other


Comprehensive


Income (Loss)

Total


Equity

Shares Additional


Paid-in


Capital

Retained


Earnings (Accumulated

Deficit)

Accumulated


Other


Comprehensive


Income (Loss)

Total


EquityBalance

Balance at December 31, 2020 (Predecessor)

Balance at December 31, 2020 (Predecessor)

Balance at December 31, 2020 (Predecessor)

Employee related equity activity

Amortization of share-based compensation

Amortization of share-based compensation

Amortization of share-based compensation

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2025 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

50/154

Issuance of share-based compensation shares

Shares withheld for taxes on equity transactions

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net

Cancellation of Predecessor equity

Issuance of Successor common stock and warrants

Balance at February 5, 2021 (Predecessor)

Balance at February 6, 2021 (Successor)

Balance at February 6, 2021 (Successor)

Balance at February 6, 2021 (Successor)

Employee related equity activity

Amortization of share-based compensation

Amortization of share-based compensation

Amortization of share-based compensation

Exchange of common stock for penny warrants

Warrants exercised

Issuance of common stock for Pacific Drilling merger

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net

Balance at December 31, 2021 (Successor)

Employee related equity activity

Balance at December 31, 2021

Balance at December 31, 2021

Balance at December 31, 2021

Employee related equity activity:

Amortization of share-based compensation

Amortization of share-based compensation

Amortization of share-based compensation

Issuance of share-based compensation shares

Shares withheld for taxes on equity transactions

Warrants exercised

Share repurchases

Issuance of common stock for Maersk Drilling merger

Settlement of Compulsory Purchase Interest

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net

Balance at December 31, 2022 (Successor)

Employee related equity activity

Balance at December 31, 2022

Employee related equity activity:

Amortization of share-based compensation

Amortization of share-based compensation

Amortization of share-based compensation

Issuance of share-based compensation shares

Shares withheld for taxes on equity transactions

Warrants exercised

Share repurchases

Dividends

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net

Balance at December 31, 2023 (Successor)

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2025 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

51/154

Balance at December 31, 2023

Employee related equity activity:

Amortization of share-based compensation

Amortization of share-based compensation

Amortization of share-based compensation

Issuance of share-based compensation shares

Shares withheld for taxes on equity transactions

Warrants exercised

Share repurchases

Issuance of common stock for Diamond Offshore Drilling

merger

Dividends

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net

Balance at December 31, 2024

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

Note 1 — Organization and Significant Accounting Policies
Noble Corporation plc, a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales (“Noble” or “Successor”), is a leading offshore drilling contractor for the oil and
gas industry. We provide contract drilling services to the international oil and gas industry with our global fleet of mobile offshore drilling units. Noble and its predecessors have been
engaged in the contract drilling of oil and gas wells since 1921. As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, our fleet of 32 40 drilling rigs consisted of 19 27 floaters and 13
jackups.

We report our contract drilling operations as a single reportable segment, Contract Drilling Services, which reflects how we manage our business. The mobile offshore drilling units
comprising our offshore rig fleet operate in a global market for contract drilling services and are often redeployed to different regions due to changing demands of our customers,
which consist primarily of large, integrated, independent, and government-owned or controlled oil and gas companies throughout the world.

On July 31, 2020 September 30, 2022 (the “Petition “Merger Effective Date”), our former parent company, Noble Holding Corporation plc, pursuant to a public limited company
incorporated under the laws of England and Wales (“Legacy Noble” or the “Predecessor”), and certain of its subsidiaries, including Noble Finance Company, an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability (“Finco”), filed voluntary petitions in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Texas (the “Bankruptcy
Court”) seeking relief under chapter 11 of title 11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”). On September 4, 2020, the Debtors (as defined herein) filed with the
Bankruptcy Court the Joint Plan of Reorganization of Noble Corporation plc and its Debtor Affiliates, which was subsequently amended on October 8, 2020 and October 13, 2020
and modified on November 18, 2020 business combination agreement, dated November 10, 2021 (as amended, modified or supplemented, the “Plan” “Business Combination
Agreement”), by and the related disclosure statement. On September 24, 2020, six additional subsidiaries of Legacy among Noble, (together with Legacy Noble and its subsidiaries
that filed on the Petition Date, as the context requires, the “Debtors”) filed voluntary petitions in the Bankruptcy Court. The chapter 11 proceedings were jointly administered under
the caption Noble Corporation plc, et al. (Case No. 20-33826) (the “Chapter 11 Cases”). On November 20, 2020, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order confirming the Plan. In
connection with the Chapter 11 Cases and the Plan, on and prior to the Emergence Effective Date (as defined herein), Legacy Noble and certain of its subsidiaries effectuated
certain restructuring transactions pursuant to which Legacy Noble formed Noble Corporation, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability (“Noble
Cayman”), as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Legacy Noble and transferred to Noble Cayman substantially all of the subsidiaries and other assets of Legacy Noble. On
February 5, 2021 (the “Emergence Effective Date”), the Plan became effective in accordance with its terms, the Debtors emerged from the Chapter 11 Cases and Noble Cayman
became the new parent company. In accordance with the Plan, Legacy Noble and its remaining subsidiary will in due course be wound down and dissolved in accordance with
applicable law. The Bankruptcy Court closed the Chapter 11 Cases with respect to all Debtors other than Legacy Noble, pending its wind down.

On September 30, 2022 (the “Merger Effective Date”), pursuant to a Business Combination Agreement, dated November 10, 2021 (as amended, the “Business Combination
Agreement”), by and among Noble, Noble Cayman, Noble Newco Sub Limited, a Cayman Islands exempted company and a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of Noble (“Merger
Sub”), and The Drilling Company of 1972 A/S, a Danish public limited liability company (“Maersk Drilling”), Noble Cayman merged with and into Merger Sub (the “Merger”), with
Merger Sub surviving the Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Noble. As a result of the Merger, Noble became the ultimate parent of Noble Cayman and its respective
subsidiaries.

On October 3, 2022 (the “Closing Date”), pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement, Noble completed a voluntary tender exchange offer to Maersk Drilling’s shareholders
(the “Offer” and, together with the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Business Combination Agreement, the “Business Combination”) and because Noble
acquired more than 90% of the issued and outstanding shares of Maersk Drilling, nominal value Danish krone (“DKK”) 10 per share (“Maersk Drilling Shares”), Noble redeemed all
remaining Maersk Drilling Shares not exchanged in the Offer for, at the election of the holder, either A ordinary shares, par value $0.00001 per share, of Noble (“Ordinary Shares”)
or cash (or, for those holders that did not make an election, only cash), under Danish law by way of a compulsory purchase (the “Compulsory Purchase”), which was completed in
early November 2022. Upon completion of the Compulsory Purchase Maersk Drilling became a wholly owned subsidiary of Noble. The Merger is accounted for as a business
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combination in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 805”), where
Noble is the accounting acquirer.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar On June 9, 2024, Noble entered into an agreement and share amounts plan of merger (the “Diamond Merger Agreement”) with Diamond Offshore
Drilling, Inc. (“Diamond”), Dolphin Merger Sub 1, Inc., and Dolphin Merger Sub 2, Inc., under which Noble would acquire Diamond in tables are a stock plus cash transaction (the

“Diamond Transaction”). On September 4, 2024 (the “Diamond Closing Date”), Noble completed its acquisition of Diamond. The merger is accounted for as a business combination
in thousands)

accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, where Noble is the accounting acquirer.

See “Note 4 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures” for additional information on the Business Combination. information.

As a result of the emergence from the Chapter 11 Cases, Noble Cayman became the successor issuer to Legacy Noble for purposes of and pursuant to Rule 15d-5 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). As a result of the Merger, Noble became the successor issuer to Noble Cayman for purposes of and pursuant to Rule
12g-3(a) the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“the Exchange Act. Act”). References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “Noble,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” “us,” and
“our” refer collectively to (i) Legacy Noble  Cayman and its consolidated subsidiaries prior to the Emergence Merger Effective Date, (ii) Noble Cayman and its consolidated
subsidiaries on and after the Emergence Effective Date and prior to the Merger Effective Date, and (iii) Noble and its consolidated subsidiaries (including Noble Cayman) on and
after the Merger Effective Date, and (iii) Noble and its consolidated subsidiaries on and after the Diamond Closing Date, as applicable.

Upon emergence, the Company applied fresh start accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 852 – Reorganizations (“ASC 852”). The application of fresh start accounting resulted
in a new basis of accounting and the Company becoming a new entity for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, our financial statements and notes after the Emergence
Effective Date are not comparable to our financial statements and notes on and prior to that date. See “Note 3— Fresh Start Accounting” for additional information.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our wholly-owned subsidiaries and entities in which we hold a controlling financial interest.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“US GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Certain accounting policies involve judgments and uncertainties to such an extent that there is reasonable likelihood that
materially different amounts could have been reported under different conditions, or if different assumptions had been used. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on a
regular basis. We base our estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis for making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates and
assumptions used in preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, and all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Our cash, cash
equivalents, and short-term investments are subject to potential credit risk, and certain of our cash accounts carry balances greater than the federally insured limits. Cash and cash
equivalents are primarily held by major banks or investment firms. Our cash management and investment policies restrict investments to lower risk, highly liquid securities and we
perform periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of the financial institutions with which we conduct business.

Restricted Cash
We classify restricted cash balances in current assets if the restriction is expected to expire or otherwise be resolved within one year and in other assets if the restriction is expected
to expire or otherwise be resolved in more than one year. As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, our restricted cash balance consisted of $7.0 million $5.0
million and $9.5 million $7.0 million, respectively. All restricted cash is recorded in “Prepaid expenses and other current assets.” As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, our
restricted cash balance was related to cash collateral for Company rig performance guarantees and other performance obligations.

Accounts Receivable
We record accounts receivable at the amount we invoice our clients, net of allowance for credit losses. We provide an allowance for uncollectible accounts, as necessary. Our
allowance for doubtful accounts was zero as of both December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022. 2023.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost, reduced by provisions to recognize economic impairment. Major replacements and improvements are capitalized. When assets are sold,
retired, or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and the gain or loss is recognized. Drilling equipment and facilities
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as of the date placed in service or

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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date of major refurbishment. Estimated useful lives of our drilling equipment range from three to 30 years. Other property and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line
method over useful lives ranging from two to 40 years.

Interest is capitalized on long-term construction projects using the weighted average cost of debt outstanding during the period of construction.

Scheduled maintenance of equipment is performed based on the number of hours operated in accordance with our preventative maintenance program. Routine repair and
maintenance costs are charged to expense as incurred; however, the costs of the overhauls and asset replacement projects that benefit future periods and which typically occur
every three to five years are capitalized when incurred and depreciated over an equivalent period. These overhauls and asset replacement projects are included in “Drilling
equipment and facilities” in “Note 7 5 — Property and Equipment.”

We evaluate our property and equipment for impairment whenever there are changes in facts that suggest that the value of the asset is not recoverable. As part of this analysis, we
make assumptions and estimates regarding future market conditions. When circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable, management
compares the carrying value to the expected undiscounted pre-tax future cash flows for the associated rig for which identifiable cash flows are independent of cash flows of other
assets. If the expected undiscounted pre-tax future cash flows are lower than the carrying value, the net capitalized costs are reduced to fair value. An impairment loss is recognized
to the extent that an asset's carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value. Fair value is generally estimated using a discounted cash flow model. The expected future cash flows
used for impairment assessment and related fair value measurements are typically based on judgmental assessments of, but were are not limited to, timing of future contract awards
and expected operating dayrates, operating costs, utilization rates, discount rates, capital expenditures, reactivation costs, estimated economic useful lives and, in certain cases, our
belief that a drilling unit is no longer marketable and is unlikely to

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

return to service in the near to medium term, and considering all available information at the date of assessment. During the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024
and 2022, 2023, we did not identify any impairment triggers for our property and equipment.

Fair Value Measurements
We measure certain of our assets and liabilities based on a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The three-level
hierarchy, from highest to lowest level of observable inputs, are as follows:

Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets;

Level 2 — Valuations based on observable inputs that do not meet the criteria for Level 1, including quoted prices in inactive markets and quoted prices in active markets for
similar but not identical instruments; and

Level 3 — Valuations based on unobservable inputs.

Our cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, marketable securities, and accounts payable are by their nature short term. As a result, the carrying values
included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets approximate fair value.

Goodwill Business Combinations
Goodwill represents In connection with our acquisitions, we apply the excess acquisition method of purchase price over accounting. Accordingly, we record the acquired assets and
assumed liabilities at fair value of net assets acquired and is assessed for impairment at least annually at October 1, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the fair value of such assets may be below their carrying amount. Goodwill and all other assets and liabilities are allocated to reporting units, which for us, is our single reportable
segment, Contract Drilling Services. In order to assess impairment, the carrying amount is determined and compared recognize goodwill to the estimated fair value. Any excess
of extent the carrying value, including goodwill, over its fair value is recognized as an impairment and charged to net earnings. The impairment charge measured is limited to the
total amount of goodwill allocated to our reporting unit.

Gain on Bargain Purchase
When consideration transferred exceeded the fair value of the identifiable net assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination is in excess of acquired. To the sum of extent
the fair value of the net assets acquired exceeded the consideration and the fair value of any retained non-controlling interest, the Company recognizes transferred, we recognize a
gain on bargain purchase gain. Changes in earnings. Before recognizing any gain these judgments or estimates can have a material impact on bargain purchase, the Company
reassesses whether it has correctly identified all valuation of the respective assets and liabilities acquired and our results of operations in periods after acquisition. The allocation of
the purchase price may be modified up to one year after the acquisition date as more information is obtained about the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. We
estimate the fair values of the acquired assets and assumed respectively, liabilities as of the date of the acquisition. See “Note 2 — Acquisitions and that measurements
appropriately reflect consideration of all available Divestitures” for further information.

Revenue Recognition
The activities that primarily drive the revenue earned in our drilling contracts include (i) providing a drilling rig and the crew and supplies necessary to operate the rig, (ii) mobilizing
and demobilizing the rig to and from the drill site, and (iii)

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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performing rig preparation activities and/or modifications required for the contract. Consideration received for performing these activities may consist of dayrate drilling revenue,
mobilization and demobilization revenue, contract preparation revenue, and reimbursement revenue. We account for these integrated services provided within our drilling contracts
as a single performance obligation satisfied over time and comprised of a series of distinct time increments in which we provide drilling services.
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Our standard drilling contracts require that we operate the rig at the direction of the customer throughout the contract term (which is the period we estimate to benefit from the
corresponding activities and generally ranges from two to 60 months). The activities performed and the level of service provided can vary hour to hour. Our obligation under a
standard contract is to provide whatever level of service is required by the operator, or customer, over the term of the contract. We are, therefore, under a stand-ready obligation
throughout the entire contract duration. Consideration for our stand-ready obligation corresponds to distinct time increments, though the rate may be variable depending on various
factors, and is recognized in the period in which the services are performed. The total transaction price is determined for each individual contract by estimating both fixed and
variable consideration expected to be earned over the term of the contract. We have elected to exclude from the transaction price measurement all taxes assessed by a
governmental authority. See further discussion regarding the allocation of the transaction price to the remaining performance obligations below.

The amount estimated for variable consideration may be subject to interrupted or restricted rates and is only included in the transaction price to the extent that it is probable that a
significant reversal of previously recognized revenue will not occur throughout the term of the contract (“constrained revenue”). When determining if variable consideration should be
constrained, management considers whether there are factors outside the Company’s control that could result in a significant reversal of revenue as well as the likelihood and
magnitude of a potential reversal of revenue. These estimates are reassessed each reporting period as required.

Dayrate Drilling Revenue. Our drilling contracts generally provide for payment on a dayrate basis, with higher rates for periods when the drilling unit is operating and lower rates or
zero rates for periods when drilling operations are interrupted or restricted. The dayrate invoices billed to the customer are typically determined based on the varying rates applicable
to the specific activities performed on an hourly basis. Such dayrate consideration is allocated to the distinct hourly increment
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it relates to within the contract term and, therefore, recognized in line with the contractual rate billed for the services provided for any given hour.

Mobilization/Demobilization Revenue. We may receive fees (on either a fixed lump-sum or variable dayrate basis) for the mobilization and demobilization of our rigs. These
activities are not considered to be distinct within the context of the contract and, therefore, the associated revenue is allocated to the overall performance obligation and the
associated pre-operating costs are deferred. We record a contract liability for mobilization fees received and a deferred asset for costs. Both revenue and pre-operating costs are
recognized ratably over the initial term of the related drilling contract.

In most contracts, there is uncertainty as to the amount of expected demobilization revenue due to contractual provisions that stipulate that certain conditions must be present at
contract completion for such revenue to be received and as to the amount thereof, if any. For example, contractual provisions may require that a rig demobilize a certain distance
before the demobilization revenue is payable or the amount may vary dependent upon whether or not the rig has additional contracted work within a certain distance from the
wellsite. Therefore, the estimate for such revenue may be constrained, as described earlier, depending on the facts and circumstances pertaining to the specific contract. We assess
the likelihood of receiving such revenue based on past experience and knowledge of the market conditions. In cases where demobilization revenue is expected to be received upon
contract completion, it is estimated as part of the overall transaction price at contract inception and recognized in earnings ratably over the initial term of the contract with an offset to
an accretive contract asset.

Contract Preparation Revenue. Some of our drilling contracts require downtime before the start of the contract to prepare the rig to meet customer requirements. At times, we may
be compensated by the customer for such work (on either a fixed lump-sum or variable dayrate basis). These activities are not considered to be distinct within the context of the
contract and, therefore, the related revenue is allocated to the overall performance obligation and recognized ratably over the initial term of the related drilling contract. We record a
contract liability for contract preparation fees received, which is amortized ratably to contract drilling revenue over the initial term of the related drilling contract.

Bonuses, Penalties, and Other Variable Consideration. We may receive bonus increases to revenue or penalty decreases to revenue. Based on historical data and ongoing
communication with the operator/customer, we are able to reasonably
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estimate this variable consideration. We will record such estimated variable consideration and remeasure our estimates at each reporting date.

Capital Modification Revenue. From time to time, we may receive fees from our customers for capital improvements to our rigs to meet contractual requirements (on either a fixed
lump-sum or variable dayrate basis). Such revenue is allocated to the overall performance obligation and recognized ratably over the initial term of the related drilling contract as
these activities are integral to our drilling activities and are not considered to be a stand-alone service provided to the customer within the context of our contracts. We record a
contract liability for such fees and recognize them ratably as contract drilling revenue over the term of the related drilling contract commencing when the asset is ready for its
intended use.

Revenues Related to Reimbursable Expenses. We generally receive reimbursements from our customers for the purchase of supplies, equipment, personnel services, and other
services provided at their request in accordance with a drilling contract or other agreement. Such reimbursable revenue is variable and subject to uncertainty, as the amounts
received and timing thereof is highly dependent on factors outside of our influence. Accordingly, reimbursable revenue is constrained revenue and not included in the total
transaction price until the uncertainty is resolved, which typically occurs when the related costs are incurred on behalf of a customer. We are generally considered a principal in such
transactions and record the associated revenue at the gross amount billed to the customer as “Reimbursables and other” in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Such
amounts are recognized ratably over the period within the contract term during which the corresponding goods and services are to be consumed.

Deferred revenues from drilling contracts totaled $101.9 million and $43.1 million at December 31, 2024 and $59.8 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, 2023, respectively. Such
amounts are included in either “Other current liabilities” or “Other liabilities” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, based upon our expected time of recognition.
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Related expenses deferred under drilling contracts totaled $37.1 million and $4.4 million at December 31, 2024 and $11.5 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, 2023,
respectively, and are included in either “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” or “Other assets” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, based upon our expected
time of recognition.

We record reimbursements from customers for “out-of-pocket” expenses as revenues and the related direct cost as operating expenses.
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Income Taxes
Income taxes are based on the laws and rates in effect in the countries in which operations are conducted or in which we or our subsidiaries are considered resident for income tax
purposes. In certain circumstances, we expect that, due to changing demands of the offshore drilling markets and the ability to redeploy our offshore drilling units, certain of such
units will not reside in a location long enough to give rise to future tax consequences. As a result, no deferred tax asset or liability has been recognized in these circumstances.
Should our expectations change regarding the length of time an offshore drilling unit will be used in a given location, we will adjust deferred taxes accordingly.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the anticipated future tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement basis and the tax basis of our assets
and liabilities using the applicable jurisdictional tax rates at year end. A valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is recorded when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax
asset will not be realized in a future period.

We operate through various subsidiaries in numerous countries throughout the world, including the United States. Consequently, we are subject to changes in tax laws, treaties, and
regulations or the interpretation or enforcement thereof in the United States, UK, and any other jurisdictions in which we or any of our subsidiaries operate or are resident. Our
income tax expense is based upon our interpretation of the tax laws in effect in various countries at the time that the expense was incurred. If the IRS or other taxing authorities do
not agree with our assessment of the effects of such laws, treaties, and regulations, this could have a material adverse effect on us including the imposition of a higher effective tax
rate on our worldwide earnings or a reclassification of the tax impact of our significant corporate restructuring transactions. The Company has adopted an accounting policy to look
through the outside basis of partnerships and all other flow-through entities and exclude these from the computation of deferred taxes.

Insurance Recoveries
The Company maintains insurance coverage for personal injuries, property damage, and certain other losses sustained during operations. Recoveries from insurance are recorded
when a loss has been recognized and realization is probable, and are measured at the lower of the loss recognized or the probable recovery. Timing differences may occur between
the loss recognized, damage costs, capital expenditures made to repair or restore properties, and recognition and receipt of
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insurance proceeds reflected in the Company’s financial statements. Costs, as well as insurance recoveries, related to the Hurricane Ida event in 2021 are presented in “Hurricane
losses and (recoveries), net” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. See “Note 14 12 — Commitments and Contingencies” for additional information.

Claims Reserves
We maintain various levels of self-insured retention for certain losses including property damage, loss of hire, employment practices liability, employers’ liability, and general liability,
among others. We accrue for property damage and loss of hire charges on a per event basis.

Employment practices liability claims are accrued based on actual claims during the year. Maritime employer’s liability claims are generally estimated using actuarial determinations.
General liability claims are estimated by our internal claims department by evaluating the facts and circumstances of each claim (including incurred but not reported claims) and
making estimates based upon historical experience with similar claims. At December 31, 2024, loss reserves for personal injury and protection claims totaled $164.1 million, of
which $149.2 million was included in “Other current liabilities” and $14.9 million in “Other long-term liabilities” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. At December 31,
2023, loss reserves for personal injury and protection claims totaled $63.9 million, of which $21.9 million was included in “Other current liabilities” and $42.0 million in “Other long-
term liabilities” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. At December 31, 2022, loss reserves for personal injury and protection claims totaled $35.3 million of which
$15.5 million was included in “Other current liabilities” and $19.8 million in “Other long-term liabilities” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Earnings per Share
Our unvested share-based payment awards, which contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends, are participating securities and are included in the computation of earnings per share
pursuant to the two-class method. The two-class method allocates undistributed earnings between common shares and participating securities. The diluted earnings per share
calculation under the two-class method also includes the dilutive effect of potential shares issued in connection with stock warrants and options. The dilutive effect of stock warrants
and options is determined using the Treasury Stock Method. The diluted earnings per share calculation is adjusted for mandatory exercise, under the Treasury Stock Method, if the
condition is met at the balance sheet date. At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, the Mandatory Exercise Condition (as defined in the applicable warrant
agreement) set forth in the warrant agreements for the Tranche 1 Warrants and the Tranche 2 Warrants was satisfied. See “Note 6 4 — Income (Loss) Per Share” for additional
information.
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Share-Based Compensation Plans

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2025 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

56/154

We record the grant date fair value of share-based compensation arrangements as compensation cost using a straight-line method over the service period. Share-based
compensation is expensed or capitalized based on the nature of the employee’s activities. The Company classified certain awards that will be settled in cash as liability awards. The
fair value of a liability-classified award is determined on a quarterly basis beginning at the grant date until final vesting. Changes in the fair value of liability-classified awards are
expensed or capitalized based on the nature of the employee’s activities over the vesting period of the award.

Litigation Contingencies
We are involved in legal proceedings, claims, and regulatory, tax, or government inquiries and investigations that arise in the ordinary course of business. Certain of these matters
include speculative claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages. We record a liability when we believe that it is both probable that a loss has been incurred and the
amount can be reasonably estimated. If we determine that a loss is reasonably possible and the loss or range of loss can be estimated, we disclose the possible loss in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

We review the developments in our contingencies that could affect the amount of the provisions that has been previously recorded, and the matters and related possible losses
disclosed. We make adjustments to our provisions and changes to our disclosures accordingly to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and
updated information. Significant judgment is required to determine both the probability and the estimated amount.

Foreign Currency
Although we are a UK company, our functional currency is the US dollar, and we define any non-US dollar denominated currency as “foreign currencies.” In non-US locations where
the US dollar has been designated as the functional currency (based on an evaluation of factors including the markets in which the subsidiary operates, inflation, generation of cash
flow, financing activities, and intercompany arrangements), local currency transaction gains and losses are included in net income or loss.
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Derivative Financial Instruments
We use have used foreign currency forward contracts and interest rate swaps in order to manage our exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange and interest rates, respectively.
The contracts are not entered into for trading purposes. The Company has not designated these derivative instruments as hedges. We recognize the derivatives at fair value on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and, where applicable, such contracts covered by master netting agreements are reported net. Gross positive fair values are netted with gross
negative fair values by counterparty. Realized gains and losses as well as changes in the fair values of derivative financial instruments are recognized in the income statement in
“Interest income and other, net.”

Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting Standards Adopted.We do not believe
In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-07 ("ASU 2023-07"), Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which requires,
among other things, the following: (i) enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses that any recently issued accounting standards would have are regularly provided to
the chief operating decision maker and included in a material effect segment's reported measure of profit or loss, (ii) disclosure of the amount and description of the composition of
other segment items, as defined in ASU 2023-07, by reportable segment, and (iii) reporting the disclosures about each reportable segment's profit or loss and assets on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. an annual and interim basis.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards.
In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU No. 2024-04 ("ASU 2024-04"), Debt—Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470-20). The Board is issuing this Update to
improve the relevance and consistency in application of the induced conversion guidance in Subtopic 470-20, Debt— Debt with Conversion and Other Options. When the terms of a
convertible debt instrument are changed to induce conversion of the instrument, current generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) provide guidance for determining whether
the transaction should be accounted for as an induced conversion (as opposed to a debt extinguishment). The induced conversion guidance was written in the context of share-
settled convertible debt before cash convertible instruments became prevalent in the marketplace. The Company continues to assess the potential impact of this pronouncement.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU No. 2024-03 ("ASU 2024-03"), Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income—Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic
220-40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses. The
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amendments in this Update require disclosure, in the notes to financial statements, of specified information about certain costs and expenses. An entity is not precluded from
providing additional voluntary disclosures that may provide investors with additional decision-useful information. The amendments in this Update are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027. Early adoption is permitted. The Company continues to assess the
potential impact of this pronouncement.

In December 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2023-09 ("ASU 2023-09"), Income Taxes (Topic 740):
Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures,, which requires, among other things, the following for public business entities: (i) enhanced disclosures of specific categories of
reconciling items included in the rate reconciliation, as well as additional information for any of these items meeting certain qualitative and quantitative thresholds, (ii) disclosure of
the nature, effect, and underlying causes of each individual reconciling item disclosed in the rate reconciliation and the judgment used in categorizing them if not otherwise evident,
and (iii) enhanced disclosures for income taxes paid, which includes federal, state, and foreign taxes, as well as for individual jurisdictions over a certain quantitative threshold. The
amendments in ASU 2023-09 eliminate the requirement to disclose the nature and estimate of the range of the reasonably possible change in unrecognized tax benefits for the 12
months after the balance sheet date. The provisions of ASU 2023-09 are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024; early adoption is permitted. The Company
continues to evaluate the potential impact of this pronouncement.
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In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-07 ("ASU 2023-07"), Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which requires,
among other things, the following: (i) enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker ("CODM") and
included in a segment's reported measure of profit or loss, (ii) disclosure of the amount and description of the composition of other segment items, as defined in ASU 2023-07, by
reportable segment, and (iii) reporting the disclosures about each reportable segment's profit or loss and assets on an annual and interim basis. The provisions of ASU 2023-07 are
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024; early adoption is permitted. The Company
continues to evaluate the potential impact of this pronouncement.

Note 2 — Chapter 11 EmergenceAcquisitions and Divestitures
Business Combination with Diamond Offshore Drilling
On the Petition Diamond Closing Date, Legacy Noble and certain completed its acquisition of its subsidiaries, including Finco, filed voluntary petitions in the Bankruptcy Court
seeking relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. The Plan was confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court on November 20, 2020, and the Debtors emerged from the bankruptcy
proceedings on the Emergence Effective Date.

On the Emergence Effective Date, and pursuant Diamond. Pursuant to the terms of the Plan, the Company:

• Appointed five new members to the Successor’s Board of Directors to replace all of the directors of the Predecessor, other than the director also serving as
President and Chief Executive Officer, who was re-appointed pursuant to the Plan. Subsequent to the Emergence Effective Date, an additional director was
appointed.

• Terminated and cancelled all ordinary shares and equity-based awards of Legacy Noble that were outstanding immediately prior to the Emergence Effective Date;

• Transferred approximately 31.7  million Noble Cayman Shares to holders of Legacy Noble’s then outstanding Senior Notes due 2026 (the “Guaranteed
Notes”) conditions set forth in the cancellation Diamond Merger Agreement, Diamond shareholders received 0.2316 shares of the Guaranteed Notes;

• Transferred approximately 2.1 million Noble, Cayman Shares, approximately 8.3 million seven-year warrants with Black-Scholes protection (the “Noble Cayman
Tranche 1 Warrants”) with an exercise price plus cash consideration of $19.27 and approximately 8.3 million seven-year warrants with Black-Scholes protection (the
“Noble Cayman Tranche 2 Warrants”) with an exercise price of $23.13 to holders of Legacy Noble’s then outstanding senior notes (other than the Guaranteed
Notes) (the “Legacy Notes”) in cancellation of the Legacy Notes;
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• Issued approximately 7.7 million Noble Cayman Shares and $216.0 million principal amount of our senior secured second lien notes (the “Second Lien Notes”) to
participants in a rights offering (the “Rights Offering”) at an aggregate subscription price of $200.0 million;

• Issued approximately 5.6 million Noble Cayman Shares to the backstop parties (the “Backstop Parties”) to a Backstop Commitment Agreement, dated October 12,
2020 (the “Backstop Commitment Agreement”), among the Debtors and the Backstop Parties as Holdback Securities (as defined in the Backstop Commitment
Agreement);

• Issued approximately 1.7 million Noble Cayman Shares to the Backstop Parties in respect of their backstop commitment to subscribe for Unsubscribed Securities
(as defined in the Backstop Commitment Agreement);

• Issued approximately 1.2  million Noble Cayman Shares to the Backstop Parties in connection with the payment of the Backstop Premiums (as defined in the
Backstop Commitment Agreement);

• Issued 2.8 million five-year warrants with no Black-Scholes protection (the “Noble Cayman Tranche 3 Warrants”) with an exercise price of $124.40 to the holders of
Legacy Noble’s ordinary shares outstanding prior to the Emergence Effective Date;

• Entered into the Emergence Revolving Credit Agreement (as defined herein) providing for a $675.0 million Revolving Credit Facility (as defined herein) (with a
$67.5 million sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit thereunder);

• Entered into an indenture governing the Second Lien Notes;

• Entered into a registration rights agreement with certain parties who received Noble Cayman Shares under the Plan; and

• Entered into a registration rights agreement with certain parties who received Second Lien Notes under the Plan.

In addition, Noble entered into an exchange agreement with certain Backstop Parties which provided that, as soon as reasonably practicable after the Emergence Effective Date,
the other parties to such agreement would deliver to the Company an aggregate of approximately 6.5 million Noble Cayman Shares issued pursuant to the Plan in exchange for the
issuance of penny warrants to purchase up to approximately 6.5 million Noble Cayman Shares, with an exercise price of $0.01 $5.65 per share (“Noble Cayman Penny Warrants”).
This exchange was completed in late February 2021. for each share of Diamond.

Management Incentive Plan Purchase Price Allocation
The Plan contemplated that on or after Diamond Transaction has been accounted for using the Emergence Effective Date, the Company would adopt a long-term incentive plan and
authorize and reserve 7.7 million Noble Cayman Shares for issuance pursuant to equity incentive awards to be granted acquisition method of accounting under such plan. On
February 18, 2021, the Company adopted the long-term incentive plan and authorized and reserved 7.7 million Noble Cayman Shares for awards to be granted under such plan.

Sources of Cash for Plan Distribution
All cash payments made by the Company under the Plan on the Emergence Effective Date were funded from cash on hand, proceeds of the Rights Offering, and proceeds of the
Emergence Revolving Credit Facility.

Reorganization Items, Net
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In accordance with ASC 852, any incremental expenses, gains and losses that are realized or incurred as of or subsequent to the Petition Date and before the Emergence Effective
Date that are a direct result of the Chapter 11 Cases are recorded under “Reorganization items, net.” The following table summarizes the components of reorganization items
included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the period from January 1, 2021, through February 5, 2021:
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Predecessor

Noble

Period From

January 1, 2021

through

February 5, 2021

Professional fees (1) $ (28,739)

Adjustments for estimated allowed litigation claims 77,300 

Write-off of unrecognized share-based compensation (4,406)

Gain on settlement of liabilities subject to compromise 2,556,147 

Loss on fresh start adjustments (2,348,251)

Total Reorganization items, net $ 252,051 

(1) Payments of $44.2 million related to professional fees have been presented as cash outflows from operating activities in our Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows for the period from January 1, 2021, through February 5, 2021.

Liabilities Subject to Compromise
From the Petition Date until the Emergence Effective Date, the Company operated as a debtor-in-possession under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and in accordance with
provisions of the Bankruptcy Code. In accordance with ASC 852, on our Consolidated Balance Sheets prior to the Emergence Effective Date, the caption “Liabilities subject to
compromise” reflects the expected allowed amount of the pre-petition claims that are not fully secured and that have at least a possibility of not being repaid at the full claim amount.
The Company has considered the Chapter 11 motions approved by the Bankruptcy Court with respect to the amount and classification of its pre-petition liabilities. The Company
evaluated and adjusted the amount and classification of its pre-petition liabilities through the Emergence Effective Date.

Note 3 — Fresh Start Accounting
In connection with our emergence from bankruptcy and in accordance with ASC 852, Noble qualified for and applied fresh start accounting on the Emergence Effective Date. Noble
was required to apply fresh start accounting because (i) the holders of existing Legacy Noble voting shares received less than 50% of the voting shares of the Successor and (ii) the
reorganization value of Noble's assets, each of which approximated $1.7 billion, immediately prior to confirmation of the Plan was less than the corresponding post-petition liabilities
and allowed claims, each of which approximated $4.0 billion. Applying fresh start accounting resulted in new reporting entities with no beginning retained earnings or accumulated
deficit. Accordingly, our financial statements and notes after the Emergence Effective Date are not comparable to our financial statements and notes on and to prior to that date.

With the application of fresh start accounting, we allocated the reorganization value to our individual assets and liabilities (except for deferred income taxes) based on their
estimated fair values in conformity with ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations. The amount Combinations, with Noble being treated as the accounting acquirer. Under the
acquisition method of deferred taxes accounting, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Diamond and its subsidiaries were recorded at their respective fair values on the
Diamond Closing Date. Total consideration for the acquisition was determined $1.5 billion, which included $610.3 million in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes cash paid
and ASC 852. The Emergence Effective Date $879.9 million in non-cash consideration, primarily related to Ordinary shares issued to legacy Diamond shareholders and the
replacement of legacy Diamond RSUs (as defined below).

Determining the fair values of our the assets and liabilities differed materially from their recorded values as reflected on of Diamond and the historical balance sheets.

As described in “Note 1 — Organization consideration paid required judgment and Significant Accounting Policies,” Noble is referred certain assumptions to as Successor, as the
context requires, and includes the financial position and results of operations of the reorganized Noble subsequent to February 5, 2021. References to Predecessor relate be made.
The most significant fair value estimates related to the financial position and results of operations of Legacy Noble prior to, and including, February 5, 2021.

Reorganization Value and Valuation of Assets
The reorganization value represents the fair value of the Successor’s and Finco’s total assets and was derived from the enterprise value, which represents the estimated fair value
of an entity’s long-term debt and equity. As set forth in the Plan, the enterprise value of the reorganized Debtors was estimated to be in the range of $1.1 billion to $1.6 billion with a
midpoint of $1.3 billion. The enterprise value range was determined by using a discounted cash flow analysis and a peer

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2025 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

59/154

group trading analysis, excluding unrestricted cash at emergence. Based on the estimates and assumptions discussed above, we estimated the enterprise value to be the midpoint
of the range of estimated enterprise value of $1.3 billion.

The following table reconciles the enterprise value to the Successor equity as of the Emergence Effective Date:

February 5, 2021

Enterprise value $ 1,300,300 

Plus: Cash and cash equivalents 111,968 

Less: Fair value of debt (393,500)

Fair value of Successor equity $ 1,018,768 

The following table reconciles the enterprise value to the reorganization value as of the Emergence Effective Date:

February 5, 2021

Enterprise value $ 1,300,300 

Plus: Cash and cash equivalents 111,968 

Plus: Non-interest bearing current liabilities 185,410 

Plus: Non-interest bearing non-current liabilities 108,268 

Reorganization value of Successor assets $ 1,705,946 

With the assistance of financial advisors, we determined the enterprise and corresponding equity value of the Successor by calculating the present value of future cash flows based
on our financial projections. The enterprise value and corresponding equity value are dependent upon achieving future financial results set forth in our valuations, as well as the
realization of certain other assumptions. All estimates, assumptions, valuations, and financial projections, including the fair value adjustments, the enterprise value, and equity value
projections, are inherently subject to significant uncertainties and the resolution of contingencies beyond our control. Accordingly, the estimates, assumptions, valuations, or financial
projections may not be realized and actual results could vary materially.

Valuation Process
Under the application of fresh start accounting and with the assistance of valuation experts, we conducted an analysis of the Consolidated Balance Sheet to determine if any of the
Company’s net assets would require a fair value adjustment as of the Emergence Effective Date. The results of our analysis indicated that our principal assets, which include mobile
offshore drilling units, certain intangibles, and debt issued at emergence would require a fair value adjustment on the Emergence Effective Date. The rest of the Company’s net
assets were determined to have carrying values that approximated fair value on the Emergence Effective Date. Further details regarding the valuation process is described further
below.

Property, Plant, and Equipment
The valuation of the Company’s Diamond’s mobile offshore drilling units and other related tangible assets, the fair value of drilling contracts, and debt.

Offshore drilling units. The valuation of Diamond’s mobile offshore drilling units was determined by using a combination of (i) the discounted cash flows expected to be generated
from our the drilling assets over their remaining useful lives and (ii) the cost to replace our drilling assets, as adjusted by the current market for similar offshore drilling assets. lives.
Assumptions used in our assessment included, but were not limited to, future marketability of each unit in light of the current market conditions and its current technical
specifications, timing of future contract awards and expected operating dayrates, operating costs, rig utilization rates, tax rates, discount rate, capital expenditures, synergies,
market values, weighting of market values, reactivation costs, estimated economic useful lives  of the rigs and, in certain cases, our belief that a drilling unit is no longer marketable
and is unlikely to return to service in the near to medium term. We included

Diamond off-market contracts. The Company recorded, with the assistance of external valuation specialists, liabilities from drilling contracts that had unfavorable terms compared
to the current market which were recorded on the Diamond Closing Date. The Company recognized the fair value adjustments as off-market contract liabilities recorded in
“Noncurrent contract liabilities.”

Diamond debt.In connection with the Diamond Transaction, the Company assumed the Diamond Second Lien Notes (as defined herein) in an allocation for corporate overhead
when calculating outstanding principal debt amount of $550.0  million and terminated the discounted cash flows expected to be generated from our drilling assets over their
remaining useful lives. The cash flows were discounted at our weighted average cost Diamond Revolving Credit Facility in the principal amount of capital (“WACC”), $300.0 million,
which was derived from a blend of our after-tax cost of debt and our cost of equity, and computed using public share price information for similar offshore drilling market participants,
certain US Treasury rates, and certain risk premiums specific scheduled to the Company.

mature in April 2026. The valuation of our remaining property and equipment, including owned real estate, construction in progress assets, and other equipment essential to our
operations, was determined utilizing a combination of replacement cost and market valuation approaches. Specifically, the land was valued using a sales comparison method of the
market approach, in which we utilized recent sales of comparable properties to estimate the fair value on a US dollar per acre basis. The remaining
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property and equipment were valued using a cost approach, in which we estimated the replacement cost of the assets and applied adjustments for physical depreciation and
obsolescence, where applicable, to arrive at a fair value.

Intangible Assets

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2025 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

60/154

At emergence, we held contracts for drilling services related to certain long-term contracts. Given the contract dayrates relative to market dayrates at the Emergence Effective Date,
we determined the contracts represent favorable contract intangible assets. Based on a discounted cash flow analysis utilizing the dayrate differential between current market
dayrates and the contract dayrates, and a risk-adjusted discount rate of 17%, we determined the aggregate fair value of our contracts for these certain contracts to be $113.4 million
above the fair value of the contracts if they were priced at current market dayrates on the Emergence Effective Date. The dayrate differential on these contracts as compared to prior
years was primarily driven by the combination of continued market oversupply of offshore drilling units, the volatility in oil and gas price and the unprecedented crude product
consumption levels experienced in 2020.

Debt
The valuations of the Company’s Emergence Revolving Credit Facility and Diamond Second Lien Notes were was based on relevant market data as of the Emergence
Effective Diamond Closing Date and the terms of each term of the respective instruments. Diamond Second Lien Notes. Considering that the interest rates rate and implied
yields yield for the Emergence Revolving Credit Facility and Diamond Second Lien Notes were within a range of comparable market yields (with considerations for term and
seniority), a fair value adjustments were adjustment was recorded relating to each of the instruments.

Successor Warrants
On the Emergence Effective Date, the Company issued Noble Cayman Tranche 1 Warrants and Noble Cayman Tranche 2 Warrants to certain former bondholders as part of the
settlement of their pre-petition claims. The Company also issued Noble Cayman Tranche 3 Warrants to holders of the Predecessor’s ordinary shares. The fair values of the warrants
on the Emergence Effective Date were determined using an options pricing model while considering the contractual terms for each respective tranche, including the mandatory
exercise provisions related to Noble Cayman Tranche 1 Warrants and Noble Cayman Tranche 2 Warrants. The key market data assumptions for the options pricing model are the
estimated volatility and the risk-free rate. The volatility assumption was estimated using market data for similar offshore drilling market participants with consideration for differences
in size and leverage. The risk-free rate assumption was based on US Constant Maturity Treasury rates as of the Emergence Effective Date.

Consolidated Balance Sheet at Emergence
The adjustments set forth in the following Consolidated Balance Sheet as of February 5, 2021, reflect the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Plan and carried
out by the Company (“Reorganization Adjustments”) and the fair value adjustments as a result of the application of fresh start accounting (“Fresh Start Adjustments”). The
explanatory notes provide Diamond Second Lien Notes. For additional information, with regard to the adjustments recorded, the methods used to determine fair values, and
significant assumptions or inputs. see “Note 6 — Debt.”

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

The following table reflects represents the reorganization allocation of the total purchase price of Diamond to the identifiable assets acquired and application of ASC 852 the liabilities
assumed based on our consolidated balance sheet the fair values as of February 5, 2021:

Predecessor

Reorganization

Adjustments Fresh Start Adjustments Successor

ASSETS  

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 317,962  $ (205,994) (a) $ —  $ 111,968 

Accounts receivable, net 189,207  —  —  189,207 

Taxes receivable 32,556  —  —  32,556 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 63,056  (20,302) (b) (10,073) (m) 32,681 

Total current assets 602,781  (226,296) (10,073) 366,412 

Intangible assets —  —  113,389  (n) 113,389 

Property and equipment, at cost 4,787,661  —  (3,631,936) (o) 1,155,725 

Accumulated depreciation (1,221,033) —  1,221,033  (o) — 

Property and equipment, net 3,566,628  —  (2,410,903) 1,155,725 

Other assets 69,940  10,983  (c) (10,503) (m) 70,420 

Total assets $ 4,239,349  $ (215,313) $ (2,318,090) $ 1,705,946 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 89,215  $ (7,266) (d) $ —  $ 81,949 

Accrued payroll and related costs 35,615  —  —  35,615 

Taxes payable 34,211  —  —  34,211 

Other current liabilities 64,943  21,305  (e) (52,613) (m) 33,635 

Total current liabilities 223,984  14,039  (52,613) 185,410 

Long-term debt —  352,054  (f) 41,446  (p) 393,500 

Deferred income taxes 9,303  (17,328) (g) 29,550  (q) 21,525 

Other liabilities 108,489  4,659  (h) (26,405) (m) 86,743 
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Liabilities subject to compromise 4,143,812  (4,143,812) (i) —  — 

Total liabilities 4,485,588  (3,790,388) (8,022) 687,178 

Shareholders’ equity (deficit)

Common stock (Predecessor) 2,511  (2,511) (j) —  — 

Common stock (Successor) —  1  (k) —  1 

Additional paid-in capital (Predecessor) 815,505  (815,505) (j) —  — 

Additional paid-in capital (Successor) —  1,018,767  (k) —  1,018,767 

Accumulated deficit (1,006,351) 3,374,323  (l) (2,367,972) (r) — 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (57,904) —  57,904  (s) — 

Total shareholders’ equity (deficit) (246,239) 3,575,075  (2,310,068) 1,018,768 

Total liabilities and equity $ 4,239,349  $ (215,313) $ (2,318,090) $ 1,705,946 

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts the Diamond Closing Date. In connection with this acquisition, the Company incurred $84.5 million of acquisition related costs
during the year ended December 31, 2024. The results of Diamond operations were included in tables are in thousands)

Reorganization Adjustments
(a) Represents the reorganization adjustment to cash and cash equivalents:Company’s results of operations effective on the Diamond Closing Date. Upon completion of

our assessment as of December 31, 2024, the Company concluded that no goodwill nor gain on bargain purchase should be recorded as appropriate under
US GAAP.

Proceeds from Rights Offering Purchase price consideration:

Fair value of Ordinary Shares transferred to legacy Diamond shareholders $ 857,678 

Fair value of replacement Diamond RSU Awards attributable to the purchase price 22,263 

Cash paid to legacy Diamond shareholders 583,152 

Cash paid to terminate the Diamond Revolving Credit Facility 308 

Cash paid to settle contingent success fees 17,316 

Cash paid for retention bonuses 4,422 

Cash paid for short-term incentive plans 5,086 

Total purchase price consideration $ 200,000 1,490,225 

Proceeds from the Emergence Revolving Credit Facility, net of issuance costs 167,361 

Transfer of cash from restricted cash Assets acquired: 300 

Payment of professional service fees (23,261)

Payment of the pre-petition revolving credit facility principal and accrued interest (550,019)

Deconsolidation of NHUK (300)

Payment of recurring debt fees (75)

Change in cash Cash and cash equivalents $ (205,994)

(b) Represents the reorganization adjustment for the following:
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Payment of professional service fees from escrow $ (12,380) 193,243 

Payment of Paragon litigation settlement from escrow Accounts receivable, net (7,700) 193,194 

Transfer of restricted cash to cash Taxes receivable (300) 6,971 

Adjustment to miscellaneous receivables related to the deconsolidation of NHUK upon emergence 78 

Change in prepaid Prepaid expenses and other current assets 69,781 

Total current assets 463,189 

Property and equipment, net 1,817,986 

Assets held for sale (1) 5,300 

Other assets 193,289 

Total assets acquired 2,479,764

Liabilities assumed:

Accounts payable 82,805 

Accrued payroll and related costs 36,791 

Taxes payable 3,699 

Interest payable 19,750 

Other current liabilities 137,788 

Total current liabilities 280,833 

Long-term debt 580,250 

Deferred income taxes 184 

Noncurrent contract liabilities 27,663 

Other liabilities 100,609 

Total liabilities assumed 989,539 

Net assets acquired $ (20,302) 1,490,225

(c) (1) Adjustments to other assets relates to capitalization During the third quarter of long-term debt issuance costs related to 2024, we sold the Emergence Revolving Credit
Facility of $11.1 million and the impact of reorganization adjustments on deferred tax assets of $(0.1) million.

(d)Adjustments to accounts payable related to the payment of professional fees $(15.2) million and the reinstatement of trade payables from liabilities subject to compromise of
$8.0 million.

(e) Adjustment of $21.3 million to other current liabilities related to the reinstatement of liabilities subject to compromise.

(f) Represents $352.1 million of outstanding borrowings, net of financing costs, under the Second Lien Notes and Emergence Revolving Credit Facility.

(g) Represents the write-off of $(17.3) million deferred income taxes as the result of the Company’s internal restructuring.

(h) Represents cancellation of $(0.1) million cash-based compensation plans and the reinstatement of Ocean Valiant $4.7 millionright-of-use lease liabilities. for total proceeds of
$5.6 million. See “Note 5 — Property and Equipment.”

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
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(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

(i) Liabilities subject Diamond Revenue and Net Income
The following table represents Diamond’s revenue and earnings included in Noble’s Consolidated Statements of Operations subsequent to compromise settled or reinstated in
accordance with the Plan and Diamond Closing Date of the resulting gain were determined as follows: Diamond Transaction.
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4.900% senior notes due August 2020

$ Period from


September 4, 2024


through


December 31, 2024 62,535 

4.625% senior notes due March 2021 79,937 

3.950% senior notes due March 2022 21,213 

7.750% senior notes due January 2024 397,025 

7.950% senior notes due April 2025 450,000 

7.875% senior notes due February 2026 750,000 

6.200% senior notes due August 2040 393,597 

6.050% senior notes due March 2041 395,000 

5.250% senior notes due March 2042 483,619 

8.950% senior notes due April 2045 400,000 

5.958% revolving credit facility maturing Jan. 2023 545,000 

Accrued and unpaid interest 110,300 

Protection and indemnity insurance liabilities 25,669 

Accounts payable and other payables 8,163 

Estimated loss on litigation 15,700 

Lease liabilities 6,054 

Total consolidated liabilities subject to compromise 4,143,812 

Issuance of Successor common stock (854,909)

Issuance of Successor warrants to certain Predecessor creditors (141,029)

Payment of the pre-petition revolving credit facility principal and accrued interest (550,020)

Payment of Paragon litigation settlement from escrow (7,700)

Reinstatement of Transocean litigation liability (8,000)

Reinstatement of protection and indemnity insurance liabilities (11,791)

Reinstatement of trade payables and right-of-use lease liabilities (14,216)

Gain on settlement of liabilities subject to compromise Revenue $ 2,556,147 

(j) Represents the cancellation of the Predecessor’s common stock of $(2.5) million and Additional paid-in capital of $(815.5) million.

(k) Represents the reorganization adjustments to common stock and additional paid in capital:

Par value of 50 million shares of new common stock issued $ 1 

Capital in excess of par value of 50 million issued and authorized shares of new common stock issued 875,931 

Fair value of new warrants issued 142,836 

Total Successor equity issued on the Emergence Effective Date $ 1,018,768 

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

(l) Represents the reorganization adjustments to accumulated deficit:
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Gain on settlement of liabilities subject to compromise 2,556,147 

Professional fees and success fees (15,017)

Write-off of unrecognized share-based compensation (4,406)

Reorganization items, net 2,536,724 

Cancellation of Predecessor common stock and additional paid-in capital 820,299 

Cancellation of Predecessor cash and equity compensation plans 2,183 

Issuance of Successor warrants to Predecessor equity holders (1,807)

Deconsolidation of NHUK (222)

Recognition of recurring debt fees (75)

Tax impacts of reorganization 17,221 336,542 

Net impact to Accumulated Deficit income (loss) $ 3,374,323 24,431 

Fresh Start Adjustments Pro Forma Financial Information
(m) Reflects The following unaudited pro forma summary presents the results of operations as if the Diamond Transaction had occurred on January 1, 2023. The pro forma summary
uses estimates and assumptions based on information available at the time. Management believes the estimates and assumptions to be reasonable; however, actual results may
have differed significantly from this pro forma financial information. The pro forma information does not reflect any synergy savings that might have been achieved from combining
the operations and is not intended to reflect the actual results that would have occurred had the companies actually been combined during the periods presented.

Twelve Months Ended December

31, 2024

Twelve Months Ended December

31, 2023

Revenue $ 3,081,879  $ 3,672,860 

Net income (loss) $ 375,402  $ 358,549 

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $ 2.26  $ 2.21 

Diluted $ 2.19  $ 2.09 

The pro forma results include, among others, (i) an increase to Diamond’s historically reported depreciation expense related to adjustments to capitalized deferred costs, deferred
revenue, and pension balances due to the application of fresh start accounting as follows:

Prepaid expenses and other

current assets Other assets Other current liabilities Other liabilities

Deferred contract assets and revenues $ (10,073) $ (2,616) $ (52,616) $ (20,320)

Write-off of certain financing costs —  (6,238) —  — 

Pension assets and obligations —  (1,010) 3  (6,085)

Fair value adjustments to other assets —  (639) —  — 

$ (10,073) $ (10,503) $ (52,613) $ (26,405)

(n) Reflects the fair value adjustment of $113.4 million to record an intangible asset for favorable contracts with customers.

(o) Reflects the fair value adjustment of$2.4 billionto property and equipment of values, (ii) adjustments to reflect certain acquisition related costs incurred directly in connection with
the Predecessor. The following table presents Diamond Transaction as if it had occurred on January 1, 2023, and (iii) net adjustments to increase contract drilling services
revenue related to off-market customer contract liabilities recognized in connection with the Diamond Transaction on a comparison of the historical and new fair values upon
emergence:pro forma basis.

Historical Value Fair Value

Drilling equipment and facilities $ 4,355,384  $ 1,070,931 

Construction in progress 231,626  75,159 

Other 200,651  9,635 

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,221,033) — 

Property and equipment, at cost $ 3,566,628  $ 1,155,725 

(p) Reflects a fair value adjustment of $41.4 million to the carrying value of the Second Lien Notes due to application of fresh start accounting.

(q) New deferred tax balances of $29.6 million were established for favorable contracts with customers due to application of fresh start accounting.
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(r) The following table summarizes the cumulative impact of the fresh start adjustments, as discussed above, the elimination of the Predecessor’s accumulated other
comprehensive loss, and the adjustments required to eliminate accumulated deficit:

Fair value adjustment to Prepaid and other current assets $ (10,073)

Fair value adjustment to Intangible assets 113,389 

Fair value adjustment to Property and equipment, net (2,410,903)

Fair value adjustment to Other assets (10,503)

Fair value adjustment to Other current liabilities 52,613 

Fair value adjustment to Long-term debt (41,446)

Fair value adjustment to Deferred income taxes (9,829)

Fair value adjustment to Other liabilities 26,405 

Derecognition of Predecessor Accumulated other comprehensive loss (57,904)

Total fresh start adjustments included in Reorganization items, net (2,348,251)

Tax impact of fresh start adjustments (19,721)

Net change in accumulated deficit $ (2,367,972)

(s) Reflects $57.9 million for the derecognition of Predecessor Accumulated other comprehensive loss through Reorganization items, net.

Note 4 — Acquisitions and Divestitures
Business Combination with Maersk Drilling
Noble’s business strategy in part includes growing by acquisition and as a result, we pursue and complete mergers, acquisitions, as well as dispositions of businesses or assets or
other strategic transactions that we believe will enable us to strengthen or broaden our business and achieve various efficiencies, cost-synergies, and economies of scale. This
strategy is evidenced by the 2021 Pacific Drilling Merger (as defined herein) and the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling completed in the fourth quarter of 2022.
On the Merger Effective Date, pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement, Noble Cayman merged with and into Merger Sub, with Merger Sub surviving the Merger as a
wholly owned subsidiary of Noble, and (i) each Noble Cayman Share issued and outstanding prior to the effective time of the Merger (the “Merger Effective Time Time”) was
converted into one newly and validly issued, fully paid, and non-assessable Ordinary Share of Noble and (ii) each Noble Cayman Warrant (as defined herein) issued and
outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time was converted automatically into a warrant to acquire a number of Ordinary Shares equal to the number of Noble
Cayman Shares underlying such warrant, with the same terms as were in effect immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time under the terms of the applicable Noble Cayman
Warrant Agreement (as defined herein) (collectively, the “Warrants”). In addition, each award of restricted share units representing the right to receive Noble Cayman Shares, or
value based on the value of Noble Cayman Shares (each, a “Noble Cayman RSU Award”), outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time ceased to represent a right to
acquire Noble Cayman Shares (or value equivalent to Noble Cayman Shares) and was converted into the right to acquire, on the same terms and conditions as were applicable
under the Noble Cayman RSU Award (including any vesting conditions), that number of Ordinary Shares equal to the number of Noble Cayman Shares subject to such Noble
Cayman RSU Award immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time. As a result of the Merger, Noble became the ultimate parent of Noble Cayman and its respective subsidiaries
effective as of the Merger Effective Time.

On the Closing Date, pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement, Noble completed the Offer and because Noble acquired more than 90% of the issued and outstanding
Maersk Drilling Shares, Noble redeemed all remaining Maersk Drilling Shares not exchanged in the Offer for, at the election of the holder, either Ordinary Shares or cash (or, for
those holders that do not make an election, only cash), under Danish law by way of the Compulsory Purchase. The Compulsory Purchase was completed in early November 2022,
at which time Maersk Drilling became a wholly owned subsidiary of Noble. After the close of the Business Combination, Maersk Drilling was contributed by Noble to Finco in a
common control transaction.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Noble. After the close of the Business Combination, Maersk Drilling was contributed by Noble to Noble Finance Company, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability (“Finco”), in a common control transaction.

In connection with the Offer and the Compulsory Purchase, each Maersk Drilling Share was exchanged for either (i) 1.6137 newly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable
Ordinary Shares (the “Exchange Ratio”) or (ii) cash consideration (payable in DKK). The Offer was subject to a cash consideration cap per Maersk Drilling shareholder of $1,000
and an aggregate cap on cash consideration payable to all Maersk Drilling shareholders of $50 million. $50  million. Consequently, in relation to the Offer, Maersk Drilling
shareholders who elected to receive cash consideration in the Offer received, as applicable, (i) $1,000 for the applicable portion of their Maersk Drilling Shares and the balance of
Maersk Drilling Shares in Ordinary Shares in accordance with the Exchange Ratio or (ii) the amount corresponding to the total holding of their Maersk Drilling Shares if such holding
of Maersk Drilling Shares represented a value equal to or less than $1,000 in the aggregate. The Compulsory Purchase was not subject to a cash consideration cap per holder or an
aggregate cap for cash consideration.

In addition, each Maersk Drilling restricted stock unit award (a “Maersk Drilling RSU Award”) that was outstanding immediately prior to the acceptance time of the Offer (the
“Acceptance Time”) was exchanged, at the Acceptance Time, with the right to receive, on the same terms and conditions as were applicable under the Maersk Drilling RSU Long-
Term Incentive Programme for Executive Management 2019 and the Maersk Drilling RSU Long-Term Incentive Programme 2019 (including any vesting conditions), that number of
Ordinary Shares equal to the product of (i) the number of Maersk Drilling Shares subject to such Maersk Drilling RSU Award immediately prior to the Acceptance Time and (ii) the
Exchange Ratio, with any fractional Maersk Drilling Shares rounded to the nearest whole share. Upon such exchange, Maersk Drilling RSU Awards ceased to represent a right to
receive Maersk Drilling Shares (or value equivalent to Maersk Drilling Shares).
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In September 2021, eligible Maersk Drilling employees signed an addendum to their existing service agreements that provides for enhanced severance terms in the event of
termination as well as a retention bonus (“Deal Completion Bonus”) to be paid irrespective of termination if a transaction with Noble were to close (the “Retention Addendum”). The
Retention Addendum was entered into on September 20, 2021. The Deal Completion Bonus was paid on October 3, 2022, for five Maersk executives terminated immediately upon
close and on October 31, 2022, for all other eligible individuals.

Purchase Price Allocation
The Business Combination has been accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting under ASC Topic 805, Business Combination, with Noble being treated as the
accounting acquirer. Under the acquisition method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of Maersk Drilling and its subsidiaries were recorded at their respective fair values on the
Closing Date. Total consideration for the acquisition was $2.0 billion, which included $5.6 million in net cash paid and $2.0 billion in non-cash consideration, primarily related to
Noble shares Ordinary Shares issued to legacy Maersk shareholders and the replacement of legacy Maersk Drilling RSU Awards.

Determining the fair values of the assets and liabilities of Maersk Drilling and the consideration paid required judgment and certain assumptions to be made. The most significant fair
value estimates related to the valuation of Maersk Drilling’s mobile offshore drilling units and other related tangible assets and the fair value of drilling contracts and other
intangibles.

Offshore Drilling Units. The valuation of Maersk Drilling’s mobile offshore drilling units was determined using either (i) the discounted cash flows expected to be generated from the
drilling assets over their remaining useful lives or (ii) the cost to replace the drilling assets as adjusted by the current market for similar offshore drilling assets. Assumptions used in
our assessment included, but were not limited to, future marketability of each unit in light of the current market conditions and its current technical specifications, timing of future
contract awards and expected operating dayrates, operating costs, rig utilization rates, tax rates, discount rate, capital expenditures, synergies, market values, estimated economic
useful lives of the rigs and, in certain cases, our belief that a drilling unit is no longer marketable and is unlikely to return to service in the near to medium term.

Compulsory Purchase. Noble redeemed all of the remaining 4.1 million shares of Maersk Drilling Shares not exchanged in the Offer for, at the election of the holder, either
Ordinary Shares or cash (or, for those holders that did not make an election, only cash), as required under Danish law by way of the Compulsory Purchase. The Company
recognized the Compulsory Purchase as a redeemable interest at fair value upon the closing of the Business Combination. The Company determined that the fair value of the
Compulsory Purchase was $193.7 million utilizing inputs which included Noble share price and cash redemption amount as of the Closing Date. The Compulsory Purchase interest
was derecognized in mid-November 2022, with a portion being offset to common stock when 4.1 million Ordinary Shares were issued, additional paid in capital of $123.8 million and
the remainder being the amount paid in cash of $69.9 million.
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Maersk Drilling Debt. On December 22, 2022, Maersk Drilling, as borrower, Noble Corporation plc, as parent guarantor, certain subsidiaries of Maersk Drilling party thereto, as
guarantors, entered into a term loan (the “DNB Credit Facility”) under a term facility agreement, dated as of December 22, 2022 (as amended or otherwise modified from time to
time), with DNB Bank ASA, New York Branch, as agent and security agent, and the other lenders party thereto. In connection with the Business Combination, the Company
guaranteed the DNB Credit Facility and the DSF Credit Facility. The DSF Credit Facility had a floating interest rate that fluctuated based on market rates, thus fair
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value approximated the carrying amount. In November 2022, the outstanding loans under the DNB Credit Facility were fully extinguished at par value with no pre-payment penalties,
with fair value approximating the carrying amount, and was replaced with the New DNB Credit Facility (as defined in “Note 8 — Debt”). On February 23, 2023, the remaining amount
under the DSF Credit Facility was paid in full using cash on hand. On April 18, 2023, we repaid all outstanding borrowings under the New DNB Credit Facility. For additional
information on the credit facilities see “Note 8 6 — Debt.”

Maersk Drilling Off-market Contracts. The Company recorded, with the assistance of external valuation specialists, intangible assets and liabilities from drilling contracts that had
favorable and unfavorable terms compared to the current market which were recorded on the Closing Date. The Company recognized the fair value adjustments as off-market
contract assets and liabilities recorded in “Intangible assets” and “Noncurrent contract liabilities,” respectively.

The following table represents the allocation of the total purchase price of Maersk Drilling to the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on the fair values as of
the Closing Date. In connection with this acquisition, the Company incurred $33.1  million $24.9 million, $34.1 million, and $33.1 million of acquisition related costs during the
year years ended December 31, 2022 (zero during the year ended December 31, 2023). December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. The results of Maersk Drilling operations
were included in the Company’s results of operations effective on the Closing Date. The Business Combination resulted in a gain on bargain purchase due to the estimated fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired exceeding the purchase consideration transferred by $5.0 million $5.0 million and is shown as a gain on bargain purchase on Noble’s
Consolidated Statement of Operations. Management reviewed the Maersk Drilling assets acquired and liabilities assumed as well as the assumptions utilized in estimating their fair
values. Upon completion of our assessment as of September 30, 2023, the Company concluded that recording a gain on bargain purchase was appropriate and required under US
GAAP.
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Purchase price consideration:

Fair value of Noble shares Ordinary Shares transferred to legacy Maersk shareholders $ 1,793,351 

Cash paid to legacy Maersk shareholders 887 

Fair value of replacement Maersk Drilling RSU Awards attributable to the purchase price 6,780 

Deal Completion Bonus 6,177 

Fair Value of Compulsory Purchase 193,678 

Total purchase price consideration $ 2,000,873 

Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 172,205 

Accounts receivable, net 250,251 

Taxes receivable (1) 18,987 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1) 43,168 

Total current assets 484,611 

Intangible assets 22,991 

Property, plant, and equipment, net 2,756,096 

Other assets (1) 94,882 

Total assets acquired 3,358,580 

Liabilities assumed:

Current maturities of long-term debt 129,130 

Accounts payable 130,273 

Accrued payroll and related costs (1) 23,884 

Taxes payable (1) 29,219 

Interest payable 800 

Other current liabilities (1) 44,253 

Total current liabilities 357,559 

Long-term debt 596,692 

Deferred income taxes 4,071 

Noncurrent contract liabilities 237,703 

Other liabilities (1) 156,677 

Total liabilities assumed 1,352,702 

Net assets acquired 2,005,878 

Gain on bargain purchase (1) (5,005)

Purchase price consideration $ 2,000,873 

(1) During the nine months ended September 30, 2023, the Company recorded tax adjustments, which resulted in a net decrease to in current taxes receivable and current
taxes payable of $1.6 million and $9.0 million, respectively, a net increase to in deferred tax assets of $25.2 million, a net increase to in other current liabilities of $3.0 million,
a net increase to in reserves for uncertain tax positions of $13.1 million, and a net decrease to in other tax liabilities of $14.6 million. Other adjustments were made to
remeasure certain payroll tax related balances. As a result of the aforementioned adjustments, initial goodwill recognized on the purchase was revised to a gain on bargain
purchase.
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Maersk Drilling Revenue and Net Income
The following table represents Maersk Drilling’s revenue and earnings included in Noble’s Consolidated Statements of Operations subsequent to the Closing Date of the Business
Combination.
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Period From

October 3, 2022

from October 3, 2022, through

December 31, 2022  December 31,

2022

Revenue $ 341,490 

Net loss $ 21,690 

Pro Forma Financial Information
The following unaudited pro forma summary presents the results of operations as if the Business Combination had occurred on February 6, 2021. The pro forma summary uses
estimates and assumptions based on information available at the time. Management believes the estimates and assumptions to be reasonable; however, actual results may have
differed significantly from this pro forma financial information. The pro forma information does not reflect any synergy savings that might have been achieved from combining the
operations and is not intended to reflect the actual results that would have occurred had the companies actually been combined during the periods presented.

Twelve Months Ended December

31, 2022

Period from February 6, 2021 through

December 31, 2021

Revenue $ 2,218,117  $ 1,924,013 

Net income (loss) $ (19,246) $ 455,928 

Net income (loss) per share

Basic $ (0.14) $ 3.58 

Diluted $ (0.14) $ 3.46 

Twelve Months Ended December

31, 2022

Revenue $ 2,218,117 

Net income (loss) $ (19,246)

Net income (loss) per share

Basic $ (0.14)

Diluted $ (0.14)

The pro forma results include, among others, (i) a reduction in to Maersk Drilling’s historically reported depreciation expense related to adjustments of property and equipment
values, (ii) adjustments to reflect certain acquisition related costs incurred directly in connection with the Business Combination as if it had occurred on February 6, 2021, (iii) an
adjustment to reflect the gain on sale as if the Rig Transaction (discussed below) had occurred on February 6, 2021, and (iv) net adjustments to increase contract drilling services
revenue related to off-market customer contract assets and liabilities recognized in connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling on a pro forma basis.

Rig Transaction
On June 23, 2022, Noble and Shelf Drilling (North Sea), Ltd. and Shelf Drilling, Ltd. (together “Shelf Drilling”) entered into the sale by Noble and the purchase by Shelf Drilling of five
jackup rigs known as the Noble Hans Deul, Noble Houston Colbert, Noble Lloyd Noble, Noble Sam Hartley, and Noble Sam Turner and all related support and infrastructure
(collectively, and together with the related offshore and onshore personnel and related operations, the “Divestment Business”). On October 5, 2022, Noble and Shelf Drilling
completed the sale (the “Rig Transaction”) as part of the Business Combination. The Rig Transaction addressed the potential concerns identified by the UK Competition and
Markets Authority of the Business Combination and was approved by them in September 2022.

In connection with the Rig Transaction, the Divestment Business was transferred by Noble to Shelf Drilling for a purchase price of $375 million in cash which resulted in a gain of
$85.1 million. As of the date of the Rig Transaction, Shelf Drilling gained control of the Noble Lloyd Noble. For a transition period following the completion of the Rig Transaction,
Noble agreed to continue to operate the Noble Lloyd Noble under operating agreements with Shelf Drilling (the “NLN Charter Agreement”) and to provide certain other transition
services to Shelf Drilling. Under the operating agreements, we agreed to remit the collections from our customers under the associated drilling contracts to Shelf Drilling, and Shelf
Drilling agreed to reimburse us for our direct costs and expenses incurred while operating the Noble Lloyd Noble on behalf of Shelf Drilling (with certain exceptions). As of December
31, 2023, the NLN Charter Agreement is closed and the Noble Lloyd Noble is no longer operated by Noble.
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Pacific Drilling Merger
On April 15, 2021, the Company purchased Pacific Drilling Company LLC (“Pacific Drilling”), an international offshore drilling contractor, in an all-stock transaction (the “Pacific
Drilling Merger”). Pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated March 25, 2021, (the “Pacific Drilling Merger Agreement”), (i) each
membership interest in Pacific Drilling was converted into the right to receive 6.366 Noble Cayman Shares and (ii) each of Pacific Drilling’s warrants outstanding immediately prior to
the effective time of the Pacific Drilling Merger was converted into the right to receive 1.553 Noble Cayman Shares. As part of the transaction, Pacific Drilling’s equity holders
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received 16.6 million Noble Cayman Shares, or approximately 24.9% of the outstanding Noble Cayman Shares, and Noble Cayman Penny Warrants at closing. In connection with
this acquisition, the Company acquired seven floaters and subsequently sold two floaters in June 2021 for net proceeds of $29.7 million. In connection with this acquisition, the
Company incurred $15.9 million of acquisition related costs during the period from February 6 through December 31, 2021. The results of Pacific Drilling’s operations are included in
the Company’s results of operations effective April 15, 2021.

Purchase Price Allocation
The transaction has been accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting under ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations, with Noble Cayman being treated as the
accounting acquirer. As of March 31, 2022, we completed our fair value assessments of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with no changes from our preliminary allocation
reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021. Under the acquisition method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of Pacific Drilling and its
subsidiaries have been recorded at their respective fair values as of the date of completion of the Pacific Drilling Merger and added to the Company’s.

Determining the fair values of the assets and liabilities of Pacific Drilling and the consideration paid required judgment and certain assumptions to be made, the most significant of
these being related to the valuation of Pacific Drilling’s mobile offshore drilling units and other related tangible assets and the fair value of the Noble Cayman Shares issued by
Noble Cayman. The valuation of the Pacific Drilling’s mobile offshore drilling units was determined by using a combination of (i) the discounted cash flows expected to be generated
from the drilling assets over their remaining useful lives and (ii) the cost to replace the drilling assets, as adjusted by the current market for similar offshore drilling assets.
Assumptions used in our assessment included, but were not limited to, future marketability of each unit in light of the current market conditions and its current technical
specifications, timing of future contract awards and expected operating dayrates, operating costs, utilization rates, tax rates, discount rate, capital expenditures, market values,
weighting of market values, reactivation costs, estimated economic useful lives and, in certain cases, our belief that a drilling unit is no longer marketable and is unlikely to return to
service in the near to medium term. We included an allocation for corporate overhead when calculating the discounted cash flows expected to be generated from our drilling assets
over their remaining useful lives. The cash flows were discounted at our WACC, which was derived from a blend of our after-tax cost of debt and our cost of equity, and computed
using public share price information for similar offshore drilling market participants, certain US Treasury rates, and certain risk premiums specific to the Company. The inputs and
assumptions related to these assets are categorized as Level Note 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

As Noble Cayman was not yet trading on the New York Stock Exchange at the time of the Pacific Drilling Merger, the valuation of the Noble Cayman Shares issued by Noble
Cayman as consideration required an analysis of the discounted cash flows expected to be generated by the drilling assets of the combined entity. These discounted cash flows
were derived utilizing many of the same types of assumptions as were used in the valuation of the Company’s drilling assets at emergence as well the Pacific Drilling assets. In
addition, the discounted cash flows of the combined entity considered annual cost saving synergies from the operation of Noble Cayman and Pacific Drilling assets as a single fleet,
and were accordingly discounted at a market participant WACC for the combined entity. Lastly, the valuation of the Noble Cayman Shares considered the fair value of debt,
warrants, and the management incentive plan of the combined entity to arrive at the fair value of common equity. The inputs and assumptions related to the value of Noble Cayman
Shares are also categorized as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

The Pacific Drilling Merger resulted in a gain on bargain purchase due to the estimated fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired exceeding the purchase consideration
transferred by $62.3 million and is shown as a gain on bargain purchase on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. Management reviewed the Pacific Drilling
assets acquired and liabilities assumed as well as the assumptions utilized in estimating their fair values. Upon completion of our assessment, the Company concluded that
recording a gain on bargain purchase was appropriate and required under US GAAP. The bargain purchase was a result of a combination of factors, including a prolonged downturn
in the drilling industry which led to challenging fundamentals for many competitors in the offshore drilling sector. The Company believes

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

the seller was motivated to complete the transaction as the emerging market dynamics do not appear to be favorable to smaller rig fleets which operate across multiple regions.

The following table represents the allocation of the total purchase price of Pacific Drilling to the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on the fair values as of
the acquisition date.

Consideration:

Pacific Drilling membership interests outstanding 2,500 

Exchange Ratio 6.366  15,915 

Pacific Drilling warrants outstanding 441 

Exchange Ratio 1.553  685 

Noble Cayman Shares issued 16,600 

Fair value of Noble Cayman Shares on April 15, 2021 $ 21.55 

Total consideration $ 357,662 

Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,970 

Accounts receivable 17,457 

Taxes receivable 1,585 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 14,081 

Total current assets 88,093 
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Property and equipment, net 346,167 

Assets held for sale 30,063 

Other assets 457 

Total assets acquired 464,780 

Liabilities assumed:

Accounts payable 18,603 

Accrued payroll and related costs 16,128 

Taxes payable 1,951 

Other current liabilities 2,900 

Total current liabilities 39,582 

Deferred income taxes 798 

Other liabilities 4,433 

Total liabilities assumed 44,813 

Net assets acquired $ 419,967 

Gain on bargain purchase 62,305 

Purchase price consideration $ 357,662 
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Pacific Drilling Revenue and Net Income
The following table represents Pacific Drilling’s revenue and earnings included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations subsequent to the closing of the Pacific
Drilling Merger.

Successor

Period From

February 6, 2021

through

December 31, 2021

Revenue $ 94,506 

Net loss $ (46,646)

Pro Forma Financial Information
The following unaudited pro forma summary presents the results of operations as if the Pacific Drilling Merger had occurred on February 6, 2021. The pro forma summary uses
estimates and assumptions based on information available at the time. Management believes the estimates and assumptions to be reasonable; however, actual results may have
differed significantly from this pro forma financial information. The pro forma information does not reflect any synergy savings that might have been achieved from combining the
operations and is not intended to reflect the actual results that would have occurred had the companies actually been combined during the periods presented.

Successor

Period From

February 6, 2021

through

December 31, 2021

Revenue $ 792,999 

Net income $ 69,966 

Net income per share

Basic $ 1.05 

Diluted $ 0.98 

The pro forma results include, among others, (i) a reduction in Pacific Drilling’s historically reported depreciation expense for adjustments to property and equipment and (ii) an
adjustment to reflect the gain on bargain purchase as if the Pacific Drilling Merger had occurred on February 6, 2021.

Sale of Rigs in Saudi Arabia
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On August 25, 2021, Finco and certain subsidiaries of the Company entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Purchase and Sale Agreement”) to sell the jackup rigs
operated by the Company in Saudi Arabia to ADES International Holding Limited (“ADES”) for a purchase price of $292.4 million in cash. Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase and
Sale Agreement, the jackups, the Noble Roger Lewis, Noble Scott Marks, Noble Joe Knight, and Noble Johnny Whitstine, together with certain related assets, were sold to ADES.
The closing of the sale occurred in November 2021 and the Company recognized a gain of $185.9 million, net of transaction costs, in the fourth quarter of 2021 associated with the
disposal of these assets.

Note 5 — Merger and Integration Costs
In connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling and the Pacific Drilling Merger, the Company incurred expenses directly attributable to its merger and integration
activities. During the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company incurred $109.4 million, $60.3 million, and $84.7 million, respectively, of
merger and integration costs primarily in connection directly attributable to its merger and integration activities associated with the Business Combination business combinations with
Diamond Offshore and Maersk Drilling. Merger and integration costs consisted primarily of transaction-related acquisition costs, costs related to integration activities, severance
costs, retention costs, professional fees, and other costs such as share-based compensation charges that are directly attributable to these activities. All merger and integration costs
were expensed as incurred and recorded under “Merger and integration costs.”

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

Most merger and integration costs do not qualify for special accounting treatment as exit or disposal activities; however, during the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company
incurred $4.1  million related to certain employee compensation that qualifies as exit or disposal activities. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company incurred
$0.8 million related to certain employee compensation that qualifies as exit or disposal activities.

In connection with these activities, Noble has incurred various costs associated with contractual termination benefits, including severance, accelerated vesting of share-based
compensation and other expenses. These termination benefits have been accounted for under ASC 712, “Compensation - Nonretirement Postemployment Post-Employment
Benefits” and ASC 718, “Compensation - Stock Compensation.”

Note 64 — Income (Loss) Per Share
The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6,

2021

January 1,

2021

Year

Ended

Year

Ended

Year

Ended through through

Year

Ended

Year

Ended

December 31,

2023

December 31,

2022

December 31,

2021

February 5,

2021

December 31,

2024

December 31,

2023

December 31,

2022

Numerator: Numerator:  

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss)

Denominator: Denominator:  

Weighted average shares outstanding — basic

Weighted average shares outstanding — basic

Weighted average shares outstanding — basic

Dilutive effect of share-based awards

Dilutive effect of warrants

Dilutive effect of compulsory purchase
(1)

Weighted average shares outstanding
— diluted

Per share data

Basic

Basic
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Per share data:  

Basic

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss)

Diluted

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss)

(1)    Represents the dilutive effect on outstanding shares between when the Compulsory Purchase interest was recorded on the Closing Date and when it was derecognized in
mid-November 2022.
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Only those items having a dilutive impact on our basic loss income per share are included in diluted loss income per share. The following table displays the share-based instruments
that have been excluded from diluted income or loss per share since the effect would have been anti-dilutive:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended through through

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

Share-based awards —  —  —  556 

Warrants (1) 2,774  2,774  11,097  — 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Warrants (1) 2,774  2,774  2,774 

(1)    Represents the total number of warrants outstanding which did not have a dilutive effect. In periods where the warrants are determined to be dilutive, the number of shares
which will be included in the computation of diluted shares is determined using the Treasury Stock Method, adjusted for mandatory exercise provisions under the warrant
agreements if applicable.
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Note 75 — Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, at cost, for Noble consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2023 2022

2024 2023

Drilling equipment and facilities

Construction in progress

Other

Property and equipment, at cost

Capital additions, including capitalized interest, during the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 the period from February 6 through December 31,
2021 totaled $520.3 million, $454.3 million, and the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021, totaled $454.3 million, $193.6 million, $159.9 million, and $10.3 million,
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respectively. Capitalized interest was zero during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and $2.0 million and zero during the period from February 6 through
December 31, 2021, and the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021, respectively.

As During 2024, we sold the Noble Explorer for total proceeds of December 31, 2023, $25.0 million, $21.5 million of which was received in the rig fourth quarter of 2023, resulting in a
pre-tax gain of $17.4 million. Also, during 2024, we sold the Ocean Valiant Noble Explorer and the qualified as held Ocean Onyx for sale total proceeds of $5.6 million and was
included in “Other assets” on our Consolidated Balance Sheet at its carrying value of $3.4 million. $5.2 million, respectively.

During 2022, we sold the Divestment Business as part of the Rig Transaction for total net proceeds of $366.8 million, resulting in a gain of $85.1 million, and the Noble Clyde
Boudreaux for total net proceeds of $14.2 million, resulting in a gain of $6.8 million.

Note 86 — Debt
Emergence Revolving Credit Facility
On the Emergence Effective Date, Finco and Noble International Finance Company (“NIFCO”) entered into a senior secured revolving credit agreement (the “Emergence Revolving
Credit Agreement”) providing for a $675.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Emergence Revolving Credit Facility”) and cancelled all debt that existed immediately
prior to the Emergence Effective Date. The Emergence Revolving Credit Facility had a maturity date of July 31, 2025. As of the Emergence Effective Date, $177.5 million of loans
were outstanding, and $8.8 million of letters of credit were issued, under the Emergence Revolving Credit Facility.

Amended and Restated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement
In April 2023, Noble entered into the Amended and Restated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2023, and as amended on June 24, 2024 (the “2023
Revolving Credit Agreement”), by and among Noble Finance II LLC (“Noble Finance II”), Noble International Finance Company, Noble Drilling A/S, and certain additional
subsidiaries of Noble amended Finance II as from time to time designated by Noble Finance II, as borrowers, the lenders and restated issuing banks party thereto from time to time,
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, collateral agent, and security trustee. The revolving credit facility under the Emergence Revolving Credit Agreement by
entering into the 2023 (the “2023 Revolving Credit Agreement and the facility thereunder, the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility. The 2023 Revolving Credit Facility Facility”) provides for
commitments of $550.0 million with maturity in 2028. The guarantors (the “Guarantors”) under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility are the same subsidiaries of Noble Finance II that
are or will be guarantors of the 2030 Notes (as defined below). As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, we had no borrowings outstanding and $7.4 $24.8 million of letters of
credit issued under the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement.

All obligations of the Borrowers under the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement, certain cash management obligations, certain letter of credit obligations and certain swap obligations
are unconditionally guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by Noble Finance II and certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries (the guarantors, and together (together with the
Borrowers, the “Credit Parties”), including a guarantee by each Borrower of the obligations of each other Borrower under the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement. All such obligations,
including the guarantees of the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, are secured by senior priority liens on substantially all assets of, and the equity interests in, each Credit Party,
including substantially all rigs owned by subsidiaries of Noble as of the date of the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement, along with certain other rigs in the future such
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that collateral rigs shall generate at least 80% of the total revenue of all rigs owned by Noble Finance II and its restricted subsidiaries and the ratio of the aggregate rig value of the
collateral rigs to the commitments under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility is at least 5.00 to 1.00, in each case, subject to certain exceptions and limitations described in the 2023
Revolving Credit Agreement.

The loans outstanding under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at a rate per annum equal to the applicable margin plus, at Noble Finance II’s option, either: (i) the Term
SOFR Rate (as defined in the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement)
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plus 0.10% (subject to a 0.00% floor); or (ii) a base rate, determined as the greatest of (x) the prime loan rate as published in the Wall Street Journal, (y) the NYFRB Rate (as
defined in the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement) plus 1/2 of 1%, and (z) the one-month Term SOFR Rate plus 0.10% (subject to a 0.00% floor) plus 1%. The applicable margin is
initially 2.75% per annum for Term SOFR Rate loans and 1.75% per annum for base rate loans and will range based on the Consolidated Total Net Leverage Ratio (as defined in the
2023 Revolving Credit Agreement, which allows for certain cash netting depending on the amount of loans and letters of credit outstanding under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility
at the time of calculation), from 2.75% per annum to 3.75% per annum for Term SOFR Rate loans and 1.75% per annum to 2.75% per annum for base rate loans. The Borrowers
are required to pay interest on (i) overdue principal at the rate equal to 2.00% per annum in excess of the applicable interest rate under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, to the
extent lawful, and (ii) overdue installments of interest, if any, without regard to any applicable grace period, at 2% in excess of the interest rate applicable to base rate loans, to the
extent lawful.

The Borrowers are required to pay a quarterly commitment fee to each lender under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, which accrues at a rate per annum equal to (i) during the
period from and including the effective date of the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement to and including the third anniversary of the effective date of the 2023 Revolving Credit
Agreement, 0.50% on the average daily unused portion of such each lender’s commitments under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, during the period from and including the
Effective Date to and including the third anniversary of the Effective Date, (ii) during the period from the third anniversary of the Effective Date effective date of the 2023 Revolving
Credit Agreement to and including the fourth anniversary of the Effective Date, a rate per annum equal to effective date of the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement, 0.75% on the
average daily unused portion of each lender’s commitments under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, and (iii) thereafter, a rate per annum equal to 1.00%.  on the average daily
unused portion of each lender’s commitments under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility. The Borrowers are also required to pay customary letter of credit and fronting fees.
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Borrowings under the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement may be used for working capital and other general corporate purposes. Availability of borrowings under the 2023 Revolving
Credit Facility is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, including that, after giving effect to any such borrowings and the application of the proceeds thereof, the aggregate
amount of Available Cash (as defined in the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement) would not exceed $250.0 million.

Mandatory prepayments and, under certain circumstances, commitment reductions are required under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility in connection with (i) certain asset sales
asset swaps and events of loss (subject to reinvestment rights if no event of default exists) and (ii) certain debt issuances. . Available Cash cash in excess of $250.0 million at the
end of any month is also required to be applied to prepay loans (without a commitment reduction). The loans under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility may be voluntarily prepaid,
and the commitments thereunder voluntarily terminated or reduced, by the Borrowers at any time without premium or penalty, other than customary breakage costs.

The 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement obligates Noble Finance II and its restricted subsidiaries to comply with the following financial covenants:

• as of the last day of each fiscal quarter, the Interest Coverage Ratio (as defined in the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement) is not permitted to be less than 2.50 to 1.00; and

• as of the last day of each fiscal quarter, the Consolidated Total Net Leverage Ratio is not permitted to be greater than 3.00 to 1.00.

The 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement contains other affirmative and negative covenants, representations and warranties and events of default that Noble views as customary for a
financing of this type. The occurrence of any event of default under the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement would permit all obligations under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility to be
declared due and payable immediately and all commitments thereunder to be terminated.

8.000% Senior Notes due 2030
On April 18, 2023, Noble Finance II, a wholly owned subsidiary of Noble, issued the $600.0 million in aggregate principal amount of its 8.000% Senior Notes due 2030 Notes. (the
“Initial 2030 Notes”). On August 22, 2024, Noble Finance II issued an additional $800.0 million in aggregate principal amount of its 8.000% Senior Notes due 2030 (the “Additional
2030 Notes”
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and, together with the Initial 2030 Notes, the “2030 Notes”) at a premium of 103% bringing the total outstanding principal amount to $1.4 billion. The 2030 Notes were issued
pursuant to an indenture, dated as of April 18, 2023 (as supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Noble Indenture”), among Noble Finance II, the subsidiaries of
Noble Finance II party thereto, (the “Guarantors”), as guarantors, and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee. trustee, paying agent, and registrar.

The 2030 Notes are unconditionally guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by the Guarantors and will be unconditionally guaranteed on the same basis by certain of Noble
Finance II’s future subsidiaries that guarantee certain indebtedness of Noble Finance II and the Guarantors, including the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility.

The 2030 Notes will mature on April 15, 2030, and interest on the 2030 Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on each April 15 and October 15, commencing October 15, 2023,
to holders of record on the April 1 and October 1 immediately preceding the related interest payment date, at a rate of 8.000% per annum.

At any time prior to April 15, 2026, Noble Finance II may, from time to time, redeem up to 40% of the aggregate principal amount of 2030 Notes at a redemption price of 108% of the
principal amount of the 2030 Notes redeemed, plus accrued
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and unpaid interest, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date (subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due on an interest payment
date that is on or prior to the redemption date), in an amount not greater than the net cash proceeds of one or more equity offerings by Noble Finance II, subject to certain
requirements. In addition, prior to April 15, 2026, Noble Finance II may redeem the 2030 Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2030 Notes
redeemed, plus an applicable make-whole premium and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date. At any time on or after April 15, 2026, Noble
Finance II may redeem all or part of the 2030 Notes at fixed redemption prices (expressed as percentages of the principal amount) beginning at 104.00% and decreasing thereafter,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date.

If a Change of Control Triggering Event (as defined in the indenture governing the 2030 Notes) Noble Indenture) occurs, each holder of 2030 Notes may require Noble Finance II to
repurchase all or any part of that holder’s 2030 Notes for cash at a price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2030 Notes repurchased, plus any accrued and
unpaid interest thereon, if any, to, but excluding, the date on which the notes 2030 Notes are repurchased (subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to
receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date).

The indenture governing the 2030 Notes contain Noble Indenture contains customary covenants and events of default.

Diamond Second Lien Notes due 2030
On September 21, 2023, Diamond Foreign Asset Company and Diamond Finance, LLC (collectively referred to as the “Issuers”) issued $550.0 million aggregate principal amount of
8.500% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due October 2030 (the “Diamond Second Lien Notes”) with interest payable semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 of each
year, beginning on April 1, 2024. The indenture governing Diamond Second Lien Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, on a senior secured basis by
Noble Offshore Drilling, Inc. (formerly known as Dolphin Merger Sub 2, Inc. and as successor by merger with Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc.) (“NODI”) and each of its existing
restricted subsidiaries (other than the 2030 Issuers) and by certain of NODI’s future restricted subsidiaries.

The Diamond Second Lien Notes contains a covenant that requires Noble Finance II to furnish to holders of the 2030 Notes certain financial information relating to Noble Finance
II obligate NODI and its restricted subsidiaries. subsidiaries to comply with an indenture dated as of September 21, 2023 (as supplemented and otherwise modified from time to time,
the “Diamond Second Lien Indenture”), among the Issuers, NODI, certain of its subsidiaries party thereto, as guarantors, and HSBC Bank USA, National Association, as trustee and
collateral agent. The obligation to furnish such information may be satisfied by providing financial information of Noble along with a description of the differences between such
information Diamond Second Lien Indenture contains covenants that, among other things, restrict NODI’s ability and the financial information ability of Noble Finance II certain of its
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subsidiaries to: (i) incur additional debt and its issue certain preferred stock; (ii) incur or create liens; (iii) make certain dividends, distributions, investments, and other restricted
subsidiaries on a standalone basis. As a result payments; (iv) sell or otherwise dispose of Noble conducting certain assets; (v) engage in certain transactions with affiliates; and (vi)
merge, consolidate, amalgamate, or sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise dispose of all, or substantially all, of its business through the assets of NODI and such subsidiaries taken as a
whole. These covenants are subject to important exceptions and qualifications.

Noble Finance II, the financial position and results of operations for Noble Finance II are the same as the information presented for Noble in all material respects, with
the exception of operating income (loss) and gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt. For the year ended December 31, 2023, Noble Finance II’s operating income (loss)
was $56.5 million higher, respectively, than that of Noble. The operating income (loss) difference is primarily a result of expenses related to corporate legal costs and
administration charges attributable to Noble for operations support and stewardship-related services.

Second Lien Notes
On the Emergence Effective Date, pursuant to the Backstop Commitment Agreement, dated October 12, 2020, among the Debtors and the backstop parties thereto, Noble Cayman
and Finco consummated the Rights Offering of the Second Lien Notes and associated Noble Cayman Shares at an aggregate subscription price of $200.0 million.
On April 18, 2023, we redeemed the remaining balance of approximately $173.7 million aggregate principal amount of outstanding Second Lien Notes notes using a portion of the
proceeds from the offering of the Initial 2030 Notes, and recognized a loss of approximately $25.7 million.
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Diamond Credit Agreement
On September 4, 2024, in connection with the closing of the Diamond Transaction, Noble terminated Diamond’s $300.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility under the
Diamond Credit Agreement. The revolving commitments under the Diamond Credit Agreement were scheduled to mature on April 22, 2026. At the time of the Diamond Transaction
and the termination of the commitments under the Diamond Credit Agreement, Diamond had no outstanding borrowings under the Diamond Credit Agreement.

DNB Credit Facility and New DNB Credit Facility
Upon the Closing Date, Noble guaranteed the DNB Credit Facility and on December 22, 2022, it was terminated and replaced with the New DNB Credit Facility. Facility (“New DNB
Credit Facility”). On April 18, 2023, we repaid the $347.5 million of outstanding borrowings under the New DNB Credit Facility using a portion of the proceeds from the offering of the
2030 Notes, and recognized a loss of approximately $0.7 million.

DSF Credit Facility
The Company guaranteed a term loan (the “DSF Credit Facility”) under a term loan facility agreement, dated as of December 10, 2018 (as amended or otherwise modified from time
to time), among Maersk Drilling Holding A/S, Maersk Drilling A/S, the DSF Credit Facility subsidiaries of Maersk Drilling Holding A/S, and Danmarks Skibskredit A/S, as original
lender, agent, and security agent, in connection with the Business Combination and it with Maersk Drilling that closed on October 3, 2022. The DSF Credit Facility was repaid in full
and terminated on February 23, 2023, using cash on hand. The facility is no longer in place as of December 31, 2023.

Debt Open Market Repurchases
In the third and fourth quarter of 2022, we purchased $42.3 million aggregate principal amount of our Second Lien Notes for approximately $48.1 million, plus accrued interest, as
open market repurchases and recognized a loss of approximately $4.6 million.

Guarantees of Indebtedness
On the Closing Date of the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling, the following guarantees by Noble became effective: (i) a guarantee related the DNB Credit Facility, pursuant
to which Noble guarantees all of the obligations of Maersk Drilling and its subsidiaries party thereto in relation to the DNB Credit Facility and related financing documents, and (ii) a
guarantee related to the DSF Credit Facility, pursuant to which Noble guaranteed all of the obligations of Maersk Drilling and certain of its subsidiaries party thereto in relation
to under the DNB Credit Facility, the DSF Credit Facility, and related financing documents. On December 22, 2022, the
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DNB Credit Facility and related Noble guarantee were terminated and the New DNB Credit Facility was issued including the Company as parent guarantor. On February 23, 2023,
the DSF Credit Facility was repaid in full and the related Noble guarantee was terminated. On April 18, 2023, the DNB Credit Facility was repaid in full and the related Noble
guarantee was terminated.

Fair Value of Debt
Fair value represents the amount at which an instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. The estimated fair value of our debt instruments was
based on the quoted market prices for similar issues or on the current rates offered to us for debt of similar remaining maturities (Level 2 measurement). The fair values of
each value of the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility, the New DNB Credit Facility and the DSF Credit Facility approximates its respective carrying amount as its interest rate is variable
and reflective of market rates.

The following table presents the carrying value, net of unamortized debt issuance costs and discounts or premiums, and the estimated fair value of our total debt, not including the
effect of unamortized debt issuance costs, respectively:

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2023 2022

2024 2023
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Carrying

Value

Carrying

Value

Estimated Fair

Value

Carrying

Value

Estimated Fair

Value

Carrying


Value

Estimated Fair

Value

Carrying


Value

Estimated

Fair Value

Senior secured notes

8.000% Senior Notes due April 2030

8.000% Senior Notes due April 2030

8.000% Senior Notes due April 2030

11.000% Senior Notes due February 2028

8.500% Senior Secured Second Lien Notes due October 2030

Credit facility

Amended and Restated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility
matures April 2028

Amended and Restated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility
matures April 2028

Amended and Restated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility
matures April 2028

Term Loans

New DNB Credit Facility matures December 2025

New DNB Credit Facility matures December 2025

New DNB Credit Facility matures December 2025

DSF Credit Facility matures December 2023

Total debt

Less: Current maturities of long-term debt

Long-term debt
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Note 97 — Equity
Share Capital
Noble Cayman Share Capital.On the Emergence Effective Date, pursuant to the Plan, Noble Cayman issued 50 million Noble Cayman Shares. Subsequent to the Emergence
Effective Date, approximately 6.5 million Noble Cayman Shares were exchanged for Noble Cayman Penny Warrants to purchase up to approximately 6.5 million Noble Cayman
Shares, with an exercise price of $0.01 per share. Noble Cayman Shares issuable upon the exercise of Noble Cayman Penny Warrants were included in the number of outstanding
shares used for the computation of basic net loss per share prior to the exercise of those warrants. As of the Merger Effective Date, all Noble Cayman Penny Warrants had been
exchanged for Noble Cayman Shares and there were no Noble Cayman Penny Warrants remaining outstanding. On the Merger Effective Date, immediately prior to the Merger
Effective Time, Noble Cayman had approximately 70.4 million Noble Cayman Shares outstanding, as compared to approximately 60.2 million Noble Cayman Shares outstanding at
December 31, 2021. Pursuant to the Memorandum of Association of Noble Cayman, the share capital of Noble Cayman was $6,000 divided into 500,000,000 ordinary shares of a
par value of $0.00001 each and 100,000,000 shares of a par value of $0.00001, each of such class or classes having the rights as the Board of Directors of Noble Cayman (the
“Noble Cayman Board”) could determine from time to time.

In accordance with the Plan, all agreements, instruments and other documents evidencing, relating to or otherwise connected with any of Legacy Noble’s equity interests
outstanding prior to the Emergence Effective Date, including all equity-based awards, were cancelled and all such equity interests have no further force or effect after the
Emergence Effective Date. Pursuant to the Plan, the holders of Legacy Noble’s ordinary shares, par value $0.01 per share, outstanding

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

prior to the Emergence Effective Date received their pro rata share of the Noble Cayman Tranche 3 Warrants (as defined herein) to acquire Noble Cayman Shares.

Noble Share Capital. As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, there were approximately 140.8 million 158.9 million and 134.7 million 140.8 million Ordinary
Shares outstanding, respectively.

With respect to the Business Combination, at the Merger Effective Time, Noble issued 70.4 million Ordinary Shares to the former holders of Noble Cayman Shares. Further, at the
Merger Effective Time, Noble issued 14.5 million Warrants exercisable for Ordinary Shares to former holders of Noble Cayman Warrants (defined wherein). In connection with the
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completion of the Exchange Offer, Noble issued 60.1 million Ordinary Shares to the former holders of Maersk Drilling shares.

On September 4, 2024, Noble issued 24.2 million Ordinary Shares to the former shareholders of Diamond, in connection with the closing of the Diamond acquisition. Further, Noble
assumed all outstanding and unexercised warrants of Diamond, which were exercisable for 90 days from the effective time of the Diamond acquisition. As of December 4, 2024, the
warrants assumed from Diamond are no longer exercisable and have expired in accordance with their terms.

Additional changes to share capital occurred as a result of, among other actions, the vesting of restricted stock units and performance based restricted stock units to our employees
and directors, the cancellation of Ordinary Shares denoted as excess shares in the voluntary share exchange as a result of the Exchange Offer, the issuance of Ordinary Shares
pursuant to the exercise of warrants, and share repurchases under the Company’s authorized share repurchase plan.

In addition, as of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, 1.1 million 0.9 million Tranche 1 Warrants, 1.1 million 0.9 million Tranche 2 Warrants and 2.8 million Tranche 3 Warrants
were outstanding and exercisable. We also have 1.3 million 6.8 million Ordinary Shares authorized and reserved for issuance pursuant to equity awards under the Noble
Corporation plc 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Our most recent quarterly dividend, totaling approximately $56.4 million $79.7 million (or $0.40 $0.50 per share), was declared on October 31, 2023 November 5, 2024, and paid on
December 14, 2023 December 19, 2024, to shareholders of record at close of business on November 15, 2023 December 5, 2024. During the year years ended December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024, and 2023, we declared dividends of approximately $278.3 million and $101.8 million (or $1.80 and $0.70 per share cumulatively), respectively, and made
cash dividend payments of approximately $277.8 million and $98.8 million. , respectively. Approximately $3.5 million and $3.0 million was accrued related to dividend equivalent
rights as of December 31, 2023. December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The declaration and payment of dividends require the authorization of the Board of Directors. Such may be paid only out of Noble’s “distributable reserves” as determined by
reference to relevant statutory accounts in accordance with English law. Therefore, Noble is not permitted to pay dividends out of share capital, which includes share premium. The
payment of future dividends will depend on our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, future business prospects, contractual and indenture restrictions, and
other factors deemed relevant by our Board. Board of Directors.

Share Repurchases
Under English law, the Company is only permitted to purchase its own Ordinary Shares by way of an “off-market purchase” pursuant to a contract approved by
shareholders. shareholders (except where the purchase is for the purposes of, or pursuant to, any employees’ share scheme). Such purchases may be paid for only either (i) out of
Noble’s “distributable reserves” as determined by reference to relevant statutory accounts in accordance with law. English law or (ii) from the proceeds of a fresh issue of shares
made for the purpose of financing the purchase. As of the date of this report, we have shareholder authority to repurchase up to 15% per annum of the issued share capital of the
Company as of the beginning of each fiscal year for a five-yearfive-year period commencing on September 28, 2022 (subject to an overall aggregate maximum of 20.6 million
Ordinary Shares). During the year years ended December 31, 2023, December 31, 2024 and 2023, we repurchased 8.4 million and 2.3 million of our Ordinary Shares which pursuant
to such authority. All repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled.

Warrants
On the Merger Effective Date, immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time, we had outstanding 6.2 million Noble Cayman Tranche 1 Warrants, 5.6 million Noble Cayman Tranche
2 Warrants and 2.8 million Noble Cayman Tranche 3 Warrants (together with the Noble Cayman Tranche 1 Warrants and the Noble Cayman Tranche 2 Warrants, the “Noble
Cayman Warrants”). At the Merger Effective Time, each Noble Cayman Warrant outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time was converted automatically into a
Warrant to acquire a number of Ordinary Shares equal to the number of
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Noble Cayman Shares underlying such Noble Cayman Warrant, with the same terms as were in effect immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time under the terms of the
applicable Noble Cayman Warrant Agreement.

The Tranche 1 Warrants of Noble (the “Tranche 1 Warrants”) are exercisable for one Ordinary Share per warrant at an exercise price of $19.27 per warrant, the Tranche 2 Warrants
of Noble (the “Tranche 2 Warrants”) are exercisable for one Ordinary Share per warrant at an exercise price of $23.13 per warrant, and the Tranche 3 Warrants of Noble (the
“Tranche 3 Warrants”) are exercisable for one Ordinary Share per warrant at an exercise price of $124.40 per warrant (in each case as may be adjusted from time to time pursuant
to the applicable Warrant Agreement). The Tranche 1 Warrants and the Tranche 2 Warrants are exercisable until 5:00 p.m., Eastern time, on February 4, 2028, and the Tranche 3
Warrants are exercisable until 5:00 p.m., Eastern time, on February 4, 2026. The Tranche 1 Warrants and the Tranche 2 Warrants have Black-Scholes protections, including in the
event of a Fundamental Transaction (as defined in the applicable warrant agreement). The Tranche 1 Warrants and the Tranche 2 Warrants also provide that while the Mandatory
Exercise Condition
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(as  (as defined in the applicable Warrant Agreement) set forth in the applicable Warrant Agreement has occurred and is continuing, Noble or the Required Mandatory Exercise
Warrantholders (as defined in the applicable Warrant Agreement) have the right and option (but not the obligation) to cause all or a portion of the Warrants to be exercised on a
cashless basis. In the case of Noble, under the Mandatory Exercise Condition, all of the Tranche 1 Warrants or the Tranche 2 Warrants (as applicable) would be exercised. In the
case of electing Required Mandatory Exercise Warrantholders, under the Mandatory Exercise Condition, all of their respective Tranche 1 Warrants or Tranche 2 Warrants (as
applicable) would be exercised. Mandatory exercises entitle the holder of each Warrant subject thereto to (i) the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of such Warrant
on a cashless basis and (ii) an amount payable in cash, Ordinary Shares or a combination thereof (in Noble’s sole discretion) equal to the Black-Scholes Value (as defined in the
applicable Warrant Agreement) with respect to the number of Ordinary Shares withheld upon exercise of such Warrant on a cashless basis. At December 31, 2023 December 31,
2024, the Mandatory Exercise Condition set forth in the Warrant Agreements for the Tranche 1 Warrants and the Tranche 2 Warrants was satisfied.
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In connection with the automatic conversion of the Noble Cayman Warrants into Warrants at the Merger Effective Time, (i) the Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement, dated as of February
5, 2021, by and among Noble Cayman, Computershare Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (together, “Computershare”), (ii) the Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement, dated as
of February 5, 2021, by and among Noble Cayman and Computershare, and (iii) the Tranche 3 Warrant Agreement, dated as of February 5, 2021, by and among Noble Cayman
and Computershare (collectively, the “Noble Cayman Warrant Agreements”) were terminated, and Noble entered into (a) a new Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement, dated as of the
Merger Effective Date, by and among Noble and Computershare, (b) a new Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement, dated as of the Merger Effective Date, by and among Noble and
Computershare, and (c) a new Tranche 3 Warrant Agreement, dated as of the Merger Effective Date, by and among Noble and Computershare (collectively, the “Warrant
Agreements”). The Warrant Agreements have substantially similar terms as were in effect immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time pursuant to the Noble Cayman Warrant
Agreements. Immediately following completion of the Business Combination, there were 14.5 million Warrants outstanding.

Noble Successor Share-Based Compensation Plans
Stock Plans. On February 18, 2021, subsequent to the Emergence Effective Date, Noble Cayman adopted the 2021 LTIP, which permitted grants of options, stock appreciation
rights, stock or stock unit awards, or cash awards, any of which may have been structured as a performance award, from time to time to employees and non-employee directors
who were to be granted awards under the 2021 LTIP, and authorized and reserved 7.7 million Noble Cayman Shares for equity incentive awards to be granted under such plan.

In connection with the Merger, on the Merger Effective Date, the Company adopted the Noble Corporation plc 2022 LTIP, Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2022 LTIP”), which permits
grants of options, stock appreciation rights, stock or stock unit awards, or cash awards, any of which may be structured as a performance award, from time to time to employees and
non-employee directors who are to be granted awards under the 2022 LTIP, and authorized and reserved approximately 5.9 million Ordinary Shares for equity incentive awards to
be granted under such plan. The Company assumed, under the 2022 LTIP, all outstanding awards granted under the 2021 LTIP, as well as any rights and obligations of Noble
Cayman thereunder. On the Merger Effective Date, each Noble Cayman RSU Award outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time ceased to represent a right to
acquire Noble Cayman Shares (or value equivalent to Noble Cayman Shares) and was converted into the right to acquire, on the same terms and conditions as were applicable
under the Noble Cayman RSU Award (including any vesting conditions), that number of Ordinary Shares equal to the number of Noble Cayman Shares subject to such Noble
Cayman RSU Award immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time.

The Company also approved the adoption, effective as of October 3, 2022, of (i) the Noble Corporation plc RSU Long-Term Incentive Programme Program for Executive
Management 2022 and (ii) the Noble Corporation plc RSU Long-Term Incentive Programme Program 2022, under which the Company assumed all outstanding awards of Maersk
Drilling granted under the Maersk Drilling RSU Long-Term Incentive Programme Program for Executive Management 2019 and the Maersk Drilling RSU Long-Term Incentive
Programme Program 2019, respectively. Each Maersk Drilling RSU Award that was outstanding immediately prior to the Acceptance Time was exchanged, at the Acceptance Time,
with the right to receive, on the same terms and conditions as were applicable under
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the Maersk Drilling RSU Long-Term Incentive Programme Program for Executive Management 2019 and the Maersk Drilling RSU Long-Term Incentive Programme Program 2019
(including any vesting conditions), that number of Ordinary Shares equal to the product of (i) the number of Maersk Drilling Shares subject to such Maersk Drilling RSU Award
immediately prior to the Acceptance Time and (ii) the Exchange Ratio, with any fractional Maersk Drilling Shares rounded to
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the nearest whole share. Upon such exchange, Maersk Drilling RSU Awards ceased to represent a right to receive Maersk Drilling Shares (or value equivalent to Maersk Drilling
Shares).

In addition to assuming any outstanding awards granted under the plans listed in the two preceding paragraphs (including the shares underlying such awards) and the award
agreements evidencing the grants of such awards, the Company assumed the remaining shares available for issuance under each applicable plan, including any awards granted to
the Company’s directors or executive officers, in each case subject to adjustments to such awards in the manner set forth in the Business Combination Agreement.

Effective May 21, 2024, shareholders of the Company approved an amendment to the 2022 LTIP which increased the maximum number of shares that may be issued under the
2022 LTIP to 10,688,623 Ordinary Shares.

On September 4, 2024, in connection with the closing of the acquisition of Diamond, the Company assumed the Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc. 2021 Long-Term Stock Incentive
Plan (the “Diamond LTIP”) and each Diamond RSU (as defined below) outstanding thereunder. Effective November 6, 2024, the Company also assumed the remaining shares
available for issuance under the Diamond LTIP which, after adjustments under the Diamond Merger Agreement, totaled 1,556,404 Ordinary Shares.

Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”). We awarded both Time Vested RSUs (“TVRSUs”) and Performance Vested RSUs (“PVRSUs”) under the 2021 LTIP, each of which were
assumed by the 2022 LTIP.

On the Merger Effective Date, each Noble Cayman RSU Award outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time ceased to represent a right to acquire Noble Cayman
Shares (or value equivalent to Noble Cayman Shares) and was converted into the right to acquire, on the same terms and conditions as were applicable under the Noble Cayman
RSU Award (including any vesting conditions), that number of Ordinary Shares equal to the number of Noble Cayman Shares subject to such Noble Cayman RSU Award
immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time.

On September 4, 2024, in connection with the closing of the acquisition of Diamond, each performance-vesting and time-vesting restricted stock unit covering shares of Diamond
(together "Diamond RSUs") held by key employees were assumed by Noble and represented the right to receive shares in Noble. The Diamond RSUs were assumed by Noble on
substantially the same terms and conditions (including vesting conditions) as applicable to the original Diamond RSUs prior to the closing of the acquisition.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that a Diamond RSU vested as of the acquisition (including any awards that vested as a result of a termination of employment at or
immediately after the acquisition), such awards were instead settled in cash or shares of Diamond, as applicable, immediately prior to the acquisition and any such shares of
Diamond were treated the same as other Diamond shares.

The TVRSUs generally vest over a three-year period. The number of PVRSUs which vest will depend on the degree of achievement of specified corporate performance criteria
generally over a three-year performance period. These criteria consist of market and performance based performance-based criteria. Dividend equivalent rights are accrued and
accumulated as dividends are declared, and payable upon vesting of the TVRSUs and PVRSUs.

The TVRSUs are valued on the date of award at our underlying share price. The total compensation expense for units that ultimately vest is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the service period. The shares and related nominal value are recorded when the RSU vests and additional paid-in capital is adjusted as the share-based compensation cost is
recognized for financial reporting purposes.

In 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021, 2022, 40% of the TVRSUs granted to non-employee directors will be settled in cash and accounted for as liability awards, which were valued on the
date of grant based on the estimated fair value of the Company’s share price. Under the fair value method for liability-classified awards, compensation expense is remeasured each
reporting period at fair value based upon the closing price of the Company’s Ordinary Shares.

Each PVRSU represents the right to receive Ordinary Shares at a future date based on our performance against specified targets. The ultimate number of shares issued and the
related compensation cost recognized is based on a comparison of
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the final performance metrics to the specified targets. For performance-based awards, compensation expense is recognized based on the number of Ordinary Shares expected to
be issued and the market price per Ordinary Share on the date of grant. Over the performance period, the number of shares expected to be issued is adjusted upward or downward
based upon the probability of achievement of the performance targets. The market-based PVRSUs awards are valued on the date of grant based on the estimated fair value.
Estimated fair value is determined based on numerous assumptions, including an estimate of the likelihood that our stock price performance will achieve the targeted thresholds and
the expected forfeiture rate. The fair value is calculated using a Monte Carlo Simulation Model. The assumptions used to value the PVRSUs market-based awards include historical
volatility and risk-free interest rates over a time period commensurate with the remaining term prior to vesting, as follows, for the respective grant dates:

Year Ended
Period from


February 6, 2021


through December 31, 2021December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

 

February 3,


2023

February 3,


2022

February 19,


2021

October 1,


2021

December 1,


2021

Valuation assumptions      

Expected volatility 83.0 % 74.8 % 50.0 % 92.2 % 95.1 %

Expected dividend yield — % — % — % — % — %

Risk-free interest rate 3.96 % 1.42 % 0.19 % 0.33 % 0.58 %

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

  January 26, 2024 February 3, 2023 February 3, 2022

Valuation assumptions:  

Expected volatility rate (1) 44.1 % 83.0 % 74.8 %

Risk-free interest rate 4.16 % 3.96 % 1.42 %

(1) Expected dividend yield is included in the model via its impact on the historical volatility rate, which is based on daily returns inclusive of dividends.

Additionally, similar assumptions were made for each of the companies included in the defined index and the peer group of companies in order to simulate the future outcome using
the Monte Carlo Simulation Model. For market-based awards, compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting terms.

A summary of the RSUs awarded during the periods indicated is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Equity-classified TVRSUs    

Units awarded 839,773  384,995  988,750 

Weighted-average award date fair value $ 40.54  $ 39.54  $ 27.85 

Weighted-average vesting period (years) 2.37 2.90 2.94

Liability-classified TVRSUs
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Units awarded 14,123  12,918  20,120 

Weighted-average award date fair value $ 44.34  $ 39.58  $ 31.25 

Weighted-average vesting period (years) 1.00 1.00 1.00

PVRSUs

Units awarded 257,574  223,635  295,372 

Weighted-average award date fair value $ 50.06  $ 45.88  $ 28.97 

Three-year performance period end date December 31 2026 2025 2024

During the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, we awarded 21,171, 19,376, and 30,180 shares equity-classified TVRSUs and 14,123, 12,918, and 20,120 shares
liability-classified TVRSUs, respectively, to our non-employee directors.
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A summary of the RSUs awarded during the periods indicated is as follows:

Year Ended
Period from


February 6, 2021


through December 31, 2021December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Equity-classified TVRSU    

Units awarded 384,480  988,750  1,735,843 

Weighted-average share price at award date $ 39.54  $ 27.85  $ 16.68 

Weighted-average vesting period (years) 2.90 2.94 2.94

Liability-classified TVRSU

Units awarded 12,574  20,120  52,364 

Weighted-average share price at award date $ 39.45  $ 31.25  16.76

Weighted-average vesting period (years) 1.00 1.00 2.81

PVRSU

Units awarded 223,635  295,372  1,457,842 

Weighted-average share price at award date $ 39.31  $ 25.57  $ 16.74 

Three-year performance period end date December 31 2025 2024 2023

Weighted-average award date fair value $ 59.01  $ 35.77  $ 20.82 

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the period from February 6, 2021, through December 31, 2021, we awarded 18,861, 30,180, and 78,546 shares equity-
classified TVRSUs and 12,574, 20,120, and 52,364 shares liability-classified TVRSUs, respectively, to our non-employee directors.

A summary of the status of non-vested RSUs at December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, and changes for the years then ended is presented below:

Equity-Classified

TVRSUs


Outstanding

Equity-Classified

TVRSUs


Outstanding

Weighted


Average


Award-

Date


Fair Value

PVRSUs

Outstanding (1)

(2)

Weighted


Average


Award-

Date


Fair Value

Equity-Classified

TVRSUs


Outstanding

Weighted


Average


Award

Date


Fair Value

PVRSUs

Outstanding (1) (2)

Weighted


Average


Award

Date


Fair Value

Non-vested RSUs at December 31,
2021

Awarded (3)

Vested (4)

Forfeited

Non-vested RSUs at December 31,
2022

Awarded

Vested

Forfeited

Non-vested RSUs at December 31,
2023

Awarded
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Vested

Forfeited

Non-vested RSUs at December 31,
2024

(1) For awards granted, during 2023, the number of PVRSUs shown equals the shares that would vest if the “target” level of performance is achieved. The minimum number of
convertible shares is zero and the “maximum” level of performance is 200% of the amounts shown.

(2) For awards granted during 2022, the minimum number of convertible shares is 36,929 and the “maximum” level of performance is 179% of the amounts shown.

(3) Includes approximately 477,785 shares of outstanding TVRSUs that were assumed upon the acquisition of Maersk Drilling. The weighted average grant date fair value on
the date of assumption was approximately $29.84 per share.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

(4) Includes approximately 336,993 shares of outstanding TVRSUs that vested upon the acquisition of Maersk Drilling. The weighted average vested share price on the
date of vesting was approximately $29.84 per share.

We granted 12,574 14,123 and 20,120 12,918 liability-classified TVRSUs at a weighted average grant date fair value of 39.45 $44.34 and 31.25, $39.58, during the years ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, 12,918 and 2,672 and
60,302 units vested, respectively, and no units were forfeited during either period. At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, we had 12,574 14,123 and
2,672 12,918 liability-classified TVRSUs outstanding with an associated total liability of $0.6 million $0.4 million and $24.6 thousand, $0.6 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, there was $14.5 22.7 million and $17.0 million $14.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the
equity-classified TVRSUs, to be recognized over a remaining weighted average period of 0.99 1.53 and 1.35 0.99 years, respectively. At December 31, 2023 In addition, at
December 31, 2024 and 2022, there was $56.4 thousand and $76.3 thousand2023, the immaterial amounts of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the liability-classified
TVRSUs  are to be recognized over a remaining weighted average period of 0.09 0.11 and 0.10 0.09 years, respectively.

At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, there was $12.6 million $11.3 million and $18.1 12.6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the
PVRSUs, to be recognized over a remaining weighted average period of 1.43 1.54 and 2.96 1.43 years, respectively. The total potential compensation for PVRSUs is recognized
over the service period regardless of whether the performance thresholds are ultimately achieved.

Share-based amortization recognized during the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, related to all restricted stock, excluding amounts included in
merger and integration costs, totaled $37.4 $27.9 million ($35.2 25.4 million net of income tax) and $29.9 37.4 million ($26.4 35.2 million net of income tax), respectively.

Predecessor Share-Based Compensation Plans
All outstanding shares and equity awards of Legacy Noble were cancelled as a result of the Chapter 11 Cases.

Stock Plans.During 2015, Legacy Noble shareholders approved a new equity plan, the Noble Corporation plc 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Legacy Noble Incentive Plan”),
which permitted grants of options, stock appreciation rights, stock or stock unit awards, or cash awards, any of which could be structured as a performance award, from time to time
to employees who were to be granted awards under the Legacy Noble Incentive Plan. Neither consultants nor non-employee directors were eligible for awards under the Legacy
Noble Incentive Plan. The Legacy Noble Incentive Plan replaced the Noble Corporation 1991 Stock Options and Restricted Stock Plan, as amended (the “1991 Plan”). The 1991
Plan was terminated, and equity awards were thereafter only made under the Legacy Noble Incentive Plan. Stock option awards previously granted under the 1991 Plan remained
outstanding in accordance with their terms until being cancelled as a result of the Chapter 11 Cases.

During the period from January 1, 2021, through February 5, 2021, the Legacy Noble Incentive Plan was restated and Legacy Noble shareholders approved amendments, primarily
to increase the number of Legacy Noble ordinary shares available for issuance as long-term incentive compensation under the Legacy Noble Incentive Plan by 8.7 million. The
maximum aggregate number of Legacy Noble ordinary shares that could be granted for any and all awards under the Legacy Noble Incentive Plan could not exceed 40.0 million
shares.
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Stock Options.Options had a term of 10 years, an exercise price equal to the fair market value of a share on the date of grant and generally would vest over a three-year period. A

summary of the status of stock options granted under the 1991 Plan and the changes during the period ended on February 5, 2021, are presented below:

  February 5, 2021
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Number of


Shares


Underlying


Options

Weighted


Average


Exercise


Price

Outstanding at beginning of period 556,155  $ 30.39 

Exercised —  — 

Expired or cancelled (556,155) 30.39 

Spin-off adjustment —  — 

Outstanding at end of period — 

Exercisable at end of period —  $ — 

The fair value of each option was estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes pricing model. The expected term of options granted represented the period of time that the
options were expected to be outstanding and was derived from historical exercise behavior, then current trends and values derived from lattice-based models. Expected volatilities
were based on implied volatilities of traded options on our shares, historical volatility of our shares, and other factors. The expected dividend yield was based on historical yields on
the date of grant. The risk-free rate was based on the US Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.

There were no non-vested stock option balances as of the Emergence Effective Date or any changes during the period from January 1, 2021, through February 5, 2021. No new
stock options were granted during the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021. There was no compensation cost recognized during the period from January 1 through
February 5, 2021, related to stock options.

Restricted Stock Units.We awarded both TVRSUs and PVRSUs under the Legacy Noble Incentive Plan. The TVRSUs generally vested over a three-year period. The number of
PVRSUs which would vest depended on the degree of achievement of specified corporate performance criteria over a three-year performance period. Depending on the date the
PVRSU was awarded, these criteria consisted of market-based criteria or market and performance-based criteria.

The TVRSUs were valued on the date of award at our underlying share price. The total compensation for units that ultimately vested was recognized over the service period. The
shares and related nominal value were recorded when the RSUs vested and additional paid-in capital was adjusted as the share-based compensation cost was recognized for
financial reporting purposes.

The market-based PVRSUs were valued on the date of grant based on the estimated fair value. Estimated fair value was determined based on numerous assumptions, including an
estimate of the likelihood that our stock price performance would achieve the targeted thresholds and the expected forfeiture rate. The fair value was calculated using a Monte Carlo
Simulation Model. The assumptions used to value the PVRSUs included historical volatility and risk-free interest rates over a time period commensurate with the remaining term
prior to vesting, as follows:

Additionally, similar assumptions were made for each of the companies included in the defined index and the peer group of companies in order to simulate the future outcome using
the Monte Carlo Simulation Model.

There were no RSUs granted during the period from January 1, 2021, through February 5, 2021, and we awarded zero shares to our non-employee directors.
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A summary of the status of non-vested RSUs at February 5, 2021, and changes during the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021, is presented below:

TVRSUs


Outstanding

Weighted


Average


Award-Date


Fair Value

PVRSUs

Outstanding (1)

Weighted


Average


Award-Date


Fair Value

Non-vested RSUs at January 1, 2021 (Predecessor) 2,362,500  $ 3.43  3,163,113  $ 3.22 

Awarded —  —  —  — 

Vested (61,050) 5.46  —  — 

Forfeited or cancelled (2,301,450) 3.37  (3,163,113) 3.22 

Non-vested RSUs at February 5, 2021 (Predecessor) —  $ —  —  $ — 

(1) For awards granted during 2020, the number of PVRSUs shown equals the shares that would vest if the “target” level of performance was achieved. The minimum
number of convertible shares was zero and the “maximum” level of performance was 200% of the amounts shown.

The total award-date fair value of TVRSUs vested during the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021, was $0.3 million.

Share-based amortization recognized during the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021, related to all restricted stock totaled $0.7 million ($0.7 million net of income tax).
During the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021, capitalized share-based amortization was zero.

Note 108 — Revenue and Customers
Disaggregation of Revenue
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The following table provides information about contract drilling revenue by rig types:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended through through Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Floaters

Jackups

Total

Contract Balances
Accounts receivable are recognized when the right to consideration becomes unconditional based upon contractual billing schedules. Payment terms on invoiced amounts are
typically 30 to 60 days. Customer contract assets and liabilities generally consist of deferred revenue and contract costs resulting from past transactions related to the provision of
services under contracts with customers. Current contract asset and liability balances are included in “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” and “Other current liabilities”,
respectively, and noncurrent contract assets and liabilities are included in “Other assets” and “Other liabilities”, respectively, on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Off-market
customer contract assets and liabilities have been recognized in connection with our emergence from Chapter 11 and the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling and are
included in “Intangible assets” and “Noncurrent contract liabilities”, respectively.
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The following table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Current customer contract assets

Noncurrent customer contract assets

Total customer contract assets

Current deferred revenue

Current deferred revenue

Current deferred revenue

Noncurrent deferred revenue

Total deferred revenue

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

Significant changes in the remaining performance obligation contract assets and the contract liabilities balances for the year ended December 31, 2023, December 31, 2024 and
2022, 2023, are as follows:


Contract Assets Contract Assets Contract Liabilities Contract Assets Contract Liabilities

Net balance at December 31, 2020 (Predecessor)

Net balance at December 31, 2021

Additions to deferred costs

Additions to deferred costs

Additions to deferred costs

Additions to deferred revenue

Amortization of deferred costs

Amortization of deferred costs

Amortization of deferred costs

Additions to deferred costs

Amortization of deferred revenue
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Additions to deferred revenue

Fresh start accounting revaluation

Total

Net balance at February 5, 2021 (Predecessor)

Net balance at February 5, 2021 (Predecessor)

Net balance at February 5, 2021 (Predecessor)

Net balance at February 6, 2021 (Successor)

Net balance at February 6, 2021 (Successor)

Net balance at February 6, 2021 (Successor)

Amortization of deferred costs

Amortization of deferred costs

Amortization of deferred costs

Additions to deferred costs

Amortization of deferred revenue

Additions to deferred revenue

Total

Net balance at December 31, 2021 (Successor)

Net balance at December 31, 2021 (Successor)

Net balance at December 31, 2021 (Successor)

Amortization of deferred costs

Amortization of deferred costs

Amortization of deferred costs

Additions to deferred costs

Amortization of deferred revenue

Additions to deferred revenue

Reclassification to held for sale and subsequent derecognition

Total

Net balance at December 31, 2022 (Successor)

Net balance at December 31, 2022 (Successor)

Net balance at December 31, 2022 (Successor)

Net balance at December 31, 2022

Net balance at December 31, 2022

Net balance at December 31, 2022

Additions to deferred costs

Additions to deferred costs

Additions to deferred costs

Additions to deferred revenue

Amortization of deferred costs

Amortization of deferred costs

Amortization of deferred costs

Additions to deferred costs

Amortization of deferred revenue

Additions to deferred revenue

Total

Net balance at December 31, 2023 (Successor)

Net balance at December 31, 2023 (Successor)

Net balance at December 31, 2023 (Successor)

Net balance at December 31, 2023

Net balance at December 31, 2023

Net balance at December 31, 2023

Additions to deferred costs

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2025 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

85/154

Additions to deferred costs

Additions to deferred costs

Additions to deferred revenue

Amortization of deferred costs

Amortization of deferred revenue

Total

Net balance at December 31, 2024

Net balance at December 31, 2024

Net balance at December 31, 2024

Contract Costs
Certain direct and incremental costs incurred for upfront preparation, initial rig mobilization and modifications are costs of fulfilling a contract and are recoverable. These recoverable
costs are deferred and amortized ratably to contract drilling expense as services are rendered over the initial term of the related drilling contract. Certain of our contracts include
capital rig enhancements used to satisfy our performance obligations.
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Future Amortization of Deferred Revenue
The following table reflects revenue expected to be recognized in the future related to deferred revenue, by rig type, at the end of the reporting period:

Year Ending December 31,

Year Ending December 31,

Year Ending December 31,

2024 2025 2026 2027 Total

Year Ended December 31,

Year Ended December 31,

Year Ended December 31,

2025 2026 2027 2028 Total

Floaters

Jackups

Total
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The revenue included above consists of expected mobilization, demobilization, and upgrade revenue for unsatisfied performance obligations. The amounts are derived from the
specific terms within drilling contracts that contain such provisions, and the expected timing for recognition of such revenue is based on the estimated start date and duration of each
respective contract based on information known at December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024. The actual timing of recognition of such amounts may vary due to factors outside of our
control. We have taken the optional exemption, permitted by accounting standards, to exclude disclosure of the estimated transaction price related to the variable portion of
unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the reporting period, as our transaction price is based on a single performance obligation consisting of a series of distinct hourly, or
more frequent, periods, the variability of which will be resolved at the time of the future services.

Off-market Customer Contract Assets and Liabilities
Upon emergence from the Chapter 11 Cases and bankruptcy, the Company recognized fair value adjustments of $113.4 million related to intangible assets for certain favorable
customer contracts, which were fully amortized as of August 2023. In addition, in connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling, the Company recognized additional
fair value adjustments of $113.4 million and $23.0 million, respectively, related to intangible assets for certain favorable customer contracts. These intangible assets are being will be
amortized as a reduction of contract drilling services revenue from the February 5, 2021, and Closing Date respectively, through the remainder of the contracts.

In connection with the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling and the Diamond Transaction, the Company also recognized a fair value adjustment adjustments of $237.7 million
and $27.7 million, respectively, related to certain unfavorable customer contracts acquired. These liabilities are being will be amortized as an increase to contract drilling services
revenue from the Closing Date and the Diamond Closing Date through the remainder of the contracts.

Unfavorable contacts

Unfavorable contacts

Unfavorable contacts

Balance at February 6, 2021
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Balance at February 6, 2021

Balance at February 6, 2021

Additions

Additions

Additions

Amortization

Amortization

Amortization

Balance at December 31, 2021

Balance at December 31, 2021

Balance at December 31, 2021

Additions

Additions

Additions

Amortization

Amortization

Amortization

Balance at December 31, 2022

Balance at December 31, 2022

Balance at December 31, 2022

Additions

Additions

Additions

Amortization

Amortization

Amortization

Balance at December 31, 2023

Balance at December 31, 2023

Balance at December 31, 2023

Additions

Additions

Additions

Amortization

Amortization

Amortization

Balance at December 31, 2024

Balance at December 31, 2024

Balance at December 31, 2024

Estimated future amortization over the expected remaining contract periods:

Year ending December 31,

Year ending December 31,

Year ending December 31,

2024 2025 Total

Year Ended December 31,

Year Ended December 31,

Year Ended December 31,

2025 Total

Unfavorable contracts

Favorable contracts

Total

Note 9 — Leases
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Leases
We determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Our lease agreements are primarily for real estate, equipment, storage, dock space, and automobiles and are included
within “Other assets”, “Other current liabilities”, and “Other liabilities” on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. In connection with the Diamond Transaction, the Company assumed
several leases entered into by Diamond consisting of operating leases for corporate and shorebases offices, office and information technology equipment, employee housing,
onshore storage yards, and certain rig equipment and tools as well as finance
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Note 11 — Leases

Leases
We determine if leases for well control equipment used on the drillships. The finance leases commenced in 2016 and also include an arrangement is a option to purchase the leased
equipment at the end of the respective lease at inception. Our operating lease agreements are primarily for real estate, equipment, storage, dock space, and automobiles and are
included within “Other current liabilities”, “Other assets”, and “Other liabilities”, on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. term.

As most of our leases do not provide an explicit rate, we use our incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at commencement date in determining the present
value of lease payments. Certain of our lease agreements include options to extend or terminate the lease, which we do not include in our minimum lease terms unless
management is reasonably certain to exercise and reasonably certain not to exercise, respectively. exercise.

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases was as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Operating leases

Operating lease right-of-use assets 24,528 34,551

Current operating lease liabilities 10,581 23,832

Long-term operating lease liabilities 15,082 23,852

Weighted average remaining lease term for operating leases (years) 4.34 4.39

Weighted average discounted rate for operating leases 7.6 % 7.8 %

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Operating leases

Right-of-use assets $ 78,993  $ 24,528 

Current lease liabilities $ 14,844  $ 10,581 

Long-term lease liabilities $ 65,981  $ 15,082 

Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 7.49 4.34

Weighted average discount rate 6.6 % 7.6 %

Finance leases (1)

Right-of-use assets $ 34,346  $ — 

Current lease liabilities $ 22,722  $ — 

Long-term lease liabilities $ 11,270  $ — 

Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 1.47 — 

Weighted average discount rate 5.8 % — %

(1) Includes finance leases acquired in the Diamond Transaction.

The components of lease cost were as follows:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended through through

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

Operating lease cost $ 12,615  $ 6,095  $ 4,803  $ 365 

Short-term lease cost 6,185  5,741  634  (124)
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Variable lease cost 928  948  412  (605)

Total lease cost $ 19,728  $ 12,784  $ 5,849  $ (364)

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases was as follows:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended through through

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

Operating cash flows used for operating leases $ 13,369  $ 6,676  $ 5,568  $ 979 

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for a lease liability (1) 9,614  19,841  9,647  — 

(1) Includes right-of-use assets acquired in business combinations.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Operating lease cost $ 31,162  $ 12,615  $ 6,095 

Finance lease cost:

Amortization of right-of-use assets 7,766  —  — 

Interest on lease liabilities 734  —  — 

Short-term lease cost 3,819  6,185  5,741 

Variable lease cost 675  928  948 

Total lease cost $ 44,156  $ 19,728  $ 12,784 
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Supplemental cash flow information related to leases was as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Operating leases

Operating cash flows used $ 20,857  $ 13,369  $ 6,676 

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for a lease liability (1) 45,313  9,614  19,841 

Finance leases

Operating cash flows used $ 560  $ —  $ — 

Financing cash flows used 6,064  —  — 

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for a lease liability (1) 42,113  —  — 

(1) Includes right-of-use assets acquired in business combinations.

Maturities of lease liabilities as of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, were as follows:

Operating Leases Operating Leases Operating Leases Finance Leases

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

Thereafter

Total lease payments

Less: Interest
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Present value of lease liability

Note 1210 — Income Taxes
Noble is a tax resident in the UK and, as such, is subject to UK corporation tax on its taxable profits and gains. Noble Cayman is was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and,
therefore, not subject to tax in any jurisdiction. With respect to Noble, a UK tax exemption is available in respect of qualifying dividends income and capital gains related to the sale
of qualifying participations. We operate in various countries throughout the world, including the United States. The income or loss of the non-UK subsidiaries of Noble is not subject
to UK corporation tax.

Consequently, we have taken account of the above exemption and provided for income taxes based on the laws and rates in effect in the countries in which operations are
conducted, or in which we, or our subsidiaries, have a taxable presence for income tax purposes.
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The components of the net deferred taxes are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax assets   Deferred tax assets  

United States  

United States:  

Net operating loss carry forwards

Excess of net tax basis over remaining book basis

Excess of net tax basis over remaining book basis

Excess of net tax basis over remaining book basis

Disallowed interest deduction carryforwards

Tax credits carryover

Deferred pension plan amounts

Accrued expenses not currently deductible

Unfavorable contract value

Other

Non-United States  

Non-United States:  

Net operating loss carry forwards

Excess of net tax basis over remaining book basis

Tax credits carryover

Transition attribute

Tax credits carryover

Excess of net tax basis over remaining book basis

Disallowed interest deduction carryforwards

Unfavorable contract value

Unfavorable contract value

Unfavorable contract value

Accrued expenses not currently deductible

Other

Other

Other

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Less: valuation allowance

Net deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax liabilities   Deferred tax liabilities  

United States  
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Favorable contract value

Favorable contract value

United States:  

Excess of net book basis over remaining tax basis

Favorable contract value

Deferred revenue

Other

Non-United States  

Non-United States:  

Excess of net book basis over remaining tax basis

Favorable contract value

Other

Deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Income (loss) before income taxes consists of the following:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended through through Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

United States

Non-United States

Total
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Income tax provision (benefit) consists of the following:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6,

2021 January 1, 2021

Year

Ended

Year

Ended

Year

Ended through through Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

December 31,

2024

December 31,

2023

December 31,

2022

Current- United States

Current- Non-United States

Deferred- United States

Deferred- Non-United
States

Total

The following is a reconciliation of our reserve for uncertain tax positions, excluding interest and penalties:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6,

2021 January 1, 2021

Year

Ended

Year

Ended

Year

Ended through through

Year

Ended

Year

Ended
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December 31,

2023

December 31,

2022

December 31,

2021

February 5,

2021

December 31,

2024

December 31,

2023

December

31, 2022

Gross balance at beginning of period

Additions based on tax positions related to
current year

Additions for tax positions of prior years

Reductions for tax positions of prior years

Expiration of statutes

Tax settlements

Gross balance at end of period

Related tax benefits

Net reserve at end of period

The liabilities related to our reserve for uncertain tax positions, included in “Other liabilities” on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, are comprised of the following:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Reserve for uncertain tax positions, excluding interest and penalties

Interest and penalties included in “Other liabilities”

Interest and penalties

Reserve for uncertain tax positions, including interest and penalties

At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, the reserves for uncertain tax positions totaled $197.9 million (net of related tax benefits of $3.7 million) and $202.3
million (net of related tax benefits of $0.1 million) and $175.9 million (net of related tax benefits of $0.4 million), respectively. If a portion or all of the December 31, 2023 December
31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, reserves listed above are not realized, the provision for income taxes could be reduced by up to $188.0 million $196.0 million and $154.5 million $188.0
million, respectively.

It is reasonably possible that our existing liabilities related to our reserve for uncertain tax positions may fluctuate in the next 12 months primarily due to the completion of open
audits or the expiration of statutes of limitation.

We include, as a component of our “Income tax benefit (provision)”, potential interest and penalties related to recognized tax contingencies within our global operations. Interest and
penalties resulted in an income tax expense of $24.1 million $5.9 million, $2.7 million, $6.7 million $24.1 million, and $0.1 million $2.7 million for the years ended December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

During the period from February 6 through December 31, 2021 year ended December 31, 2024, our tax provision included a net tax benefit of $123.6 million related to releases of
valuation allowances primarily in Luxembourg, and a net tax benefit of $20.2 million related to changes in uncertain tax positions. Such tax benefits were offset by various recurring
quarterly accruals of $187.8 million primarily in Guyana, Nigeria, the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021, respectively. United States, Switzerland, and Luxembourg.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, our tax provision included tax benefits of $187.2 million related to a release releases of valuation allowances in Luxembourg, Guyana,
Switzerland, and Norway, and a tax benefit of $6.8 million related to an uncertain tax position release. releases. Such tax benefits were offset by tax expenses related to uncertain
tax positions of
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$20.9 million in various countries, contract fair value amortization of $23.7 million, and various recurring quarterly accruals of $179.6 million primarily in Guyana, Switzerland, and
Luxembourg.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, our tax provision included tax benefits of $42.1 million related to a release releases of valuation allowances in Guyana and Luxembourg,
$1.3  million related primarily to other deferred tax adjustments, and $6.6  million related to a reduction in legacy Maersk tax contingencies primarily due to favorable foreign
exchange movements. Such tax benefits were offset by tax expenses of $2.3 million related to the sale of the Remedy Rigs, $10.8 million related to contract fair value amortization,
and various recurring items comprised of Guyana excess withholding tax on gross revenue of $34.7  million and annual current and deferred tax expense accrual accruals of
$24.9 million primarily in Luxembourg, Switzerland, US, Norway, and Ghana.

During the period from February 6, 2021, to December 31, 2021, our tax provision included tax benefits of $24.3 million related to US and non-US reserve releases, $12.6 million
related to a US tax refund, $22.8 million related to deferred tax assets previously not recognized, $1.9 million related to recognition of a non-US refund claim, and $1.2 million
related primarily to deferred tax adjustments. Such tax benefits were offset by tax expenses of $21.2  million related to various recurring items primarily comprised of Guyana
withholding tax on gross revenue and $42.0 million related to non-US tax reserves.

During the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021, our income tax provision included a tax benefit of $1.7 million related to non-US reserve release and tax expense of
$2.5 million related to fresh start and reorganization adjustment and other recurring tax expenses of approximately $2.6 million.

Our gross deferred tax asset balance at year-end reflects the application of our income tax accounting policies and is based on management’s estimates, judgments, and
assumptions regarding realizability. If it is more likely than not that a portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized in a future period, the deferred tax assets will be reduced
by a valuation allowance based on management’s estimates.
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In deriving the $187.2 $123.6  million release change in valuation allowance, where applicable we relied on sources of income attributable to the reversal of taxable temporary
differences in the same periods as the relevant tax attributes and projected taxable income for the period covered by our relevant existing drilling contracts based on the assumption
that the relevant rigs will be owned by the current rig owners during the relevant existing drilling contract periods. Given the mobile nature of our assets, we are not able to
reasonably forecast the jurisdiction of our taxable income from future drilling contracts. We also have limited objective positive evidence in historical periods. Accordingly, in
determining the amount of deferred tax benefits to recognize, we did not consider projected book income beyond the conclusion of existing drilling contracts with the exception of
interest income projected to be generated over a finite period beyond the conclusion of the relevant existing drilling contracts. As new drilling contracts are executed, we will
reassess the amount of deferred tax assets that are realizable. Finally, once we have established sufficient objective positive evidence for historical periods, we may consider
reliance on forecasted taxable income from future drilling contracts.

Our tax benefits related to transition attributes in Switzerland are scheduled to expire by 2036. Our net operating losses in Switzerland are scheduled to expire in 2027. between
2027 and 2031. Our net operating losses in Luxembourg are scheduled to expire between 2033 and 2038; however, a portion of the tax losses has no expiration date.

We conduct business globally and, as a result, we file numerous income tax returns in the US and in non-US jurisdictions. In the normal course of business, we are subject to
examination by taxing authorities throughout the world, including, but not limited to, jurisdictions such as Australia, Denmark, Egypt, Ghana, Guyana, Mexico, Nigeria, and Saudi
Arabia. the United Kingdom. We are no longer subject to US Federal income tax examinations for years before 2020 2021 and non-US income tax examinations for years before
2007. 2000.

In Denmark, prior to the Merger, Maersk Drilling was subject to a mandatory joint taxation scheme with all other Danish entities under the common control of A.P. Møller Holding
A/S. To the extent Maersk Drilling incurred tax losses in Denmark until the Merger, such losses may be utilized by other jointly taxed entities. Noble may be compensated through a
joint taxation contribution when such losses are utilized. In the event that A.P. Møller Holding A/S or any jointly taxed entity is subject to audits for years and periods prior to and until
the Merger and such audits result in adjustments to relevant tax returns, adjustments to the prior year joint tax contributions may be required. This could result in additional
compensation to Noble or refunds payable by Noble to A.P. Møller Holding A/S or to any previous joint taxation group administration company of previously received joint taxation
contributions. Since the Merger and through December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, Noble has recognized a benefit for tax contribution payments of approximately $21.1 million
from A.P. Møller Holding A/S and an expense for a tax contribution repayment of $4.0 million to A.P. Møller Holding A/S under this arrangement related to arrangement. For the
period
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beginning with the Merger. Approximately 2023, an expense of $4.0 million and net benefits of approximately $19.1 million, of such payments is respectively, are included in “Interest
income and other, net” and on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Additionally, for the year ended December 31, 2023, approximately $2.0 million is recorded and included
as a benefit in “Income tax benefit (provision)” on our Consolidated Statements Statement of Operations.

Noble conducted substantially all of its business through Finco and its subsidiaries in the pre-emergence period; Noble Cayman conducted substantially all of its business through
Finco and its subsidiaries in the post-emergence period to consummation of the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling; and Noble conducted substantially all of its business
through Finco and Maersk Drilling, and their respective subsidiaries after the Business Combination. In the pre-emergence period, the income or loss of our non-UK subsidiaries is
not subject to UK income tax. UK earnings are taxable in the United Kingdom at the UK statutory rate of 19%. In the post-emergence period, Noble Cayman was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and, therefore, not subject to tax in any jurisdiction. Following the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling, Noble is a public limited company incorporated under
the laws of England and Wales. The income or loss of our non-UK subsidiaries is not subject to UK income tax. UK earnings are taxable in the United Kingdom at the UK statutory
rate
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of 19% and 25% through March 31, 2023, and beginning on April 1, 2023, respectively. A reconciliation of tax rates outside of the United Kingdom to our Noble effective rate for
2023 2024 is shown below:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended through through

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

Effect of:  

Tax rates which are different than the Cayman Islands (Successor) and
UK (Predecessor) rates 37.6 % 34.9 % 22.6 % 0.5 %

Tax impact of asset impairment and disposition — % — % — % — %

Tax impact of restructuring — % — % — % 1.0 %

Tax impact of the tax regulation change — % — % — % — %

Tax impact of valuation allowance (36.1)% (22.0)% (25.2)% — %
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Resolution of (reserve for) tax authority audits 4.4 % (1.1)% 2.9 % (0.2)%

Total 5.9 % 11.8 % 0.3 % 1.3 %

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Effect of:  

Tax rates which are different than UK or Cayman rates 37.3 % 37.6 % 34.9 %

Tax impact of valuation allowance (25.0)% (36.1)% (22.0)%

Resolution of (reserve for) tax authority audits (3.4)% 4.4 % (1.1)%

Total 8.9 % 5.9 % 11.8 %

At December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, the Company asserts that its unremitted earnings and/or book/tax outside basis differences in certain of its subsidiaries
are either permanently reinvested or are not expected to result in a material taxable event in the foreseeable future. Therefore, no material deferred taxes have been recorded
related to such earnings and/or investments.
Certain of the restructuring transactions effected by the Company in connection with the Plan have a material impact on the Company. For example, cancellation
of indebtedness income from such restructuring transaction has significantly reduced the Company’s US tax attributes, including but not limited to NOL
carryforwards. Further, the Plan was approved by the Bankruptcy Court on November 20, 2020. As a result, on the Emergence Effective Date, the Company
experienced an ownership change under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), which subjects certain remaining tax
attributes to an annual limitation under Section 382 of the Code.

The OECD, which represents a coalition of member countries, issued various white papers addressing Tax Base Erosion and Jurisdictional Profit Shifting. The recommendations in
these white papers are generally aimed at combating what they believe is tax avoidance. Numerous jurisdictions in which we operate have been influenced by these white papers as
well as other factors and are increasingly active in evaluating changes to their tax laws. In addition, the OECD has advanced reforms focused on global profit allocation and
implementing a global minimum tax rate of at least 15% for large multinational corporations on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis, known as “Pillar Two.” On October 8, 2021, the
OECD announced an accord endorsing and providing an implementation plan for Pillar Two agreed upon by 136 nations. On December 15, 2022, the European Council formally
adopted a European Union directive on the implementation of the plan by January 1, 2024. Numerous countries, including the UK, have enacted legislation implementing Pillar Two
effective January 1, 2024. The Company continues to evaluate the potential impact of this legislation.
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Note 1311 — Employee Benefit Plans
Defined Benefit Plans
Noble Drilling (Land Support) Limited (“NDLS”), an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Noble, maintains a pension plan that covers all of its salaried, non-union employees, whose
most recent date of employment is prior to April 1, 2014 (referred to as our ‘non-US plan’). Since May 2022, the NDLS pension trustees and covenant advisors have been
communicating with Noble to understand the impact of the Rig Transaction and merger with Maersk Drilling and to negotiate appropriate mitigation including buyout of the Scheme
to cover the pension obligations. The Pension Regulators advised on December 15, 2022 that it did not intend to investigate the transaction unless Noble and the pension trustees
were unable to agree on mitigation or there was a material change to circumstances. Noble has provided a company guarantee from Noble Corporation plc to cover the full section
75 debts of NDLS and Noble Resources Limited (“NRL”), the two sponsoring entities of the pension scheme, and believes this is an appropriate mitigation to support the pension
liabilities.

In addition to the non-US plan discussed above, we have a US noncontributory defined benefit pension plan that covers certain salaried employees and a US noncontributory
defined benefit pension plan that covers certain hourly employees, whose initial date of employment is prior to August 1, 2004 (collectively referred to as our “qualified US plans”).
These plans are governed by the Noble Drilling Employees’ Retirement Trust (the “Trust”). The benefits from these plans are based primarily on years of service and, for the salaried
plan, employees' compensation near retirement. These plans are designed to qualify under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”), and our funding policy
is consistent with funding requirements of ERISA and other applicable laws and regulations. We make cash contributions, or utilize credits available to us, for the qualified US plans
when required. The benefit amount that can be covered by the qualified US plans is limited under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Therefore, we maintain an
unfunded, non-qualified excess benefit plan designed to maintain benefits for specified employees at the formula level in the qualified salaried US plan. We refer to the qualified US
plans and the excess benefit plan collectively as the “US plans.”

During the fourth quarter of 2016, we approved amendments, effective as of December 31, 2016, to our non-US and US defined benefit plans. With these amendments, employees
and alternate payees will accrue no future benefits under the plans after December 31, 2016. However, these amendments will not affect any benefits earned through that date.
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A reconciliation of the changes in projected benefit obligations (“PBO”) for our non-US and US plans is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Non-US Non-US US Non-US US Non-US US Non-US US

Benefit obligation at beginning of period

Interest cost

Actuarial loss (gain)

Benefits paid

Settlements and curtailments

Foreign exchange rate changes

Benefit obligation at end of period

A reconciliation of the changes in fair value of plan assets is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Non-US US Non-US US Non-US US Non-US US

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period

Actual return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Plan participants’ contributions

Foreign exchange rate changes

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

The funded status of the plans is as follows:

  December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

  Non-US US Non-US US

Funded status $ 5,155  $ (2,993) $ 6,916  $ (6,553)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:

  December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

  Non-US US Non-US US

Other assets (noncurrent) $ 5,155  $ —  $ 6,916  $ — 

Other liabilities (current) —  (59) —  (66)

Other liabilities (noncurrent) —  (2,934) —  (6,487)

Net amount recognized $ 5,155  $ (2,993) $ 6,916  $ (6,553)

Amounts recognized in AOCI consist of:

  December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

  Non-US US Non-US US

Net actuarial (gain) loss $ 7,761  $ (12,390) $ 5,857  $ (9,371)

Deferred income tax (asset) liability (1,942) 2,602  (1,486) 1,968 

Accumulated other comprehensive (income) loss $ 5,819  $ (9,788) $ 4,371  $ (7,403)
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The funded status of the plans is as follows:

  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

  Non-US US Non-US US

Funded status $ 6,916  $ (6,553) $ 3,667  $ (2,700)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
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  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

  Non-US US Non-US US

Other assets (noncurrent) $ 6,916  $ —  $ 3,667  $ 2,722 

Other liabilities (current) —  (66) —  (205)

Other liabilities (noncurrent) —  (6,487) —  (5,217)

Net amount recognized $ 6,916  $ (6,553) $ 3,667  $ (2,700)

Amounts recognized in AOCI consist of:

  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

  Non-US US Non-US US

Net actuarial (gain) loss $ 5,857  $ (9,371) $ 9,963  $ (14,158)

Prior service cost —  —  —  — 

Deferred income tax (asset) liability (1,486) 1,968  (2,425) 2,973 

Accumulated other comprehensive (income) loss $ 4,371  $ (7,403) $ 7,538  $ (11,185)

Pension costs include the following components:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6,

2021

January 1,

2021

Year

Ended

Year

Ended Year Ended through through

Year

Ended

Year

Ended

December 31,

2023 December 31, 2022

December 31,

2021 February 5, 2021

December 31,

2024 December 31, 2023

December 31,

2022

Non-US Non-US US Non-US US

Non-

US US

Non-

US US Non-US US Non-US US

Non-

US US

Interest cost

Return on plan assets

Amortization of prior service cost

Recognized net actuarial loss

Settlement and curtailment (gain)

loss

Net pension benefit cost (gain)

loss

There are zero estimated net actuarial losses and prior service costs for the non-US plan and the US plans that will be amortized from AOCI into net periodic pension cost in
2024. 2025.

During the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, 2022, 2023, and 2021, 2022, we adopted the Retirement Plan mortality tables with the Mortality Projection scale as
issued by the Society of Actuaries for each of the respective years. The Retirement Plan 2024, 2023, 2022, and 2021 2022 mortality tables represent the new standard for defined
benefit mortality assumptions due to adjusted life expectancies. The adoption of the updated mortality tables and the mortality improvement scales increased There were no
increases in our pension liability on our US plans by approximately $0.8 million, $0.9 million, resulting from the adoption of these tables for the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023, and $0.7 million as of December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.
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Defined Benefit Plans—Disaggregated Plan Information
Disaggregated information regarding our non-US and US plans is summarized below:

Projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation
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Accumulated benefit obligation

Accumulated benefit obligation

Accumulated benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets

The following table provides information related to those plans in which the PBO exceeded the fair value of the plan assets at December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and
2022. 2023. The PBO is the actuarially computed present value of earned benefits based on service to date and includes the estimated effect of any future salary increases.
Employees and alternate payees have no longer accrued future benefits under the plans since December 31, 2016.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Non-US US Non-US US Non-US US Non-US US

Projected benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

The PBO for the unfunded excess benefit plan was $0.8 million $0.7 million at December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, as compared to $0.9 million $0.8 million at December 31,
2022 December 31, 2023, and is included under “US” in the above tables.

The following table provides information related to those plans in which the accumulated benefit obligation (“ABO”) exceeded the fair value of plan assets at December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022. 2023. The ABO is the actuarially computed present value of earned benefits based on service to date, but differs from the PBO in that it is
based on current salary levels. Employees and alternate payees have no longer accrued future benefits under the plans since December 31, 2016.

  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

  Non-US US Non-US US

Accumulated benefit obligation $ —  $ 179,346  $ —  $ 151,564 

Fair value of plan assets —  172,793  —  146,144 

The ABO for the unfunded excess benefit plan was $0.8 million at December 31, 2023, as compared to $0.9 million at December 31, 2022, and is included under “US” in the above
tables.

Defined Benefit Plans—Key Assumptions
The key assumptions for the plans are summarized below:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

  Non-US US Non-US US

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:

Discount Rate 4.80% 4.95% - 5.04% 5.00% 5.17% - 5.27%

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A

  December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

  Non-US US Non-US US

Accumulated benefit obligation $ —  $ 166,837  $ —  $ 179,346 

Fair value of plan assets —  163,844  —  172,793 
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Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended through through

  December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

  Non-US Non-US Non-US Non-US

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine periodic benefit cost:

Discount Rate 5.00% 1.80% 1.80% 1.80%

Expected long-term return on assets 4.60% 2.00% 1.20% 1.20%
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Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A

The ABO for the unfunded excess benefit plan was $0.7 million at December 31, 2024, as compared to $0.8 million at December 31, 2023, and is included under “US” in the above
tables.

Defined Benefit Plans—Key Assumptions
The key assumptions for the plans are summarized below:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

  Non-US US Non-US US

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:

Discount Rate 5.50% 5.50% - 5.63% 4.80% 4.95% - 5.04%

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

  December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

  Non-US Non-US Non-US

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine periodic benefit cost:

Discount Rate 5.50% 5.00% 1.80%

Expected long-term return on assets 4.80% 4.60% 1.20%

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021

January 1,

2021

  Year Ended Year Ended through

through Year

Ended

 
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

December

31, 2021

February

5, 2021

  US US US US

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine periodic benefit cost:

Discount Rate
4.95% - 5.04% 5.17% - 5.27% 2.63% - 2.89%

1.92% -
2.77%

1.82%
-

2.60%

Expected long-term return on assets 5.00% -
5.80% 5.60%

5.00% - 5.80% 5.00% - 5.80%
5.10% -
6.10%

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A

The discount rates used to calculate the net present value of future benefit obligations for our US plans is based on the average of current rates earned on long-term bonds that
receive a Moody’s rating of “Aa” or better. We have determined that the timing and amount of expected cash outflows on our plans reasonably match this index. For our non-US
plan, the discount rate used to calculate the net present value of future benefit obligations is determined by using a yield curve of high quality bond portfolios with an average
maturity approximating that of the liabilities.

In developing the expected long-term rate of return on assets, we considered the current level of expected returns on risk free investments (primarily government bonds), the
historical level of risk premium associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio is invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset class. The expected
return for each asset class was then weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets for the portfolio. To assist us with this
analysis, we employ third-party consultants for our US and non-US plans that use a portfolio return model.

Defined Benefit Plans—Plan Assets
Non-US Plan. As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, the NDLS pension Scheme targets an asset allocation of 20.0% 13.5% return-seeking securities (growth) and
80.0% 86.5% in debt securities (matching) and adopts a de-risking strategy whereby the level of investment risk reduces as the Scheme’s funding level improves. The overall
investment objective of the Scheme, as adopted by the Scheme’s Trustees, is to reach a fully funded position on the agreed de-risking basis of gilts - 0.20% -0.0% per annum. The
objectives within the Scheme’s overall investment strategy is to outperform the cash + 4% per annum long term objective for growth assets and to sufficiently hedge interest rate and
inflation risk within the matching portfolio in relation to the Scheme’s liabilities. By achieving these objectives, the Trustees believe the Scheme will be able to avoid significant
volatility in the contribution rate and provide sufficient assets to cover the Scheme’s benefit obligations. To achieve this the Trustees have
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given Mercer, the appointed investment manager, full discretion in the day-to-day management of the Scheme’s assets and implementation of the de-risking strategy, who in turn
invests in multiple underlying investment managers where appropriate. The Trustees meet with Mercer periodically to review and discuss their investment performance.
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The actual fair values of the non-US plan are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024

Estimated Fair

Value

Measurements

Carrying

Amount

Carrying

Amount

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets (Level

1)

Significant Other

Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)

Carrying


Amount

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets

(Level 1)

Significant Other

Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs (Level 3)

Cash and
cash
equivalents

Equity
securities:

International
companies

International
companies

International
companies

Fixed income
securities:

Corporate
bonds

Corporate
bonds

Corporate
bonds

Total

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023

Estimated Fair

Value

Measurements

Carrying

Amount

Carrying

Amount

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets (Level

1)

Significant Other

Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)

Carrying


Amount

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets

(Level 1)

Significant Other

Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs (Level 3)

Cash and
cash
equivalents

Equity
securities:

International
companies

International
companies

International
companies

Fixed income
securities:

Corporate
bonds
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Corporate
bonds

Corporate
bonds

Total

US Plans. The fundamental objective of the US plan is to provide the capital assets necessary to meet the financial obligations made to plan participants. In order to meet this
objective, the Investment Policy Statement depicts how the investment assets of the plan are to be managed in accordance with the overall target asset allocation of approximately

75.0% equity securities, 6.0% fixed income securities, and 19.0% in cash and equivalents. strategic opportunities. The target asset allocation is intended to generate sufficient
capital to meet plan obligations and provide a portfolio rate of return equal to or greater than the return realized using appropriate blended, market benchmark over a full market
cycle (usually a five to seven year time period). Actual allocations may deviate from the target range, however any deviation from the target range of asset allocations must be
approved by the Trust’s governing committee.

For investments in mutual funds, the assets of the Trust are subject to the guidelines and limits imposed by such mutual fund’s prospectus and the other governing documentation at
the fund level.

No shares Ordinary Shares of Noble were included in equity securities at either December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 or 2022. 2023.
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The actual fair values of US plan assets are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024

Es

Me

Carrying

Amount

Carrying

Amount

Quoted

Prices in

Active

Markets

(Level 1)

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs (Level

3)

Carrying


Amount

Quoted

Prices in

Active

Markets

(Level 1)

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs (Level

3)

Cash and
cash
equivalents

Equity
securities:

United
States

United
States

United
States

Fixed
income
securities:

Corporate
bonds

Corporate
bonds

Corporate
bonds 100,377  96,373  96,373  4,004  4,004  91,129  86,991  86,991  4,138  4,138 

Treasury
bonds

Total

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023

E

M
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Carrying

Amount

Carrying

Amount

Quoted

Prices in

Active

Markets

(Level 1)

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs (Level

3)

Carrying


Amount

Quoted

Prices in

Active

Markets

(Level 1)

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs (Level

3)

Cash and
cash
equivalents

Equity
securities:

United
States

United
States

United
States

Fixed
income
securities:

Corporate
bonds

Corporate
bonds

Corporate
bonds 100,513  96,962  96,962  3,551  3,551  100,377  96,373  96,373  4,004  4,004 

Treasury
bonds

Total

Defined Benefit Plans—Cash Flows
In 2024, 2023, and 2022, and we made no contributions to our non-US plan and contributions of $0.1 million, $0.2 million, and $0.4 million to our US plans, respectively. We made
no contributions to our non-US plan in 2021. During the 2021 Predecessor period from January 1, 2021, to February 5, 2021, and the 2021 Successor period from February 6, 2021,
to December 31, 2021, we made contributions of $2.3 million and $5.2 million, respectively, to our US plans. We expect our aggregate minimum contributions to our non-US and US
plans in 2024, 2025, subject to applicable law, to be zero and $0.1 million, respectively. We continue to monitor and evaluate funding options based upon market conditions and may
increase contributions at our discretion.

The following table summarizes our estimated benefit payments at December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024:

Payments by Period

Total Total 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter Total 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Thereafter

Estimated benefit payments

Non-US plans

Non-US plans

Non-US plans

US plans

Total estimated benefit payments

Other Benefit Plans. We sponsored a 401(k) Restoration Plan, which is a nonqualified, unfunded employee benefit plan under which specified employees may elect to defer
compensation in excess of amounts deferrable under our 401(k) savings plan. At December 31, 2021, our liability for the 401(k) Restoration Plan was $2.8 million, and is included in
“Accrued payroll and related costs.” In early 2022, the Noble Services Company LLC Board of Directors approved the termination of the 401(k) Restoration Plan, following which
Noble distributed all benefits of the plan during the second quarter of 2022. No liabilities remained in the plan as of December 31, 2022. We do not provide post-retirement benefits
(other than pensions) or any post-employment benefits to our employees.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

liabilities remained in the plan as of December 31, 2022. We do not provide post-retirement benefits (other than pensions) or any post-employment benefits to our employees.

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2025 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

101/154

In 2005, we enacted a profit sharing plan, the Noble Services Company LLC Profit Sharing Plan, which covers eligible employees, as defined in the plan. Participants in the plan
become fully vested in the plan after three years one year of service. On January 1, 2019, the 401(k) savings plan and the profit sharing plan were merged into the Noble Drilling
Services Inc. LLC 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan. Effective January 1, 2025, the profit-sharing plan was removed and there will be no future profit-sharing contributions made into
the plan. We sponsor other retirement, health, and welfare plans, a 401(k) savings plan, and international savings plans for the benefit of our employees. The contributions to these
plans aggregated approximately $34.0 million $32.0 million, $34.2 million, $29.8 million $34.0 million, and $1.6 million $34.2 million for the years ended December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the period from February 6, 2021, to December 31, 2021, and the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021, respectively.

Profit sharing contributions are were discretionary, require required Board of Directors approval, and are were made in the form of cash. No contributions were made for the years
ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the period from February 6, 2021, to December 31, 2021, and the period from January 1 through February 5, 2021,
respectively.

Note 1412 — Commitments and Contingencies
Tax Matters
Audit claims of approximately $172.1 million $359.3 million at December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, attributable to income and other business taxes remain outstanding and are
under continued objection by Noble. Such audit claims are mostly attributable to Mexico related to tax years 2007 Brazil, Egypt, Ghana, and 2009, Australia related to tax years 2013
to 2016, Guyana related to tax years 2018 to 2021, Saudi Arabia related to tax years 2015 to 2019, Nigeria related to tax years 2010 to 2019, Ghana related to tax years 2011 to
2017, and Egypt related to tax years 2012 to 2016. We intend to vigorously defend our reported positions and currently believe the ultimate resolution of the audit claims will not
have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements. Guyana. This remains under continued monitoring and evaluation on a quarterly basis as facts change and
as audits and/or litigation continue to progress. We intend to vigorously defend our reported positions and currently believe the ultimate resolution of the audit claims will not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements.

We operate in a number of numerous countries throughout the world and our tax returns filed in those jurisdictions are subject to review and examination by tax authorities within
those jurisdictions. We recognize uncertain tax positions that we believe have a greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained upon challenge by a tax authority. We cannot predict
or provide assurance as to the ultimate outcome of any existing or future assessments.

Hurricane Ida Personal Injury Claims
In preparation for Hurricane Ida in the US United States Gulf of America, also known as the United States Gulf of Mexico ( the “US Gulf”), in August 2021, the Noble Globetrotter II
successfully secured the well it was drilling and detached from the blowout preventer without incident. However, during transit, the lower marine riser package and a number of riser
joints separated from the rig, and certain other damage occurred. Due to the environmental conditions, a number of crew members were treated for injuries and released from
medical care. We have had multiple parties, some of which are subject to a third-party contractual indemnity to our benefit, who have filed answers to the Limitation of Liability
Action in the United States District Court Western District of Louisiana seeking damages related to physical and emotional harm allegedly suffered as a result of the Hurricane Ida
incident. We are in the discovery phase and we intend to defend defending ourselves vigorously against these claims, although there is inherent risk in litigation, and we cannot
predict or provide assurance as to the ultimate outcome of this lawsuit. As claims progress, the Company’s estimated loss could change from time to time, and any such change
individually or in the aggregate could be material. We have insurance for such claims with a deductible of $5.0 million, in addition to contractual indemnity owed to us for a portion of
the third-party claims; however, our insurance policies these protections may not adequately cover our losses and related claims, which could adversely affect our business. Timing
differences are likely to exist between any losses incurred and the recognition and receipt of insurance proceeds reflected in the Company’s financial statements. Costs, as well as
insurance recoveries, are presented in “Hurricane losses and (recoveries), net” on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Services Agreement
In February 2016, Diamond entered into a ten-year agreement with a subsidiary of Baker Hughes Company (formerly named Baker Hughes, a GE company) to provide services
with respect to certain blowout preventer and related well control equipment on our drillships. Such services include management of maintenance, certification, and reliability with
respect to such equipment. Future commitments under the contractual services agreements are estimated to be approximately $24.7 million annually. Total future commitments are
projected to be $67.6 million in the aggregate over the remaining term of the agreement, including a $37.0 million commitment for the purchase of consumables and capital spare
parts owned and controlled by the vendor at the end of the service arrangement.

Letters of Credit and Surety Bonds
As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, we had $7.4 million $24.8 million of letters of credit issued under the 2023 Revolving Credit Facility and an additional $108.1
million $126.8 million in letters of credit and surety bonds issued under bilateral arrangements which guarantee our
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performance as it relates to our drilling contracts, contract bidding, tax appeals, customs duties, and other obligations in various jurisdictions. We expect to comply with the
underlying performance requirements and we expect obligations under these letters of credit and surety bonds will not be called.
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Other Contingencies
We have entered into agreements with certain of our executive officers, as well as certain other employees. These agreements generally provide for certain compensation and other
benefits if the employee is terminated without cause or if the employee resigns for good reason (within the meaning set forth in the agreements). In addition, certain of these
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agreements contain provisions that are triggered upon a change of control of Noble (within the meaning set forth in the agreements) and a termination of employment without cause
or if the employee resigns for good reason in connection with a change of control.
We are a defendant in certain other claims and litigation arising out of operations in the ordinary course of business, including personal injury claims, the resolution of which, in the
opinion of management, will not be material to our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. There is inherent risk in any litigation or dispute and no assurance can be
given as to the outcome of these claims.

Subsequent Event
Total current liabilities and total current assets as of December 31, 2024, include an accrual for an expected settlement of certain litigation and a related insurance recovery, which
balances had previously been reflected as lesser, and non-current, amounts.

Note 1513 — Segment and Related Information
We report our contract drilling operations as a single reportable segment, Contract Drilling Services, which reflects how we manage our business. The mobile offshore drilling units
comprising our offshore rig fleet operate in a global market for contract drilling services and are often redeployed to different regions due to changing demands of our customers,
which consist primarily of large, integrated, independent, and government-owned or controlled oil and gas companies throughout the world. Our reportable segment comprises the
structure used by our Chief Executive Officer, who has been determined to be our chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for assessing performance and allocating resources.
We regularly provide management reports to the CODM that include a segment revenue amount and segment contract drilling services costs. Our CODM evaluates the segment’s
operating performance based on operating revenues and operating income (loss). Refer to the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations for additional information.

As of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, our contract drilling services segment conducted drilling operations in Africa, Far East Asia, the Middle East, the North Sea, Oceania,
South America, and the US Gulf of Mexico. Gulf. Included in our long-lived assets balance below is our property and equipment and right-of-use assets. We used the geographic
location as of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024 and 2022, 2023, of each drilling rig, operating lease, and operating finance lease for our property and equipment and right-of-
use assets, respectively, for our long-lived assets geographic disclosure shown below.

The following table presents revenues and long-lived assets by country based on the location of the service provided during the Successor period:

Revenues Long-Lived Assets as of

Period From

February 6, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended through

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Australia 154,860  78,899  1,954  83,162  107,246 

Brazil 92,022  33,208  251  114  92,571 

Denmark 88,914  40,806  25,119  508,715  479,390 

Ghana 150,677  35,018  —  241,132  248,206 

Guyana 703,473  469,267  244,638  733,803  702,170 

Malaysia 87,105  32,227  —  234,469  142,162 

Mexico 139,595  30,788  11,022  —  279,491 

Netherlands 36,510  13,378  —  134,887  68,491 

Nigeria 143,641  —  —  67,495  — 

Norway 249,308  154,406  20,351  498,845  746,281 

Suriname 108,532  133,680  62,090  —  335,208 

Trinidad and Tobago 2,135  35,101  35,710  382,369  125,320 

United Kingdom 65,710  55,632  28,126  353,656  185,354 

United States 437,346  266,176  156,294  575,960  412,716 

Other 129,190  35,261  184,770  334,860  79,749 

Total $ 2,589,018  $ 1,413,847  $ 770,325  $ 4,149,467  $ 4,004,355 
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The following table presents revenues and long-lived assets by country based on the location of the service provided during the Predecessor period:
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Revenues

Period From

January 1, 2021

through

February 5, 2021

Australia $ 54 

Guyana 23,012 

Qatar 2,263 

Saudi Arabia 10,745 

Suriname 6,029 

Trinidad and Tobago 4,995 

United Kingdom 7,142 

United States 23,241 

Total $ 77,481 

Revenues Long-Lived Assets as of

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Australia $ 242,721  $ 154,860  $ 78,899  $ 59,202  $ 83,162 

Brazil 107,014  92,022  33,208  315,084  114 

Colombia 94,560  53,646  —  163,719  98,979 

Denmark 75,971  88,914  40,806  333,618  508,715 

Ghana 138,176  150,677  35,018  —  241,132 

Guinea Bissau 13,947  —  —  300,962  — 

Guyana 676,234  703,473  469,267  762,746  733,803 

Malaysia 203,495  87,105  32,227  292,878  234,469 

Mexico —  139,595  30,788  —  — 

Namibia 7,537  27  19  253,652  — 

Netherlands 42,107  36,510  13,378  75,421  134,887 

Nigeria 135,331  143,641  —  73,296  67,495 

Norway 236,834  249,308  154,406  487,183  498,845 

Suriname 82,082  108,532  133,680  —  — 

Trinidad and Tobago —  2,135  35,101  78,396  382,369 

United Kingdom 190,804  65,710  55,632  755,712  353,656 

United States 685,835  437,346  266,176  1,666,748  575,960 

Other 125,170  75,517  35,242  530,539  235,881 

Total $ 3,057,818  $ 2,589,018  $ 1,413,847  $ 6,149,156  $ 4,149,467 

Significant Customers
The following table sets forth revenues from our customers as a percentage of our consolidated operating revenues:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended through through

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 February 5, 2021

Exxon Mobil Corporation (“ExxonMobil”) 24.5 % 32.3 % 39.1 % 29.8 %

Shell plc 13.6 % 12.0 % 13.3 % 30.0 %

TotalEnergies 10.5 % 9.7 % 3.3 % — %

Saudi Arabian Oil Company (“Saudi Aramco”) — % — % 9.8 % 13.9 %

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
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Exxon Mobil Corporation (“ExxonMobil”) 22.1 % 24.5 % 32.3 %

Shell plc 12.3 % 13.6 % 12.0 %

TotalEnergies 6.3 % 10.5 % 9.7 %

No other customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated operating revenues in 2024, 2023, 2022, or 2021. 2022.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

Note 1614 — Supplemental Financial Information
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Information
Operating cash activities. The net effect of changes in other assets and liabilities on cash flows from operating activities is as follows:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6,

2021

January 1,

2021

Year

Ended

Year

Ended

Year

Ended through through

Year

Ended

Year

Ended

December 31,

2023

December 31,

2022

December 31,

2021

February 5,

2021

December 31,

2024

December 31,

2023

December 31,

2022

Accounts receivable

Other current assets

Other assets

Accounts payable

Other current liabilities

Other liabilities

Total net change in other assets and
liabilities

Non-cash investing and financing activities. Additions to property and equipment, at cost for which we had accrued a corresponding liability in accounts payable as of December
31, 2023 December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 and 2021 were  $66.0 million, $114.7 million, $70.0 million, and $36.5 million $70.0 million, respectively.

On the Emergence Effective Date, an aggregate principal amount of $216.0  million of Second Lien Notes was issued, which includes the aggregate subscription price of
$200.0 million, plus a backstop fee of $16.0 million which was paid in kind. In addition, certain debt as described in “Note 2 — Chapter 11 Emergence” was cancelled in exchange
for shares on the Emergence Effective Date.

On April 15, 2021, Noble Cayman completed the Pacific Drilling Merger, issuing 16.6 million Noble Cayman Shares valued at $357.7 million, in exchange for $420.0 million net
assets acquired. See “Note 4 — Acquisitions and Divestitures” for additional information.

On October 3, 2022, Noble completed the Business Combination with Maersk Drilling, issuing 60.1 million Noble Ordinary Shares valued at $1.8 billion, in exchange for $2.0 billion
net assets acquired. Also in connection with the Business Combination, in mid-November 2022, the Compulsory Purchase interest was settled when 4.1 million Ordinary Shares
were issued, resulting an increase in additional paid in capital of $123.8 million, and the remainder paid in cash of $69.9 million. See “Note 4 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures” for
additional information.

On September 4, 2024, Noble completed its acquisition of Diamond issuing 24.2 million Ordinary Shares valued at $879.9 million, in exchange for $1.5 billion net assets acquired.
See “Note 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures” for additional information.

Additional cash flow information is as follows:

Successor Predecessor

Period From Period From

February 6,

2021

January 1,

2021

Year

Ended

Year

Ended

Year

Ended through through

Year

Ended

Year

Ended

December 31,

2023

December 31,

2022

December 31,

2021

February 5,

2021
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December 31,

2024

December 31,

2023

December 31,

2022

Cash paid during the period for:

Interest, net of amounts
capitalized

Interest, net of amounts
capitalized

Interest, net of amounts
capitalized

Income taxes paid (refunded),
net (1)

(1) The net income taxes paid for the years ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, includes withholding tax in Guyana of $48.9 million, $52.3 million,
and $34.7  million on gross revenue, respectively. Excluding such withholding tax, the total tax payments would be $59.7  million, $53.1  million, and $23.7  million,
respectively.

Note 15 — Information about Noble Finance II
8.000% Senior Notes due 2030
Noble Finance II, a wholly-owned, indirect subsidiary of Noble, is the issuer of the 2030 Notes and, one or more 100% wholly-owned, direct and indirect subsidiaries of Noble
Finance II are the unconditional guarantors, or are otherwise obligated as of December 31, 2024, with respect to the 2030 Notes. See “Note 6 — Debt” for additional information.

The Noble Indenture contains a covenant that requires Noble Finance II to furnish to holders of the 2030 Notes certain financial information relating to Noble Finance II and its
restricted subsidiaries. The obligation to furnish such information may be satisfied by providing financial information of Noble along with a description of the differences between
such information and the financial information of Noble Finance II and its restricted subsidiaries on a standalone basis.

NOBLE CORPORATION plc AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unless otherwise indicated, dollar and share amounts in tables are in thousands)

Note 17 — Subsequent Events The summarized financial information below reflects the consolidated accounts of Noble Finance II:

On February 22, 2024, Noble announced that its Board of Directors approved a declaration of a quarterly cash interim dividend on its Ordinary Shares of $0.40
per share. This dividend is to be payable on March 21, 2024, to shareholders of record at close of business on March 08, 2024.

December 31, 2024

Balance Sheet

Cash and cash equivalents $ 131,703 

Total current assets 1,683,839 

Total current liabilities 694,321 

Total debt 1,401,214 

Total shareholders' equity 4,535,081 

Twelve Months Ended December

31, 2024

Statement of Operations

Operating revenues $ 2,721,156 

Operating costs and expenses 2,010,731 

Depreciation and amortization 379,551 

Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 792,859 

Capital expenditures (536,658)

Proceeds from disposal of assets, net (690)

Dividend payments — 

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure
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None.

Item 9A. Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Robert W. Eifler, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) of Noble, and Richard B. Barker, Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer) of Noble, have evaluated the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) of Noble as of the end of the period covered by this report. On the basis of this evaluation, our Principal Executive Officer and as a result
of the material weakness in internal control over financial reporting as described below, Mr. Eifler and Mr. Barker Principal Financial Officer have concluded that Noble’s disclosure
controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024. Noble’s disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by Noble in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in
the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including its principal executive and principal financial officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

In accordance with interpretive guidance issued by SEC staff, companies may exclude an acquired business from the assessment of internal control over financial reporting during
the first year following the date on which the acquisition is completed and from the assessment of disclosure controls and procedures to the extent subsumed in such internal control
over financial reporting. In accordance with this guidance, as the Company acquired Diamond on September 4, 2024, Management’s, including our Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer, evaluation and conclusion as to the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2024, excluded the portion of
disclosure controls and procedures that are subsumed by internal control over financial reporting of Diamond. The total assets and total revenues of this acquired entity represented
approximately 29% and 11% of our consolidated total assets and total revenues as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, respectively.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
The management of Noble is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated
under the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Act. Under the supervision of and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Principal Executive Officer and Chief our Principal Financial Officer, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of our the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 2013. Based on this assessment, our management concluded that Noble did not maintain maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, due to December 31, 2024.

In accordance with interpretive guidance issued by SEC staff, management has excluded Diamond from the material weakness described below.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination assessment of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement the effectiveness of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

We identified a material weakness in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, as the Company did not design acquired Diamond during the
year ended December 31, 2024. The total assets and maintain effective controls over certain information technology (“IT”) general controls for an information system that is relevant
to the preparation total revenues of Noble’s consolidated financial statements. Specifically, the Company did not design this acquired entity represented approximately 29% and
maintain (i) program change management controls to ensure that program and data changes are identified, tested, authorized, and implemented appropriately and (ii) user access
controls to ensure appropriate segregation of duties and to adequately restrict user and privileged access to appropriate personnel.

The material weakness described above did not result in a misstatement to our annual or interim consolidated financial statements. However, the material weakness could result in a
misstatement 11% of our financial statement accounts or disclosures that would result in a material misstatement to consolidated total assets and total revenues as of and for the
annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. year ended December 31, 2024, respectively.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited our financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has audited the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, as stated in their report, which is provided in Part II, Item 8, “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Remediation Plan
Noble is committed to the planning and implementation of remediation efforts to address the material weakness described above. As of the end of the third quarter of 2023, we
completed the design and implementation of controls related to (i) program change management controls to ensure that program and data changes are identified, tested,
authorized, and implemented appropriately and (ii) user access controls to ensure appropriate segregation of duties and to adequately restrict user and privileged access to
appropriate personnel. While we have completed the design and implementation of these controls, certain controls have not operated effectively for a sufficient period of time as of
December 31, 2023, to demonstrate the material weakness has been remediated. Therefore, the remediation plan includes the continued operation of the newly designed and
implemented controls.

Noble is working to remediate the material weakness by executing the measures outlined above, and we believe the measures described above will remediate the material
weakness and strengthen our internal control over financial reporting. This material weakness will not be considered remediated until the applicable controls operate for a sufficient
period of time and management has concluded through testing that the controls are operating effectively.

The actions that we are taking are subject to ongoing senior management review, as well as Audit Committee oversight. As we continue to monitor the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting in the area affected by the material weakness, we will perform additional procedures, including the use of manual mitigating control procedures where
necessary, and plan to employ any additional resources deemed necessary to provide assurance that our financial statements continue to be fairly stated in all material respects. As
we continue to evaluate and work to improve our internal control over financial reporting, management may execute additional measures to address potential control deficiencies or
modify the remediation plan described above. Management will continue reviewing and making necessary changes to our internal controls' overall design.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in Noble’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2023 December 31, 2024, that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the internal control over financial reporting of Noble.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls
Internal control over financial reporting includes the controls themselves, monitoring (including internal auditing practices), and actions taken to correct deficiencies as identified.
There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, however well designed, including the possibility of human error and the possible
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circumvention or overriding of controls. The design of an internal control system is also based in part upon assumptions and judgments made by management about the likelihood of
future events, and there can be no assurance that an internal control will be effective under all potential future conditions. As a result, even an effective system of internal controls
can provide no more than reasonable assurance with respect to the fair presentation of financial statements and the processes under which they were prepared.

Item 9B. Other Information.
None. Our directors and executive officers may from time to time enter into plans or other arrangements for the purchase or sale of our Ordinary Shares that are intended to satisfy
the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) or may represent a non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement under the Exchange Act. During the three months ended December
31, 2024, no such plans or other arrangements were adopted, terminated, or modified.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections.
Not applicable.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance.
Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement relating to our 2024 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The Proxy Statement will be filed
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.
Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement relating to our 2024 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The Proxy Statement will be filed
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters.
Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement relating to our 2024 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The Proxy Statement will be filed
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

Item 13. Certain Relationships, and Related Transactions, and DirectorDirectors’
Independence.
Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement relating to our 2024 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The Proxy Statement will be filed
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

Item 14. Principal AccountingAccountant Fees and Services.
Information in response to this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement relating to our 2024 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The Proxy Statement will be filed
with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) A list of the financial statements filed as a part of this report is set forth in Part II, Item 8, “Financial Statements Statements and Supplementary Data” on page 53 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

All schedules are omitted because they are either not applicable or required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits:

The information required by this Item 15(a)(3) is set forth in the Index to Exhibits accompanying this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.
None.

Index to Exhibits
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Exhibit


Number Exhibit

2.1 Modified Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of Noble Corporation plc (n/k/a Noble Holding Corporation plc), a company incorporated under the laws of
England and Wales (“Legacy Noble”), and its Debtor Affiliates (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Legacy Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 23, 2020 and
incorporated herein by reference).

2.2† Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 25, 2021, by and among Noble Corporation, a Cayman Islands company (“Noble Cayman”), Duke Merger Sub,
LLC and Pacific Drilling Company LLC (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Noble Cayman’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 25, 2021 and incorporated herein by
reference).

2.3† Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of August 25, 2021, by and among Noble Finance Company, a Cayman Islands company (“Finco”), Noble Drilling (TVL)
Ltd., Noble SA Limited, Noble Rig Holding I Limited, Noble Rig Holding 2 Limited, Noble Drilling Arabia Co. Ltd. and ADES International Holding Limited (filed as
Exhibit 2.1 to Noble Cayman’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 26, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference).

2.4† Amendment No. 1 to Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of October 15, 2021, by and among Noble Finance Company, Noble Drilling (TVL) Ltd., Noble SA
Limited, Noble Rig Holding I Limited, Noble Rig Holding 2 Limited, Noble Drilling Arabia Co. Ltd., ADES International Holding Limited and ADES Saudi Limited
Company (filed as Exhibit 2.7 to Noble Cayman’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference).

2.5† Business Combination Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2021, by and among Noble Corporation, Noble Finco Limited (n/k/a Noble Corporation plc), Noble
Newco Sub Limited and The Drilling Company of 1972 A/S (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Noble Cayman’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 10, 2021 and
incorporated herein by reference).

2.6 2.3 Amendment No. 1 to Business Combination Agreement, dated as of August 5, 2022, by and among Noble Corporation plc, Noble Corporation, Noble Newco Sub
Limited and The Drilling Company of 1972 A/S. (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Noble Cayman’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 5, 2022 and incorporated
herein by reference).

2.7† 2.4 Asset Purchase Agreement  and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 23, 2022 June 9, 2024, by and among Noble Corporation plc, Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc.,
Dolphin Merger Sub 1, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries, Shelf Drilling (North Sea), Ltd., and Shelf Drilling, Ltd. Dolphin Merger Sub 2, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to
Noble Cayman’s Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 23, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference).

2.8†^ Deed of Amendment relating to the Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 25, 2022, by and among Noble Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries,
Shelf Drilling (North Sea), Ltd., and Shelf Drilling, Ltd (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Noble Cayman’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 31, 2022 June 10, 2024
and incorporated herein by reference).

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Association of Noble Corporation plc (“Noble”) (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September
30, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference).

4.1 Indenture, dated as of April 18, 2023, by and among Noble Finance II LLC, the subsidiaries of Noble Finance II LLC named therein, as guarantors, and U.S. Bank
Trust Company, National Association, as trustee paying agent and registrar (including the form of 8.000% Senior Note due 2030 included therein) (filed as Exhibit
4.1 to Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 18, 2023 and incorporated herein by reference).
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Exhibit

Number 4.2

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 22, 2024, among Noble Finance II LLC, as issuer, the guarantors listed on the signature pages thereto and
U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee, paying agent and registrar (filed as Exhibit 4.3 to Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August
22, 2024 and incorporated herein by reference).

4.2 4.3 Indenture, dated as of September 21, 2023, among Diamond Foreign Asset Company and Diamond Finance, LLC, as issuers, Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc., as
a guarantor, the other subsidiaries of Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc. party thereto from time to time, as guarantors, and HSBC Bank USA, National Association,
as trustee and collateral agent (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2023 and incorporated
herein by reference).

4.4 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 4, 2024, among Diamond Foreign Asset Company and Diamond Finance, LLC, as issuers, Diamond Offshore
Drilling, Inc., as existing company, Dolphin Merger Sub 2, Inc., (now known as Noble Offshore Drilling Inc.) as new company, and HSBC Bank USA, National
Association, as trustee and collateral agent (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Noble'’s current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 4, 2024 and incorporated herein
by reference).

4.5** Description of Securities Registered Under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Amended.
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Exhibit


Number Exhibit

10.1* Noble Corporation 2021 plc 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 4.1 to Noble Cayman’s Current Report Noble’s Registration Statement on Form 8-
K S-8 filed on February 24, 2021 September 30, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.2* First Amendment to the Noble Corporation plc 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan, effective as of April 1, 2024 (filed as Exhibit 99.2 to Noble’s Registration Statement
on Form S-8 filed on May 21, 2024 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.3* Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit Award (Officers) under the Noble Corporation 2021 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2022 (2023 Annual Grant, filed as
Exhibit 10.16 to Noble Cayman’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.3* 10.4* Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit Award (Non-Officers) under the Noble Corporation 2021 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2022 (2023 Annual Grant, filed
as Exhibit 10.17 to Noble Cayman’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.4* Form of Performance-Vested Restricted Stock Unit Award (CEO) under the Noble Corporation 2021 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2022 Annual Grant, filed as Exhibit
10.18 to Noble Cayman’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.5* Form of Performance-Vested Restricted Stock Unit Award (CEO) under the Noble Corporation 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2023 Annual Grant, filed as Exhibit
10.18 to Noble Cayman’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.6* Form of Performance-Vested Restricted Stock Unit Award (Non-CEO) under the Noble Corporation 2021 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2022 (2023 Annual
Grant, filed as Exhibit 10.19 to Noble Cayman’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.6* Noble Corporation plc 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Noble’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on September 30, 2022 (No. 333-
267698) and incorporated herein by reference).

10.7* Form of Director Award, effective as of August 2, 2023, under the Noble Corporation plc 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Noble’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.8* Form of Director Restricted Stock Unit Award, effective as of January 25, 2024, under the Noble Corporation 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2024 (2024 & 2025
Annual Grant) Grants, filed as Exhibit 10.8 to Noble’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 and incorporated by reference herein).

10.9* 10.8* Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit Award for Executive Officers, effective as of August 2, 2023, under the Noble Corporation plc 2022 Long-Term Incentive
Plan (2024 & 2025 Annual Grant, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Noble’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 and incorporated herein by
reference).

10.10* 10.9* Form of Performance-Vested Restricted Stock Unit Award, effective as of August 2, 2023, under the Noble Corporation plc 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2024 &
2025 Annual Grant, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Noble’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.11* 10.10* Global Amendment to Employee Time and Performance Restricted Stock Awards Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Noble’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2023 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.12* 10.11*^ Noble Corporation plc Executive Change in Control Severance Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Noble’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2023 and incorporated herein by reference).

Exhibit


Number Exhibit

10.13* 10.12*^ Noble Corporation plc Executive Severance Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Noble’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 and
incorporated herein by reference).
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10.14 Exhibit


Number Exhibit

10.13 Irrevocable Undertaking, dated as of November 10, 2021, by and among APMH Invest A/S, Noble Corporation, Noble Finco Limited and The Drilling Company of
1972 A/S (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Noble Cayman’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 10, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.15 10.14 Form of Indemnification Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 30, 2022 and incorporated herein by
reference).

10.16 10.15 Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2022, by and among Noble Corporation plc, Computershare Inc. and Computershare Trust Company,
N.A. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 30, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.17 10.16 Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2022, by and among Noble Corporation plc, Computershare Inc. and Computershare Trust Company,
N.A. (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 30, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.18 10.17 Tranche 3 Warrant Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2022, by and among Noble Corporation plc, Computershare Inc. and Computershare Trust Company,
N.A. (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 30, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.19 10.18 Assumption Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2022, by and between Noble Corporation plc and Noble Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Noble’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on September 30, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.2 10.19 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of October 3, 2022, by and between Noble Corporation plc and APMH Invest A/S (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Noble’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.21 10.20 Relationship Agreement, dated as of October 3, 2022, by and among Noble Corporation plc, Noble Corporation and APMH Invest A/S (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to
Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.22* 10.21* Transition and Retirement Agreement dated as of February 3, 2023, by and among Noble Services Company LLC, Noble Corporation plc and William E. Turcotte
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2023 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.23* 10.22** Noble Corporation plc 2024 2025 Short-Term Incentive Plan (“STIP”).



10.24 10.23 Amended and Restated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2023, by and among Noble Finance II LLC, Noble International Finance
Company and , Noble Drilling A/S, and any additionalsubsidiaries of Noble Finance II LLC as from time to time designated by Noble Finance II LLC as a
designatedborrower,as borrowers, the lenders and issuing banks party thereto from time to time and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent,
collateral agent and security trustee (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 18, 2023 and incorporated herein by reference).
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Exhibit


Number Exhibit

10.24 First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of June 24, 2024 by and among Noble Finance II LLC,
Noble International Finance Company, as a designated borrower, Noble Drilling A/S, as a designated borrower, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Noble’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 27, 2024 and incorporated herein by reference).

19.1 10.25 Amended and Restated Collateral Agreement and Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2023, among Noble Offshore Drilling, Inc. (formerly known
as Dolphin Merger Sub 2, Inc. and as successor by merger with Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc.), as a grantor, Diamond Foreign Asset Company, as a grantor, the
other grantors from time to time party thereto, HSBC Bank USA, National Association, as credit agreement administrative agent, notes trustee, and collateral agent
and security trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2023 and
incorporated herein by reference).

10.26* Employment Letter, dated December 20, 2022, by and between Noble Services Company LLC and CarolineAlting (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Noble’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.27* Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc. 2021 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Noble’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2024 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.28* First Amendment to the Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc. 2021 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Noble’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2024 and incorporated herein by reference).

19.1** Noble Corporation plc Policy on Trading in Company Stock. Securities.

21.1 List of Subsidiaries of Noble Corporation plc.

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

23.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

31.1 Certification of Robert W. Eifler, Noble, pursuant to the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

31.2 Certification of Richard B. Barker, Noble, pursuant to the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

32.1+ Certification of Robert W. Eifler, Noble, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2+ Certification of Richard B. Barker, Noble, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

97.1 Noble Corporation plc Clawback Policy. Policy (filed as Exhibit 97.1 to Noble’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 and
incorporated by reference herein).
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Exhibit


Number Exhibit

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL
document.

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).

*    Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
**    Filed herewith.

†    Certain portions of the exhibit have been omitted. The Company agrees to furnish a supplemental copy with any omitted information to the SEC upon request.

^    Certain personally identifiable information contained in this exhibit has been redacted pursuant to Item 601(a)(6) of Regulation S-K.

+    Furnished in accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

Noble Corporation plc, a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales

February 23, 2024 18, 2025 By: /s/ Robert W. Eifler

    Robert W. Eifler


President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities
and on the dates indicated.
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/s/ Robert W. Eifler   February 23, 2024 18, 2025

Robert W. Eifler


President and Chief Executive Officer, and Director


(Principal Executive Officer)  

Date

/s/ Richard B. Barker February 23, 2024 18, 2025

Richard B. Barker


Executive Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer


(Principal Financial Officer)

Date

/s/ Jennifer Yeung   February 23, 2024 18, 2025

Jennifer Yeung


Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and Controller


(Principal Accounting Officer)  

Date

/s/ Charles M. Sledge February 23, 2024 18, 2025

Charles M. Sledge


Director and Chairman

Date

/s/ Patrice Douglas February 18, 2025

Patrice Douglas


Director

Date

/s/ Claus V. Hemmingsen February 23, 2024 18, 2025

Claus V. Hemmingsen


Director

Date

/s/ Alan J. Hirshberg February 23, 2024 18, 2025

Alan J. Hirshberg


Director

Date

/s/ Kristin H. Holth February 23, 2024 18, 2025

Kristin H. Holth


Director

Date

/s/ H. Keith Jennings February 23, 2024 18, 2025

H. Keith Jennings


Director

Date

/s/ Alastair J. Maxwell February 23, 2024 18, 2025

Alastair J. Maxwell
Director

Date

/s/ Ann D. Pickard February 23, 2024 18, 2025

Ann D. Pickard


Director

Date

126 112

Exhibit 4.24.5
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

References to “we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company” herein are, unless the context otherwise indicates, to Noble Corporation plc and not to any of its subsidiaries. “$”
indicates US Dollars and “£” indicates British Pounds Sterling.

General

The following sets forth a summary of the material terms of the securities of Noble Corporation plc registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), including certain provisions of United Kingdom (“UK”) law and the material provisions of our Amended and Restated
Articles of Association (the “Articles”). This summary is not intended to be a complete summary of the rights and preferences of such securities and is qualified
entirely by reference to the Articles, the Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2022, by and among the Company, Computershare Inc. and
Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (the “Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement”) and the Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2022, by and
among the Company, Computershare Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (the “Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement”). You should refer to the Articles, the
Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement and the Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement which are included as exhibits to the report to which this exhibit is attached, for a complete
description of the rights and preferences of our securities. The summary below is also qualified by reference to the provisions of the UK Companies Act of 2006 (the
“Companies Act”), as applicable.

Ordinary Shares

Authorized Share Capital. The Company’s authorized share capital consists of (i) A Ordinary Shares denominated in US Dollars with a nominal value of $0.00001
per share (the “A Ordinary Shares”); (ii) B Ordinary Shares denominated in British Pounds Sterling with a nominal value of £1 per share (the “B Ordinary
Shares”); and (iii) Capitalization Shares denominated in US Dollars with a nominal value of $1.00 each (the “Capitalization Shares”).

A Ordinary Shares shall be issued withhave voting rights attached to them (on the basis of one vote per share) and each A Ordinary Share shall rank ranks equally
with all other shares in the capital of the Company that have voting rights for voting purposes. Each A Ordinary Share shall rank ranks equally with all other shares
in the capital of the Company for any dividend declared and for any distribution made on a winding up of the Company.

B Ordinary Shares shall be issued withoutdo not have voting rights attached to them. B Ordinary Shares shall have no entitlement to dividends. B Ordinary Shares
do not have any right to participate in any distribution on a winding up of the Company save that after the return of the nominal value paid up or credited as paid up
on every A Ordinary Share in the capital of the Company and the distribution of £100,000,000 to each holder thereof, each B Ordinary Share shall be entitled to £1.
The B Ordinary Shares may be issued as redeemable shares.

Capitalization Shares shall be issued withoutdo not have voting rights attached to them. Capitalization Shares shall have no entitlement to dividends. Capitalization
Shares do not have any right to participate in any distribution on a winding up of the Company save that after the return of the nominal value paid up or credited as
paid up on every other class of share in the capital of the Company and the distribution of $100,000,000 to each holder thereof, each Capitalization Share shall be
entitled to $1. The Capitalization Shares may be issued as redeemable shares.

Under our Articles, and as permitted by the Companies Act, we do not have a maximum number of shares authorized for issuance.

Dividends. Under the Companies Act, the Company is permitted to declare dividends and make distributions only out of distributable profits.
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Under the Articles, the Board of Directors may from time to time recommend, and the Company may pay, dividends on its outstanding shares in the manner and
upon the terms and conditions provided by the Companies Act and the Articles. Except as otherwise provided by the rights attached to shares of the Company, all
shares of the Company will carry a pro rata entitlement to the receipt of dividends, and no dividend or other monies payable by the Company in respect of a share in
the Company shall bear interest against the Company, unless otherwise provided by the rights attached to the share. Dividends may be declared and paid in any
currency or currencies that the Board of Directors may determine, using an exchange rate selected by the Board of Directors for any currency conversions required.

Shareholder Rights

Voting Rights. Under the Articles, all resolutions at an annual general meeting or other general meeting will be decided on a poll. On a poll each shareholder who is
present, in person or by proxy, at the general meeting, is entitled to one vote for every A Ordinary Share held by such shareholder in the name of that shareholder
on record at the relevant record date. B Ordinary Shares and Capitalization Shares shall be issued withoutdo not have voting rights attached to them.

Under the Companies Act, an ordinary resolution proposed at an annual general meeting or other general meeting of the shareholders requires approval by a
simple majority of the voting rights represented in person or by proxy at the meeting. Matters requiring an ordinary resolution of the shareholders under the
Companies Act include the following:
 

approval of directors’ long-term service contracts, substantial property transactions with or loans to directors;

ratification of acts by directors;
 

the approval of the directors’ remuneration report and remuneration policy;
 

a subdivision or consolidation of share capital;
 

a redenomination of share capital; and

 
authorization of off-market share purchases.

Under the Companies Act, a special resolution proposed at an annual general meeting or other general meeting of the shareholders requires approval by not less
than 75% of the voting rights represented in person or by proxy at the meeting. Matters requiring a special resolution under the Companies Act include the following:

altering a company’s articles of association;
 

re-registration of a company from public to private or from private to public;
 

changing the name of a company (unless otherwise provided for in the company’s articles of association—the Articles permit the company’s name to be
changed by the Board of Directors);

 
varying the class rights of shares, unless otherwise provided for in the articles of association;
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reducing share capital;
 

implementing a scheme of arrangement; and
 

commencing or terminating a member’s voluntary winding up.

Dissolution; Liquidation Rights. The Company may be dissolved and wound up at any time by way of a member’s voluntary  winding up, a creditors’
voluntary winding up, or a compulsory winding up. Generally, a member’s voluntary winding up occurs when the company is solvent and a creditors’ voluntary
winding up occurs when it is insolvent. Both processes are initiated by the company passing a special resolution. A liquidator (a qualified insolvency practitioner)
needs to be appointed for a creditors’ voluntary winding up. Upon dissolution, after satisfaction of the claims of creditors, the assets of the Company would be
distributed to shareholders in accordance with their respective interests.

Preemptive Rights. The Companies Act grants pre-emptive rights on the issue of Ordinary Shares.ordinary shares (save for the allotment of ordinary shares wholly
or partly paid up other than in cash, amongst other exceptions). Consequently, the Board of Directors, save in limited circumstances,where an exemption applies,
can only issue shares if they are first offered to existing ordinary shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings, unlessexcept to the extent a special resolution
has been passed to grant them authority to issue shares on a non pre-emptive basis.disapply pre-emption rights. By special resolution on September 29, 2022May
5, 2022, and as permitted by UK law, the Company opted to excludedisapply pre-emptive rights for a period of five years with respect to the allotment of
27,017,235A ordinary shares. Shareholder approval is necessary no less frequently than every five yearsshares up to renew this authorization.a maximum nominal
amount of US$271.00.

Share Repurchases, Redemptions and Conversions. Subject to the Companies Act, and to any  pre-emptive  rights shareholders may have, the Company may
repurchase any of its own shares (including any redeemable shares, if the Board of Directors should decide to issue any) by way of “off market purchases” with the
prior approval of an ordinary shareholder resolution. Such approval may be for a specific repurchase or constitute a general authority lasting for up to five years from
the date of the resolution, and

renewal of such approval for additional five year terms may be sought more frequently. resolution. However, shares may only be repurchased out of distributable
reserves or, subject to certain exceptions, the proceeds of a fresh issue of shares made for that purpose. The Company authorizedAs of the date of this report, we
have shareholder authority to repurchase of up to 15% per annum of the issued share capital of the Company as of the beginning of each fiscal year for a five
year five-year period commencing on 28 September 2022 (subject to an overall aggregate maximum number of shares to be set forth in the resolution).

Under the Companies Act, the Company may issue shares which will or can be redeemed by the Company or by the holder of such redeemable shares. Our A
Ordinary Shares are not subject to any redemption or exchange provisions.

Under the Companies Act, following the redemption or repurchase of shares, the Company may hold the shares in treasury (and subsequently cancel them, sell
them, or transfer them for the purpose of or under an employees’ share scheme) to the extent it is authorized to do so by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders. . There must at all times be sufficient shares in the Company outstanding that are not held in treasury to satisfy the minimum share capital
requirements under the Companies Act.

Consolidation and Division; Subdivision. Under the Companies Act, the Company may, by ordinary resolution of the shareholders, consolidate all or any of its share
capital into shares of larger amount than its existing shares, or subdivide all or any of its existing shares into shares of a smaller amount than its existing shares.

Reduction of Share Capital. Under the Companies Act, the Company may reduce its capital only by way of a court approved procedure, preceded by the approval of
a majority of three-quartersa special resolution of its shareholders.

General Meetings
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General Meetings of Shareholders. The Company must hold its annual general meeting in each period of six months beginning with the day following its accounting
reference date (which is its accounting year end of December 31). Under English law and the Articles, an annual general meeting must be called by at least 21 clear
days’ notice. Shareholders must be notified of all general meetings at least 21 clear days

prior to the meeting. ThisHowever, the notice period for all general meetings (other than annual general meetings) can be shortened if all the requisite majority of
shareholders who are permitted to attend and votespecified in the Companies Act agree to the shorter notice. “Clear days” means calendar days and excludes
(1) the date on which a notice is given or a request received; and (2) the date of the meeting itself. The notice of the annual general meeting must state the time,
date and place of the meeting and the general nature of the business to be dealt with, and must state whether the meeting is a physical meeting or a hybrid
meeting.

Calling General Meetings of Shareholders. The Articles provide that general meetings of shareholders may be called on the order of the Board of Directors. Under
the Companies Act, one or more shareholders representing at least 5% of the paid-up share capital of the Company carrying voting rights at general meetings have
the right to requisition the holding of an extraordinarya general meeting.

Quorum for Meetings of Shareholders. Under the Articles, except as otherwise provided by law, a quorum shall be members who, present in person (which, in the
case of a corporate member shall include being

present by a representative) or by proxy, together represent at least the majority of the total voting rights of all the members entitled to vote in relation to the
meeting. Certain specified matters require a quorum of two-thirds of the total voting rights, being (i) the adoption of a resolution to remove a serving board member;
and (ii) amendments to certain provisions of the Articles.

Corporate Governance

Under English law and the Articles, the authority for the overall management of the Company is vested in the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may
delegate any of its powers on such terms as it thinks fit in accordance with the Articles and English law, although, the Board of Directors will remain responsible, as
a matter of English law, for the proper management of the affairs of the Company and the directors are not allowed to leave the performance of their duties to
others. The directors must ensure that any delegation is and remains appropriate and that an adequate system of control and supervision is in place.

Size of Board and Vacancies. The Articles provide that the number of directors shall not be less than three nor more than eleven. The Board of Directors has the
power to appoint a person as a director by simple majority resolution, either to fill a vacancy or as an additional position. Under English law and the Articles, the
Company’s shareholders have the power to remove a director without cause by ordinary resolution, irrespective of any provisions in the Articles, provided that 28
clear days’ notice of the resolution is given to the Company.
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Acquisitions

An English private limited company may be acquired in a number of ways, including by means of a “scheme of arrangement” between the company and its
shareholders or by means of a takeover offer.

Compulsory Acquisition of Shares. Under sections 974 to 991 of the Companies Act, if an offeror acquires or contracts to acquire not less than 90% of the shares (in
value and by voting rights), the offeror may give notice, to the holder of any shares to which the offer relates and which the offeror has not acquired or
unconditionally contracted to acquire that he wishes to acquire and is entitled to so acquire those shares on the same terms as the general offer.

Schemes of Arrangement. A “scheme of arrangement” is a statutory procedure under the Companies Act pursuant to which the English courts may approve an
arrangement between an English company and some or all of its shareholders. In a “scheme of arrangement”, the company would make an initial application to the
court to convene a meeting or meetings of its shareholders at which a majority in number of shareholders representing 75% of the voting rights of the shareholders
present and voting either in person or by proxy at the meeting must agree to the arrangement by which they will sell their shares in exchange for the consideration
being offered by the bidder. If the shareholders so agree, the company will return to court to request the court to sanction the arrangement. Upon such a scheme of
arrangement becoming effective in accordance with its terms and the Companies Act, it will bind the company and suchall shareholders.

Takeover Offer. A takeover offer is an offer to acquire all of the outstanding shares of a company (other than shares which at the date of the offer are already held
by the offeror). The offer must be made on identical terms to all holders of shares to which the offer relates. If the offeror, by virtue of acceptances of the offer,
acquires or contracts to acquire morenot less than 90% in par value of the shares  (in value and by voting rights) to which the offer relates, the Companies Act
allows the offeror to give notice to any non-accepting shareholder that the offeror intends to acquire his or her shares through a compulsory

acquisition (also referred to as a “squeeze out”), and the shares of such non-accepting shareholders will be acquired by the offeror six weeks later on the same
terms as the offer, unless the shareholder objects to the English court and the court enters an order that the offeror is not entitled to acquire the shares or specifying
terms of the acquisition different from those of the offer. The Companies Act permits a scheme of arrangement or takeover offer to be made relating only to a
particular class or classes of a company’s shares.

Additionally, Danish takeover restrictions apply to attempted takeovers of the Company. The Danish Takeover Order includes rules concerning public tender offers
for the acquisition of shares admitted to trading on a regulated market (including Nasdaq Copenhagen). Pursuant to the Danish rules on mandatory tender offers, if
a shareholding is transferred, directly or indirectly, in a company with one or more share classes admitted to trading on a regulated market, to an acquirer or to
persons acting in concert with such acquirer, the acquirer and the persons acting in concert with such acquirer, if applicable, shall give all shareholders of the
company the option to dispose of their shares on identical terms, if the acquirer, or the persons acting in concert with such acquirer, as a result of the transfer, gains
control over the company as a result of the transfer. Control exists if the acquirer, or persons acting in concert with such acquirer, directly or indirectly, holds at
least one-third of the voting rights in the company, unless it can be clearly proven in special cases that such ownership does not constitute control. Exemptions from
the mandatory tender offer rules may only be granted under special circumstances by the DFSA. The application of the mandatory tender offer rule could  inter
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alia have a deterrent effect on potential acquirers of our shares if such acquisition would result in a transfer of control over the Company, if this would trigger an
obligation to make a mandatory tender offer.

Disclosure of Interests in Shares

Requirements under the Companies Act. Under English law and the Articles, the Company may give notice to any person who it knows or has reasonable cause to
believe to be interested in our shares (or to have been interested in the previous three years) requiring that person to provide to the Company details of the person’s
interest.

If a shareholder of the Company fails to respond to such a request within 14 calendar days, the Company can impose sanctions on that holder which include the
suspension of voting rights in the relevant shares and, where the relevant shares represent at least 0.25% of the class (excluding treasury shares), the suspension
of dividend and share transfer rights. The Board of Directors may suspend or terminate any and all of the sanctions in its discretion at any time. These sanctions
automatically cease when such shareholder complies with the request.

Requirements under the Exchange Act. Shareholders are subject to certain reporting requirements under the Exchange Act. Shareholders owning more than 5% of
any class of equity securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act must comply with disclosure obligations under Section 13 of the Exchange Act.

Directors and officers of the issuer with a registered class of equity securities, and any person or group that has beneficial ownership of more than 10% of such
class, face additional requirements regarding the disclosure of ownership and equity trading. Each such director, officer, person or group will be considered an
insider under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. Insiders must make an initial filing on Form 3 within 10 days
after the filer’s becoming an insider and must disclose beneficial ownership of all securities of the issuer. Insiders must also file Form 4 reports disclosing
transactions resulting in a change in beneficial ownership within two business days following the execution date of the transaction, except for limited types of
transactions eligible for deferred reporting on Form 5. In addition, insiders are required to report on Form 5 within 45 days after the issuer’s fiscal year-end any
transactions or holdings that should have been, but were not, reported on Form 3 or 4 during the issuer’s most recent fiscal year and any transactions eligible for
deferred reporting.

Requirements under Nasdaq Copenhagen. Shareholders in companies with shares admitted to trading and official listing on Nasdaq Copenhagen are, pursuant to
Section 38 of the Danish Capital Markets Act, required to give simultaneous notice to the company and the Danish Financial Supervisory Authority (“DFSA”) of the
shareholding in the company, when the shareholding reaches, exceeds or falls below thresholds of 5%, 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, 50% or 90% and limits of one-
third or two-thirds of the voting rights or nominal value of the total share capital.

A shareholder in a company means a natural or legal person who, directly or indirectly, holds: (i) shares in the company on behalf of himself/herself/itself and for
his/her/its own account; (ii) shares in the company on behalf of himself/herself/itself, but for the account of another natural or legal person; or (iii) depository receipts,
where such holder is considered a shareholder in relation to the underlying shares represented by the depository receipts.

The duty to notify set forth above further applies to natural and legal persons who are entitled to acquire, sell or exercise voting rights which are:
held by a third party with whom that natural or legal person has concluded an agreement, which obliges them to adopt, by concerted exercise of the voting
rights they hold, a lasting common policy towards the management of the issuer in question (common duty to inform for all parties to the agreement);
held by a third party under an agreement concluded with that natural or legal person providing for the temporary transfer of the voting rights in question in
return for consideration;
attached to shares which are lodged as collateral for that natural or legal person, provided the person controls the voting rights and declares an intention of
exercising them;
attached to shares in which that natural or legal person has a lifelong right of disposal;
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held, or may be exercised within the meaning of (i) to (iv), by an undertaking controlled by that person or entity;
attached to shares deposited with that natural or legal person and which the person can exercise at his/her/its own discretion in the absence of specific
instructions from the shareholders;
held by a third party in its own name on behalf of that person; or
exercisable by that person through a proxy where that person may exercise the voting rights at his/her/its discretion in the absence of specific instructions of
the shareholder.

The duty to notify set forth above also applies to anyone, who directly or indirectly holds (a) financial instruments that afford the holder either an unconditional right
to acquire or the discretion as to his/her/its right to acquire existing shares (e.g., share options); and/or (b) financial instruments based on existing shares and with
an economic effect equal to that of the financial instruments mentioned in (a), regardless of them not affording the right to purchase existing shares (e.g., cash-
settled derivatives linked to the value of the shares in question). Holding these kinds of financial instruments counts towards the thresholds mentioned above and
may thus trigger a duty to notify by itself or when accumulated with a shareholding.

The notification shall be made promptly but no later than four weekdays after the shareholder was aware or should have become aware of the completion of the
transaction, and in accordance with the provisions of Danish Executive Order no. 1172 of 31 October 2017 on Major Shareholders. The shareholder is deemed to
have become aware of the completion of the transaction two weekdays after the completion of the transaction. The shareholder shall disclose the change in voting
rights and shares, including the number of voting rights (and thedistribution of voting rights among share classes, if applicable) and shares held directly or indirectly
by the shareholder following the transaction. The notification shall further state the transaction date on which the threshold was reached or no longer reached and
the identity of the shareholder as well as the identity of any natural or legal person with the right to vote on behalf of the shareholder and in the case of a group
structure, the chain of controlled undertakings through which voting rights are effectively held. The information shall be notified to the company and simultaneously
submitted electronically to the DFSA. Failure to comply with the notification requirements is punishable by fine or suspension of voting rights in instances of gross or
repeated non-compliance.

When an obligation to notify rests on more than one natural or legal person the notification may be made through a joint notification. However, use of a joint
notification does not exempt the individual shareholders or natural or legal persons from their responsibilities in connection with the obligation to notify or the
contents of the notification. After receipt of the notification, the company shall promptly, but not later than three weekdays thereafter, publish the contents of the
notification.

A similar duty, as set forth above, also applies to a company’s holding of treasury shares. A company with shares admitted to trading and official listing on Nasdaq
Copenhagen is required to promptly, but not later than four weekdays thereafter, publish an announcement specifying the company’s, direct or indirect, holding of
treasury shares, when the holding reaches, exceeds or falls below the thresholds of 5% or 10% of the voting rights or the nominal value of the share capital. This
duty applies regardless of whether the company holds the treasury shares itself or through a person acting in his own name but on the company’s behalf.

The Short Selling Regulation (236/2012/EU) includes certain notification requirements in connection with short selling and imposes restrictions on uncovered short
selling of shares admitted to trading on a trading venue (including Nasdaq Copenhagen).

When a natural or legal person reaches, exceeds or falls below a net short position of 0.2% of the issued share capital of a company that has shares admitted to
trading on a trading venue, such person shall make
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a notification to the relevant competent authority, which in Denmark is the DFSA. The obligation to notify the DFSA, moreover, applies in each case where the net
short position reaches, exceeds or falls below each 0.1% threshold above the 0.2% threshold. In addition, when a natural or legal person reaches, exceeds or falls
below a net short position of 0.5% of the issued share capital of a company that has shares admitted to trading on a trading venue in the European Union and each
0.1% above that, such person shall make a public notification of its net short position via the DFSA. The notification requirements apply to both physical and
synthetic short positions. In addition uncovered short selling (naked short selling) of shares admitted to trading on a trading venue is prohibited.

A natural or legal person is prohibited from entering into a short sale of shares admitted to trading on a trading venue unless one of the following conditions is
satisfied: (i) the natural or legal person has borrowed the share or has made alternative provisions resulting in a similar legal effect; (ii) the natural or legal person
has entered into an agreement to borrow the share or has another absolutely enforceable claim under contract or property law to be transferred ownership of a
corresponding number of securities of the same class so that settlement can be effected when it is due; or (iii) the natural or legal person has an arrangement with a
third party under which that third party has confirmed that the share has been located and has taken measures vis-à-vis third parties necessary for the natural or
legal person to have a reasonable expectation that settlement can be effected when it is due. Certain exemptions apply to the prohibition, such as in the case of
market-makers or in connection with stabilization in accordance with the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2016/1052.

Tranche 1 Warrants

Exercise. The Tranche 1 Warrants are exercisable for one A Ordinary Share per Tranche 1 Warrant at an initial exercise price of $19.27 per Tranche 1 Warrant, as
may be adjusted from time to time pursuant to the Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement (the “Tranche 1 Exercise Price”). The Tranche 1 Warrants are exercisable until
5:00 p.m., Eastern time, on February 4, 2028, at which time all unexercised Tranche 1 Warrants will expire and the rights of the holders of such Tranche 1 Warrants
to purchase A Ordinary Shares will terminate. Each of the Tranche 1 Warrants is exercisable by a holder paying the Tranche 1 Exercise Price therefor in cash or on
a cashless basis, at the election of the holder, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement.

Anti-Dilution Adjustments. The number of A Ordinary Shares for which a Tranche 1 Warrant is exercisable, and the Tranche 1 Exercise Price therefor, are subject to
adjustment from time to time upon the occurrence of certain events, including share sub-division, consolidation, capitalization, certain offers by the Company to
repurchase Ordinary Shares, dividends and distributions of cash, other securities or other property and certain rights offerings.

No Rights as Shareholders. Pursuant to the Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement, no holder of Tranche 1 Warrants shall have or exercise any rights held by holders of A
Ordinary Shares solely by virtue thereof

as a holder of Tranche 1 Warrants, including the right to vote and to receive dividends and other distributions as a holder of Ordinary Shares.

Mandatory Exercise. The Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement provides that, from and after the date on which the Tranche 1 Mandatory Exercise Condition (as described
below) has occurred and is continuing, each of the Company, on the one hand, and holders of Tranche 1 Warrants holding greater than 1,666,616 Tranche 1
Warrants or, if 1,666,616 or fewer Tranche 1 Warrants remain outstanding, all holders of Tranche 1 Warrants (the “Tranche 1 Required Mandatory Exercise
Warrantholders”), on the other hand, have the right and option (but not the obligation) to (i) in the case of the Company, cause all of the Tranche 1 Warrants, and
(ii) in the case of the electing Tranche 1 Required Mandatory Exercise Warrantholders, cause all of their respective Tranche 1 Warrants, to be automatically
exercised on a cashless basis upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein (a “Tranche 1 Mandatory Exercise”). Pursuant to the Tranche 1
Warrant Agreement, the “Tranche 1 Mandatory Exercise Condition” has occurred if (i) the Company meets or exceeds certain trading price and volume
thresholds or (ii) three and one-half years have elapsed since February 5, 2021. A Tranche 1 Mandatory Exercise entitles the holder of each Tranche 1 Warrant
subject thereto to (i) the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of such Tranche 1 Warrant on a cashless basis and (ii) an amount payable in cash,
Ordinary Shares or a combination thereof (in the Company’s sole discretion) equal to Black Scholes
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Value (as defined in the Tranche 1 Warrant Agreement) multiplied by a fraction, (A) the numerator of which is (x) the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon
exercise of such Tranche 1 Warrant on a cash basis minus (y) the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of such Tranche 1 Warrant on a cashless
basis, and (B) the denominator of which is the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of such Tranche 1 Warrant on a cash basis.

As of February 15, 2024February 14, 2025, there were 1,112,314886,427 Tranche 1 Warrants outstanding.

Tranche 2 Warrants

Exercise. The Tranche 2 Warrants are exercisable for one A Ordinary Share per Tranche 2 Warrant at an initial exercise price of $23.13 per Tranche 2 Warrant, as
may be adjusted from time to time pursuant to the Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement (the “Tranche 2 Exercise Price”). The Tranche 2 Warrants are exercisable until
5:00 p.m., Eastern time, on February 4, 2028, at which time all unexercised Tranche 2 Warrants will expire and the rights of the holders of such Tranche 2 Warrants
to purchase A Ordinary Shares will terminate. Each of the Tranche 2 Warrants is exercisable by a holder paying the Tranche 2 Exercise Price therefor in cash or on
a cashless basis, at the election of the holder, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement.

Anti-Dilution Adjustments. The number of A Ordinary Shares for which a Tranche 2 Warrant is exercisable, and the Tranche 2 Exercise Price therefor, are subject to
adjustment from time to time upon the occurrence of certain events, including share sub-division, consolidation, capitalization, certain offers by the Company to
repurchase A Ordinary Shares, dividends and distributions of cash, other securities or other property and certain rights offerings.

No Rights as Shareholders. Pursuant to the Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement, no holder of Tranche 2 Warrants shall have or exercise any rights held by holders of A
Ordinary Shares solely by virtue thereof as a holder of Tranche 2 Warrants, including the right to vote and to receive dividends and other distributions as a holder of
A Ordinary Shares.

Mandatory Exercise. The Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement provides that, from and after the date on which the Tranche 2 Mandatory Exercise Condition (as described
below) has occurred and is continuing, each of the Company, on the one hand, and holders of Tranche 2 Warrants holding greater than 1,666,616 Tranche 2
Warrants or, if 1,666,616 or fewer Tranche 2 Warrants remain outstanding, all holders of Tranche 2 Warrants (the “Tranche 2 Required Mandatory Exercise
Warrantholders”), on the other hand, have the right and option (but not the obligation) to (i) in the case of the Company, cause all of the Tranche 2 Warrants, and
(ii) in the case of the electing Tranche 2 Required Mandatory Exercise Warrantholders, cause all of their respective Tranche 2 Warrants, to be automatically
exercised on a cashless basis upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein (a “Tranche 2 Mandatory Exercise”).

Pursuant to the Tranche 2 Warrant Agreement, the “Tranche 2 Mandatory Exercise Condition” has occurred if (i) the Company meets or exceeds certain trading
price and volume thresholds or (ii) three and one-half years have elapsed since February 5, 2021. A Tranche 2 Mandatory Exercise entitles the holder of each
Tranche 2 Warrant subject thereto to (i) the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of such Tranche 2 Warrant on a cashless basis and (ii) an amount
payable in cash, Ordinary Shares or a combination thereof (in the Company’s sole discretion) equal to Black Scholes Value (as defined in the Tranche 2 Warrant
Agreement) multiplied by a fraction, (A) the numerator of which is (x) the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of such Tranche 2 Warrant on a cash
basis minus (y) the number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of such Tranche 2 Warrant on a cashless basis, and (B) the denominator of which is the
number of Ordinary Shares issuable upon exercise of such Tranche 2 Warrant on a cash basis.
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As of February 15, 2024February 14, 2025, there were 1,144,741942,606 Tranche 2 Warrants outstanding.

Anti-Takeover Provisions

Takeover offers and certain other transactions in respect of certain publicUK companies are regulated by the Takeover Code, which is administered by the Takeover
Panel, a body consisting of representatives of the City of London financial and professional institutions which oversees the conduct of takeovers (the “Takeover
Panel”).

An English public limited company such as the Company is potentially subject to the protections afforded by the Takeover Code if, among other factors, a majority of
its directors are resident within the UK, the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man. Based upon Company’s current and intended plans for its directors, the Company
does not believe that the Takeover Code applies to the Company. However, it is possible that, in the future, circumstances could change that may cause the
Takeover Code to apply to the Company.

The protections afforded by the Takeover Code include the requirement that if (i) a person acquires an interest in shares in a company to which the Takeover Code
applies, which when taken together with shares already held by him or persons acting in concert with him, carry 30% or more of the voting rights in the company or
(ii) a person who, together with persons acting in concert with him, has an interest in not less than 30% of the voting rights of the company but does not hold shares
carrying more than 50% of the voting rights in the company acquires additional interests in shares which increase the percentage of shares carrying voting rights in
which that person has an interest, the acquiror and, depending on the circumstances, its concert parties, would be required (except with the consent of the Takeover
Panel) to make a cash offer for the outstanding shares in the company at a price not less than the highest price paid for any interests in the shares by the acquiror
or its concert parties during the previous 12 months.

Following Brexit, it is not clear, and the Takeover Panel and the DFSA would need to be consulted with if the Takeover Code ever applied to the Company, how the
takeover restrictions in each of the Takeover Code and the Danish Takeover Order would both be applied to the Company if the Takeover Code applied to the
Company. The potential application of two differing sets of takeover restrictions could, inter alia, have a deterrent effect on potential acquirers of shares if such
acquisition would trigger an obligation to make a mandatory bid and/or a mandatory tender offer, as applicable.

Additionally, Danish takeover restrictions apply to attempted takeovers of the Company. The Danish Takeover Order includes rules concerning public tender offers
for the acquisition of shares admitted to trading on a regulated market (including Nasdaq Copenhagen). Pursuant to the Danish rules on mandatory tender offers, if
a shareholding is transferred, directly or indirectly, in a company with one or more share classes admitted to trading on a regulated market, to an acquirer or to
persons acting in concert with such acquirer, the acquirer and the persons acting in concert with such acquirer, if applicable, shall give all shareholders of the
company the option to dispose of their shares on identical terms, if the acquirer, or the persons acting in concert with such acquirer, as a result of the transfer, gains
control over the company as a result of the transfer. Control exists if the acquirer, or persons acting in concert with such acquirer, directly or indirectly, holds at
least one-third of the voting rights in the company, unless it can be clearly proven in special cases that such ownership does not constitute control. Exemptions from
the mandatory tender offer rules may only be granted under special circumstances by the DFSA. The application of the mandatory tender offer rule could  inter
alia have a deterrent effect on potential acquirers of our shares if such acquisition would result in a transfer of control over the Company, if this would trigger an
obligation to make a mandatory tender offer.

Transfer Agent and Warrant Agent

The transfer agent for our ordinary shares and warrant agent for our warrants is Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Our shares may be held in either certificated
or uncertificated form. Under the Articles, subject to the Companies Act, certificated shares may be transferred by an instrument of transfer (in any usual form), duly
executed, with such evidence as the Board of Directors may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer.
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Exhibit 10.8

NOBLE CORPORATION PLC
DIRECTOR RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD

THIS INSTRUMENT (this “Instrument”), made effective as of the [____] day of [_______] 202[_] (the “Effective Date”) by Noble Corporation
plc, a company organized under the laws of England and Wales (the “Company”) evidences the Restricted Stock Units (as defined in the Plan)
awarded hereunder to [NAME] (“Director”) and sets forth the restrictions, terms and conditions that apply thereto.

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) acting under the Noble Corporation plc 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the
“Plan”) has determined that it is desirable to award Restricted Stock Units to Director pursuant to the Plan; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Plan, the Board has determined that the Restricted Stock Units so awarded shall be subject to the restrictions,
terms and conditions set forth in this Instrument;

NOW, THEREFORE, the award of Restricted Stock Units is hereby granted to Director as follows:

1. Restricted Stock Unit Award. On the terms and conditions and subject to the restrictions, including forfeiture, hereinafter set forth, the
Company hereby awards [_____] Restricted Stock Units (the “Awarded Restricted Stock Units”) to Director pursuant to the Plan. The Awarded
Restricted Stock Units are being awarded to Director effective as of the Effective Date and shall vest or be forfeited in accordance with (and
otherwise be subject to) the provisions of this Instrument. The Awarded Restricted Stock Units are being awarded to Director without the payment
of any cash consideration by Director, except that payment of nominal value in respect of the Shares hereunder may be required by the
Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) or pursuant to procedures of the Committee in respect of the allotment and issuance,
transfer or delivery of such Shares.

2. Vesting, Settlement, and Forfeiture. Except as set forth in Section 3 of this Instrument, the Awarded Restricted Stock Units shall vest,
settle, and the forfeiture restrictions applicable to them under this Instrument shall terminate in accordance with the provisions of the attached
Schedule I, provided that Director remains a director of the Company or an affiliate from the Effective Date to the date of vesting. Any Awarded
Restricted Stock Units that have not already vested shall be forfeited by Director upon the termination of Director’s service as a director with the
Company or an affiliate for, or as a result of, Cause. Upon the occurrence of any such forfeiture event, Director agrees to enter into any
transactions or other arrangements, as determined by the Company to be necessary, with the Company or an affiliate in order to effect such
forfeiture.



As used herein, “Cause” means Director’s removal from the Board or resignation for or as a result of: (i) the willful and continued failure of Director to
perform substantially all of the Director’s duties; (ii) the Director engaging in illegal conduct or gross misconduct that is materially and demonstrably
detrimental to the Company and/or its affiliates, monetarily or otherwise; (iii) the Director committing a material breach of the terms of any material
policy of the Company and/or its affiliates applicable to the Director, or any other agreement with the Company and/or its affiliates, including any
agreement containing restrictive covenants to which the Director is a party, which breach, to the extent curable, is not cured within 15 days following
receipt of written notice from the Company (or an affiliate); or (iv) the Director is indicted on charges of, is convicted of, or enters into a plea of guilty or
nolo contendere to (A) a felony; or (B) a crime involving any of fraud, material dishonesty, or moral turpitude.

3. Acceleration of Vesting. The Awarded Restricted Stock Units that have not already vested or been forfeited shall become fully vested
and no longer subject to any forfeiture restrictions under this Instrument (i) if Director’s service as a director with the Company or an affiliate
terminates for any reason other than for, or as a result of, Cause or (ii) upon the occurrence of a Change in Control (as defined in the Noble
Corporation plc Executive Change in Control Severance Plan).
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4. Allotment and Issuance of Shares. As soon as practicable following the date any Awarded Restricted Stock Unit is settled in
accordance with Section 2, such Awarded Restricted Stock Unit shall be cancelled. Shares issued pursuant to this Instrument may not be registered
under the United States Securities Act of 1933, and the issuance of Shares under this Instrument is subject to any restrictions or conditions required
by the Committee pursuant to Section 15 of the Plan.

5. No Rights as Shareholder. Director shall have no rights as a shareholder of the Company, including, without limitation, voting rights or
the right to receive dividends and distributions as a shareholder, with respect to the Shares subject to the Awarded Restricted Stock Units, unless
and until and to the extent such Shares are allotted and issued or transferred to Director as provided herein.

6. Dividend Equivalents. In connection with the Awarded Restricted Stock Units the Company hereby awards to Director Dividend
Equivalents with respect to any cash dividends payable with respect to the Shares. Such cash Dividend Equivalents shall be payable at the same
time, and shall be subject to the same conditions, that are applicable to the Awarded Restricted Stock Units, and shall be payable in the form of a
number of Shares (rounded down to nearest whole Share) equal to the amount of such cash Dividend Equivalents divided by the Fair Market Value
of a Share at the time of vesting, or shall be payable in cash in the sole discretion of the Board. Accordingly, the right to receive such cash Dividend
Equivalent payments shall be forfeited to the extent that the Awarded Restricted Stock Units do not vest, are forfeited or are otherwise cancelled
pursuant to this Instrument.

7. Arrangements and Procedures Regarding Withholding Taxes.

(a) Director shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Committee for the payment of taxes of any kind that are required by law to be
withheld with respect to the Awarded Restricted Stock Units or the Dividend Equivalents awarded under this Instrument, including, without limitation,
taxes applicable to (i) the awarding of the Awarded Restricted Stock Units or the allotment and issuance or transfer of Shares in settlement thereof,
or (ii) the awarding of the Dividend Equivalents or the payments made with respect thereto.

(b) Unless and until the Committee shall determine otherwise and provide notice to Director in accordance with Section 7(c), any obligation
of Director under Section 7(a) that arises with respect to the allotment and issuance, transfer or delivery of Shares in settlement of Awarded
Restricted Stock Units that have become vested may be satisfied, in accordance with procedures adopted by the Committee, by (i) Director’s
forfeiture or surrender of the right to require the Company to allot and issue, transfer or deliver Shares subject to such Awarded Restricted Stock
Units, (ii) causing such Awarded Restricted Stock Units to be settled partly in

cash or (iii) otherwise withholding a portion of such Shares. In the case of Shares as to which the right to require allotment and issuance, transfer or
delivery is forfeited or surrendered pursuant to clause
(i) and Shares withheld pursuant to clause (iii) such Shares or rights shall be valued at the Fair Market Value (of such Shares or the Shares to which
such rights relate, as the case may be) as of the date on which the taxable event that gives rise to the withholding requirement occurs.

(c) The Committee may determine, after the Effective Date and on notice to Director, to authorize one or more arrangements (in addition to
or in lieu of the arrangement described in Section 7(b)) satisfactory to the Committee for Director to satisfy the obligation of Director under Section
7(a).

(d) If Director does not, for whatever reason, satisfy the obligation of Director under Section 7(a), then the Company and its affiliates shall,
to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct from any payments of any kind otherwise due to Director the amount required to satisfy the
obligation of Director under such Section 7(a).

8. Non-Assignability. This Instrument is not assignable or transferable by Director. No right or interest of Director under this Instrument or
the Plan may be assigned, transferred or alienated, in whole or in part, either directly or by operation of law (except pursuant to a qualified domestic
relations order within the meaning of Section 414(p) of the Code or a similar domestic relations order under applicable foreign law, either in such
form as is acceptable to the Committee), and no such right or interest shall be liable for or subject to any debt, obligation or liability of Director.

9. Defined Terms; Plan Provisions. Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the capitalized terms used (and not otherwise defined)
in this Instrument shall have the meanings assigned to them under the provisions of the Plan. The Awarded Restricted Stock Units and the Dividend
Equivalents subject to this Instrument shall be governed by and subject to all applicable provisions of the Plan. This Instrument is subject to the
Plan, and the Plan shall govern where there is any inconsistency between the Plan and this Instrument.

10. Governing Law. This Instrument shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas,
without regard to the principles of conflicts of laws thereof, except to the extent Texas law is preempted by federal law of the United States or by the
laws of England and Wales.
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11. Binding Effect. This Instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal
representatives, successors and permitted assigns.

12. Prior Communications; Amendment. This Instrument, together with any Schedules and Exhibits and any other writings referred to
herein or delivered pursuant hereto, evidences the Award granted hereunder, which shall be subject to the restrictions, terms and conditions hereof,
and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. To
the fullest extent provided by applicable law, this Instrument may only be amended, modified and supplemented in accordance with the applicable
terms and conditions set forth in the Plan.

13. Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given if directed in the manner
specified below, to the parties at the following addresses and numbers:

(a) If to the Company, when delivered by hand or mail (registered or certified mail with postage prepaid) to:

Noble Corporation plc
13135 Dairy Ashford Rd. #800 Sugar Land, TX 77478 Attention: Corporate Secretary
Email: Legal@noblecorp.com

(b) If to Director, when delivered by hand or mail (registered or certified mail with postage prepaid) to:

The last known address and number for Director as maintained in the personnel records of the Company

For purposes of this Section 13, the Company shall provide Director with written notice of any change of the Company’s address, and Director shall
be responsible for providing the Company with proper notice of any change of Director’s address, and from and after the giving of such notice the
address or addresses therein specified will be deemed to be the address of such party for the purposes of giving notice hereunder.

14. Severability. If any provision of this Instrument is held to be unenforceable, this Instrument shall be considered divisible and such
provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent it is deemed unenforceable, and in all other respects the restrictions, terms and conditions set
forth in this Instrument shall remain in full force and effect; provided, however, that if any such provision may be made enforceable by limitation
thereof, then such provision shall be deemed to be so limited and shall be enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law.

15. Descriptive Headings. The descriptive headings herein are inserted for convenience of reference only, do not constitute a part of this
Instrument, and shall not affect in any manner the meaning or interpretation of this Instrument.

16. Gender. Pronouns in masculine, feminine and neuter genders shall be construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular
form shall be construed to include the plural and vice versa, unless the context otherwise requires.

17. References. The words “this Instrument,” “herein,” “hereof,” “hereby,” “hereunder” and words of similar import refer to this Instrument as
a whole and not to any particular subdivision unless expressly so limited. Whenever the words “include,” “includes” and “including” are used in this
Instrument, such words shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation.”

18. Unfunded Awards. The awards made under this Instrument are unfunded and unsecured obligations and rights to provide or receive
compensation in accordance with the provisions hereof, and to the extent that Director acquires a right to receive compensation from the Company
or an affiliate pursuant to this Instrument, such right shall be no greater than the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Company or such
affiliate.

19. Compliance with Code Section 409A. The compensation payable to or with respect to Director pursuant to the Awarded Restricted
Stock Units is intended to be compensation that is compliant with Code Section 409A or not subject to the tax imposed by Code Section 409A, and
this Instrument shall be administered and construed to the fullest extent possible to reflect and implement such intent.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has signed and delivered this Instrument as of the date first above written.

NOBLE CORPORATION PLC

[_______________]
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
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SCHEDULE I
NOBLE CORPORATION PLC

VESTING AND SETTLEMENT PERIODS
FOR AWARD OF DIRECTOR RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS

TERMS FOR GRANT

The Committee has determined that the following vesting and settlement time periods shall be applicable to the Awarded Restricted Stock
Units awarded pursuant to this Instrument:

Vesting Period

All of the Awarded Restricted Stock Units shall vest and no longer be subject to forfeiture on [________] [__], 202[_].

Settlement

Unless an election is made otherwise, all Awarded Restricted Stock Units that have vested in accordance with this Instrument shall settle on
the trading date on or next following the date of vesting. Awards will settle in two parts, 60 percent of Fair Market Value (as defined in the Plan) will
be paid in Shares and 40 percent of Fair Market Value will be paid in cash.

6
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NOBLE CORPORATION PLC

20242025 Short-Term Incentive Plan (“STIP”)

Plan Overview, Terms and Conditions

Plan Purpose

The success of Noble Corporation plc (“Noble”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) is a result of the efforts of all key employees. To
focus each employee’s efforts on optimizing the Company’s performance, the Company maintains this Short-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) to
reward employees for successful achievement of specific Company goals.

An effective incentive plan should both align employee interests with those of shareholders and motivate and influence employee behavior. Key
positions within the Company have the ability to make a positive contribution to key factors that increase shareholder value. These factors can be
quantified and measured through achievement of various targets. The objectives of using such targets in the formulation of the specific Company
goals are to link an employee’s annual incentive award more closely to the metrics that most directly benefit shareholders within existing market
conditions and to promote a culture of high performance and an environment of teamwork.

Eligibility and Participation

Full-time shore-based employees and select offshore employees are eligible for consideration of a cash payment under the Plan (a “Payment”),
subject to, for executive officers of Noble, the approval of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of Noble (the “Committee”) and, for
all other employees, the approval of the President and Chief Executive Officer of Noble (the “CEO”), or their designee.
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To be eligible to receive a Payment with respect to a Plan year, an employee must be actively employed by the Company on the last day of such Plan
year and must continue to be employed through the date on which Payments for such Plan year are made. An employee shall not be eligible to
receive any Payment if the employee’s employment with the Company terminates for any reason, either voluntarily or involuntarily (except as noted
below), before that date on which Payments for a Plan year are made. The Committee has the discretion to revise these requirements on a case-by-
case basis to the extent the Committee deems it necessary or desirable. The Plan year is also the calendar year unless otherwise specified.

In the event of death, disability or retirement, the employee or estate of the former employee may receive a Payment, at the discretion of the CEO;
provided that, for executive officers of Noble,

such decision will be at the discretion of the Committee. For purposes of the Plan, “disability” means any termination of employment with the Company
because of a long-term or total disability, as determined by the Company’s disability insurance programs. “Retirement” means a

termination of employment with the Company on a voluntary basis by a person if, immediately prior to such termination of employment, the sum of the
age and the number of years of continuous service of such person with the Company is equal to or greater than 65 and the employee has attained the
age of 55.

Plan Funding

See Exhibit 1 for details on the Company’s specific goals and associated performance targets, and their weighting, for the Award Pool. Generally, the
performance targets of each goal are structured to include a Threshold, Target and Maximum level of achievement. The Threshold is the minimum
level of achievement. If performance is below Threshold for a goal, it will yield no funding associated with that goal. If performance is above Maximum
for a goal, it will be capped at the Maximum 200% funding associated with that goal.

The Award Pool available will be determined first by multiplying the sum of the target bonuses for all eligible employees at the end of the year
(“Aggregate Target Bonuses”) by the Company’s weighted performance as measured by the performance results against the pre-established goals.

The Award Pool will be allocated as described in the next sections.

Individual Target Bonus

The target bonus for an employee is an amount equal to the employee’s salary at the end of the Plan year multiplied by their assigned target bonus
percentage. Target bonuses range from 4%5% to 130% of salary. The assigned targets are based on competitive market data and internal equity
considerations and are reviewed each year. Note that, for purposes of calculating the Aggregate Target Bonuses, a target bonus percentage of up to
6% will be used for those employees covered under the Plan that do not have a target bonus percentage.

Company Goals

The 20242025 goals and associated performance targets, and their weighting, are provided in Exhibit 1 (as may be amended and restated from time
to time at the discretion of the Committee).
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In administering the Plan and reviewing the Company’s performance, the Committee may take into consideration the effect of any subsequent events,
such as acquisitions, impairments, spin-offs or sales of assets, or any unusual or non- recurring item or any unforeseen event that impacts the
Company and distorts its results and may make resulting adjustments to goals or to performance targets. After the end of each Plan year, the
Committee, in its best business judgment, will make the final determination on the size of the Award Pool for such Plan year.

Determination of Individual Awards

Target bonuses will be adjusted based on the Company’s results against the Plan’s performance targets (see Exhibit 1). This will be an employee’s
Adjusted Target Bonus. For example, if an

employee’s target bonus is $10,000, and the certified performance multiple is 1.20, their Adjusted Target Bonus would be $12,000.

Each employee’s Adjusted Target Bonus maywill be further adjusted (i) to account, pro rata, for length of service or time in position for individual’s
hired or promoted during the Plan year, (ii) upward by up to 20%, or (iii) downwards by up to 100%, to reflect, in the situation of (ii) and (iii), merit,
individual or team performance, employee conduct, separation of employment, or any additional selected criteria. Such adjustments for executive
officers of Noble will be determined

by the Committee and such adjustments for all other employees will be determined by the CEO, or their designee.

The cumulative total of all Adjusted Target Bonuses, as further adjusted by permitted discretion detailed in the paragraph above, will be the “Aggregate
Calculated Pool”. If on a cumulative basis the sum of the awards in the Aggregate Calculated Pool is greater than the Award Pool, bonuses will be
adjusted on a pro-rata basis to remain within the constraints of the Award Pool.

At-Will Employment

Nothing in the Plan guarantees or constitutes a contract for any specific term of employment or otherwise limits the Company’s or an employee’s right
to terminate the employment relationship for any reason at any time.

Exhibit 1

20242025 STIP Goals, Performance Targets and Weightings
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Exhibit 19.1
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Noble Corporation PLC
Policy on Trading in Company StockSecurities

Introduction

INTRODUCTION

The following Noble Corporation plc Policy on Trading in Company StockSecurities (the “Policy”) has been adopted by the Board of Directors of Noble
Corporation plc (the (“Noble,” or, together with its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires, the “Company”). Violation of the
insider trading prohibitions under applicable securities laws triggers strict sanctions. A violator may be liable for any profit made or loss avoided,
monetary fines, adverse employment actions, imprisonment, and criminal prosecution.

    YOU SHOULD READ THE POLICY CAREFULLY AND IN ITS ENTIRETY.You should read the policy carefully and in its entirety. As described in the Policy, its basic
coverage applies to all directors, officers, employees, and agents of the Company, and their Closely Associated Persons (as defined in the Policy), and the Addendum (the
“Addendum”) to the Policy applies to the directors and certain officers subject to Section 16 under the Securities Exchange Act of Noble Corporation plc 1934, as amended
(“Officers”), (and their Closely Associated Persons, as defined in the Addendum) and certain designated employees and consultants who have been designated as Covered
Persons (as defined in the Addendum).  and their Closely Associated Persons. The Company will notify you in writing if you are subject to the Addendum.

Directors and certain officers Officers of Noble Corporation plc (and their Closely Associated Persons), in addition to being subject generally to the Addendum, are subject to the pre-

clearance procedures and reporting obligations described in the Addendum. These individuals may not engage in any transaction involving the purchase, sale,or or gifting of

ordinary shares of the Company (“Company Stock”) or other securities of the Company (“Company Securities”) without first obtaining pre-clearance of the transaction from the
Company’s Pre-clearance

Updated Oct. 2023

Pre-Clearance Officer (as defined in the Addendum) in accordance with the procedures of the Policy. The Pre-Clearance Approval Form and the
Reporting Form, each set forth immediately following the Policy, should be used for the purpose of obtaining such pre-clearance approval and
reporting such complete transaction, respectively.
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Noble Corporation PLC1 Scope

Policy on Trading in Company Stock

Coverage:    This policy applies to the directors, officers, employees and agents of Noble Corporation plc (“Noble”, or, together with its consolidated
subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires, the “Company”) and is intended to facilitate compliance by such insiders with laws
relating to insider trading.

Scope:        This policy relates to any purchase, sale, or gift of Company Stock and Company Securities.

1.) Stock Options. Generally, this policy does not relate to “direct” (as opposed to “cashless”) exercises of options to purchase Company Stock stock (i.e., share purchases
pursuant to the exercise of Company stock options where no sale of the underlying shares is involved). This policy does relate to any sale of shares of Company
Stock stock purchased pursuant to an option, including by ‘cashless’ “cashless” exercise, as well as any sale or gift of an option itself.

2.) Deferred Compensation Plan. This policy relates to acquisitions or dispositions of Company Stock stock made within any of the Company’s deferred
compensation plans when such transactions are made at the discretion of a person that is subject to this policy.

3.) Vesting of Restricted Stock and Settlement of Performance Stock Units. This policy does not apply to the automatic deduction of shares by the Company from
your restricted stock or performance stock unit account to satisfy the statutory tax withholding liability upon the vesting of restricted stock or settlement of
performance stock units. The prohibition This Policy does apply, however, to any open market sale of vested shares, including to satisfy tax liabilities.

4.) 10b5-1 Plans Plans.. This policy does not apply to trades made pursuant to a valid “10b5-1 plan” “Rule 10b5-1 Plan” approved by the Company as described

below. However, Company; however, this policy does apply to adopting, modifying, or modifying terminating a 10b5-1 Plan.

5.) Share Buybacks Company Transactions Policy. . From time to time, the Company may engage in transactions in its own securities. It is the Company’s policy to
comply with all applicable securities laws (including appropriate approvals by the board of directors or appropriate committee, if required) when engaging in
transactions in Company securities. Securities.

2 Definitions
None.

3 Policy

1. Rules

:        1)     1. When Trading Is Not Permitted. is not Permitted

Under applicable securities laws and under this policy, when you possess any material, nonpublic information about the Company or its operations, that
has not been publicly disclosed, you, together with your spouse, minor children or other adults living in your household, may not (i) buy, sell,or gift
Company Stock or Company Securities (other than in certain circumstances, pursuant to a an approved Rule 10b5-1 plan Plan as discussed below) or (ii)
pass on such information to others. others who then trade. Information is generally considered “material” if a reasonable investor would deem it to be
important in making a decision regarding the purchase or sale of the securities or that would likely have a significant effect on the

1

price of the Company Stock or Company Securities. Financial data information generally will be considered material if it shows a
positive or a negative trend or a change in the Company’s financial performance that was not evident in previously disclosed
financial data. information. Obviously, one is less likely to possess material undisclosednonpublic information of a financial nature
during the firstearly part of any quarter, in other words, soon after financial statements for the prior quarter have been published.
Conversely, one is more likely to have material undisclosednonpublic information of a financial datanature toward the end of any
quarter, and trading in the Company Stock or Company Securities is therefore more risky at that time.
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Nonfinancial information may also be “material” under the securities laws. You may not buy, sell, or gift Company Stock or Company Securities if you
have undisclosed nonpublic information about a significant event such as the loss or gain of a major customer, changes in key personnel,
commencement of or developments in significant litigation by or against the Company, etc. (in other words, any information that could positively or
negatively affect the market price of the Company Stock or Company Securities).



Information is “nonpublic” if it has not been disclosed broadly to the general public. The information must have been publicly disseminated in a manner
designed to reach investors generally, e.g., in a Company press release over the wire or filing with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) or by means of a Regulation FD-compliant webcast, and investors must be given sufficient time to fully absorb the information. The fact that
rumors, speculation, or statements attributed to unidentified sources are public is insufficient to be considered publicly disseminated even when the
information is accurate. As a general rule, for purposes of this Policy, information is considered nonpublic until the close of market following the
completion of one (1) full trading day after it has been publicly released.

The United States Securities and Exchange Commission has adopted Rule 10b5-1, which creates an affirmative defense to insider trading liability that is
designed to cover situations in which an insider can demonstrate that material, nonpublic information was not a factor in such person’s trading decision –
decision—that is, that the trade was not made “on the basis of” material, nonpublic information. The affirmative defense is available to a person
purchasing, selling, or gifting Company Stock or Company Securities while aware of material, nonpublic information if, before becoming aware of the
information, the person has adopted a written plan for trading Company Stock or Company Securities. Officers, directors, and employees (or any person
related to an officer, director, or employee) of the Company, who wish to trade on the NYSE, may enter into such a Rule 10b5-1 sales or purchase plan if
they so desire, subject to the restrictions discussed in this policy.



In addition to the foregoing restrictions, directors, officers, and certain other employees and agents of the Company as may be designated from time
to time by Noble’s President and Chief Executive Officer (or their delegee) are subject to an Addendum to Policy on Trading in Company
Stock Securities (the “Addendum”). The Company will notify you in writing if you are subject to the Addendum. The Addendum generally prohibits persons
covered by it from trading in Company Stock and Company Stock or Company Securities during quarterly blackout periods and during certain situation-
specific blackouts. Additionally, Statutory Insiders and their Closely Associated Persons (each as defined in the Addendum) also must pre-clear all
transactions in Company Stock and Company Securities as described in the Addendum and must comply with the reporting obligations as described in the
Addendum.




If you have any questions about whether you are permitted to trade in the Company StockSecurities at any particular time, you
should contact the Company’s General Counsel, who has been designated as our compliance officer for purposes of this policy
(or his their successor), with a copy to the Associate General Counsel -– Corporate.

2
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2)     2. Short Sales, Derivatives, Margin Accounts, Hedging and Pledging, and Limit Orders. Orders
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You should not make anyengage in short sales of the Company Stock or Company Stock or Company Securities, engage in
hedging or monetization transactions, purchase including any use of financial instruments such as prepaid variable forwards,
equity swaps, collars, or exchange funds or other transactions designed to offset any decrease in the market value of the
Company Stock or such other securitiesSecurities, purchase Company Securities on margin, pledge Company Stock or
Company Securities as collateral  for a loan, or trade in derivatives of a Company security,Security, such as buy or sell puts or
call options and forward transactions relating to the Company Stock or Company Securities. You should not place limit orders
for Company Stock or Company Securities that remain effective after the day on which they are placed (such as “good until
cancelled” orders).

, except under an approved Rule 10b5-1 Plan as described below.

3) 3. Liability for “Tipping” and Confidentiality. Confidentiality

You cannot have a friend, relative, or associate buy or sell stock for you at any time when you cannot do so yourself. In addition, if you give another
person a “tip” about the Company (in other words, give him or her any inside material nonpublic information), both you and the “tippee” can be held liable
under securities laws if the tippee buys or sells stock or “tips” others who buy or sell stock. Any person who obtains material nonpublic information,
whether or not he or she is an employee of the Company, should not buy or sell the Company Stock or Company Securities. Material non-
public nonpublic information should be maintained in strict confidence and should be discussed, even within the Company, only with persons who have a
“need to know.” You should exercise the utmost care and circumspection in dealing with information that may be material non-public nonpublic
information. Conversations in public places, such as hallways, elevators, restaurants, and airplanes, involving information of a sensitive or confidential
nature should be avoided. Written information should be appropriately safeguarded and should not be left where it may be seen by persons not entitled
to the information.

4) 4. Trading in Other Companies. Companies

The Company may engage in business transactions with other companies whose securities are publicly traded. traded
(“Business Partners”). Information learned in connection with transactions or relationships with these other companies may
constitute material non-publicnonpublic information about the other company. You are also prohibited from trading in the
securities of these other companiesBusiness Partners while aware of material non-publicnonpublic information about the
companies and from communicating that information to any other person for such use.

Furthermore, you should understand that, in certain situations, U.S. or other securities laws may also prohibit trading (or recommending or suggesting
that anyone else trade) in the securities of any other company (whether or not a Business Partner) while the person has material nonpublic information
obtained by reason of and in the course of the person’s employment or service with the Company that, even if not directly about the other company,
could materially affect the market price for securities of that other company.
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5) 5. Rule 10b5-1 Plans. As discussed above, any officer, director or employee (or any person related to an officer, director or
employee) of Noble may enter into a Rule 10b5-1 sale, purchase or gifting plan if they so desire, for transactions of Company
Stock on the NYSE. Note, however, that thePlans
The compliance of any Rule 10b5-1 plan Plan with the applicable rules of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission SEC is the
responsibility of the person entering into such a plan. You are advised to seek your own counsel if you choose to enter into a Rule 10b5-1 plan. Plan. In
addition, it is Noble’s policy that all Rule 10b5-1 plans Plans shall be submitted to the Company’s Legal Department for review and approval prior to their
implementation adoption or any modification or termination in accordance with the pre-clearance procedures described in the Addendum and should be
implemented only at a time that when the person is not within aware of any material nonpublic information and is not otherwise subject to a blackout or
other situation-specific restricted trading period, and when you otherwise could trade. All 10b5-1 plans Plans must, among other legal requirements,
include a ‘cooling-off period’ “cooling-off period” in accordance with applicable securities rules.

3
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6) 6. Exceptions.

In certain limited circumstances, a transaction otherwise prohibited by this policy may be permitted if, prior to the transaction,
the General Counsel or the Board of Directors of the Company determines that the transaction is not inconsistent with the
purposes of this policy.

4
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Noble Corporation PLC

Addendum to

Policy on Trading in Company Stock

Securities

Coverage1 :    Scope

This Addendum to Policy on Trading in Company Stock (this “Addendum”) applies to the directors and officers of Noble Corporation plc (“Noble”, or, together with its
consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires, the “Company”) and certain employees and consultants of the Company as may be designated from time
to time by Noble’s Chief Executive Officer (or delegee). Noble’s Chief Executive Officer (or delegee) may from time to time change the individuals who are subject to this
Addendum (other than Statutory Insiders and their Closely Associated Persons (as [as defined below) below]).

Capitalized terms used in this Addendum without definitions have their meaning set forth in the Policy.
As set forth in the Company’s Policy, on Trading in Company Stock, the Company will notify you in writing if you are subject to this Addendum and in what capacity. The
Company will also keep a list of all individuals subject to this Addendum either internally or through an external third-party system.

This Addendum is in addition to and supplements the Company’s Policy on Trading in Company Stock and is intended to facilitate
compliance by the persons subject to this Addendum with laws relating to insider trading.

2 Definitions
The For purposes of this Addendum, the following persons are subject to this Addendum:

definitions apply:

1. • Statutory Insider: means a A person within the Company who is:

• A member of the board of directors of the Company; Noble; or

• An officer subject to Section 16 of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as designated by the Company; or board of directors of Noble (also referred to
as “Officers”).

• An employee who is deemed to be a “person discharging managerial responsibilities” (PDMR) as designed by the Company.

2. Closely Associated Person: who is:

• A spouse, or a partner considered to be equivalent to a spouse in accordance with applicable law;

• a A dependent child;

• a relative who has shared the same household for at least one (1) year on the date of the transaction concerned; Other adults living in your household; or
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• a legal person, trust Any entities (such as corporations and trusts) whose transactions in Company Securities are managed or partnership, the managerial
responsibilities of which are discharged by a Statutory Insider or by a person referred to in the three bullet points immediately above, which is directly or indirectly
controlled by such a person, which is set up for you or any of the benefit of such a person, or the economic interests of which are substantially equivalent to those of
such a person. persons listed above.

3. • Other Covered Person who is:

• Any person informed that they are on a “blackout list” by the Company either internally or through an external third-party system.

Blackout
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3 Policy

1. Blackout Procedures:    

All persons subject to this Addendum are subject to the following “blackout” periods:

A-1

periods.

1. Quarterly blackout periods. Blackout Periods

The persons subject to this Addendum must refrain from engaging in transactions involving the purchase, sale or gifting of
Company Stock or Company Securities (including the adoption, modification, or termination of Rule 10b5-1 plans)Plans)
commencing on the fifteenth calendar day of the month in which each fiscal quarter ends and extending until one full trading
day has elapsed after the day on which Noble’s the Company’s quarterly or annual earnings for the applicable periodquarter
are released. A “blackout”quarterly blackout period will, therefore, typically begin on each December 15, MayMarch 15, June
15, and September 15, and endsend on the next trading day after one full trading day has elapsed after quarterly financials
have been released in respect of the prior quarter (and year, in the case of the blackout period beginning each December 15).
If earnings are released before the market opens on a Thursday, the “blackout”quarterly blackout period will extend through
that day and transactions could again occur on Friday. If earnings are released after the market opens on a Thursday, the
“blackout”blackout period will extend through that day and the next and transactions could again occur at the open of the
market on Monday.

2. Additional blackout restrictions for Statutory Insiders.In addition to the blackout period above, Statutory Insiders and their Closely
Associated Persons are advised to refrain from engagingRestrictions in transactions involving the purchase, sale or gifting of
Company Stock or Company Securities (including the adoption of Rule 10b5-1 plans) in the four trading days prior to, as well
as the four trading days immediately following, the announcement of a new share repurchase plan or the announcement of an
increase in an existing plan by the Company.Specific Circumstances



3. Additional restrictions in specific circumstances. From time to time, Noble may recommend, or require, that persons subject to this Addendum

refrain from trading for a period of time because of developments known to Noble and not yet disclosed to the public. public (referred to as a “special
blackout period”). In such a case, the persons so advised should not engage in any transaction involving the purchase, sale, or gifting of Company Stock or
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Company Securities until advised that the restriction has been terminated and should not disclose to others inside or outside of the Company the fact that
Noble has imposed a trading restriction. special blackout period on certain persons.

4. 3. Rule 10b5-1 Plans. Plans

Notwithstanding the blackout restrictions in the preceding three paragraphs, transactions in Company Stock and Company
Securities may be made during blackout and other situation-specific restricted trading periods if made pursuant to a Rule 10b5-
1 plan,Plan, so long as the adoption of the plan

• did not occur within a blackout or other situation-specific restricted trading period;

• occurred when the adopting person was not aware of material nonpublic information regarding the Company and otherwise could trade in Company
Stock and Company Securities; and

• was pre-cleared in accordance with the procedures described below, if the adopting person was a person subject to such pre-clearance procedures
at the time of adoption of the plan.



Please note that the existence of blackout periods and situation-specific trading restrictions should not be considered a safe harbor for trading during other periods,
and all individuals subject to this Addendum should use good judgment at all times, regardless of whether their transactions may be pre-cleared in accordance with
the procedures below. For example, occasions may arise when

A-2

individuals covered by this Addendum become aware prior to the
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start of a blackout period that earnings for that quarter are likely to exceed, or fall below, market expectations to an extent that is material. In such a
case, those individuals should refrain from trading (and/or seeking pre-clearance, if the pre-clearance procedures described below are applicable to the
individual) even prior to the commencement of the regular quarterly blackout period.




If you have any questions about whether you are permitted to trade in the Company StockSecurities at any particular time, you should
contact Noble’s General Counsel, who has been designated as our compliance officer for purposes of this policyPolicy and Addendum
(or his their successor), with a copy to Associate General Counsel -– Corporate.

2. Additional

Liability

for Statutory Insiders

Insiders:         In addition to the general rules set forth above, Statutory Insiders and more than 10 percent stockholders of public
companiesNoble are subject to certain additional rules governing their transactions in their company’s stock.Company Securities.
Section 16 of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 prohibits Statutory Insiders from realizing “short-swing profits” from
buying any Company Stockstock within six months before or after a sale or selling any Company Stockstock within six months before or
after a purchase. Although Section 16 is designed to prevent the abuse of inside information, it is an absolute rule, and it applies whether or not

the Statutory Insider actually possesses any material undisclosed nonpublic information. You will be notified in writing by the Company if you are a Statutory Insider.
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3. Pre-Clearance Procedures

Pre-clearance

Procedures:    The Company’s Statutory Insiders and their Closely Associated Persons are subject to the pre-clearance procedures described below.

Statutory Insiders and their Closely Associated Persons or any other of their family members or individuals in their household, may not engage in any transaction

involving the purchase, sale,or or gifting of Company Stock or Company Securities without first obtaining pre-clearance of the transaction from Noble’s General

Counsel, with a copy to Associate General Counsel - – Corporate (each as “Pre-Clearance Officer”). The pre-clearance request form is attached to this Addendum.
A request for pre-clearance should be submitted no more than three business days in advance of the proposed transaction. The Pre-clearance Pre-Clearance
Officer is under no obligation to approve a transaction submitted for pre-clearance and may determine not to permit the transaction. One Pre-clearance Pre-
Clearance Officer may not engage in any transaction involving the purchase, sale, or gift of Company Stock or Company Securities unless the other Pre-
clearance Pre-Clearance Officer has approved the transaction in accordance with the procedures set forth in this policy Policy and Addendum.

• Notwithstanding the pre-clearance procedures in the preceding paragraph, transactions in Company Stock and Company Securities do not need to be pre-
cleared with the Pre-clearance Pre-Clearance Officer if made pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 plan Plan approved and adopted in compliance with the conditions
described above in this Addendum. Addendum and in the Policy.

A-3

Reporting
Requirements 4. :     Reporting Requirements

The Company’s Statutory Insiders and their Closely Associated Persons are subject to the reporting requirements described below.

1. Under U.S. Law. Law

Statutory Insiders and their Closely Associated Persons are required to report their beneficial ownership of and transactions in the
Company Stock or
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Securities to the United States Securities and Exchange CommissionSEC on certain forms (Form 3, Form 4, and Form 5). , subject
to certain exceptions. Note that most transactions in Company StockSecurities by Statutory Insiders must be reported within two
business days after the date the transaction occurs.

2. Under European Union and Danish Regulations. Statutory Insiders and their Closely Associated Persons are required to report
their ownership and transactions in the Company Stock or Company Securities to the Danish Financial Supervisory Authority. Note
that most transactions in Company Stock by Statutory Insiders and their Closely Associated Persons must be reported within two
business days after the date the transaction occurs.

3. Timely Information to the Company and Liability. Liability

Immediately upon completing a transaction in Company Stock or Company Securities, Statutory Insiders or their Closely Associated
Persons should contact Noble’s General Counsel, with a copy to Associate General Counsel-CorporateCounsel – Corporate in order
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to provide the Company with the required details on the transaction to facilitate the Company’s filing of the required forms. forms with
the SEC. It is the Statutory Insider or their Closely Associated Persons who must ensure that the Company in each individual case
and well ahead of the expiry of the deadlines for notification will receive an adequate notification that may form the basis of the
Company's timely notification on behalf of the Statutory Insider and his/her Closely Associated Persons. Insider. Failure by a
Statutory Insider or a Closely Associated Person to comply with their duty to report, including their involvement in an act of violation
of the duty to report, may, depending on the circumstances, result in a fine or adverse employment actions (for Company directors
and employees)

.
A-4
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NOBLE CORPORATION PLC
POLICY ON TRADING IN COMPANY STOCK

PRE-CLEARANCE APPROVAL FORM

NAME:



Noble Corporation PLC

TITLE: Policy on Trading in
Company Securities

Pre-Clearance Approval
Form

I hereby request pre-clearance to make the
following transaction(s) related to securities

of Noble Corporation plc:

Transaction Information
Please enter transaction details.

Name:

Purchase
Or other

acquisition
(number of

shares)

Sale
Or other

disposition
(number

of shares)Title:




If you are a
Closely
Associated
Person, provide
Name and Title
of Company
Statutory Insider:

a.
Company
Shares

b.

Entry
into
10b5-1
Plan

(Orders for Transactions must be
completed within three [3]

business days after the receipt of
approval.)

(Orders for Transactions must be completed within three (3)
business days after the receipt of approval.)



c.
 Other (provide written description below)

The undersigned hereby confirms they have reviewed and are in compliance with the
attached Policy on Trading in Company Stock Securities and further certifies that they are
not, and will not at the time of Transaction be, in possession of material, nonpublic
information relating to the Company. For Directors and Officers, the undersigned also
hereby confirms that, based on today’s share price, after giving effect to the requested trade,
the undersigned will continue to meet, or remain on track to meet, the share ownership
requirements set forth in the Share Ownership Policy.

REQUIRED APPROVAL

______________________________        Date:    _______________

Signature Date

Required Approval

Designated Pre-Clearance Officer
(Obtain the signature of the Company’s General Counsel)

Date

______________________________        Date:    _______________
Alternate Pre-Clearance Officer
(Obtain the signature of the Company’s Associate General Counsel – Counsel—Corporate)

Date



I hereby request pre-clearance to make the
following Document # ASC_5500.0_D

transaction(s) related to securities of Noble
Corporation plc:

TRANSACTION INFORMATION
Please enter transaction details.UNCONTROLLED WHEN
PRINTED

Owned by: Associate General
Counsel & Corporate
Secretary

PURCHASE
or other acquisition
(number of shares)

SALE or
GIFT

or other
disposition
(number of

shares)

a.    Company Shares

b. Entry into 10b5-1 Plan

c. Other
(provide written
description below)






Exhibit 21.1

NOBLE CORPORATION plc SUBSIDIARIES (as of December 31,
2023 December 31, 2024)



Name   State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization

Arethusa Off-Shore, LLC Delaware

Brasdril Sociedade de Perfurações Ltda. Brazil

Bully 1 (Switzerland) GmbH Switzerland

Bully 1 (US) Corporation Delaware
Bully 2 (Switzerland) GmbH Switzerland

Coastal Trading de México, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico

Diamond Finance, LLC Delaware

Diamond Foreign Asset Company Cayman Islands
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__________________________________    Date:    _________________
Signature

Date Last
Approved:
31 Jan
2025




Diamond M Corporation Texas

Diamond M Servicios, S.A. Venezuela

Diamond Offshore (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda

Diamond Offshore (Brazil) L.L.C. Delaware

Diamond Offshore (Singapore) Pte Ltd Singapore

Diamond Offshore (Switzerland) GmbH Switzerland

Diamond Offshore (Trinidad) L.L.C. Delaware

Diamond Offshore Development Company Delaware

Diamond Offshore Drilling (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda

Diamond Offshore Drilling (Cayman Trust) Private Trust
Company Limited

Cayman Islands

Diamond Offshore Drilling (Nigeria) Limited Nigeria

Diamond Offshore Drilling (Overseas) L.L.C. Delaware

Diamond Offshore Drilling Company N.V. Curaçao

Diamond Offshore Drilling Limited Cayman Islands

Diamond Offshore Drilling Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia

Diamond Offshore Drilling Services GmbH Switzerland

Diamond Offshore Enterprises Limited UK

Diamond Offshore Finance Company Delaware

Diamond Offshore General, LLC Delaware

Diamond Offshore Holding, L.L.C. Delaware

Diamond Offshore International Limited Cayman Islands

Diamond Offshore International, L.L.C. Delaware

Diamond Offshore Leasing Ltd. Labuan

Diamond Offshore Limited UK

Diamond Offshore Management Company Delaware

Diamond Offshore Netherlands B.V. Netherlands

Diamond Offshore Services Limited Bermuda

Diamond Offshore Services, LLC Delaware

Diamond Offshore, LLC Delaware

Diamond Rig Investments Limited UK

Frontier Driller Cayman, Ltd. Cayman Islands

Frontier Driller Kft. Hungary

Frontier Driller, Inc. Delaware

Frontier Driller, Ltd. Cayman Islands/Luxembourg

Horizon56 A/S Denmark

Horizon56 Norge AS Norway

Maersk Drilling Nigeria JVCO Limited Nigeria

Maersk Drilling Nigeria Operations Limited Nigeria

Maurer Technology LLC Mexdrill Offshore, S. de R.L. de
C.V.

Mexico






Exhibit 21.1




Name State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization

Mexdrill, L.L.C. Delaware

M-S Drilling S.A. Panama

ND Myanmar Limited Myanmar

NDI Cayman Limited Cayman Islands

NDSI Holding Limited Cayman Islands

NE do Brasil Participacoes E Investimentos Ltda. Brazil

NE Drilling do Brasil Serviços de Petróleo Ltda. Brazil

NE Drilling Servicos do Brasil Ltda. Brazil

NL Cayman Limited Cayman Islands

NL III Cayman Limited Cayman Islands

Noble 2018-I Guarantor LLC Cayman Islands

Noble 2018-II Guarantor LLC Cayman Islands

Noble 2018-III Guarantor LLC Delaware

Noble 2018-IV Guarantor LLC Cayman Islands

Noble Asset Mexico LLC Delaware

Noble BD LLC Delaware
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Noble BD LLC Delaware

Noble Bill Jennings LLC Delaware

Noble Boudreaux Limited Cayman Islands
Noble Campeche Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Cayman Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Cayman SCS Holding Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Contracting II GmbH Switzerland

Noble Contracting Offshore Drilling (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia

Noble Corporation 2022 Limited United Kingdom

Noble Corporation Holding LLC Cayman Islands

Noble Corporation Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands

Noble Deepwater (B) Sdn Bhd Brunei

Noble Downhole Technology Ltd. Cayman Islands
Noble Drilling (Carmen) Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Drilling (Ghana) Limited Ghana

Noble Drilling (Guyana) Inc. Guyana

Noble Drilling (Land Support) Limited United Kingdom

Noble Drilling (Luxembourg) S.à r.l. Luxembourg

Noble Drilling (Myanmar) Limited Myanmar

Noble Drilling (Nederland) II B.V. Netherlands

Noble Drilling (Norway) AS Norway
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Name State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization

Noble Drilling (TVL) Ltd. Cayman Islands

Noble Drilling (U.S.) LLC Delaware

Noble Drilling A/S Denmark

Noble Drilling Americas LLC Cayman Islands

Noble Drilling Arabia Company Limited Saudi Arabia

Noble Drilling Arabia Services LLC Delaware

Noble Drilling Australia Pty Ltd Australia

Noble Drilling Contracting (Egypt) LLC Egypt

Noble Drilling Deepwater A/S Denmark

Noble Drilling Deepwater Egypt LLC Egypt

Noble Drilling Doha LLC Doha, Qatar

Noble Drilling DS A/S Denmark

Noble Drilling Egypt LLC Egypt

Noble Drilling Exploration Company LLC Delaware

Noble Drilling Holding LLC Cayman Islands

Noble Drilling Holdings (Cyprus) Limited Cyprus
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Noble
Drilling
Singapore
Pte. Ltd.

Singapore

Name State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization

Noble Drilling International GmbH Switzerland

Noble Drilling JS Services, Lda. Angola

Noble Drilling Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia

Noble Drilling México, S. De R.L. De C.V. Mexico
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ob e g é co, S  e  e C e co

Noble Drilling Netherlands B.V. Netherlands

Noble Drilling NHIL LLC Cayman Islands

Noble Drilling Nigeria Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore

Noble Drilling Norge AS Norway

Noble Drilling North Sea A/S Denmark

Noble Drilling Offshore (Labuan) Pte. Ltd. Labuan, Malaysia

Noble Drilling Offshore International A/S Denmark

Noble Drilling Offshore Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Drilling Operating Services A/S Denmark

Noble Drilling Operations Americas A/S Denmark

Noble Drilling Operations Ghana Ltd. Ghana

Noble Drilling Operations Mexico S.A. de C.V. Mexico

Noble Drilling Poland sp. Z o.o. Poland

Noble Drilling Services (Canada) Corporation Nova Scotia, Canada

Noble Drilling Services 2 LLC Cayman Islands

Noble Drilling Services 3 LLC Delaware

Noble Drilling Services 6 LLC Cayman Islands

Noble Drilling Services Azerbaijan LLC Azerbaijan

Noble Drilling Services LLC Cayman Islands

Noble Drilling Services S.A. de C.V. Mexico

Noble Drilling Services Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore

Noble Drilling Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore

Noble Drilling UK Limited United Kingdom

Noble Drilling USA Inc. Delaware

Noble Drilling West Africa Limited Nigeria

Noble Drillship I Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore
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Name State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization

Noble Drillship II Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore

Noble Drillship III Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore

Noble Drillship IV Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore

Noble Drillships 2 S.à r.l. Luxembourg

Noble Drillships Holdings 2, Ltd. Cayman Islands

Noble Drillships Holdings, Ltd. Cayman Islands

Noble Drillships S.à r.l. Luxembourg

Noble DT LLC Delaware

Noble Eagle LLC Delaware

Noble Earl Frederickson LLC Delaware

Noble Engineering & Development de Venezuela C.A. Venezuela

Noble FDR Holdings Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Finance Company Cayman Islands

Noble Finance II LLC Delaware

Noble Gene Rosser Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Highlander UK Ltd. United Kingdom

Noble Holdco (UK) Limited UK

Noble Holding (Luxembourg) S.à. r.l. Luxembourg
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Noble Holding (Netherlands) B.V. Netherlands

Noble Holding (U.S.) Eagle LLC Delaware

Noble Holding (U.S.) LLC Cayman Islands

Noble Holding Europe S.à r.l. Luxembourg

Noble Holding International Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Holding Land Support Limited Scotland

Noble Inspirer Integrator Operations AS Norway

Noble Integrator Operations As Norway

Noble Interceptor Norge A/S Denmark
Noble International Finance Company Cayman Islands

Noble International Services LLC Delaware

Noble Intrepid Operations AS Norway

Noble Invincible Norge A/S Denmark
Noble Invincible Operation AS Norway

Noble Labuan Ltd. Labuan

Noble Leasing (Switzerland) GmbH Switzerland

Noble Leasing III (Switzerland) GmbH Switzerland

Noble Leasing V (Switzerland) GmbH Switzerland

Noble Mexico Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Mexico Services Limited Cayman Islands

Noble NBD Cayman LP Cayman Islands

Noble NBD GP Holding Cayman Islands

Noble NBD LP Holding Cayman Islands

Noble NDC Holding (Cyprus) Limited Cyprus

Noble NDUS Holdings UK Limited United Kingdom

Noble NDUS UK Leasing Limited United Kingdom

Noble NDUS UK Ltd United Kingdom

Noble NEC Holdings Limited United Kingdom

Noble Newco Sub Limited Cayman Islands

Noble North Africa Limited Cayman Islands
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Name State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization

Noble Offshore (Ireland) Limited  Ireland

Noble Offshore (North Sea) Ltd. Cayman Islands

Noble Offshore Contracting Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Offshore Crew Management (Guernsey) Limited Guernsey

Noble Offshore Drilling (UK) Ltd UK

Noble Offshore Drilling, Inc. Delaware

Noble Offshore Mexico Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Offshore Services de Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico

Noble Pacific Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Reacher Operations AS Norway

Noble Resources Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Rig Holding 2 Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Rig Holding I Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Rig Holdings Limited Cayman Islands

Noble Rigworld Ghana Limited Ghana

Noble SA Limited Cayman Islands

Noble SCS Cayman LP Cayman Islands

Noble Services Company LLC Delaware

Noble Services International Limited Cayman Islands

Noblecorp Drilling Holdings Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore

Offshore Drilling Services (Netherlands) B.V. Netherlands

Offshore Drilling Services of Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico

Pacific Bora Ltd. Liberia

P ifi D t C t ti Ltd BVI

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2025 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

144/154

Pacific Deepwater Construction Ltd BVI

Pacific Drilling Administrator Limited BVI

Pacific Drilling Company LLC Cayman Islands

Pacific Drilling do Brasil Investimentos Ltda. Brazil

Pacific Drilling do Brasil Serviços de Perfurção Ltda. Brazil

Pacific Drilling Finance S.à r.l. Luxembourg

Pacific Drilling Ghana Ltd Ghana
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Name State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization

Pacific Drilling Holding (Delaware) LLC Delaware

Pacific Drilling Holding (Gibraltar) Limited Gibraltar

Pacific Drilling International Ltd BVI

Pacific Drilling International, LLC Delaware

Pacific Drilling Limited Liberia

Pacific Drilling Manpower Ltd. BVI

Pacific Drilling Manpower S.à r.l. Luxembourg
Pacific Drilling Manpower, Inc. Delaware

Pacific Drilling N.V. Neth. Antilles

Pacific Drilling Netherlands Coöperatief U.A. Netherlands

Pacific Drilling Operations Limited BVI

Pacific Drilling Operations, Inc. Delaware

Pacific Drilling S.A. Luxembourg

Pacific Drilling Services, Inc. Delaware

Pacific Drilling South America 1 Ltd Limited BVI

Pacific Drilling South America 2 Ltd Limited BVI

Pacific Drilling V Limited BVI

Pacific Drilling VII Limited BVI

Pacific Drilling VIII Limited BVI

Pacific Drilling, Inc. Delaware
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Name State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization

Pacific Drilling, LLC New York

Pacific Drillship México, S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico

Pacific Drillship Nigeria Limited BVI

Pacific Drillship S.à r.l. Luxembourg
Pacific International Drilling West Africa Limited Nigeria

Pacific Menergy Ghana Ltd Ghana

Pacific Mistral Ltd. Liberia

Pacific Santa Ana Limited BVI

Pacific Scirocco Ltd. Liberia

Pacific Sharav S.à r.l. Luxembourg

PDM Viking Ghana Ltd. Ghana

PT Aqza Dharma Indonesia

Sedco Dubai LLC Dubai, UAE

Storm Nigeria Limited Nigeria

The Drilling Company of 1972 A/S Denmark

Triton Engineering Services Company LLC Delaware

Triton Engineering Services Company S A Venezuela
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Triton Engineering Services Company, S.A. Venezuela

Triton International de Mexico S.A. De C.V. Mexico

Triton International LLC Delaware

 Z North Sea, LLC

Delaware
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Post Effective
Amendment No. 1 on Form S-8 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-
280726), the Registration Statement on Form S-3ASR (No. 333-267941) and the
Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-267941) S-8 (Nos. 333-267698, 333-
279586 and Form S-8 (No. 333-267698) 333-283029) of Noble Corporation plc of our
report dated February 23, 2024 February 18, 2025 relating to the financial statements
and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, of Noble Corporation
plc (Successor), which appears in this Form 10-K.


/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
February 23, 2024





Exhibit 23.2







CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements
on Form S-3 (No. 333-267941) and Form S-8 (No. 333-267698) of Noble Corporation
plc of our report dated February 17, 2022 relating to the financial statements of Noble
Corporation plc (Predecessor), which appears in this Form 10-K.


/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
February 23, 2024 18, 2025
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Noble Corporation plc, an England and Wales company

I, Robert W. Eifler, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Noble
Corporation plc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and
procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial
reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the
registrant’s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the
registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors:
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a) All significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that
involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Robert W. Eifler February 23,
2024 18, 2025

Robert W. Eifler Date

President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer) of Noble Corporation plc, an a public limited
company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales
company






EXHIBIT 31.2

Noble Corporation plc, an England and Wales company

I, Richard B. Barker, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Noble
Corporation plc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and
procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial
reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under
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over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the
registrant’s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the
registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that
involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

 

/s/ Richard B. Barker February 23,
2024 18, 2025

Richard B. Barker Date

Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer) of Noble Corporation plc, an a
public limited company incorporated under the laws of England
and Wales company








EXHIBIT 32.1

Noble Corporation plc, an England and Wales company

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
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In connection with the Annual Report of Noble Corporation plc, an England
and Wales company (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December
31, 2023 December 31, 2024, as filed with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert W. Eifler, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best
of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.



February 23, 2024
/s/ Robert W. Eifler February 18,

2025

Robert W.
Eifler

Date

President
and Chief
Executive
Officer
(Principal
Executive
Officer) of
Noble
Corporation
plc, an a
public
limited
company
incorporated
under the
laws of
England
and Wales
company








EXHIBIT 32.2

Noble Corporation plc, an England and Wales company

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Noble Corporation plc, an England
and Wales company (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December
31, 2023 December 31, 2024, as filed with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Richard B. Barker, Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
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Company.


February 23, 2024
/s/ Richard B. Barker February 18,

2025

Richard B.
Barker

Date

Senior Executive
Vice President
and Chief
Financial Officer
(Principal
Financial
Officer) of
Noble
Corporation plc,
an a public
limited company
incorporated
under the laws
of England and
Wales company
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Noble Corporation plc



Clawback Policy



Effective October 2, 2023



1. Purpose

    The Board believes that it is in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders to create and maintain a culture that emphasizes integrity and
accountability and that reinforces the Company’s pay-for-performance
compensation philosophy. The Board has therefore adopted this Policy which
provides for the recoupment of Recoverable Compensation in the event that
the Company is required to prepare a Restatement due to material
noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under the federal
securities laws. This Policy is designed to comply with Section 10D of the
Exchange Act, the rules promulgated thereunder, and the listing standards of
the national securities exchange on which the Company’s securities are
listed. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in context will have the
meanings set forth in Section 11.

2. Administration and Interpretation of Policy

The Board shall have full authority to administer this Policy; provided
that, the Board may delegate any of its powers under this Policy to a
committee of the Board subject to the specific delegation requirements set
forth in Section 7. Actions of the Board or such committee pursuant to this
Policy shall be taken by the vote of a majority of its members. The Board or
such committee shall, subject to the provisions of this Policy, make such
determinations and interpretations and take such actions in connection with
this Policy as it deems necessary, appropriate or advisable. It is intended that
this Policy be interpreted in a manner that is consistent with the requirements
of Section 10D of the Exchange Act and the applicable rules or standards
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of Section 10D of the Exchange Act and the applicable rules or standards
adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission or any national
securities exchange on which the Company’s securities are listed. Any
determinations made by the Board or such committees, not inconsistent with
the terms and conditions of this Policy, shall be final and binding on all
affected individuals (including Covered Persons).

3. Recoupment; Restatement; Method of Recoupment

If the Company is required to undertake a Restatement, the Board or
such committee shall require reimbursement or forfeiture of all Recoverable
Compensation Received, subject to Section 7 herein.

Subject to applicable law, the Board or such committee may seek to
recoup such Recoverable Compensation by requiring any Covered Person to
repay such amount to the Company; by a set-off of a Covered Person’s other
compensation; by reducing future compensation; or by such other means or
combination of means as the Board or such committee, in its sole discretion,
determines to be appropriate.

4. Limitation on Recovery

    The right to recovery will be limited to only compensation that qualifies as
Recoverable Compensation that is within the Applicable Period. In no event
shall the Company be required to award Covered Persons any additional
payment if the restated or accurate financial results would have resulted in a
higher Incentive-Based Compensation payment.

5. No Indemnification

    The Company shall not indemnify any Covered Person against the loss of
any incorrectly awarded Incentive-Based Compensation.



6. Amendment; Termination

The Board may amend this Policy from time to time in its discretion
and shall amend this Policy as it deems necessary to reflect final rules or
additional standards adopted by a national securities exchange on which the
Company’s securities are listed. The Board may terminate this Policy at any
time.

7. Impracticability

        The Board shall recover any Recoverable Compensation in accordance
with this Policy except to the extent that the Compensation Committee of the
Board or a majority of the independent directors on the Board determines
such recovery would be impracticable because:

    (A) The direct expense paid to a third party to assist in enforcing this Policy
would exceed the amount to be recovered;

    (B) Recovery would violate home country law where that law was adopted
prior to November 28, 2022; or

    (C) Recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax-qualified retirement plan,
under which benefits are broadly available to employees of the Company, to
fail to meet the requirements of 26 U.S.C. 401(a)(13) or 26 U.S.C. 411(a) and
regulations thereunder.

8. Other Recoupment Rights

    The Board intends that this Policy will be applied to the fullest extent of the
law. The Board may require that any employment or service agreement,
equity award agreement, or similar agreement entered into on or after the
Effective Date shall, as a condition to the grant of any benefit thereunder,
require a Covered Person to agree to abide by the terms of this Policy. Any
right of recoupment under this Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any
other remedies or rights of recoupment that may be available to the Company
pursuant to the terms of any similar policy in any employment agreement,
equity award agreement, or similar agreement and any other legal remedies
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available to the Company.

9. Successors

    This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all Covered Persons
and their beneficiaries, heirs, executors, administrators or other legal
representatives.

10. Disclosures

Appropriate disclosures and other filings with respect to this Policy
will be made in accordance with Rule 10D-1 of the Exchange Act and the
Company’s applicable exchange listing standards.

11. Definitions

For purposes of this Policy, the following terms shall have the
following meanings:

Applicable Period. “Applicable Period” means the three complete fiscal
years preceding the determination a Restatement is required, as determined
by the Board or such committeeand any transition period (that results from a
change in the Company’s fiscal year) within or immediately following those
three completed fiscal years.

Board. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

Company.“Company” meansNoble Corporation plc.

Covered Person. “Covered Person” means any of the Company’s current
and former executive officers (as determined by the Board in accordance with
Section 10D of the Exchange Act), the rules promulgated thereunder, and the
listing standards of the national securities exchange on which the Company’s
securities are listed. Recoverable Compensation received prior to a person
becoming Covered Person will not be required to be recouped.



Effective Date. “Effective Date” means the date this Policy is adopted by the
Board and shall apply to Incentive-Based Compensation (including Incentive-
Based Compensation granted pursuant to arrangements existing prior to this
Effective Date).

Exchange Act. “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended.

Financial Reporting Measure. “Financial Reporting Measure” means (a) any
measure that is determined and presented in accordance with the accounting
principles used in preparing the Company’s financial statements (including
“non-GAAP” financial measures, such as those appearing in earnings
releases or MD&A), and any measure that is derived wholly or in part from
such measure, such as revenues, EBITDA, or net income and (b) stock price
and total shareholder return. Examples of Financial Reporting Measures
include, but are not limited to, measures based on: revenues, net income,
operating income, profitability of one or more reportable segments, financial
ratios (e.g., accounts receivable turnover and inventory turnover rates), net
assets or net asset value per share, earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization; funds from operations and adjusted funds from
operations, liquidity measures (e.g., working capital, operating cash flow),
return measures (e.g., return on invested capital, return on assets)earnings
measures (e.g., earnings per share);; any of such Financial Reporting
Measures relative to a peer group, where the Company’s Financial Reporting
Measure is subject to a Restatement; and tax basis income.

Incentive-Based Compensation. “Incentive-Based Compensation” means
any compensation that is granted, earned, or vested based wholly or in part
upon the attainment of a Financial Reporting Measure, including, but not
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limited to: (a) non-equity incentive plan awards that are earned solely or in
part by satisfying a Financial Reporting Measure performance goal; (b)
bonuses paid from a bonus pool, where the size of the pool is determined
solely or in part by satisfying a Financial Reporting Measure performance
goal; (c) other cash awards based on satisfaction of a Financial Reporting
Measure performance goal; (d) restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock
options, stock appreciation rights, and performance share units that are
granted or vest solely or in part on satisfying a Financial Reporting Measure
performance goal; and (e) proceeds from the sale of shares acquired through
an incentive plan that were granted or vested solely or in part on satisfying a
Financial Reporting Measure performance goal. Compensation that would not
be considered Incentive-Based Compensation includes, but is not limited to,
any salaries, bonuses paid solely on satisfying subjective standards (such as
demonstrating leadership, and/or completion of a specified employment
period), non-equity incentive plan awards earned solely on satisfying strategic
or operational measures, equity awards that vest solely on the passage of
time, and discretionary bonuses or other compensation that are not paid from
a bonus pool that is determined by satisfying a Financial Reporting Measure
performance goal.

Policy. “Policy” means this Noble Corporation plc Clawback Policy.

Received. Incentive-Based Compensation is deemed “Received” in the
Company’s fiscal period during which the Financial Reporting Measure
specified in the Incentive-Based Compensation award is attained, even if the
payment or grant of the Incentive-Based Compensation occurs after the end
of that period.

Recoverable Compensation. “Recoverable Compensation” means the
amount of Incentive-Based Compensation received that exceeds the amount
of Incentive-Based Compensation that otherwise would have been received
had it been determined based on the restated amounts, and must be
computed without regard to any taxes paid. For Incentive-Based
Compensation based on stock price or total shareholder return, where the
amount of erroneously awarded compensation is not subject to mathematical
recalculation directly from the information in the Accounting Restatement, the
amount must be based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the
Accounting Restatement on the stock price or total shareholder return upon
which the Incentive-Based Compensation was received; and the Company
must maintain documentation of the determination of that reasonable
estimate and provide such documentation to the exchange on which the
Company’s securities are listed.

Restatement. “Restatement” means an accounting restatement of any of the
Company’s financial statements due to the Company’s material
noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under U.S. securities
laws, regardless of whether the Company’s or Covered Person’s misconduct
was the cause for such restatement. “Restatement” includes any required
accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial
statements that is material to the previously issued financial statements
(commonly referred to as “Big R” restatements), or that would result in a
material misstatement if the error were corrected in the current period or left
uncorrected in the current period (commonly referred to as “little r”
restatements).
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DISCLAIMER

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE REFINITIV
CORPORATE DISCLOSURES DELTA REPORT™ IS A COMPARISON OF TWO
FINANCIALS PERIODIC REPORTS. THERE MAY BE MATERIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR
INACCURACIES IN THE REPORT INCLUDING
THE TEXT AND THE COMPARISON DATA AND TABLES. IN NO WAY DOES REFINITIV OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY ASSUME
ANY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS MADE BASED UPON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS
REPORT. USERS ARE ADVISED TO
REVIEW THE APPLICABLE COMPANY’S ACTUAL SEC FILINGS BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT
OR OTHER DECISIONS.
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